

AIR CONDITIONING CONTROL SYSTEMS

MELANS Centralized Controller Technical Manual 3rd edition (Ver. 1.00)

- ► AE-200A/AE-50A/EW-50A Ver. 7.51
- ► AE-200E/AE-50E/EW-50E Ver. 7.51

Safety precautions

1. Contents of This Document	1
2. Outline of Product	2
[1] Outline	2
[2] Monitor/Operation	
[2] Monitoring/operation on LCD screen of AE-200 main unit	ວ ເ
<1> Monitoring/operation on Leep screen of AL-200 main unit	3 4
[2] Specification	······
[5] Specification of AE 200/AE 50	0
<1> Specification of EW 50	0
Specification of EW-50	
[4] Centralized air conditioning control	۵
<1> Function List	8
<2> Number of COnnected units and M-NET addresses	14
<3> Images of LCD scieens on AE-200 main unit	10
<5> List of icons	24 27
<6> Centralized monitoring/operation by Integrated Centralized Control Web	27
<7> Plan view function	
[5] License	12
<1> License list	42 42
<7> Product list	46
<3> Outline of licenses	
[6] Connectable models	10
<1>List of connectable models	49 40
<2> Models subject to energy management and display items	
<3> Models compatible with apportioned electricity billing function	
[7] Comparison of new and old controllers and devices	52
<1> Differences between AF-200 and AG-150	52
<2> Differences among EW-50. EB-50 and GB-50ADA	
<3> Differences between AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 and BAC-HD150 (BM adapter)	
[8] BACnet [®] connection	57
<1> Outline	
<2> System configuration diagram	
<3> List of functions for BACnet®	
<4> Power consumption on BACnet®	60
<5> Images of BACnet® Setting Tool screen	62
3. System Design Flow	64
A System Configuration	
4. System configuration	66
[1] System configuration	66
[2] Controllers applicable to functions	67
[3] M-NET transmission line of AE-200	67
[4] Use of expansion controllers AE-50 and EW-50	68
<1> About integrated control	
<2> Examples of use	69
[5] Connection diagram patterns	71
[6] BACnet [®] system configuration	

CONTENTS

[7] System chart for each function	82
<1> System configuration for apportioned electricity billing function	82
<2> System configuration for peak-cut control (demand) function	86
<3> System configuration for energy management function	87
[8] Wiring	88
<1> Kinds of wiring	88
<2> M-NET transmission cable length	
<3> LAN cable length	
<4> Length of other lines	
[9] Power supply factor for M-NET	90
<1> Power consumption factor and power supply factor	90
<2> Setting of power supply connector	91
<3> Power supply unit for transmission line	93
[10] Restrictions on system when more than one model is c	onnected95
<1> Connection of two sets of AE-200/EW-50 and BM adapter	95
<2> Possibility of connection	
[11] Pulse input for measurement	
<1> Functions that can use pulse input for measurement	100
<2> Capturing pulses from electricity meter	
<3> Electricity meter used for pulse input	
[12] LAN system configuration	
<1> LAN setting procedures	
<2> Recommended devices for LAN connection	
<3> Number of devices connected to LAN	
<4> Setting for remote monitoring function	
<5> Issue of error notification e-mail	111
5. External Input/Output	119
[1] Outline	
[2] External input function	119
<1> External signal input function	119
<2> External signal input specifications	
<3> Operations of external signal input	
<4> Level signal and pulse signals (12 or 24 VDC)	
<5> Recommended circuit	
<6> Emergency stop restoration mode	
[3] External output function	
<1> External signal output function	
<2> External signal output specifications	
<3> Operation of external signal output	
<4> Recommended circuit	
[4] Pulse signal input function	
<1> Pulse signal input specifications	
<2> Recommended circuit	
6. DIDO Controller/PI Controller/AI Controller	
[1] Specification	197
<1> DIDO controller PAC-YG66DCA	127
<2> PI controller	
<3> AI controller	

CONTENTS

[2] Outline	130
[3] DIDO controller	131
<1> Connection with DIDO controller	131
<2> Connection of the DIDO controller and signal lines	131
<3> Field supplied parts for the DIDO controller	136
<4> Monitoring/operation by DIDO controller	137
[4] PI controller	
<1> Connection of the PI controller.	141
<2> Connection of PI controller and the signal wire	141
<3> Field supplied parts for the PI controller	143
[5] Al controller	144
<1> Connection for the Al controller	144
<2> Connecting sensors to the AL controller	144
<3> Connecting upper/lower limit alarm (Non voltage contact)	146
<4> Field-supplied parts for the AI controller.	
[6] Installation/Wiring method (applicable to all controllers)	4 4 0
[0] Installation/wiring method (applicable to all controllers)	140
<1> Installation	140
	150
7. Schedule Function	151
[1] Outline	151
[2] Annual/Weekly/Today schedule	153
<1> Setting on main unit LCD screen	154
<2> Setting on Web browser	155
<3> Weekly schedule of TG-2000A	157
8. Energy Management Function	158
8. Energy Management Function	158
8. Energy Management Function	158 158
8. Energy Management Function	158 158 159
 8. Energy Management Function [1] Outline [2] Electric energy calculation method <1> Calculation of electric energy 	158 158 159 159
 8. Energy Management Function [1] Outline [2] Electric energy calculation method <1> Calculation of electric energy <2> Transition of energy management screens 	158 158 159 159 160
 8. Energy Management Function [1] Outline [2] Electric energy calculation method <1> Calculation of electric energy <2> Transition of energy management screens <3> Apportionment mode (base data for apportionment) 	158 158 159 159 160 162
 8. Energy Management Function [1] Outline [2] Electric energy calculation method <1> Calculation of electric energy <2> Transition of energy management screens <3> Apportionment mode (base data for apportionment) <4> Selection of apportionment mode when more than one models are connected 	158 158 159 160 162 162 162
 8. Energy Management Function [1] Outline [2] Electric energy calculation method <1> Calculation of electric energy <2> Transition of energy management screens <3> Apportionment mode (base data for apportionment) <4> Selection of apportionment mode when more than one models are connected <5> Setting of electricity meter for apportionment <6> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection only of 	158 159 159 160 162 162 163
 8. Energy Management Function [1] Outline [2] Electric energy calculation method <1> Calculation of electric energy <2> Transition of energy management screens <3> Apportionment mode (base data for apportionment) <4> Selection of apportionment mode when more than one models are connected <5> Setting of electricity meter for apportionment. <6> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection only of CITY MULTI) 	158 159 160 162 162 162 163 164
 8. Energy Management Function [1] Outline [2] Electric energy calculation method <1> Calculation of electric energy <2> Transition of energy management screens <3> Apportionment mode (base data for apportionment) <4> Selection of apportionment mode when more than one models are connected <5> Setting of electricity meter for apportionment. <6> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection only of CITY MULTI) <7> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection only of CITY MULTI) 	158 159 159 160 162 162 163 164 164
 8. Energy Management Function [1] Outline [2] Electric energy calculation method <1> Calculation of electric energy <2> Transition of energy management screens <3> Apportionment mode (base data for apportionment) <4> Selection of apportionment mode when more than one models are connected <5> Setting of electricity meter for apportionment. <6> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection only of CITY MULTI) <7> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection only of CITY MULTI) <8> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection of apport on the case of connection	158 159 160 162 162 163 164 165
 8. Energy Management Function [1] Outline [2] Electric energy calculation method <1> Calculation of electric energy <2> Transition of energy management screens <3> Apportionment mode (base data for apportionment). <4> Selection of apportionment mode when more than one models are connected <5> Setting of electricity meter for apportionment. <6> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection only of CITY MULTI) <7> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection only of CITY MULTI) <8> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI) 	158 159 160 162 162 163 164 165 166
 8. Energy Management Function [1] Outline [2] Electric energy calculation method <1> Calculation of electric energy <2> Transition of energy management screens <3> Apportionment mode (base data for apportionment) <4> Selection of apportionment mode when more than one models are connected <5> Setting of electricity meter for apportionment. <6> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection only of CITY MULTI) <8> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI) <8> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI) <8> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI) <8> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI) <8> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI) <9> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI) 	158 159 160 162 162 162 163 164 165 166
 8. Energy Management Function [1] Outline [2] Electric energy calculation method. <1> Calculation of electric energy <2> Transition of energy management screens <3> Apportionment mode (base data for apportionment). <4> Selection of apportionment mode when more than one models are connected <5> Setting of electricity meter for apportionment. <6> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection only of CITY MULTI) <8> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI) <8> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI) <8> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI) and Mr. Slim). <9> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI and Mr. Slim). 	158 159 159 160 162 162 163 164 165 166 167
 8. Energy Management Function [1] Outline [2] Electric energy calculation method <1> Calculation of electric energy <2> Transition of energy management screens <3> Apportionment mode (base data for apportionment) <4> Selection of apportionment mode when more than one models are connected <5> Setting of electricity meter for apportionment. <6> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection only of CITY MULTI) <7> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection of cITY MULTI) <8> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection of cITY MULTI) <8> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI and Mr. Slim) <10> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection only of Mr. Slim) <10> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection only of Mr. Slim) <10> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection only of Mr. Slim) 	158 159 159 160 162 162 163 164 165 166 167 167
 8. Energy Management Function [1] Outline [2] Electric energy calculation method <1> Calculation of electric energy <2> Transition of energy management screens <3> Apportionment mode (base data for apportionment). <4> Selection of apportionment mode when more than one models are connected <5> Setting of electricity meter for apportionment. <6> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection only of CITY MULTI) <8> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI) <8> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI) <8> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI) <10> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection only of Mr. Slim) <10> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection only of Mr. Slim) <10> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection only of Mr. Slim) <10> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection only of Mr. Slim) <10> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection only of Mr. Slim) <10> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection only of Mr. Slim) <10> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection only of Mr. Slim) <10> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection only of Mr. Slim) 	158 159 159 160 162 162 163 164 165 166 167 168 168
 8. Energy Management Function [1] Outline [2] Electric energy calculation method <1> Calculation of electric energy <2> Transition of energy management screens <3> Apportionment mode (base data for apportionment). <4> Selection of apportionment mode when more than one models are connected <5> Setting of electricity meter for apportionment. <6> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection only of CITY MULTI) <7> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI) <8> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI) <8> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI) <9> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI and Mr. Slim) <10> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection only of Mr. Slim) (When the outdoor unit and indoor units are powered by the same power supply). [3] Initial setting of energy management function 	158 159 159 160 162 162 163 164 165 166 167 168 168 169
 8. Energy Management Function [1] Outline [2] Electric energy calculation method <1> Calculation of electric energy <2> Transition of energy management screens <3> Apportionment mode (base data for apportionment) <4> Selection of apportionment mode when more than one models are connected <5> Setting of electricity meter for apportionment. <6> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection only of CITY MULTI) <7> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection of cITY MULTI) <8> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection of cITY MULTI) <8> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI) <8> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI) <10> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection only of Mr. Slim) <10> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection only of Mr. Slim) <10> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection only of Mr. Slim) <10> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection only of Mr. Slim) (When the outdoor unit and indoor units are powered by the same power supply) <13 Initial setting of energy management function <1> Setting of outdoor temperature measurement unit. 	158 159 159 160 162 162 163 164 165 166 167 168 168 169 171
 8. Energy Management Function [1] Outline [2] Electric energy calculation method. (-2> Transition of electric energy <-2> Transition of energy management screens <-2> Transition of energy management screens <-2> Transition of apportionment mode (base data for apportionment). <+> Selection of apportionment mode when more than one models are connected <	158 159 159 160 162 162 163 164 165 166 166 167 168 168 171 171 171
 8. Energy Management Function [1] Outline [2] Electric energy calculation method. <2> Transition of electric energy <2> Transition of energy management screens <3> Apportionment mode (base data for apportionment). <4> Selection of apportionment mode when more than one models are connected	158 159 159 160 162 162 163 164 165 166 167 167 168 169 171 171
 8. Energy Management Function [1] Outline [2] Electric energy calculation method 	158 159 159 160 162 162 163 163 164 165 166 166 167 168 168 169 171 171 172 172
 8. Energy Management Function [1] Outline [2] Electric energy calculation method <1> Calculation of electric energy <2> Transition of energy management screens <3> Apportionment mode (base data for apportionment) <4> Selection of apportionment mode when more than one models are connected <5> Setting of electricity meter for apportionment. <6> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection only of CITY MULTI) <7> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection only of CITY MULTI) <8> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI) <8> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI and Mr. Slim) <10> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection only of Mr. Slim) (When the outdoor unit and indoor units are powered by the same power supply) <13 Initial setting of energy management function <1> Setting of apportionment mode for indoor units <3> Setting of electricity meter for apportionment to indoor units <1> Setting of apportionment mode for indoor units <1> Setting of electricity meter for apportionment to indoor units <2> Setting of apportionment mode for indoor units 	158 159 159 160 162 162 163 164 165 166 167 168 167 171 171 171 172 172 175
 8. Energy Management Function [1] Outline [2] Electric energy calculation method 	158 159 159 160 162 162 163 164 165 166 166 167 168 169 171 171 171 172 175 175

CONTENTS

<4> Data for graphs	180
<5> Graph display formats	183
<6> Display range and items which can be displayed in graphs	184
<7> Procedure for displaying graphs	
<8> Display updating	
<9> CSV output on energy use status screen	
[5] Ranking	
<1> Contents displayed on screens	206
<2> Nem which can be displayed in graphs	209
<4> Graph display format	211
<5> Display range and items which can be displayed in graphs	
<6> Procedure for displaying graphs	212
<7> Display updating	217
<8> CSV output of ranking	218
[6] Setting of target values	
9. Ventilation Setting	223
[1] Night purge	223
<1> Details of control	223
<2> System restrictions	
10 Night Setback Control	225
[1] Outline	
[2] Details of control	
The Outside Temperature Interlock Function	226
	226
[2] Details of control	226
[3] Required items	228
12. Energy-Saving/Peak-Cut Control	229
[1] Outline	229
[2] Details of control	230
[3] Control setting screen	231
[4] Control action	232
<1> Energy-saving control for indoor unit	232
<2> Energy-saving control for outdoor unit	234
[5] Energy-saving control system design flow	235
[6] Peak-cut control method	237
<1> Peak-cut control methods	237
<2> Selection of energy-saving/peak-cut control method and setting screen	238
[7] Energy-saving control status/History monitor	249
<1> Current energy-saving control status	249
<2> Peak-cut status history	249
13. Interlock Control	251
[1] Outline	251
<1> Operations which can be realized by interlock control	251

<2> Operations which cannot be realized by interlock control	252
[2] Selection of interlock control method and system configuration	n253
<1> Selection of interlock control method	253
<2> System outline	253
[3] Interlock control using AE-200/AE-50/EW-50	255
<1> Features	255
<2> Required materials	256
<3> Interlock setting	257
<4> Cautions for system configuration	259
<5> System design for the general equipment to be connected to the free contact point	
on the indoor unit	260
14. Connection of AHC	262
[1] Outline	262
[2] System configuration	263
<1> Connected devices	263
<2> Required devices	264
<3> Examples of control	264
<4> List of functions which can be displayed on AE-200/AE-50	265
<5> List of connected models	265
[3] Initial setting of AHC	266
<1> Transition of initial setting	266
<2> Programming	267
<3> Registration of AHC in group	268
<4> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to AHC)	269
	270
<5> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET)	
<5> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET) <6> Setting of individual names of AHC ports	271
<5> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET) <6> Setting of individual names of AHC ports	271
<5> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET) <6> Setting of individual names of AHC ports	270 271 272 276
<5> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET) <6> Setting of individual names of AHC ports	270 271 272 272
<5> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET) <6> Setting of individual names of AHC ports	270 271 272 276 276
<5> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET) <6> Setting of individual names of AHC ports	271 272 276 276 279
<5> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET) <6> Setting of individual names of AHC ports	271 272 276 276 279 283 288
<5> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET) <6> Setting of individual names of AHC ports	276 272 276 276 279 283 288 290
<5> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET) <6> Setting of individual names of AHC ports	270 271 272 276 276 279 283 288 290 291
<5> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET) <6> Setting of individual names of AHC ports	270 271 272 276 279 283 288 290 291
<5> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET)	270 271 272 276 276 276 283 283 288 290 291 292
<5> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET)	270 271 272 276 279 279 288 290 291 291 292 296
<5> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET)	270 271 272 276 279 279 283 283 288 290 291 291 292 296 302
<5> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET)	270 271 272 276 276 279 288 290 291 291 296 302 305
<5> Initial setting for AFC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET)	270 271 272 276 279 279 288 288 290 291 291 292 296 302 305
<5> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET)	270 271 271 272 276 276 279 288 290 291 291 296 296 305 305 316
<5> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET)	270 271 272 276 279 279 288 290 291 291 296 302 305 305 316 323
<5> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET)	270 271 272 276 279 279 279 283 288 290 291 291 292 302 305 305 316 323 324
<s> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET)</s>	270 271 272 276 276 279 279 288 290 291 291 296 302 305 305 316 323 324 325
<s> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET)</s>	270 271 272 276 279 279 283 288 290 291 291 292 302 305 305 305 316 323 324 325 326
<>> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET)	276 277 276 276 279 279 288 290 291 291 296 305 305 305 316 323 325 326 326 329
<>> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET)	270 271 272 276 279 279 288 290 291 291 292 296 302 305 305 305 305 316 323 324 326 329 330
<>> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET)	270 271 272 276 279 279 279 279 279 279 279 279 279 279 279 279 279 279 279 290 290 290 291 290 302 305 305 316 323 324 325 326 329 320 330 330 330
<5> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET)	270 271 272 276 279 279 290 290 291 296 305 305 305 305 305 316 323 324 325 326 329 330 333 333

[5] Screen display and output	335
<1> AE-200 LCD	335
<2> Output of CSV file from AE-200	337
<3> Display on Charge Calculation Tool screen	343
<4> Output of CSV file of data obtained by Charge Calculation Tool	346
<5> Printing from Charge Calculation Tool	349
[6] Charging system	352
[7] Cautions when using apportioned electricity billing function	353
<1> Cautions about charging for air conditioning	353
<2> Calculation of air conditioning charge	353
<3> Cautions for operation and setting	353

Safety precautions

- ► Thoroughly read the following safety precautions prior to installation.
- ► Observe these precautions carefully to ensure safety.
- After reading this manual, pass the manual on to the end user to retain for future reference.
- The user should keep this manual for future reference and refer to it as necessary. This manual should be made available to those who repair or relocate the units. Make sure that the manual is passed on to any future air conditioning system user.

	: indicates a hazardous situation which, if not avoided, could result in death or serious injury.
	: indicates a hazardous situation which, if not avoided, could result in minor or moderate injury.
CAUTION	: addresses practices not related to personal injury, such as product and/or property damage.

1-1. General precautions

Do not install the controller in areas where large amounts of oil, steam, organic solvents, or corrosive gases (such as ammonia, sulfuric compounds, or acids), or areas where acidic/alkaline solutions or special chemical sprays are used frequently. These substances may significantly reduce the performance and corrode the internal parts, resulting in electric shock, malfunction, smoke, or fire.

To reduce the risk of short circuits, current leakage, electric shock, malfunction, smoke, or fire, do not wash the controller with water or any other liquid.

To reduce the risk of electric shock, malfunction, smoke, or fire, do not touch the electrical parts, USB memory, or touch panel with wet fingers.

To reduce the risk of injury or electric shock, before spraying a chemical around the controller, stop the operation and cover the controller.

To reduce the risk of injury, keep children away while installing, inspecting, or repairing the controller.

If you notice any abnormality (e.g., burning smell), stop the operation, turn off the controller, and consult your dealer. Continuing the operation may result in electric shock, malfunction, or fire.

Properly install all required covers to keep moisture and dust out of the controller. Dust accumulation and the presence of water may result in electric shock, smoke, or fire.



To reduce the risk of fire or explosion, do not place flammable materials or use flammable sprays around the controller.

To reduce the risk of electric shock or malfunction, do not touch the touch panel, switches, or buttons with a sharp object.

To avoid injury from broken glass, do not apply excessive force to the glass parts.

To reduce the risk of injury, electric shock, or malfunction, avoid contact with the sharp edges of certain parts.

Consult your dealer for the proper disposal of the controller. Improper disposal will pose a risk of environmental pollution.

1-2. Precautions for relocating or repairing the unit

The controller must be repaired or moved only by qualified personnel. Do not disassemble or modify the controller. Improper installation or repair may result in injury, electric shock, or fire.

1-3. Additional precautions

CAUTION

To avoid discoloration, do not use benzene, thinner, or chemical rag to clean the controller. When the controller is heavily soiled, wipe the controller with a well-wrung cloth that has been soaked in water with mild detergent, and then wipe off with a dry cloth.

This appliance is not intended for use by persons (including children) with reduced physical, sensory or mental capabilities, or lack of experience and knowledge, unless they have been given supervision or instruction concerning use of the appliance by a person responsible for their safety. Children should be supervised to ensure that they do not play with the appliance.

1. Contents of This Document

This document is a technical manual for connection of AE-200A, AE-200E, AE-50A, AE-50E, EW-50A and EW-50E to air conditioners.

[Throughout this document:]

- Centralized Controller AE-200A/AE-200E is referred to as AE-200.
- Centralized Controller AE-50A/AE-50E is referred to as AE-50.
- PAC-YG66DCA is referred to as DIDO controller.
- PAC-YG60MCA is referred to as PI controller.
- PAC-YG63MCA is referred to as AI controller.
- Advanced HVAC Controller is referred to as AHC.
- Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning is referred to as HVAC.
- Booster Unit and Water HEX unit are referred to as Air To Water (PWFY) unit.
- Hot Water Heat Pump unit is referred to as "HWHP (CAHV, CRHV, QAHV) unit."
- The e-series chiller unit (EAHV, EACV) is referred to as "Chiller unit."
- ** in the model names indicates the capacity of outdoor unit or indoor unit or the fan speed of LOSSNAY (when ** is 50, the fan speed is 500m³/hr at a High notch).
- Energy management and peak-cut control can be performed by inputting pulse signals from meters directly to CN7 of AE-200, AE-50 or EW-50 without the PI controller. In this document, this system is referred to as "pulse input for measurement" or "PI (Pulse Input)."

Remarks O When the apportioned electricity billing function is used, the M-NET of AE-200 cannot be used. O TG-2000A can be connected to EW-50 when the software Ver. 6.60 or later is used.

O When a billing system has been established by using AE-200 and TG-2000A, the apportioned electricity billing function of AE-200 cannot be simultaneously used.

OWhen the apportioned electricity billing function of AE-200 is used and the monitoring function of TG-2000A is used, use the software Ver. 6.60 or later.

 \odot When TG-2000A is used, the pulse input of AE-200, AE-50 or EW-50 cannot be used.

2. Outline of Product

[1] Outline

AE-200/AE-50 is a centralized air conditioning control system provided with a 10.4-inch color LCD panel, on which air conditioners and general equipment can be controlled and monitored.

Up to 50 indoor units can be controlled and monitored with one set of AE-200.

When more than 50 indoor units are connected, AE-50 (EW-50) can be added (Up to 3 or 4 sets) to control and monitor up to 200 indoor units.

When the controller is connected with a personal computer through LAN, the units can be controlled and monitored on the personal computer.

* To use the Web, a personal computer with Windows, Internet Explorer Ver8.0, 9.0, 10.0 or 11.0 and JAVA is required.

* To use the Integrated Centralized Control Web, a personal computer in which an OS, i.e. Windows7, Windows8.1, Windows 10, or MacOSX10.9, and a browser, i.e. Internet Explorer Ver.11.0 or later, Microsoft Edge, Google Chrome or Safari7 or later, have been installed is required. The browser can be used also on tablet terminals and smartphones. On smartphones, the functions which are available to general users can be used (monitoring and operation of block/EM block are not allowed).

In an environment where a router for Internet connection is connected on LAN, the units can be controlled and monitored remotely through the Internet. (To connect to the Internet, ensure the security.)

The energy management function displays the power consumption of the air conditioners in an easy-to-understand graphic form.

Data on power consumption, etc. can be output to the personal computer.

When AHC is connected, it is possible to monitor the operation condition, errors, temperatures and humidities of the general equipment connected to AHC.

Daily, season (the first to fifth weeks) and annual schedules can be set.

Optional functions, such as energy-saving control and peak-cut control, can be used by registering the licenses.

EW-50

EW-50 is a centralized controller without an LCD screen. This product enables to control and monitor air conditioners and general equipment on a personal computer. When EW-50 and AE-200 are connected to the LAN, up to 200 units can be controlled and monitored on the screen of AE-200.

[2] Monitor/Operation

<1> Monitoring/operation on LCD screen of AE-200 main unit

[Monitoring/operation of air conditioners]

1. The screen is used to start and stop the operation of the indoor unit groups, operate and monitor the operation mode and temperature settings and set the schedule.



<Monitoring screen: Without floor plan >

<Operation screen: Air conditioner group>



<Monitoring screen: With floor plan>



<Weekly schedule screen>

Su	n Kon	Tue	Wed	Thu Fri	Sat	Сору	Paste
1-	a 86288 (X	12:00	15:00 0	-			
1	87:15	O	Heat	25°C	3	11 mm	
2	10:00		Heat	26"C	1	>	
3	12:00			9	R	U	
4	13:00		Fan		*	-12	W
5	17:18	1			100	Solution and a second s	
6	28:18			-		U#	

2. The energy management function clearly and graphically displays the apportioned power consumption, operation time, room temperature and temperature setting of each indoor unit or group. The original data used to display the graphs can be output as CSV files to an USB memory or personal computer.



<Status of energy use: Monthly, display by group>



<Ranking: Monthly, display by block>

3. When the optional "Charge" license ("Energy Management License Pack") is introduced to apportion the electric charge by AE-200, the power consumption of each tenant can be displayed in the energy management list.

Ranking	Energy m	anagement li	15:23
		Display s	switching
PI Controller name	2815/01/81 - 2815/01/31	2015/02/01 - 2015/02/28	2815/83/81 - 2815/83/31
ST	44.8 kW1	184. 8. k\tr	24.8 kWs
UTH .	188. 6 k.vh	358. U KVH	166. 8 KW

- 4. When the optional "Energy Management License Pack" is registered, up to four levels of peak-cut control can be set for the air conditioners and low-temperature devices to reduce the demand power.
- The history of average power and peak-cut control level can be confirmed on the energy management screen and output to a CSV file.



<2> Monitoring/operation on Integrated Centralized Control Web screen

The air conditioners can be monitored and operated on the Integrated Centralized Control Web of the personal computer connected to the LAN. The building manager, tenant manager and general users can access the browser. (See <User management> in 2.6.1 "Major features.")

In an environment where a router for Internet connection is connected on the LAN, they can be controlled and monitored also from a remote location via the Internet. (When connecting to the Internet, ensure the security by using VPN connection.)

To use the Integrated Centralized Control Web, a personal computer in which an OS, i.e. Windows7, Windows8.1, Windows 10, or MacOSX10.9, and a browser, i.e. Internet Explorer Ver.11.0 or later, Microsoft Edge, Google Chrome or Safari7 or later, have been installed is required. The browser can be used also on tablet terminals and smartphones. On smartphones, the functions which are available to general users can be used (monitoring and operation by block/EM block are not allowed).

For the operation environment to use the Integrated Centralized Control Web, see 2.6.2 "Operation environment."

[Monitoring/operation of air conditioners]

• In the case of general users (PC/tablet terminal)

<Monitoring screen: Air conditioner group>





<Operation screen: Air conditioner group>

• In the case of general users (smartphone)

<Monitoring screen: Air conditioner group>

Admin.Dpt	
Admin.Dept.1	>
Admin.Dept.2	>
■ 25.0°C 7722.0°C ■ 23	>
as Ann-Heeze a 35.0° € 67.0° € LOSSNAY I	>
Lighting East	
2	>



• In the case of building management user/tenant management users (PC/tablet terminal) </br><Monitoring screen: With floor layout> is displayed only on the building management user's terminal.



<Operation screen: Air conditioner group>



<Monitoring screen: Display by group>



<Status of energy use: Daily, display by group>



When the optional "Energy Management License Pack" is registered, up to four levels of peak-cut control can be set for the air conditioners to reduce the demand power.

The history of power demand and peak-cut control level can be confirmed on the energy management screen and output to a CSV file.

<Status of peak-cut control: Average power for 30 minutes, display of peak-cut control level>



[3] Specification <1> Specification of AE-200/AE-50

Item			Specifications				
			Only AE-200 Indoor units per AE-200: 50 units (*1)				
Number of units which can be connected and controlled			AE-50 and	EW-50 (*2)	Indoor units per AE-200: 200 units (*1) (When 3 units of AE-50 and EW-50 are connected) Note: When the M-NET of AE-200 is not used, up to 4 units can be connected.		
LCD and operation		10.4 in., TFT color LCD, touch panel operation					
Dimensions (W × H × D)			284 × 200 × 65 mm (11-5/32 × 7-55/64 × 2-17/32 in) **When installed, AE-200/AE-50 will protrude 25.0 mm (31/32 in) from the wall or the metal control box.				
Weight			2.3kg (5-5/6	2.3kg (5-5/64 lbs)			
Power supply	Rated input		100–240 V/	AC ± 10%; 0.3–0.2 A	1 50/60 Hz Single-phase		
Communication			M-NET	24 V DC (with powe	er supply connector CN21, power supply from main unit)		
Communication			LAN	100BASE-TX			
M-NET power f	eeding coefficie	nt	0.75	0.75			
Equivalent pow	er consumption		0				
Equivalent num	ber of units		0				
	Temperature	Operating temperature range	0°C - +40°	C (+32°F – +104°F)			
Conditions		Storage temperature range	-20°C - +6	0°C (-4°F – +140°F)			
	Humidity		30%–90% RH (Non-condensing)				
Installation con	ditions		Indoor only **To be used in a business office or similar environment				
Material			Main unit: PC + ABS Cover: PC + ABS				
Power consum	ption		12 W				
Appearance co	lor		Cover: Clear white				
Installation method			Installation on supplied mounting plate or in special embedded box (PAC-YE84UTB) or box for external installation on wall (PAC-YE82TB) or on mounting bracket in control panel (PAC-YE86TK)				

*1: The number of indoor units which can be controlled may vary depending on the model of indoor units. The number of units which can be controlled by the DIDO controller (PAC-YG66DCA) varies depending on the number of channels used (one channel for controlling one unit).

*2: Up to 200 indoor units can be controlled by adding the expansion controller AE-50 or EW-50.





<2> Specification of EW-50

	Item			Specifications	
Number of un controlled	its which can be	connected and	50 indoor	units per EW-50 (*1 *2)	
Dimensions (N × H × D)		172 × 209 **172 × 25	× 92 mm (6-13/16 × 8-4/16 × 3-10/16 in) i3 × 92 mm (6-13/16 × 10 × 3-10/16 in) when using L-fittings	
Weight			1.7 kg (4 ll	os)	
Power supply			100-240 \	/AC ± 10%; 50/60 Hz Single-phase	
Communication I/E		M-NET	24 V DC (with power supply connector CN21, power supply from main unit)		
Communicatio			LAN	100BASE-TX	
M-NET power	feeding coefficie	nt	1.5		
Equivalent po	wer consumption	1	0		
Equivalent nu	mber of units		0		
	Tomporatura	Operating temperature range	-10°C – +5	55°C (+14°F – +131°F)	
conditions	Temperature	Storage temperature range	-20°C – +60°C (-4°F – +140°F)		
	Humidity		30%-90%	RH (Non-condensing)	
Material			Main unit:	Electrogalvanized sheet steel	
Power consur	nption		12 W		
Installation co	nditions		Only in a r	netal control box indoors	

*1: The number of indoor units which can be controlled may vary depending on the model of indoor units. The number of units which can be controlled by the DIDO controller (PAC-YG66DCA) varies depending on the number of channels used (one channel for controlling one unit).

*2: Up to 200 indoor units can be controlled by combining with AE-200.



Unit: mm (in)

[4] Centralized air conditioning control

<1> Function List

(1) Normal operation screen

Table Function list

		√: Fι	unction provided
ltem	Details	LCD	Integrated Web
Start/Stop/Test run	It is possible to start and stop the units in each group, in each block or on each floor or all units collectively. In the test run mode, test run of the units can be performed. (Only on the main unit screen)	\checkmark	1
Operation mode	The operation mode can be switched to COOL, DRY, HEAT, FAN, AUTO and Setback for the units in each group, in each block or on each floor or all units collectively. Air To Water (PWFY) unit: Heating, Heating ECO, Hot Water, Anti-freeze, Cooling HWHP (CAHV, CRHV) unit: Heating, Heating ECO, Hot Water, Anti-freeze HWHP (QAHV) unit: Mode 1 Chiller unit: Cooling, Heating, Heating Eco, Anti-freeze Note: The Setback mode can be selected on the AE-200A/AE-50A/ EW-50A,but not on the AE-200E/AE-50E/EW-50E.	J	5
Temperature setting	The indoor temperature can be set for the units in each group, in each block or on each floor or all units collectively (in steps of 0.5°C). <setting range=""> Air conditioning unit Cool/Dry : 19°C-30°C (67°F-87°F) Heat : 17°C-28°C (63°F-83°F) Air To Water (PWFY) unit (Booster unit) Heating : 30°C-50°C (87°F-122°F) Hot Water : 30°C-70°C (87°F-158°F) Anti-freeze : 10°C-45°C (50°F-113°F) Water HEX unit Heating : 30°C-45°C (50°F-113°F) Anti-freeze : 10°C-45°C (50°F-113°F) Cooling : 10°C-30°C (50°F-87°F) HWHP (CAHV, CRHV) unit Heating : 25°C-70°C (77°F-158°F) Hot Water : 25°C-70°C (77°F-158°F) Hot Water : 25°C-70°C (77°F-158°F) Hot Water : 25°C-70°C (77°F-158°F) Note: The settable temperature ranges depend on the unit model. Note: If the indoor unit supports the dual set point function in the Auto mode and when the operation mode above is set to Auto or Setback, two set temperatures for Cool mode and Heat mode can be set. Note: The temperature unit (°C or °F) can be selected on the [Unit Info.] screen.</setting>	✓	~
Fan speed setting	The fan speed can be switched among 4 steps for the units in each group, in each block or on each floor or all units collectively. (The speed can be switched steplessly or in two, three or four steps depending on the model. Models with the automatic function can be operated in the automatic mode.) (When LOSSNAY is used, the fan speed can be switched to very weak, strong and auto. The selectable fan speed varies depending on the model. In the case of interlocked LOSSNAY, the speed can be switched between two steps, weak and strong.	1	\$
Air direction setting	The direction can be switched among 5 angles in the vertical direction, Auto and Swing for the units in each group, in each block or on each floor or all units collectively. (The selectable directions vary depending on the model.) The 5 angles in the vertical direction and Auto can be selected on models with such functions.	1	\$
Ventilation mode (LOSSNAY)	The ventilation mode can be switched among normal, heat exchange and automatic modes for the units in each group, in each block or on each floor or all units collectively.	\checkmark	1
Start/stop of interlocked LOSSNAY	When interlocked LOSSNAY is connected, it is possible to operate (in the high or low mode) or stop the units in each group, in each block or all units collectively.	~	1
Status of energy use	The power consumption, outdoor temperature and operation time can be displayed in bar graphs or line graphs for comparison. Note: To display the electric energy, a PI controller and an electricity meter (pulse output type) must be connected. The electric energy cannot be displayed by connecting a PLC (electric power counting software). To display the outdoor temperature, an AI controller and a temperature sensor must be connected.	1	\$

Table Function list

✓: Function provided

Item	Details	LCD	Integrated Web
item	The results of apportionment of energy consumption to EM blocks.	LOD	
Energy menogement list*1	meters, indoor units and outdoor units can be displayed.		
Energy management list	Note: This function can be used only when the apportioned electricity	<i>✓</i>	
	billing function of AE-200 is used.		
	The power consumption and FAN operation time can be displayed in		
Ranking	rank order. Note: The ranking of electric energy can be displayed only by black	\checkmark	_
	It is possible to set the target values of power consumption for each		
_	year, month, day of the week and block.		
larget value setting	The set target values will be displayed on the energy use status	\checkmark	
	screen and ranking screen.		
	The peak-cut control level and the average electric energy can be	-	_
State of peak-cut control	uispiayeu. Noto: The "Energy Management License Dack" is required	<i>√</i>	_
	Our unique method for supporting the apportionment of total electric		
	energy and billing according to the operation conditions of indoor units		
Apportioned electricity billing	determined based on the communication data between the indoor and	/	
function	outdoor units.	V	
	* This function cannot be used for trading certificates defined by the Measurement Act		
	It is possible to set the weekly schedule based on the day of the week		
	pattern, annual schedule and daily schedule for the units in each		
	group, in each block or on each floor or all units collectively.		
	• 24 times of schedule items can be set per day. The items include		
	start/stop, "operation mode, "temperature setting," air flow direction ""fan speed" and "prohibition of operation of remote		
	controller."		
	(In the case of LOSSNAY, "start/stop," "ventilation mode," "fan		
	speed" and "prohibition of operation of remote controller" can be set		
	In the scheduled operation.)		
	be set.		
Schedule	One of the weekly, annual and daily schedules which have been set	1	
	for the day is executed. The order of priority is as follows: Daily \rightarrow		
	Annual \rightarrow Weekly 1 \rightarrow \rightarrow Weekly 5.		
	 In the annual schedule, it is possible to set the operation patterns for 50 days, such as public holidays and summer holidays, not 		
	according to the weekly schedule in the range from the current		
	month to the 24th month.		
	5 kinds of operation patterns can be set for each group.		
	 The optimum start can be programmed to attain the set temperature at the set time. (Only indoor units) 		
	Note: The items which can be set depend on the air conditioner model		
	(function).		
Enable/disable schedule	It is possible to enable or disable the schedule for the units in each	1	1
	group, in each block or on each floor or all units collectively.	-	-
	Hold function is enabled, the scheduled operations are disabled.		
	Note: The operations that have been scheduled on the remote		
Hold	controller will also be disabled.	1	1
	Note: [Hold type] can be specified on the [Advanced] screen.		
	FW-50A but not on the AE-200F/AE-50F/EW-50E		
	Operation items by the remote controller to be prohibited can be		
	selected for the units in each group, in each block or on each floor or		
Setting to prohibit remote	all units collectively.		
operation	temperature setting, filter sign, fan speed, air flow direction and timer.)	V	v
	Note: The items which can be prohibited vary depending on the model		
	of air conditioner, LOSSNAY, etc.		
	For all controlled air conditioners, the items, emergency stop/normal,		
	demand level can be set by external voltage contact signals (12 V DC		
	or 24 V DC).		
External input function setting	(Separately, the external input/output adapter, PAC-YG10HA-E, is	1	
-	Note: It is necessary to connect the external input/output adoptor to	-	
	each set of AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50.		
	(Emergency stop of the AE-50/EW-50 system cannot be		
	performed by the external input to AE-200.)		

Table Function list

✓: Function provided

ltem	Details	LCD	Integrated Web
External output function setting *3	 When one or more air conditioners are running, the "running" signal will be output. When an error has occurred in one or more air conditioners, the "error occurring" signal will be output. (The "running" signals of general equipment (DIDO controller connection) are not output. The "error occurring" signals of the devices are output.) (Separately, the external input/output adapter, PAC-YG10HA-E, is necessary.) Note: If the output function is set to externally output errors on AE-200, errors in any of AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50 will be output. If the function is set to output errors on AE-50/EW-50, errors only in AE-50/EW-50 will be output. 	J	
Reset of filter sign	The filter sign display can be reset for the units in each group, in each block or on each floor or all units collectively.	\checkmark	1
Resetting the cumulative filter usage time	The cumulative filter usage time is reset when the filters on air- conditioning units are cleaned.		1
Error reset	The errors which have occurred can be reset.	\checkmark	✓ ✓
Error history reset	The error history (unit errors and communication errors) can be erased.	1	1
Start/stop (collective)	The ON/OFF LED lamp indicates that the units in one or more groups are running (on) or the units in all groups are stopped (off). (Except general equipment (DIDO controller connection))	1	
Operating state of each group	The items, start/stop, operation mode, temperature setting, fan speed, air flow direction, ventilation mode, start/stop of interlocked LOSSNAY, enable/disable scheduled operation, ON/OFF of hold function (only AE-200A/AE-50A/EW-50A), energy-saving, night setback and night purge are displayed for each group. Note: The items which can be displayed depend on the models in the group.	J	1
Display of filter sign	The filter sign can be displayed for the units in each group, in each block or on each floor or all units collectively.	✓	1
Display of prohibition of remote operation	The operations by the remote controller which have been prohibited by this controller or another system controller are displayed.	\checkmark	1
Display of suspension	When an emergency stop signal is received through an external contact or from the building management system (BACnet®) or while the 30 minute operation suspension is executed by the Peak Cut function, the operation control setting will be indicated with icon and a message.		\$
Display of current error	The address of the unit in which an error has occurred, the error code and the address of the unit which has detected the error are displayed.	1	1
Monitoring of error history	Up to 512 errors which occurred in the past are stored. 128 errors of each set of AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50 (64 unit errors and 64 communication errors) are stored.	1	1
History of transmission of error notification e-mails	The history of transmission of error notification e-mails and e-mails upon recovery from error can be checked.	\checkmark	1
Monitoring of measurement state	The measurements on the temperature sensor and humidity sensor of Al controller, electricity meter of PI controller and water meter can be monitored.	✓	1
Monitoring of operating state of outdoor units	The capability values, high pressures and low pressures of the outdoor units can be checked.		1
Monitoring of state of free contacts	The input/output state of the free contacts of indoor units can be checked.		1
AHC List	The input and output status of Advanced HVAC CONTROLLERs can be displayed.	1	1
Display of refrigerant systems	The list of the refrigerant systems connected to AE-200/AE-50 (information on connection between outdoor units and indoor units) can be displayed.	<i>√</i>	

* The above-mentioned functions may be unavailable depending on the connected devices or the combination of devices.

*1: The "Charge" license is required separately. If the license has not been registered, the function can be set, but the control will not be performed.

*2: The external input functions for emergency stop, start/stop and demand level are not capable of emergency stop, start/stop and peak cut control of general equipment (connected to DIDO controller).

However, the emergency stop input can be used for emergency stop of general equipment (connected to DIDO controller) by setting DIDO controller switch.

*3: The state of operation of general equipment (connected to DIDO controller) cannot be output.

(2) Initial setting screen

Table Function list

✓: Function provided

Item	Details	LCD	Initial Setting Tool	Initial setting Web	Integrated Web
Present date and time setting	The present date and time can be set.	1		1	1
Registration of license	The purchased license can be registered.	1		1	1
Unit information (basic system)	Items common to main units and Web browsers of AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50. The main unit name, identification number, expansion, date display format, time display format, temperature display format, pressure display format, room temperature display and availability of illuminance sensor and motion sensor can be set. Items only on main units of AE-200 and AE-50 The displayed language (Chinese, English, French, German, Italian, Japanese, Portuguese, Russian, Spanish, or Turkish'7) can be switched, and the LCD illuminance, sound volume, availability of test run and availability of screen lock function can be set. Items only on Web browsers The display of the group name on the list screen and the display or non-display of the filter sign can be set.	J	1	¥	
Network setting	The IP addresses, subnet masks and gateways relating to the LAN of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 can be set, and the M-NET addresses, range of prohibition of remote operation and external input relating to M-NET can be set.	1		1	
Advanced setting	The time master and sub controllers can be set, the old model compatibility mode can be turned on or off, the hold type can be set to Normal or ON (AE-200A/AE-50A/EW-50A only), and the season schedule setting can be enabled or disabled.	1	1	1	
Group setting	The indoor units, LOSSNAY, general equipment, Air To Water (PWFY) units, HWHP (CAHV, CRHV) units, Chiller units, remote controllers, sub system controllers, and AHC are registered in groups.	1	1	1	
HW supply setting	The HW supply units are registered in groups.	\checkmark			
Block setting	Set groups are registered in each block. Note: A block across the AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50 systems cannot be set.	1	1	1	
Energy management Block setting	Blocks can be set across AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50 systems.	\checkmark	1		
Interlocked LOSSNAY setting	For interlocked LOSSNAY, the indoor units are registered as interlocking sources.	1	1	1	
Floor layout setting	The basic floor plan, group display positions and plan view can be set. Note: To display plan views on the Integrated Centralized Control Web, it is necessary to set the plan views with the Initial Setting Tool.	1	1		
Error notification e-mail setting	Various items, such as the mail server to use the notification of errors through e-mail and the error notification e-mail destinations, can be set. Note: The items must be set for each of AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50.			\$	
Energy-saving/peak-cut control setting *4 *5	The method to use the energy-saving/peak-cut control and the method of controlling indoor and outdoor units can be set.	1		1	
Measurement setting	The conditions of the temperature and humidity sensors of Al controller and the electricity meter and water meter of the PI controller can be set.	<i>√</i>	1	1	
Temperature setting range limit setting	 When the temperature ranges to be controlled by the remote controllers are limited, the temperature range can be set for each remote controller. Note: The ranges which can be monitored and controlled vary depending on the model. This function is unusable on P/M/S series. 			\$	
Energy management setting	The outdoor temperature measuring unit, apportionment mode and electricity meter used as the base of apportionment can be set.	1		1	
Night mode schedule setting	When the night mode (low-noise operation) of outdoor units is used, the time period in which the units will be operated in the night mode can be set. Note: This mode cannot be set for P/M/S sereis.			1	
System changeover setting	All indoor units (cooling/heating) connected to one outdoor unit can be automatically switched according to the change in room temperature. (Except R2 Series) The outdoor units to be automatically switched between cooling and heating and the switch mode (automatic/representative group) can be set.			1	

Table Function list

✓: Function provided

					-
Item	Details	LCD	Initial Setting Tool	Initial setting Web	Integrated Web
Outdoor temperature interlock control	The outdoor temperature measuring unit to be used to use the outdoor temperature interlock control function can be selected, and the control level can be set for each group.	1		1	
Night setback function	The control time period to use the night setback function can be set, and the upper and lower limit temperatures can be set for each group.	1		1	
Interlock control *6	Interlock control is provided between connected devices for which the interlock conditions have been set. (Up to 200 interlock conditions can be registered for each set of AE-200 and AE-50.)		1	*8	
Night Purge *4	It is possible to enable or disable the night purge function and set the days of the week, start time, end time, outdoor temperature threshold and initial fan speed to perform purging.	1		1	
Maintenance user	The maintenance user name and password can be set.	✓		1	
Building Manager (administrator user)	The building manager name (administrator user), password and available functions can be set.	\checkmark		1	
Screen display setting	The items relating to screen display can be set.				1
User management	The building manager ID and password can be changed, and the tenant manager and general users can be registered.				1

*4: On some models, these methods cannot be set.

*5: The "Energy Management License Pack" must be separately obtained.

*6: The "Interlock control" license must be separately obtained.

*7: Turkish is not supported on the Initial Setting Web.

*8: Make the settings for Ver. 7.50 and later from the Initial Setting Tool.

(3) Other functions

Table Function list

✓: Function provided

	u				1
Item	Details	LCD	Initial Setting Tool	Initial setting Web	Integrated Web
Data backup	Setting data and user information can be saved.	1	✓*1	1	
Data loading	Setting data and user information can be loaded.	1	✓*1	1	
CSV output	Operation data (billing parameters and electric energy data) for up to 62 days can be saved in a USB memory.	1			1
	The energy management data can be output.				
management data	Note: It is necessary to output the data on each set of AE-200 and AE-50.	1			1
Correction of touch panel	The touching positions on the touch panel can be corrected.	1			
Software updating	The software can be updated by two methods: inserting a USB memory stick into the main unit of AE-200/AE-50 and operating on the LCD, and inserting a CD into the PC and operating on the Web browser.	1			
Gas amount check	The amount of refrigerant gas can be checked.	1			1
Backup of group setting information/ interlocked LOSSNAY information	Even if power is disconnected, the group setting information and interlocked LOSSNAY setting information are retained.	1			
Backup of error information	Even if power is disconnected, the error history data is retained.	1			
Backup of schedule setting	Even if power is disconnected, the schedule information set for each group is retained.	1			
Backup of present date and time	When power is disconnected, the present time is backed up for approx. 3 days by the built-in capacitor. (It takes approx. 1 day to charge the built-in capacitor. It is unnecessary to replace the capacitor.)	1			
Locking function	The touch panel can be locked to prevent unintentional operation. It cannot be operated until the user name and password are input.	1			
Cleaning of touch panel	The touch panel can be locked and cleaned.	1			
Time control	The time of the controlled controllers and units is adjusted once a day. (Applicable only to controllers and units with time adjustment function)	1			
Error alert	Communication errors regarding centralized controls or air- conditioning unit groups under the control of Integrated Centralized Control Web will be notified with an alarm sound and a popup window.				1

*1: Only the items which can be set with the Initial Setting Tool.

When performing the setting to prohibit operation of remote controller on another system controller, set the range of prohibition of operation in the network setting of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 to "Only RC." However, since AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 is the top-level controller, the operation of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 cannot be prohibited from any other system controller in any case. In the group controlling LOSSNAY, only the start/stop and filter sign reset operations can be prohibited.

 \odot The prohibition of operation to reset the filter sign is displayed only while the filter sign is on.

<2> Number of connected units and M-NET addresses

The number of connected air conditioners and M-NET address ranges are shown below.

<Air conditioners>

Unit or o	controller	Symbol	Max.number of connected units	M-NET address setting range	Method for determining M-NET address
Indoor unit CITY MULTI, Large Capacity Floor Standing PAC		IC			
Mr. Slim (adapter for connecting M-NET)	Base unit/sub unit	AIC	50	01 to 50	Give the lowest number to the indoor unit to be used as the base unit in the group, and give
Room air conditioner (Interface for connecting M-NET)		RA			sequential numbers to the other indoor units in the group.
Free Plan LOSSNAY/ OA processing unit		LC, FU			-
	Main Box	CE	50	01 to 50	
Hot water heat pump (CAHV, CRHV)	Sub Box	CL	50	51 to 100	Assign an address that equal the addresses of the main and sub units in the Main Box plus 50 to the units in the Sub Box.
Hot water heat pump (QA	NHV)	CE	24	01 to 50	Make the settings in the same way as with indoor unit . When units other than QAHV units exist in a system, count each QAHV unit as equivalent to two air- conditioning units. Assign sequential addresses to the units in the same group.
Chiller (EAHV, EACV)	Main Box	СН	24	01 to 50	Make the settings in the same way as with indoor unit . When the only units connected are chiller units, a maximum of 24 units can be connected. When units other than chiller units exist in a system, count each chiller unit as equivalent to three air- conditioning units. Assign sequential addresses to the units in the same group.
	Sub Box	CL	24	51 to 100	Assign an address that equal the addresses of the main and sub units in the Main Box plus 50 to the units in the Sub Box.
PI controller		PI	15		A maximum of twenty PI controllers can be connected to an AE-200 system with an expansion controller.
AI controller		AI	50	01 to 50	
DIDO controller		DDC	50		A maximum of fifty DIDO controllers can be connected, counting each contact as one unit.
M NET romoto controllor	Main remote controller		100	101 to 150	Add 100 to the lowest indoor unit number in the group.
	Sub remote controller		100	151 to 200	Add 50 to the main remote controller address.
MA remote controller		MA	_	It is unnecessary to set the (However, when two remultion sub selector switch must	he address. ote controllers are used, the main/ be set.)

[2. Outline of Product]

Unit or	controller	Symbol	Max.number of connected units	M-NET address setting range	Method for determining M-NET address
Outdoor unit CITY MULTI, Large Capa	acity Floor Standing PAC	ос		51 to 100	Add 50 to the lowest indoor unit address among the indoor units in the refrigerant system.
	Heat storage unit	TU			Add 1 to the outdoor unit address in the refrigerant system.
	BC controller (base unit)	BC	50		Add 50 to the lowest indoor unit address among the indoor units
Auxiliary outdoor unit	BC controller (sub unit 1,sub unit 2)	BS1, BS2		52 to 100	connected to the distribution sub controller.
	HBC controller(base unit)	HB			Add 50 to the lowest indoor unit
	HBC controller(sub unit 1, sub unit2)	HS1, HS2			address among the indoor units connected to the water system distribution sub controller.
	Group remote controller	GR			Add 200 to the lowest number of the group to be controlled.
	System remote controller	SR, 50AT	4	201 to 250	Set the address arbitrarily in the range shown left.
	ON/OFF remote controller	ANR	4	201 10 250	Add 200 to the lowest number of the group to be controlled.
System controller	Schedule timer	ST			Set the address arbitrarily in the range shown left.
	AHC ADAPTER	AHC	1	201 to 250	Set the address arbitrarily in the range shown left.
	Centralized controller	AE-200/ AE-50/ EW-50	_	0 (201 to 250)	Set the address to 0. However, when the BM adapter is connected, set on of their addresses to 201 to 250.

<3> Images of LCD screens on AE-200 main unit

The images of the monitoring screens on the LCD on AE-200 main unit are shown below.



Deration Ment Schedule Settings FI Block Measurement 1 1 30 11 7F 6F 5F 4F 3F 2F Ð .

Floor list screen (list screen)

Air conditioner operation screen



Ventilation X ON OFF Fan Speed Setback 4 Air Direction V 4 V Fan Speed ¥ Cancel OK

HWHP list screen

Monitor Operati		nergy gmt	Sch 🔁 Sch	edule ttings	► 86	/10/2016 17:29	٦
🔺 ent Chill	ler 📔	HWHP	AH	ic) î	> 🔂 1	<u> </u>	<u>\</u> 4
Controller	AE20	0 Mitsul	pishi				
		Outdoor	Hot water				
Mode 1 55.0°C Hot Water Supply1	55. 5°C	25. 5°C	65. 0°C	20. 4°C	55. 5°C	S Show	Π
	Control	Outdoor	Hot water		Outlet		
Mode 1 55.0°C Hot Water Supply2	55. 5°C	25. 3°C	65. 0°C	20. 5°C	55. 0°C	\$\$ Snow	Ш
Heat 50.0°C Group3	54. 9°C	25. 0°C		20. 5°C	49. 4°C		
	Represent						
Heat 54.0°C Group4	54. 9°C	22. 7°C	25. 0°C	20. 5°C	59. 4°C		V
					0	perate	

HWHP operation screen (QAHV)

Hot Water Supply1	
ON OFF	
Mode	Set Temp. Fan Mode
Mode 1	48.5°C Normal
Mode setting	
Op. ON sensor Op. OFF sen	sor Op. ON differential
Sensor 1 Sensor 2	15. 5 °C
Prohibit Remote Controller	Schedule
	Available
	OK Cancel

Block list screen Deration Energy Bothedule Block Measurement Floor AE200:Mitsubishi Electric B:Mitsubishi Electric AE280:Mitsubishi Electric Block

Measurement list screen



HWHP operation screen (CAHV, CRHV)

Inde Set Temp. Fan Mode Heatins Heatins ECO 33.5 °C Normal Hot Mater Anti-freeze Snow Snow Prohibit Remote Controller Image: Controller Snow Image: Controller Image: Controller Image: Controller Image: Controller Image: Controller Image: Controler Image: Controller	ON OFF		
Heatins Heatins ECO Hot Water Anti-freeze Prohibit Remote Controller UFF Schedule Hold Available OFF	lode	Set Temp.	Fan Mode
Hot Water Anti-freeze 33.5 L Snow Prohibit Remote Controller UNF Statute Hold Available OFF	Heating Heating ECO		Normal
Prohibit Remote Controller URF Sinde Tree. Schedule Hold Available OFF	Hab Haber And Trans	33. 5 L	Comm.
Prohibit Remote Controller URF State State Schedule Hold Available OFF	HOT WATER ANTI-Treeze	_	SHUW
Prohibit Remote Controller			
Off Schedule Hold Available OFF			
Schedule Hold Available OFF	Prohibit Remote Controller		
Schedule Hold Available OFF	Prohibit Remote Controller		
Available OFF	Prohibit Remote Controller		
	Prohibit Remote Controller		
	Prohibit Remote Controller		
	Prohibit Remote Controller		W Const



AHC status monitor screen

Monitor/ Operation	Energy Mgmt	Settings	27/03/2015
Measurement	HWHP	AHC	-
Controller E	(p1 Hits)	ubishi	
Address 📃 203	Lobby	(South)	
Input status	3	Output s	tatus
011 Hearter Error 021 Hearter 1 Error 033 Hearter 2 Error 034 Hearter 2 Error 035 Detamildifer Error 036 Fan Error (Hearter) 038 Fan Error (Hearter) 038 Fan Error (Hearter) 038 Fan Error (Hearter) 038 Fan Error (Hearter) 031 Die Britterheise Sendor 0312 Puno (Interlock 0312 Puno (Interlock 0313 Her Imput 0314 Other Imput EI) Other Imput	67 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87	001 Hoater 002 Hoater 1 003 Heater 2 004 Humidifier	074 077 075 075
		Status of relat	ted equipment

 Monitor/ Depration
 Improve Membry
 Schedule Settings
 Schedule Settings
 Schedule Isso

 Energy Use Status
 Ranking

 Display switching
 Bioso
 Display switching

 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Update

 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso

 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso

 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso

 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bioso
 Bios

Ranking screen

Target value setting screen

	nitor/ eratio	Hill Energy Mgmt	Schedu Sett	ings 🕨	27/03/2015
	arget v	alue	Pea	kcut	
Control	ler	AE200 Hit	subishi Elect	ric	
Total target va	1ue		Target value for	each block	
Annual target 125000 kWh	Comparis 98 %				
Monthly tarset Jan, Feb, Mar, Apr, Jun, Jun, Jun, Jun, Jun, Jun, Jun, Jun	10000 kM 10000 kM 2500 kM 2500 kM 25000 kM 25000 kM 25000 kM 25000 kM 25000 kM 25000 kM 25000 kM 25000 kM	Utage ratio h & 0 % h & 0 % h 2.0 % h 2.0 % h 2.0 % h 20.0 % h 20.0 % h 20.0 % h 20.0 % h 20.0 % h 2.0 %	Entranne Meeting room A Meeting room B Meeting room C Meeting room C Meeting room E Elevator hall Frant IE-A Trant IE-A Trant IE-A		6258 kah 2588 kah 6258 kah 2588 kah 2588 kah 2588 kah 2588 kah 1258 kah 1258 kah 1258 kah
		Edit			Edit
				Save Set	lings

Chiller operation screen Group2 ON OFF Mode Heating ECO Anti-freeze Cool Heat Set Temp. Fan Mode Normal 10. 0 °C Snow Prohibit Remote Controller OFF State Mode Set Temp Schedule Available OK Cancel

Energy use status screen



Energy management list screen

Monitor/	r gy 🔂 Sch	edule ttings	27/83/2815 15:23	2
Ranking	Energy m	anagement li	st	
		Display s	witching	
PI Controller name	2815/01/81 - .2815/01/31	2815/02/01 - 2815/02/28	2815/83/01 - 2815/03/31	
EAST				
VEST	44.8 kW1	184. 8 kits	24. 0 kills	П
SOUTH	188. C k.Wi	358. U KVH	168. U KWI	
NORTH				
		CSV	output	B

Peak-cut control status screen





Schedule on current day

+	TY		-1				
1 07:15	Ø	Heat	25°C	づき	11 m 11		
2 18:00		Heat	26°C		>		I
3 12:00			++	K	N		P
4 13:00	D.	Fan	-	10			l
5 17:18				15	5		l
6 20:10		-		1	10 m	W	l
7		÷	P P			W	٢

1-4 Lobby (North) ◀ 84/2814 ► A -17.7 Tu x B E A B --7 1 110 B D D TTT. C + -³F A 16 C ¹⁸D D +-1 200 . ²⁵C C ²⁴B Y.A E Υ. °°C Edit Cancel OK

Annual schedule

Screen of units in trouble

	Malfunction Fill	ter Sign	III 1 5
Co	ontroller Exp1 Nit	subishi	
	Group Age	entres	Etter Call-
1	Tenant A	1-031	7186
2	1F Lobby Tenant B	1-883	6688
3	1F Lobby Tenant C	1-884	6608
4	1F Lobby Tenant D	1-905	6688
5	1F Lobby Tenant E	1-886	6608

Season setting screen

Season Setting	95			
Week y1	Month Day B1 🚺 / B1 🚺	•	Month 03 👗 /	Day 31 👗
🚫 Week I y2	Honth Day B4 X / B1 X	•	Honth 86 👗 /	Day 30 👗
1/3 🔻			ОК	Cancel

Weekly schedule

Su	n Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu Fri	Sat	Сору	Paste
1	05:09	12:00	12:00 0	-198 -(
1	87:15	O	Heat	25°C	3	11 en Th	
2	10:00		Heat	26°C	4	•	
3	12:00			а. Н	R	۳.	
4	13:00		Fan		1	157	W
5	17:10		-		100	N.C.	
6	28:18			-		U.S.	

Schedule data setting screen



Screen of units with filter sign displayed

Malfu	unction	Filter S	ign i	2 🥂
Controlle	Ехр	🚺 Mitsubis	shi	
D-1	Group War		OL: N	and the second s
1 IF	Lobby ant A		1-885	Reset
2 IF	Lobby		1-818	Reset

Co	ontrolier 🧧	Exp1 Mitsubishi	Error offe	
I.	24/82/2015 11:40	888 (888)	5010	24/82/2815
2	24/02/2015	884 (884)	5010	24/02/2015
r I	24/02/2015	887 (887)	5010	24/82/2815
r.	24/02/2015	885 (885)	5010	24/02/2015
5	24/82/2015	882 (882)	5818	24/82/2815

Unit error log screen

Energy management output screen

🔺 📝 Status List	🛃 Log	A Mainte- nance		06/10/2016 17:53	2			
Energy c	lata output							
Controller	AE200 Mitsub	ishi						
Target unit								
Air-condi	Air-conditioners							
Energy managemen	nt data							
Date range	Data type							
	30-minute	intervals						
	Data-acquisit	ion period						
	05/10/2010	5 - 06/10/2016						
		(CSV outp	ut				
					_			

Communication error log screen

C	ontralier	Exp1 Hitsubishi		
	11	$(dr) = 0 (t = \pi n r)$	Error Lot	
	86/82/2888 84:14AM	013 (000)	6688	
5	86/02/2008 84:14AM	814 (888)	6698	
É.	86/02/2008 84:84AM	814 (888)	6688	06/02/2008 84:09AM
6	86/02/2008 84:84AM	813 (888)	6698	06/02/2008 04:09AM
i	86/82/2008 83:54AM	814 (888)	6688	06/02/2008 03:59AM
		1. 1. 1.		And in case of the local division of the loc

The images of the initial setting screens on the LCD on AE-200 main unit are shown below.





Advanced setting screen



Network setting screen (expansion controller IP setting)



Initial Settings - Function1 - Function2 License Date and time Unit Info. -Exp1 Mitsubishi Selecting Optional Function (b) Charge Current Status Registration of License Number SRQT-CSRA-FGSR-BHEA-UAFE-EHQU Serial No 81156-818 Register the license

License registration screen

	Unit informa	ation 2 scre	en	
 Initial Settings 	🔧 Function1	🔧 Function	2	1/01/2016
Unit Info.	2 Advan	ced I	Network	
Air-conditioner S	Settings			
Test run T Do not use	emperature dis Room t (Alwa	splay emp. ys)	Humidity OFF	
			Save Set	tings

Network setting screen



Group setting screen

-4	Settings Struction	Function2	27/03/2015
K	Advanced Networ	k Gra	iups
	Controller Exp1 Nitsubis	shi	
1	Entrance 1	281	
	01	181	284
7	Entrance 2	282	Concession of the local division of the loca
2	2	182	1
2	Entrance 3	283	
5	3	= 183	1
4		21	
		Save	Settings

					,			
◀	٦	Initial Settings	🔧 Function1	🔧 Fur	nction2		01/01/2016 00:00	Ţ
		Groups	Inter	lock	HM	Supply		
1		Hot Water	Supply1	12	34	56	<u> </u>	
2		Hot Water	Supply2	78	9 10	11 12	٦	
3		Hot Water	Supply3	13 14	15 16		~	
4							~	
5							~	
6	lle.						\	
					Sa	we Setti	ngs	

HW Supply setting screen

Block setting screen

-4	Settings Function1 S Fu	nction2 🕨	27/03/2015
	Interlock Blocks	EM Block	F
	Controller Expl Hitsubishi		
	Entrance		13
1	1 Entrance 1 6 Waiting room		
	Lobby		
2	2 Lobby A		
	Lobby		
3	3 Lobby B		
	Meeting room		
4	4 Meetting room		
		Save Sett	ings

Refrigerant system display screen

 Initial Settings 	unction1 🔧 Function2 🕨 27/63/2015 🛄
EM Block	Floor Layout System View
Controller Exp1	Nitsubishi
(Autober Unit (Sub Unit))	Industr Units
51 (52)	1 2 3 7 8 9 18
61 (62)	11 12 13 14 15 16
67	17
68	18
73	19 28
74	27
95	45 46

Peak-cut setting (air conditioners)

4	A Initi Sett	al ings	Functi	on1 🔧	Function2		27/03	/2015 13:09	Ţ
_	Pe	ak Cut	S	ettings	Air-con	1	Measu	reme	
C	Controller	AE	200 Mi	tsubishi	Electric				
				Batch 0	lperations		Сару	Pas	ste
		" whit re	Method			Loute	ol Ti⇒		
4	None	*2°C	FAN	OFF	3	5	9 15	30	
	None	±2°C	FAN	OFF	3	5	9 15	30	
2	None	±2°C	FAN	OFF	3 (5	9 15	30	
1	None	±2°C	FAN	OFF	3	5	9 15	30	
0	None	±2°C	FAN	OFF	3	5	9 15	30	
(A)	1/2 🔻				Sav	re Se	ttings		1

Interlocked LOSSNAY setting screen

 Initial Setting 	s 🔧 Function1 🔧 F	unction2 🕨	27/03/2015
Inter lo	ck Blocks	EM Block	F
Controller	Exp1 Mitsubishi		
1 🐹 31	1456	-	n
2 😿 32	2		
3 😿 33	3		
4 😹 34	7		
5 😹 35	8		
6 - 36	9		Ī
		Save Sett	ings

Floor layout setting screen



Peak-cut setting screen (configuration)



Measurement setting screen

	Peak Cut		Measure	ment		Energy M
Control	ler	Exp1	Mitsubishi			
-		e /See or	Report/Officet		Local Apparent	alare intertolds
- M	Exhibit	tion ha	n m		35, 8"0	32, 8°C
	25.0°C	↓ -28, 8	"C 🗕 📕 100. 0"C	+0,0	18. 0°C-	12.0°C
۴ 🛃 ،	Exhibit	tion ha	II (H)	1	88, 85	75.8%
	65, 85	0 8, 8%	- () 100. 0X	+0, 0	38, 86	35, 88

Energy management setting screen

4	Settings	2	unction1	× Functio	on2 🕨	27/03/2015
	Measurem	ent		Energy Ma	nagement	
Co	ontroller	AE20	0 Mitsub	oishi Electr	ic	
Ext	Temp Sensor	49-1	Outside	temp		
Indoor	unit operation app	ortionin	j 1009-		_	
FAN	operation t	ime	Therm	o-ON time	Capaci	ty save amount
fiedres:	it out			Ele	otracity werke	r
	Group1			1 EAST		
2	Entrance 2			47-1 1F		
З	Entrance 3			47-1 1F		
4	Entrance 4			47-1 1F		
					Save Set	tings

Night setback control setting screen

4	 Initial Settings Fu 	nction1	K Function	2 🕨	27/03/2015 11:43	₽
	Ext Temp Interio	ick	Setback		-	
C	ontroller Exp1	Mitsub	ishi			
C	Control Time 📃	01:00 -	89:08			
	Group Nare	1	Nimman Teir) - Ha	rinux Text	
1	Entrance 1		17°C			П
2	Lobby A		18°C	(+0)	30°C	
3	Lobby B		25°C	-	28°C	
5	Meeting room		- w	-	26°C	
		1		_	1	
			5	iave Se	ttings	

Maintenance user setting screen



Gas amount check screen



Outdoor temperature interlock screen

-4	Settings Set	nction1 🔧	Function2		27/83/2815 11:43	
	Ext Temp Interloc	:k S	etback	1		
C	ontroller Exp1	Mitsubishi				
Ext	Temp Sensor 47-1 0	utdoor statu	IS			
	Group Name		Contrat 1	evelt		
1	Entrance 1	None	±1°C ±	2*C ±	3°C ±4°C	Π
2	Lobby A	None	±1°C ±	2°C ±	3°C ±4°C	
3	Lobby B	None	±1°C ±	2°C ±	3°C ±4°C	
5	Meeting room	None	±1°C ±	2*C ±	3°C ±4°C	
		1	1 N	n.	1J	
			Sa	ve Set	tings	

Night purge setting screen



Building manager setting screen



Data backup screen





CSV output screen



Screen for cleaning data on carryover of apportionment



Software update screen



Energy management data output screen

🔺 📝 Status Lis	t 📝 Log	A Mainte- nance		06/10/2016 17:53	3
Energy	data output				
Controller	AE200 Mitsub	ishi			
Target unit					
Air-cond	tioners				
Energy manageme	ent data				
Date range	Data type				
	30-minute	intervals			
	Data-acquisi	tion period			
	05/10/201	6 - 06/10/2016			
		(SV outp	ut	

Screen for clearing data for comparison of apportioned electric energy

◄ ✓ Ventil. Settings ✓ User Info	A Mainte- nanc	e	28/84/281 1513	
┥ ned data 🛛 Comparison data	Carryover	Re	store	•
Target				
Centralized controller		PI Contr	oller	
Centralized controller				
Exp1	Mitsubishi			
			Clear	

Touch panel calibration screen



<4> Status of icons

The following icons will be displayed on the LCDs and Web browsers.

(1) Air conditioner group

ON	OFF	Error	Filter sign *1	Interlocked LOSSNAY ON *2, *3, *7

Interlocked LOSSNAY OFF	Schedule set	Schedule disabled	HOLD ON	Energy-saving ON
*3, *7	*5		*14	*4,*12

Night setback mode *10	Starting up *11	Occupied/Vacant *5, *6, *7	Bright/dark *8, *9, *10	Room temperature *12, *13
	?/			
		(Blue) (Gray)	(Yellow) (Gray)	(Red)



*1: Displayed only on the Web browsers

*2: When LOSSNAY is interlocked with Mr. Slim air conditioner, the "Interlocked LOSSNAY ON" icon is displayed also while only LOSSNAY is operating.

(Applicable M-NET adapter model: PAC-SF48/50/60/70/80/81MA-E)

- *3: When LOSSNAY is interlocked with indoor units in more than one group, LOSSNAY may be running even if the "Interlocked LOSSNAY OFF" icon is displayed.
- *4: The "Energy-saving control" icon is displayed in the following case.The peak-cut control is performed for the group or the outdoor units connected in the group.
- *5: The "Occupied/Vacant" icon is displayed only when [] (blue), [] (gray) or [] (blue/gray) has been selected in "Motion sensor display" in "Display setting" on the unit information screen of the basic system setting screen of the Web browser for initial setting.
- *6: The "Occupied/Vacant" icon is displayed only when an ME remote controller (PAR-U01MEDU/PAR-U02MEDA) provided with a motion sensor is used for the group.
- *7: The "Occupied/Vacant" icon is displayed in priority to the "Interlocked LOSSNAY ON" and "Interlocked LOSSNAY OFF" icons.
- *8: This icon is displayed only when [____] (yellow), [____] (gray) or [____ / ___] (blue/gray) has been selected in "Brightness sensor display" in "Display setting" on the unit information screen or the basic system setting screen of the Web browser for initial setting.
- *9: The "Bright/dark" icon is not displayed when the remote controller for the group is not provided with an Brightness sensor.
- *10: The "Night setback mode" icon is displayed in priority to the "Bright/dark" icon.
- *11: If the air conditioner is not recognized after startup, this icon keeps being displayed. Check the connection and group setting of the air conditioner.
- *12: The "Energy-saving control" icon is displayed in priory to the "Room temperature" and "Humidity" icons.
- *13: The display and non-display of room temperature and humidity can be switched on the initial setting screen.
- *14: The Hold function can be used on the AE-200A/AE-50A/EW-50A, but not on the AE-200E/AE-50E/EW-50E.

Remarks O The icons of the air conditioner group can be displayed not only in four directions, but also in two directions or in a suspended style. The icon display type can be set on the group setting screen.

(2) LOSSNAY group

ON	OFF	Error	Schedule set	Schedule disabled
*	*	*	0	2
HOLD ON	Energy-saving ON *2	Filter sign *3	Night purge ON/OFF *4]
2			9 / 9	

*1: The Hold function can be used on the AE-200A/AE-50A/EW-50A, but not on the AE-200E/AE-50E/EW-50E.

*2: The "Energy-saving control" icon is displayed when the peak-cut control is performed for the LOSSNAY group.

*3: This icon is displayed only on the Web browsers.

*4: When the scheduled operations exist during the Night purge operation, the "Night purge ON" icon takes priority over the "Schedule set" icon. When the scheduled operations exist but are disabled during the Night purge operation, the "Night purge ON" icon takes priority over the "Schedule disabled" icon.

ON (Yellow

*5: The "Night purge OFF" icon will appear only on operation setting screens.

(3) OA Processing unit group (AE-200E/AE-50E/EW-50E only)





*1: This icon is displayed only on the Web browsers.

*2: The "Energy-saving control" icon is displayed when the peak-cut control is performed for the group or the outdoor units connected in the group.

(4) Air To Water (PWFY) unit group and HWHP (CAHV/CRHV/QAHV) unit group

ON	OFF	Error	Schedule set	Schedule disabled
			•	8
Energy-saving ON	Water temperature display	HOLD ON	1	·

Energy-saving ON	Water temperature display	HOLD ON
*1	*2	*3

*1: The "Energy-saving ON" icon will appear while the Peak-Cut control is performed on the Air To Water (PWFY) unit group. This icon will not appear for the HWHP (CAHV/CRHV/QAHV) unit groups.

*2: The "Water temperature display" icon will not appear for the HWHP (CAHV/CRHV/QAHV) unit groups.

*3: The Hold function can be used on the AE-200A/AE-50A/EW-50A, but not on the AE-200E/AE-50E/EW-50E.

[2. Outline of Product]

(5) Chiller unit group

ON	OFF	Error	Schedule set	Schedule disabled
			e	8

(6) General equipment group

ON	OFF	Error	Schedule set ^{*1}	Schedule disabled
			0	0



*1: When schedule has been set for the DIDO controller prohibited from being operated ([Prohibited] has been specified in [Operation setting] on the group setting screen), the "Schedule set" icon is displayed, but the DC will not be operated according to the schedule.
*2: The Hold function can be used on the AE-200A/AE-50A/EW-50A, but not on the AE-200E/AE-50E/EW-50E.

Remarks Connecting the DIDO controller enables to turn on and off the lights and pumps and perform interlock control with a card key. In this case, the light and pump icons and card key can be selected. • The icons can be selected on the group setting screen.

<5> List of icons

The icons of the air conditioners and general equipment connected to AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50 are shown below.

	ON	OFF	Error		ON	OFF	Error		ON	OFF	Error
Ceiling cassette type (4-way blow)				Floor type 3				Humidifier	9	•	
Ceiling cassette type (2-way blow)				Floor type 4				Window			
Ceiling cassette type (1-way blow)				Lossnay	*	3 \$\$		Card key			
Ceiling embedded type 1				General equipment				Temperature sensor		-	J4
Ceiling embedded type 2				Pump				Humidity sensor	۵.	-	
Ceiling suspended type				Fan	0	0		Electricity meter		-	E
Wall mounted type				Door (electronic)				HWHP (CAHV, CRHV)			
Floor type 1				Illumination (fluorescent lamp)		_		HWHP (QAHV)			
Floor type 2				Illumination (down light)	9	•		Chiller (EAHV, EACV)			
<6> Centralized monitoring/operation by Integrated Centralized Control Web

When AE-200, AE-50 or EW-50 is connected with a personal computer through the LAN, the personal computer on the desk, tablet terminal or smartphone can be used as a terminal for operating the air conditioners. If the "Integrated Centralized Control" license is registered, up to 40 M-NET systems can be connected, and the air conditioners can be monitored and operated on one Web browser. The air conditioners can be operated collectively or by block, group or energy management block.

Remarks O The software versions of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 to be controlled on the Integrated Centralized Control Web must agree to one decimal place.

- (Example: When the version of one of them is 7.30, the versions of others must be 7.3 or later.)
- To centrally monitor and operate more than one set of AE-200 or EW-50 (single system) using the Integrated Centralized Control Web, the "Integrated Centralized Control" license is required.
- AE-200 which does not use M-NET is not included in the restricted number of units (up to 40 units) connected on the M-NET system of the Integrated Centralized Control Web.
- To use the Integrated Centralized Control Web, it is necessary to set the conditions using the Initial Setting Tool. For more information, see Instruction Book for AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 (Initial Setting)."



Access AE-200/EW-50 to which you have logged in from the Integrated Centralized Control Web, and you can collectively operate and monitor 50 air conditioners registered in each set, up to 2000 air conditioners.

The users are classified into general users, tenant managers and building manager as shown in 2.6.3 "Functions available to each user." The available functions vary depending on the user type.

<Login URL>

URL for PC and tablet terminal: <u>http://[IP address of AE-200/EW-50]/control/index.html</u> URL for smartphone: <u>http://[IP address of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50]/mobile/index.html</u>

Remarks	O When connecting AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 through the Internet, ensure the security using a VPN router. When connecting them to the company intranet, contact the system administrator to ensure that the VPN router can be used.
	O This system can encrypt communication data using the HTTPS (SSL). If this system is connected to a LAN which many and unspecified users can access, it is recommended to connect the system by using the HTTPS.
	O When using the SSL, it is necessary to SSL enable each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 on the terminal side.
	O To use a tablet terminal or a smartphone not through the Internet, it is necessary to create a Wi-Fi environment.
	O If a tablet terminal or a smartphone is Wi-Fi connected to a wireless LAN not connected to the Internet, it is impossible to establish Internet communication and send or receive e-mails on the tablet terminal or the smartphone.

If you log in as building manager, it may take about 1 minute until the Integrated Centralized Control Web is enabled after you log in depending on the number of air conditioners to be controlled. The Integrated Centralized Control Web will transfer a large amount of data to and from the centralized controller to display the home screen and display the screen in two stages. (1) "Menu, floors and notification" will appear first, and (2) "Energy use status" will appear.



Standard time to display the screen depending on the number of air conditioners to be controlled

Number of air	Time to display				
conditioners to be	1	2			
controlled	Menu, floors and notification	Energy use status			
200 units	6 sec	11 sec			
2,000 units	41 sec	47 sec			

<6-1> Major features

The major features of the Integrated Centralized Control Web are shown below.

<Monitoring/operation functions>

Up to 2000 air conditioners connected to more than one centralized controller AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 can be monitored and operated.

If the floor layout is set to display the air conditioners in any positions on the floor layout drawing, the visibility will be improved, and the time and labor for management can be significantly reduced.



<Energy management>

Energy management conditions, such as power consumption and operation time of air conditioners and outdoor temperature, can be graphically displayed. Energy-saving measures can be examined and confirmed by understanding the current operating state and checking the energy-saving effect. If the power consumption is abnormally high, the maintainability can be improved by understanding the air conditioner state.



<Scheduled operation>

The air conditioners can be operated according to the schedule by setting the operation start time and end time. Weekly schedules for setting the operation on each day of the week and annual schedule for setting the operation on holidays can be made. It is possible to change the contents of the schedule on the current day without making changes to the weekly or annual schedule.



[2. Outline of Product]

<User management>

In addition to the building manager user who can control all air conditioners, the tenant manager who can control specified air conditioners and general users who can only monitor and operate the air conditioners can be set. The available functions vary depending on the user type. The users can be managed as needed.

User	Number of users	Air conditioners to be controlled
Building manager	1	All
Tenant manager	200	Air conditioners specified by user management function
General user	2000	Air conditioners specified by user management function

• Example of setting of users

The air conditioner group to be controlled by each user can be set as shown below.



<A number of monitoring/operation terminals>

If centralized controllers are connected with a wireless LAN router, the air conditioners can be monitored and operated by using tablet terminals and smartphones. Smartphones can be used for this purpose only by the general users.

		5	
	PC	Tablet	Smartphone
Building manager	0	0	-
Tenant manager	0	0	_
General user	0	0	0

<6-2> Operation environment

The following table shows the supported operating systems, browsers, and models for using this Integrated Centralized Control Web with PCs, tablets, and smartphones.

Operation with any operating environment other than the following cannot be guaranteed.

	Item		Requirement		
	CPU	1 GHz	or faster (2 GHz or faster recommended)		
PC	Memory	2 GB o	r more		
	Screen resolution	1024 x	768 or higher (1920 x 1080 recommended)		
	OS	 Micro Mac 	 Microsoft[®] Windows[®] 7, 8.1, or 10 Mac OS[®] X10.11 		
	Browser	 Microsoft[®] Internet Explorer[®] 11 Microsoft[®] Edge[®] Google Chrome[™] Ver. 54 Safari[®] 10 			
	Microsoft [®] Excel [®]	Microsoft [®] Excel [®] 2010/2013/2016			
	Browser		Model		
	Safari [®] 10		 iPhone 6s (Plus) (iOS 10.1.1) iPhone 7 (Plus) (iOS 10.1.1) iPhone SE (iOS 10.1.1) 		
Smartphone	Google Chrome™ Ver. 54	1	 Galaxy S7 edge (Android [™] 6.0.1) HUAWEI P9 (Android [™] 6.0) Nexus 5X (Android [™] 7.0) Xperia Z5 (Android [™] 6.0) 		
Tablat	Safari [®] 10		• iPad Air 2 (iOS 10.1.1) • 9.7-inch iPad Pro (iOS 10.1.1)		
Tablet	Google Chrome™ Ver. 54	4	• Galaxy Tab S 8.4 (Android [™] 5.0.2)		

Note: The operating environments were verified with AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 Ver. 7.5.

Note: Registered trademarks

- Android is a registered trademark of Google Inc. in the U.S. and other countries.
- Apple is a trademark of Apple Inc., registered in the U.S. and other countries.
- · Google is a registered trademark of Google Inc.
- · Google Chrome is a registered trademark of Google Inc. in the U.S. and other countries.
- Edge is a trademark or registered trademark of Microsoft Corporation in the U.S. and other countries.
- Internet Explorer is a trademark or registered trademark of Microsoft Corporation in the U.S. and other countries.

MediaPad T2 7.0 Pro (Android[™] 5.1.1)

- The official name of Internet Explorer is "Microsoft® Internet Explorer Internet browser".
- iOS is a trademark or registered trademark of Cisco in the U.S. and other countries and is used under license.
- iPad is a trademark of Apple Inc., registered in the U.S. and other countries.
- Mac OS is a trademark of Apple Inc., registered in the U.S. and other countries.
- Microsoft Office Excel is a product name of Microsoft Corporation in the U.S.
- Windows is a trademark or registered trademark of Microsoft Corporation in the U.S. and other countries.
- The official name of Windows is "Microsoft® Windows® Operating System".
- · Safari is a trademark or registered trademark of Apple Inc. in the U.S.
- Nexus is a registered trademark of Google Inc. in the U.S. and other countries.
- Xperia is a trademark or registered trademark of Sony Corporation.
- Galaxy is a trademark or registered trademark of Samsun Co., Ltd.

Note: Company name or product name that is described in this manual may be a trademark or a registered trademark of each company.

<6-3> Functions available to each user

The available functions of the Integrated Centralized Control Web vary depending on the user who logs in to the browser.

	Function	Details	Building manager	Tenant manager	General user
	Floor layout	The operating state of the air conditioners is displayed on the floor layout.	√	_	-
	Show groups	The operating state of the air conditioners is displayed on the list screen.	1	1	1
	HWHP	The operating state of HWHP is displayed on the list screen.	1	✓ ^{*6}	✓ *6
Monitor/	Chiller	The operating state of chiller is displayed on the list screen.	1	1	1
operation	Measurement Status	The temperature/humidity data and electric energy data are displayed.	1	-	-
	AHC Status	The input/output status of Advanced HVAC CONTROLLERs can be displayed.	1	-	-
	Advanced	The air conditioners can be operated.	1	1	1
	Energy Use Status	The power consumption, outdoor temperature and operation time can be displayed in bar graphs or line graphs for comparison.	1	1	-
	Energy management list *1	The results of apportionment of energy consumption to energy management blocks, meters, indoor units and outdoor units are displayed.	1	<i>√</i>	_
Energy management	Ranking	The air conditioners are displayed in descending order of power consumption or fan operation time.	1	1	-
	Target Value*2	The target values of power consumption in one year, in each month and in each block can be checked.	1	<i>✓</i>	-
	Peak-Cut ^{*3}	The peak-cut control level and average electric power are displayed. Note: "Energy Management License Pack" is required.	1	-	-
Schedule	Schedule settings*4	It is possible to set the weekly schedule based on the day-of-the- week pattern (for each season), annual schedule and daily schedule for the units in each group, in each block or on each floor or all units collectively.	✓	1	-
	Date range setting	The periods for weekly schedules 1 to 5 can be set.	1	-	-
	Error List	The addresses of units in trouble and error codes and the addresses of units whose troubles have been detected are displayed.	\checkmark	-	-
Notice	Unit error log/ Communication error log	128 errors which have occurred in each set of AE-200/AE-50/ EW-50 are displayed. (64 unit errors and 64 communication errors)	\checkmark	_	-
	Filter sign	A list of units on which the filter sign is on is displayed.	1	-	-
	Screen display settings	The items related to screen display can be set.	1	-	-
Cottingo	User registration	The building manager, tenant manager and general users can be set.	1	-	-
Settings	Date and Time Settings	The current date and time can be set.	1	-	-
	License Registration	Licenses can be registered in each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.	1	-	-
	Send Mail Log	The history of transmission of error notification e-mails can be displayed in list form.	1	-	-
	Outdoor Unit Status	The capacity values, high pressure values and low pressure values of the outdoor units can be checked.	1	-	-
Maintonanco	Free Contact	The input/output state of the indoor unit free contacts can be checked.	1	-	-
Maintenance	Gas Refrigerant Amount Check	The coolant quantity of the outdoor unit can be inspected.	~	_	_
	Reset Emergency Stop	Emergency stop can be canceled.	1	_	-
	CSV Output *5	The apportionment parameters, power consumption and energy management data can be output in CSV format.	\checkmark	-	-

*1: The table can be displayed only when the "Charge" license has been registered.

*2: The target values cannot be set on the Integrated Centralized Control Web.

*3: The data can be displayed only when "Energy Management License Pack" has been registered.

*4: The tenant management users cannot set the weekly schedule for each season.

*5: The data can be output in CSV format only on personal computers. The data cannot be output in CSV format on tablet terminals.

*6: Except QAHV units

<6-4> Images of Integrated Centralized Control Web screen

[General user]

Monitoring of operating state/operation (display by group)



Monitoring of operating state/operation (display by group)





Monitoring of operating state/operation (operation screen)



[Tenant manager]

Monitoring of operating state/operation (display by group)

				Contr	oller							
				All cont	rollers				Deselect	ail	Selec	t all
00 r/Operation	Admin.Dp	25.0°C	Admin.Dpt.	2 25°C	Admin.Dpt.	3 25°C	Admin.Dpt.	4 25°C	Accounting	Dpt.1 31°C	Accounting	Dpt.2 31°C
Management	0		0		0		0		0		0	
100 bechule	Purchasin	Dpt.1 25°C	Purchasing	Dpt.2 25°C	Purchasing	Dpt.3 25.0°C	Advertising	Dpt.1 25.0°C	Advertising	Dpt.2 25.0°C	Advertising	Dpt.3 25.0%
	0		0		0		0		0		0	
	Planning (opt.1 30.5°C	Planning Dp	t.2 25.0°C	Planning Dp	€.3 25.0°C	Legal Dpt.1	15.5°C	Legal Dpt.2	25.0°C	SalesPro. D	15.5°
	0		0		0		0		0			
	SalesPro.	Dpt.2 25.0°C	ELEV.Hall W	67.0°C	ELEV.Hall E	67.0°C	ELEV.Hall S	67°C	ELEV.Hall N	67°C	Passagewar	y Center 25°C
	0		٠				•		0		0	
	Meeting R	25.5°C	Meeting Ro	25,5°C	Meeting Ros	omC 25.0°C			LOSSNAY2		Lighting	
	0		0		0		*		-			
												1/2
4:59												

Status of energy use



Monitoring of operating state/operation (operation screen)

ups HWHP

[2. Outline of Product]

[Building manager]

Monitoring of operating state/operation(floor layout)



Monitoring of operating state/operation(group operation screen)



Units in trouble

		Error List	Unit error log	Communication error log	Filter sign
*	Unit error log	Cor All co	itroller ntrollers	Clear log	
Home	Error code: 3602 11/25/2017 03:35AM Group01-11 Address: 01-012	4 - 11/25/	2017 03:40AM	ч	î
Monitor/Operation	Error code: 3602 11/25/2017 03:34AM	4 - 11/25/	2017 03:39AM	И	
Energy Management	Error code: 3602 11/25/2017 03:33AN Admin Dept.2 Address: 01-002	4 - 11/25/	2017 03:38AM	И	
Schedule	Error code: -779512 11/25/2017 02:45AM	4			
Notice	Error code: 3602 11/22/2017 12:43AM	4 - 11/22/	2017 12:48AM	И	
© Settings	Error code: 3601 11/22/2017 12:43AM	4 - 11/22/	2017 12:48AM	И	
AT Maintenance	Error code: 3600 11/22/2017 12:43AM	4 - 11/22/	2017 12:48AM	И	
	Error code: 3182 11/22/2017 12:42AM	4 - 11/22/	2017 12:48AM	И	~
					1/16
08:34PM 09/10(Thu) 2015					

Monitoring of operating state/operation(display by group)



Monitoring of measurement state

		Floor Layout Show groups	HWHP Measurement Status	AHC Status
*	Measurement Status		Controller All controllers	
Home	Measurement device	Measurement value		
00 Monitor/Operation	For AC units	222410.22 kWh		î
Jin Energy Management	Metering device01-1-2	275.08 kWh		
11	Metering device01-1-3	59.00 m³		-
Schedule	Metering device01-1-4	72.99 MJ		
Notice	Electricity Meter1	24748.41 kWh		
Settings	Electricity Meter2	18818.15 kWh		
Maintenance	Electricity Meter3	4748.41 kWh		
	Lobby Temp.	25.0 °C		
	Lobby Humidity	50.3 %		~
08:55				1/4
11/14(Sat)		Construction of the	TTO BUOK DI POTRIC CORRORATION	

Units with filter sign displayed

		Error List Unit error k	g error log Filter sign
	Filter sign	Controller All controllers	Reset All
Home	Admin.Dept.2 Address: 01-002		Reset
the	Admin.Dept.3 Address: 01-003		Reset
rgy Management	Meeting RoomE Address: 02-001		Reset
Schedule	Meeting RoomF Address: 02-002		Reset
Notice	Meeting RoomG Address: 02-003		Reset
Settings			
KT Maintenance			
			1/1
08:34PM			

M











Status of peak-cut control



Schedule setting list screen(weekly display)





<6-5> User management

The available functions of the Integrated Centralized Control Web vary depending on the user who logs in to the browser. It is possible to set the tenant manager who can monitor and operate the air conditioners in each group, set the schedules and use the energy management functions and the general users who can monitor and operate the air conditioners in each group.

	-: Not registered O: Possible X: No function (impossible)						
	User type	General user	Tenant manager	Building manager			
	User name (default)	_*1	_*1	administrator*2			
User information	Password (default)	_*1	_*1	admin*2			
	Max. set number	2000*3	200 ^{*3}	1 ^{*3}			
	Monitor/Operation	O*4	O*4	0			
	Energy management	×	O ^{*4}	0			
Available basic	Schedule	X	O ^{*4}	0			
functions	Notice (error state)	×	×	0			
	Settings	×	×	0			
	Maintenance	×	×	0			
	PC	0	0	0			
Available devices	Tablet terminal	0	0	0			
	Smartphone	0	×	×			

*1: The tenant manager and general users have not been registered before shipment. Log in as building manager, and set the users on the user setting screen.

*2: The name and password are different from those of the building manager on the LCD screen.

*3: The browser can be accessed simultaneously from up to 50 sets of PCs, tablet terminals and smartphones.

*4: These functions can be used only for the air conditioner groups set on the user setting screen.



<User setting screen for building manager>

		Building manag	er registration		
•	administrator				
-	User name administrator		Password	_	
		LOSSNAY			
	195	3	n =•	2	
	Controller All	controllers			
	Admin.Dpt.1	E	🖌 🚎 Admin.Dpt.2		
	Admin.Dpt.3	5	🖌 💓 Admin.Dpt.4		
	Admin.Dpt.5	5	Accounting Dpt		
	Accounting Dpt.2	5	Accounting Dpt		
	Purchasing Dpt.1	Ľ	Purchasing Dpt		
		Cancel	ОК		1/20

<User setting screen for tenant manager>



<User setting screen for general user>



<7> Plan view function

(1) Loading of plan view on LCD

The plan views of up to 10 floors can be set on the LCD screen on AE-200/AE-50 main unit. Air conditioners can be located in each room on the plan view, and the air conditioners can be easily operated and monitored.

Create a GIF file on the personal computer, and load a plan view into AE-200/AE-50 main unit through the USB memory. * The plan views cannot be loaded into EW-50.



Save the plan view file with a specific file name and fixed size in the root folder in the USB memory, and load the image selecting Load on the LCD screen of AE-200/AE-50. A GIF-format file with a size of 900 dots (vertical) × 1890 dots (horizontal) per floor can be loaded.



File size	900 (vertical)	900 (vertical) × 1890 (horizontal) dots							
File format	gif	yif							
File names	Floor 1 2 3 4 5	File name floor_01.gif floor_02.gif floor_03.gif floor_04.gif floor_05.gif	Floor 6 7 8 9 10	File name floor_06.gif floor_07.gif floor_08.gif floor_09.gif floor_10.gif					
Storage location	In root folder	In root folder in USB memory							

(2) Number of divisions of floor

The number of areas in the floor layout displayed on the LCD screen on AE-200/AE-50 main unit can be set. Create a file with a size of 900 (vertical) × 1890 (horizontal) dots regardless of the number of displayed areas.

Layout button	Displayed areas	Layout button	Displayed areas
		-	

Example) When one area is displayed, create a file with a size of 900 (vertical) × 1890 (horizontal) dots, and create the layout only in the upper left area among the six divisions.



(3) Arrangement of icons

Icons can be arranged on the floor layout loaded onto the LCD screen on AE-200/AE-50 main unit. The positions of the icons can be changed by using Cut and Paste or dragging^{*1}.

*1: The icons in the unregistered floor areas are displayed in a line and cannot be dragged. Arrange the icons after moving them onto the floor layout from the unregistered floor area.



(4) Floor layout drawing on AE-200/AE-50/EW-50

AE-200/AE-50 can display the floor layouts on the Integrated Centralized Control Web as well as on the LCD. EW-50 can display the floor layouts on the Integrated Centralized Control Web.

O: Possible -: No function (impossible)

Classification	AE-200	AE-50
Classification	LCD	LCD
Display of floor layouts	0	0
Display of floor layouts of air conditioner groups registered in other AE-50/EW-50	0	_
Explanation	The icons on AE-50/EW-50 can be arranged on the floor layouts on AE-200.	To display the floor layouts on the Integrated Centralized Control Web of AE-50, it is necessary to read and set the floor layouts on AE-50. Only the air conditioner groups registered in AE-50 are displayed.

[5] License

<1> License list

To use some functions on AE-200/AE-50/EW-50, the licenses may be required.

[Explanatory note] ✓: License A:AE-200A/AE-50A/EW-50A E:AE-200E/AE-50E/EW-50E

					Lice	ense		
Function	Supplementary note	License not required	PLC for General Equipments	Interlock control	Charge	Energy Management License Pack	BACnet connection	Integrated Centralized Control
Integrated Controlized Control Web	When one set of AE-200 or EW-50 (single system) is used	1						
Integrated Centralized Control Web	When more than one set of AE-200 or EW-50 (single system) is used	А						Е
Comprehensive management (TG-2000A)	More than one set of AE-200/AE-50/ EW-50 can be integrally controlled.	1						
Notification of error by e-mail	Information on errors and recovery of air conditioners can be transmitted by e-mail from AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.	1						
Annual/weekly schedule		1						
AE-200 Billing by apportionment of electric energy (manual input of electric energy)	Method using AE-200 but not using an electricity meter				1			
AE-200 Billing by apportionment of electric energy (counting of electric energy)	Method using AE-200 for charging for electricity consumed by air conditioners				1			
AE-200 Billing by meters (pulse count)	Function using AE-200 for charging for general electricity from outlets, gas and water				1			
TG-2000A Billing by apportionment of electric energy (manual input of electric energy)	Method using TG-2000A but not using an electricity meter				1			
TG-2000A Billing by apportionment of electric energy (counting of electric energy)	Method using TG-2000A for charging for electricity consumed by air conditioners				1			
TG-2000A Billing by meters and apportionment (pulse count)	Function using TG-2000A for charging for general electricity from outlets, gas and water				1			

						Lice	ense		
	Function	Supplementary note	License not required	PLC for General Equipments	Interlock control	Charge	Energy Management License Pack	BACnet connection	Integrated Centralized Control
Operation and	DIDO controller method		1						
monitoring of	Free contact method	TG-2000A is required.		1					
equipment	PLC method	TG-2000A is required.		1					
	DIDO controller method				1				
	Free contact method (AE-200/AE-50/EW-50)	Register the interlock control setting (table) in AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.			1				
Interlock control of general equipment	Free contact method (when the PLC for general equipment is used)	Register the interlock control setting (table) in the PLC for general equipment. TG-2000A is required.		1					
	PLC method (between PLCs)	TG-2000A is required when the interlock control by the PLC function is used.	1						
	PLC method (between air conditioner and PLC)	TG-2000A is required when the interlock control of AE-200/AE-50/ EW-50 is used.		1					
Night mode			1						
Outdoor temperat	ure interlock control		1						
Night setback fund	ction		1						
Limitation of temp	erature setting range		1						
Measurement of temperature and humidity		It is necessary to connect the AI controller.	1						
Upper/lower limit alarm e-mail		It is necessary to connect the AI controller.	1						
Energy-saving cor	ntrol						1		
Peak-cut control		For the peck-cut control method, see 18.8 "Peak-cut control method."					1		
Energy managem	ent function		Α			✓ *1	E		
BACnet [®] connecrt	ion							\checkmark	

*1 The energy management function requires an electricity meter for each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. However, when the apportioned electricity billing function is used by AE-200, the electricity can be apportioned to AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 to which electricity meters are not connected in the AE-200 system.

• The licenses must be registered in each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. However, it is unnecessary to register the licenses in AE-200/AE-50/ EW-50 which do not use the license functions.

• The above functions are subject to change for improvement without notice.

Remarks

 \bigcirc The number of required licenses varies depending on the system configuration and license type. The license registration is classified into the following three patterns.

<Pattern 1>



<Pattern 2>

Licenses	"Integrated Centralized Control" license * Required only for AE-200E/AE-50E/EW-50E
Method of counting licenses	1 license is required for AE-200E system or up to 40 sets of EW-50E (single system). * When 41 sets or more are connected, one license is required for every 40 sets.
Example	1 license is required for the following system configuration. * It is necessary to register the license in each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

[2. Outline of Product]

<Pattern 3>

Licenses	"BACnet connection" license			
Method of counting licenses	license is required for each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. When the apportioned electricity billing function is simultaneously used, the license is not required for AE-200 not using M-NET.			
Example	6 licenses are required for the following system configuration. AE-200 1 license EW-50 1 license EW-50 1 license EW-50 1 license EW-50 1 license EW-50 1 license			

<2> Product list

The functions of AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50 and the devices and licenses necessary to use the functions are shown below.

								[Ex	olanato	ry note	e] 0: Re	quired
	Function ^{*1}						Sup	port for	billing fo	or air co	nditione	rs ^{*6}
			Centr	alized c	ontrol		AE-2 appo eleo	00 Billir ortionme ctric ene	ng by nt of ergy	TG-20 appo eleo	000A Bill ortionme ctric ene	ing by nt of ergy
Required o	device*2	Web integrated control	Display of plan view *3	Energy management	Daily/seasonal/weekly/annual schedule	Remote monitoring	Manual input of electric energy	Billing by pulse input for electric energy apportionment *4	Billing by PI controller for electric energy apportionment *5	Manual input of electric energy	Billing by PI controller for electric energy apportionment	Billing by electric energy apportionment PLC
	Centralized controller: AE-200	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	Centralized controller: EW-50 *7	0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0
Main unit	Expansion controller: AE-50 *8	0	0	0	0	0	0	O*9	O ^{*9}	0	0	0
	Expansion controller: EW-50 *7	0	0	0	0	0	0	O ^{*9}	O ^{*9}	0	0	0
	Integrated software: TG-2000A		O ^{*10}		O ^{*10}	O*10				0	0	0
	"Charge" license *11			O ^{*12}			0	0	0	0	0	0
	"Energy Management License Pack" license			0			0	0	0	0	0	0
License	"Interlock control" license											
	"PLC for General Equipments" license											
	"BACnet connection" license											
	"Integrated Centralized Control" license	O ^{*13}										
	Sequencer (PLC) *14											0
	Electric energy counting software (PLC) *14											0
	External system											
Othora	PI controller: PAC-YG60MCA *14			0					0		0	
Others	DIDO controller: PAC-YG66DCA											
	AI controller:PAC-YG63MCA			0								
	External input/output adapter: PAC-YG10HA-E											

*1: Some functions cannot be used or the use of some functions is restricted depending on the connected devices.

*2: Note that this list does not show all necessary devices.

- *3: One floor can be divided into up to 6 areas, and the plan views of up to 10 floors can be displayed.
- *4: AE-50/EW-50 used as an expansion controller inputs electric energy pulses by using the pulse input function built in the main unit.

*5: A billing system using PI controller (PAC-YG60MCA)

*6: The apportioned electricity billing functions of AE-200 and TG-2000A cannot be used simultaneously.

- *7: EW-50 can be used as a single unit (centralized controller) or an expansion controller. When it is used as a single unit, the air conditioners can be monitored and operated from the Integrated Centralized Control Web and BACnet[®].
- *8: AE-50 cannot be used as a single unit.
- *9: AE-50/EW-50 used as an expansion controller is connected for the "Charge" license used on AE-200.

*10: It is unnecessary when the control is monitored on the main unit or Web.

- *11: The license is shared by AE-200 and TG-2000A. It is supplied with a Charge Calculation Tool and an Initial Setting Tool. TG-2000A does not use the Charge Calculation Tool and Initial Setting Tool.
- *12: When the energy management function is used, an electricity meter is required for each of AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50. When the apportioned electricity billing function is used on AE-200, electric energy can be apportioned also to AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50 to which electricity meters are not connected by connecting at least one electricity meter in the AE-200 system.
- *13: When some sets of AE-200E or EW-50E (single system) are integrally controlled by one Integrated Centralized Control Web, the "Integrated Centralized Control" license is required.
- *14: It is impossible to simultaneously use the PI controller and the electric energy counting PLC. Select one of them.

								[Ex	planato	ory note	e] 0: Re	equired
Function*1 Energy-saving/peak-cut control Others												
Required o	levice*2	:nergy-saving	eak-cut (1) Connection of PI controller	eak-cut (2) Pulse input	eak-cut (3) From external system	eak-cut (4) External contact input	sACnet® connection	ntegrated Centralized Control Web	Seneral control (use of PLC)	Aonitoring and operation of general equipment PAC-YG66DCA)	nterlock control	Aeasurement of temperature and humidity connection of commercially available sensors)
	Centralized controller: AE-200	0	0	0	0	0	0 ^{*9}	0	0	0	0	0
	Centralized controller: EW-50 *3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Main unit	Expansion controller: AE-50 *4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	Expansion controller: EW-50 *3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	Integrated software: TG-2000A	0	0		0	0			0	0	O *5	0
	"Charge" license											
	"Energy Management License Pack" license	0	0	0	0	0						
License	"Interlock control" license										0	
	"PLC for General Equipments" license								O *6			
	"BACnet connection" license						0					
	"Integrated Centralized Control" license							0				
	Sequencer (PLC) *7								O *8			
	Electric energy counting software (PLC) *7											
	External system				0							
Others	PI controller: PAC-YG60MCA *7		0									
	DIDO controller: PAC-YG66DCA									0		
	AI controller:PAC-YG63MCA											0
	External input/output adapter: PAC-YG10HA-E					0				0		

*1: Some functions cannot be used or the use of some functions is restricted depending on the connected devices.

*2: Note that this list does not show all necessary devices.

*3: EW-50 can be used as a single unit (centralized controller) or an expansion controller.

When it is used as a single unit, the air conditioners can be monitored and operated from the Integrated Centralized Control Web and BACnet[®].

*4: AE-50 cannot be used as a single unit.

*5: To operate devices connected to free contacts, TG-2000A is required.

*6: For the interlock control of air conditioning equipment by using PLC, the license is required.

*7: It is impossible to simultaneously use the PI controller and the electric energy counting PLC. Select one of them.

*8: For the general control by the sequencer (PLC), TG-2000A is required.

*9: When the apportioned electricity billing function is used, the "BACnet connection" license is not required for AE-200 because AE-200 is not connected to M-NET.

<3> Outline of licenses

The following optional licenses are available.

The air conditioner energy-saving operation and apportioned electricity billing function can be enabled by registering the licenses in the main units of AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50. The license number is issued for each of the serial numbers of AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50.

<List of licenses relating to energy-saving control>

License name	Energy-saving effect by introduction of license	Outline of control
	Basic charge mainly in cooling/heating operation mode	Air conditioners are operated in the energy-saving mode for the purpose of reduction of basic charge of electricity. 4-level peak-cut control of air conditioners is performed.
"Energy Management License Pack" license	Meter charge mainly in cooling/heating operation mode	The energy-saving operation is performed based on the energy-saving control items and control time which have been set for each operation block of indoor units or each outdoor unit. One-level (1-kind) energy-saving control of the indoor units or outdoor unit is performed.

<List of licenses relating to billing and interlock control>

License name		Outline of control				
"Charae" licence ^{*1}	AE-200 Apportionment	The electric energy is measured by electricity meters, and AE-200 apportions the electric energy to each unit or block based on the air conditioner operation data to support the electricity billing.				
	TG-2000A Apportionment	The electric energy is measured by electricity meters, and the electric energy is apportioned to each unit or block based on the air conditioner operation data to support the electricity billing.				
"Interlock control" license	Interlocked operation among air conditioners or among air conditioners and general equipme than air conditioners can be performed. The air conditioners can be started and stopped by s from the security system of a tenant building. This function is effective in preventing failure in off air conditioners.					
"PLC for General Equipments" license	Interlocked operation among air conditioners and general equipment connected to PLC of air conditioners can be performed. The air conditioners can be started and stopped by sig the security system of a tenant building. This function is effective in preventing failure in tu air conditioners. This function is effective when a lot of general equipment are used. TG-2 required to use the function					

*1: The license can be shared for apportionment by AE-200 and TG-2000A. The apportioned electricity billing function using TG-2000 does not require the use of the Charge Calculation Tool and Initial Setting Tool.

<List of BACnet® license>

License name	Outline of control
"BACnet connection" license	AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 can be connected to BACnet®.

<List of license related to integrated control>

License name	Outline of control
"Integrated Centralized Control" license	 Some sets of AE-200 or EW-50 (single system) can be integrally controlled from the Web browser by registering "Integrated Centralized Control" license. Note: To monitor and operate one M-NET system from the Web browser, "Integrated Centralized Control" license is not required. To use the Integrated Centralized Control Web, it is necessary to set the relevant centralized controller to "Control" by "Floor hierarchy setting for Integrated Centralized Centralized Control Web" of the Initial Setting Tool. Note: "Integrated Centralized Control" license is not required for AE-200A/AE-50A/EW-50A.

[6] Connectable models

<1> List of connectable models

The following table shows the devices which can be controlled by AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50.

O: Applicable X: Inapplicable					
Model	Function	Monitoring/ operation			
	City Multi Y ^{*1}	0			
	Zubadan-Multi Y ^{*1}	0			
	Zubadan-Multi R2 *1	0			
City Multi	City Multi R2 *1	0			
	City Multi WR2 *1	0			
	City Multi WY *1	0			
	City Multi S	0			
	HYBRID City Multi	0			
Large capacity floor standing PAC		0			
Air To Water (PWF	Y)	0			
HWHP (CAHV) *3		0			
HWHP (CRHV) ^{*4}		0			
HWHP (QAHV)		O *5			
Chiller		0			
Mr. Slim/P-Series		O *2			
M-series (RAC)		O *2			
LOSSNAY (with M-NET)		0			
Computer room ai	r-conditioner (PFD)	0			
K-control model		×			

Table Devices to	be controlled
\bigcirc	Applicable X: Inapr

*1: Including Replace City Multi

*2: An adapter is required.

P-Series M-NET connecting adapter

- M-Series M-NET control interface
- *3: HWHP (CAHV, QAHV) is the abbreviation for Hot Water Heat Pump unit of air-cooled system.
- *4: HWHP (CRHV) is the abbreviation for Hot Water Heat Pump unit of geothermal system.
- *5: Can only be connected to AE-200.

Remarks O The above-mentioned connectable models are subject to change for improvement without prior notice. O The applicable functions vary depending on the model connected.

<2> Models subject to energy management and display items

The following table shows whether or not the graphs of each model can be displayed on the energy use status screen and ranking screen of the energy management function.

Data displayed in graph	Bar graphs				Line graphs						
Model	Electric energy	Fan operation time	Thermo ON time (total)	Thermo ON time (cooling)	Thermo ON time (heating)	Measured value	Outdoor temperature	Cooling temperature setting	Heating temperature setting	Indoor temperature (inside temperature)	Al controller
City Multi	0	0		0				0	0	0	
Large capacity floor standing PAC	0	0		0				0	0	0	
Mr. Slim/P-Series	0	0		0		red.	5	0	0	0	r ed.
M-series (RAC)	×	0		×		aye	ed.	0	0	0	olle
LOSSNAY (with M-NET)	_ *1	0		_*2		isp	ontr	-	-	-	isp
OA processing unit (FU attribute)	0	0	0	-	-	e C	lisp co	0	0	0	d Q d Q
OA processing unit (IC attribute)	0	0		0			y A is c	0	0	0	A d A d
Air To Water (PWFY)	0	0		0		db ca	A b	0	0	0	db ca
HWHP (CAHV)	×	×		×		(A)	MC	×	×	×	(A)
HWHP (CRHV)	×	×		×		MO	i63	×	×	×	MO
HWHP (QAHV)	×	×		×		900 260	an Y G	×	×	×	me 963
Chiller	×	×		×		es -	-C-les	×	×	×	-YO
Device connected to DIDO controller	_ *1	×		_*2		AC.	(P/	-	-	-	AC.
Device connected to PLC for general equipment	_ *1	×		_*2		>€	>	-	_	-	<u>></u> €
Computer room air-conditioner (PFD)	0	0		0				0	0	0	

O: Displayed X: Not displayed -: Not applicable

*1: Without outdoor unit

*2: Refrigerant not used

<3> Models compatible with apportioned electricity billing function

The models compatible with the apportioned electricity billing function of the main unit of AE-200 are shown below.

Function	Apportione billing f	d electricity unction	
Model	Electric energy measuring method	Electric energy manual input method	Remarks
Y series *2	0	0	
HP series *2	0	0	
R2 series *2	0	0	
WY series *2	0	0	
WR2 series *2	0	0	
HVRF series *2	O *5	O *5	
Inverter of packaged air conditioner for equipment (PEAV)	0	0	Separately install an electricity meter for packaged air conditioner for equipment.
Packaged air conditioner for equipment (PEV/PFV)	Δ	0	
LOSSNAY	0	0	
OA Prosessing unit	0	0	Power for humidifying is not taken into account.
A-control unit (Mr. Slim) ^{*3}	0	0	Separately install an electricity meter for Mr. Slim air conditioner.
AK-control unit (Mr. Slim) *3	0	0	Apportioned in the same manner as to City Multi
Room air conditioner (RAC)	\triangle	×	
Housing air conditoner (HAC)	\triangle	×	
Air To Water Booster unit/ Air To Water HEX unit	0	0	
HWHP (CAHV/CRHV/QAHV)	×	×	
General equipment through general-purpose DC	\triangle	×	
General equipment through indoor unit free contact	\bigtriangleup	×	Out of scope of monitoring and operation on AE-200/AE-50/EW-50
K-control unit	×	×	Out of scope of monitoring and operation on AE-200/AE-50/EW-50

[Explanatory notes] O: Apportionment possible \triangle : Apportionment impossible (compatible by directly reading) X: Incompatible

*1: The function is inapplicable to some air conditioning units. Restrictions will be imposed on large indoor units in case of trouble.

*2: Replace Multi is included.

*3: Apportionment in the outdoor unit power consumption apportionment mode "capacity save amount" is possible only when one of the following models of M-NET adapter is used.

PAC-SJ10MA, PAC-SJ18MA and PAC-SJ31MA

When another model is used, set the apportionment mode to "Thermo ON time" or "FAN operation time."

*4: Select one of two configurations, one with same power supply for outdoor and indoor units and one with different power supplies for outdoor and indoor units.

*5: Power consumptions of outdoor units will be apportioned based on Thermo-ON time, even when the setting is made to apportion it based on the capacity save amount.

[7] Comparison of new and old controllers and devices

<1> Differences between AE-200 and AG-150

AE-200/AE-50 differ from AG-150 (old model) in the following points.

Table	Differences	hetween	AF-200	and AG	-150
lable	Differences	Dermeen	AL-200	anu AO	-150



	Table Differences between AE-200 and AC	G-150(continued)
	New model AE-200	Old model AG-150
	Commands from TG-2000A are transmitted to each of AE-200 and AE-50.	Commands from TG-2000A are transmitted only to AG-150 and transmitted to the expansion controller by AG-150.
Communication with host device	AE-200 TG-2000A TG-2000A Air Conditioner transmission line AE-50 Air conditioner	TG-2000A AG-150
Energy management	Note: The indication of the power supplies is omitted.	Note: The indication of the power supplies is omitted.
	See Chapter 8, "Energy Management Function."	
AHC connection	0	3 floors (6 divisions) 5 floors (4 or 3 divisions)
Number of floors	10 floors (in any case of 1 to 6 divisions)	8 floors (2 divisions) or 10 floors (1 division)
	Up to 180 groups (The maximum number of groups arranged in one area is 30 groups, and the maximum number of groups can be arranged when one floor is divided into 6 areas.)	Up to 150 groups (The maximum number of groups arranged in one area is 25 groups, and the maximum number of groups can be arranged when one floor is divided into 6 areas.)
Number of groups which can be arranged on one floor	[Area] Up to 30 groups can be arranged. [Floor] Up to 180 groups can be arranged.	[Area] Up to 25 groups can be arranged. [Floor] Up to 150 groups can be arranged.
Number of conditions for interlock control	200 (150 for Ver. 7.46 or earlier) conditions for each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 Interlocked control of units that are connected via an expansion controller is possible on Ver. 7.50 or later.	150 conditions for whole AG-150 system Interlock control across some sets of EC can be made.
Updating of software on	0	×
	×	\bigcirc
Block setting/interlock control across some expansion controller systems	HUB AE-200 AE-50 Block setting not allowed Interlock setting not allowed	HUB AG-150 Block setting allowed EC EC
	Note: Block setting and interlock setting across some sets of AE-200/AE-50 cannot be performed even if TG-2000A is used. Note: The indication of the power supplies is omitted.	Note: The indication of the power supplies is omitted.
Registration of license	Registration for each set of AE-200/ AE-50	Registration only for AG-150
Display of Web page	Centralized controller is controlled by accessing the Integrated Centralized Control Web address of the log-in target centralized controller. To control two or more systems under the control of centralized controllers from the Integrated Centralized Control Web, a license for Integrated Centralized Control Web is required. (For AE-200, AE-50, and EW-50)	One Web page address for AG-150 (switching among EC(1) to EC(3) with tags)
HOLD function (only North American models)	Turning on HOLD will disable both the schedule set by AE-200/AE-50 and the schedule set by the system controller or the remote controller.	×

	Table Differences between AE-200 and AG	G-150 (continued)
	New model AE-200	Old model AG-150
Measurement by main unit (pulse input)	Cannot be connected to AE-200 when the apportioned electricity billing function is used or M-NET is not used.)	×
Peak-cut setting	LCD screen Web browser screen	Only Web browser screen
Outdoor unit capacity control for peak-cut	90/80/70/60/50%	90/80/70/60%
Necessity of transmission line power supply unit	No power supply unit is required when the transmission line for centralized control does not have units, such as system remote controllers, which have power consumption factors.	The transmission line power supply unit PAC-SC51KUA is required.
Introduction of apportioned electricity billing function	 Apportioned electricity billing can be performed on AE-200 main unit, and it is unnecessary to constantly connect or start the personal computer. The function can be used also on TG-2000A.^{*1} 	The function can be used on TG-2000A. It is necessary to constantly connect and start the personal computer for TG-2000A.
Connection of K-control devices	×	0
Setting with Initial Setting Tool	The setting data can be preliminarily created with the Initial Setting Tool without AE-200 main unit. The apportioned electricity billing function to be used on AE-200 main unit can be set only with the Initial Setting Tool.	×
Data backup	All data including the schedule setting can be backed up (except the main unit IP address and license information).	Data can be backed up (except the main unit IP address, license registration information and schedule setting).

*1: The apportioned electricity billing functions in TG-2000A and AE-200 main units cannot be simultaneously used.

(Use the apportioned electricity billing function in any of TG-2000A and AE-200.)

<2> Differences among EW-50, EB-50 and GB-50ADA

The differences among EW-50, EB-50 and GB-50ADA are shown below.

		5	
	New model EW-50	Old model EB-50	Old model GB-50ADA
Appearance			and go
Number of connected units	Up to 50 units	Up to 50 units	Up to 50 units
Operation as expansion controller	When M-NET is connected to AE-200, up to 3 units can be connected. When M-NET is not connected to AE-200 (for billing, etc.), up to 4 units can be connected.	X Only one unit can be operated.	X Only one unit can be operated.
Necessity of transmission line power supply unit	Required when the power supply factor exceeds 1.5 ^{*1}	Required	Required when the power supply factor exceeds 6
Measurement on main unit (pulse input)	0	×	×
Outdoor unit capacity control for peak-cut	90/80/70/60/50%	90/80/70/60%	90/80/70/60%
Introduction of apportioned electricity billing function	The function can be used on TG- 2000A. When combined with AE-200, the function can be used, and it is unnecessary to constantly connect or start the personal computer.	The function can be used on TG- 2000A. It is necessary to constantly connect and start the personal computer for TG-2000A.	The function can be used on TG- 2000A. It is necessary to constantly connect and start the personal computer for TG-2000A.
Energy management function	0	0	×
Connection of K-control devices	×	×	0
Setting with Initial Setting Tool	The setting data can be preliminarily created with the Initial Setting Tool without EW-50 main unit.	×	×
Data backup	Data can be backed up from the Web browser screen.	Data can be backed up from the Web browser screen.	Data can be backed up from the USB memory in the main unit.

Table Differences among EW-50, EB-50 and GB-50ADA

*1: When GB-50ADA is replaced with EW-50, the power supply factor may be insufficient depending on the system configuration used. When the power consumption factor of the devices in the system is larger than the power supply factor of EW-50, 15, it is necessary to add a power supply unit.

<3> Differences between AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 and BAC-HD150 (BM adapter)

The differences between AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 and BAC-HD150 are shown below.

				[Explanatory notes] O: Usable X: Unusable			
		AE-200/AE-50	EW-50	BAC-HD150			
Appearar	nce	₹ ₹ 2°		in the second seco			
Function		Integration of BACnet [®] connection controller	ecting function in system	Only BACnet® connecting function			
System configuration		Air conditioner control and B realized only by AE-200/AE- HUB BACnet® Building m M-NET AE-200 Outdo	ACnet [®] connection can be 50/EW-50.	A system controller (or a system remote controller) for air conditioner control must be connected in addition to BAC-HD150. HUB BACnete Building management system M-NET BAC-HD150 Outdoor unit Indoor unit			
		Provided		Not provided			
M-NET po capability	ower feeding	Power feeding coefficient 0.75	Power feeding coefficient 1.5	Power feeding coefficient 6			
Apportion billing fun	ned electricity	С) *1	×			
Control by	y PI controller		\supset	×			
	System alarm signal	(\supset	×			
	Temperature setting in 0.5°C increments	0		×			
Control	Thermo ON/ OFF	С)*2	×			
by	Night purge	0	*2 *3	×			
Control by 3ACnet® Control by BACnet® Control by Control by BACnet® Control by BACnet® Control by BACnet® Control by BACnet® Control by BACnet® Control by BACnet® Control by BACnet® Control by BACnet® Control by BACnet® Control by BACnet® Control by BACnet® Control by BACnet® Control by BACnet® Control by BACnet® Control by BACnet® Control by BACnet® Control by BACnet® Control by BACnet® Control by BACnet® Control BACNET CONTROL CON		(<u> </u>	×			
	Prohibition Fan Speed	()	×			
	Error Code Detail	C)*2	×			
	External Heat Source	С)*2	×			
"BACnet	connection"	Nece	ssary	Unnecessary			
Setting to	ol	Initial Setting Tool and	BACnet [®] Setting Tool	Setting tool			

*1: To use the function, the "Charge" license is required. The charge information cannot be read out from BACnet®.

*2: Only status monitoring.

*3: Applicable only to LOSSNAY and OA processing unit.

[8] BACnet[®] connection

<1> Outline

The centralized monitoring unit can be connected to BACnet[®] by using the BACnet[®] communication function (license) of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

The BACnet® communication specifications conform to ANSI/ASHRAE Standard 135-2010.

<2> System configuration diagram

The system configuration diagram of the centralized controller AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 is shown below.



Remarks

○ For BACnet[®] connection, the "BACnet connection" license is required.

0.8.3 "List of functions for BACnet[®]" includes all functions of BACnet[®] of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. The functions to be actually used among all functions vary depending on the building management system and interlocks among settings. Therefore, determine the functions to be used through preliminary discussion with the building management system side. Some of the functions which can be used on AE-200/AE-50/EW-50's LCDs cannot be used by BACnet[®]

functions. For details, see 5.1 "Controller functions and BACnet[®] functions" in "Instruction Book – BACnet[®] function –."

<3> List of functions for BACnet®

(1) List of operation and monitoring functions which can be used from BACnet[®] The following list shows the operation and monitoring functions which can be used from BACnet[®] by connecting BACnet[®] of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

				✓:	Funct	ion pro	ovided
ltem	Description	Indoor unit	OA processing unit (IC attribute)	OA processing unit (FU attribute)	LOSSNAY not interlocked	State monitoring	Setting/operation
Start/stop	The units in each group can be started and stopped. It is possible to monitor in which state, started or stopped, the units in each group are.	1	1		1	1	1
Operation mode	The operation modes (cooling, heating, air-blowing, auto or drying) of the units in each group can be set. The operation modes (cooling, heating, air-blowing, auto or drying) of the units in each group can be monitored.	1	1			1	1
Fan speed	The fan speed (low, high, medium 2, medium 1 or auto) of the units in each group can be set. The fan speed (low, high, medium 2, medium 1 or auto) of the units in each group can be monitored.	1	1		1	~	~
Air direction	The air direction (horizontal, downward 60%, downward 80%, downward 100% or swing) of the units in each group can be set. The air direction (horizontal, downward 60%, downward 80%, downward 100% or swing) of the units in each group can be monitored.	1				\$	\$
Indoor temperature	The current value of indoor temperature of the room of each group can be monitored. The past log (*4) can be read out.	1	1			1	
Set temperature	The temperature for the units in each group can be set, and the setting can be read out (in 0.5°C steps). Some of the four temperature settings (indoor temperature, cooling temperature, heating temperature and auto 1 temperature) are used depending on the use and setting of the dual auto mode.	1	1			~	~
Filter sign	The filter signs of the units in each group can be monitored.	1	1		1	1	
Filter sign reset	The filter signs of the units in each group can be reset.	1	1		1		1
Prohibition of remote controller operations	The operations of the units in each group from the remote controller can be enabled or disabled. It is possible to monitor whether the operations of the units in each group from the remote controller are enabled or disabled. (The operations for start/stop, operation mode, set temperature, and filter sign reset can be prohibited.)	1	1		1	1	~
Emergency stop	It is possible to stop the units in each group or all units and disable the operations (start/stop) of the units in each group or all units from the remote controller.	1	1		1		~
Ventilation mode	The ventilation modes (heat exchange, normal or auto) of the units in each group can be set. The ventilation modes (heat exchange, normal or auto) of the units in each group can be monitored.		1		1	1	~
Night purge	The night purge state (stopped or started) of the units in each group can be monitored.		~		1	1	
Thermo ON/OFF	The thermos ON/OFF state of the units in each group can be monitored.	1	1			1	
External heat source state	Monitors the status of external heat source unit in each group	1	1		1	1	
Communication state	It is possible to monitor whether or not the M-NET communication among the units in each group is normally performed. When the state changes, a notification can be received.	1	1		1	1	
Alarm signal	It is possible to monitor whether or not the air conditioners in each group are normally running. When the state changes, a notification including an error code (4-digit) can be received.	1	~		1	1	
Error code	Error code (four digits) and error codes (four-digit error codes categorized into nine types) of the units in each group can be monitored. When the state changes, a notification can be received.	1	1		1	1	
System alarm signal	The system error state can be monitored. When the state changes, a notification including an error code (4-digit) can be received.					1	

ltem	Description	Indoor unit	OA processing unit (IC attribute)	OA processing unit (FU attribute)	LOSSNAY not interlocked	State monitoring	Setting/operation
	The current value of electric energy on the electricity meter connected to the pulse input of PI controller/AE-50/EW-50 can be monitored. The past log (*4) can be read out.					1	1
Apportioned electricity billing function *1 *2	When an electricity meter is connected, the current value of the electric energy (consumed by indoor and outdoor units) apportioned to each group/each interlocked unit (*3) by the apportioned electricity billing function of AE-200 can be monitored. The past log (*4) can be read out. When an electricity meter is not connected, the current value of the apportionment parameter (consumed by outdoor units) apportioned to each group by the apportioned electricity billing function of AE-200 can be read out.	1	\$	\$	1	1	~

*1: To use the function, the "Charge" license is required. The charge information cannot be read out from BACnet®.

*2: To use the function, an electricity meter is required.

*3: The interlocked unit refers to the OA processing unit set in the energy management block.

*4: The default values for log collection cycle are one minute (indoor temperature) and 30 minutes (values other than indoor temperature). To use a collection cycle other than the default values, it is necessary to set the cycle on the building management system. The collection cycle setting units and ranges are one minute and 1 minute to 1 day (indoor temperature) and 30 minutes and 30 minutes to 1 day (temperatures other than indoor temperature).

(2) Initial setting screen

			1	Func	tion pro	ovided
ltem	Description	LCD	Initial setting Web browser	Initial Setting Tool	Integrated Centralized Control Web	BACnet® Setting Tool
LAN2(BACnet [®])	The IP address of LAN2 (BACnet [®]) can be set.	1	1			1
License registration	The "BACnet connection" license can be registered.	1	1		1	

* Use the BACnet[®] Setting Tool for initial setting of the items of BACnet[®] other than those shown above.

<4> Power consumption on BACnet®

When an electricity meter is connected to AE-200 system, the measurements are corrected, but the setting on the LCD and the setting by the BACnet[®] function do not have influence on each other.



Since the electric energy obtained every 30 minutes is reflected 15 minutes after the measurement to determine the electric energy (Present_Value property (PV) in the accumulator object) by the BACnet[®] function, the determined electric energy is not equal to the real-time electric energy displayed on the electricity meter in the state where electric power is consumed.

An example of correction of the value at 9:29 in the state where electric power is consumed is given below. (The value of PV in the accumulator object before correction is 0 at 9:00, and the Log_Interval property in the trend object is 180000 (0.01 [sec]) (= 30 min)).



SetBACnet_v3000

<5> Images of BACnet[®] Setting Tool screen

The images of the BACnet® Setting Tool screen are shown below.

Ne AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 Help	018
System Settings Group Settings BA Base System	Cried Settings
LAVIT (for sir conditioning statem)	Unit of Temperature
IP Address (82, 568, 1, 1	degrees-Gelbius O degrees-Fahrenteit
Subret Mask 265 255 255 0	Use AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 Time Synchronication
MAC Address	AE-200/AE-50/Ew-50 Data
LAN2 (for BAChes) P Addess (H2, M6, 2, 1	Serial No. AC-200/AC-58/(W-58 Fragmen Version BACent Program Version
Subnet Mask 295 295 9 Default Gateway	
MAC ASSAULT	



<BACnet settings: BACnet>

and the second se	-50 Help			
	Group Settings	Settings		
BACnet	ment and Series - 1224 Restantes	- Epist Intelligence	-	
ACnet Set	tings			
AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 8	MOnet Settings	Use Remote BBMD		
Device No.	8	Time To Live	0 m	
Segmentation	Brth			
APDU Segment Timeout	5000 milec	1		
APDU Timeout	6000 mater			
APOU Retries	8			
I-An Timer	0 sec			
Vendor ID	**			
Other Settings				
Use Dry Mode				
Use Fan Speed Mid1/	Mid2			
Not reflect communication	fion error to alarm signal			
Tillie Operation Mide S				

<BACnet settings: COV notification>

	and an and ge	GAChel Sell	ings			
	COVNet	ilitiation (5				
OV Notificati	n Sattinge					
Ov Notificatio	in Settings					
/No.	Notification Address	and the second second				
OV No. Add	Network No.	Device No.	Process ID	Notification Type	Add	
	-					
669877					MARLEN	
Belefe					Deterter	
					and the second se	
	-					

<BACnet settings: Network and devices>

SetBACnet_v3000 +			0 B
Me &E-200/AE-50/EW-50 Help			
	A REAL PROPERTY.		
system searys Group seary	Toruma Salanda		
Network and Device	Cillenten Parlations	-	Seattle Sea
atwork and Davice Se	ttinge		
need No.	reings		
Network No. Type BACest Router Ad	dress/Port No.		
Littlet (17			
	Making.		
	Entrie		
wice Address			
Device No. Address/Port No.	field		
	Maxie.		
	Taken		
		Concerned in the second	-
		Save Ser	Caller .

<BACnet settings: Event notification>

SetBAChet_v3000 -	and black	<u> 0 8</u>
De Bernererserer.	N Dev	
System Settings	Group Settings	BACinet Settings
14.4	and and being the	and Instantion Constitution Constitution
vent Notific	ation Settin	ngs
otification Class	7	lotRication Address
Class ID Priority	Assi	Network No. Device No. Process ID Notification Type Add
	Malde	Banky.
	(white	Tobac
		Sant Array Canal
		The second secon

<BACnet settings: Object>

Set	BACnet_v3 *** -												
ile	AE-200/AE-50/	EW-50 <u>H</u> elp											
			gs	BACnet	Setting	js							
	BACnet	Network and Device	COV N	latification	Every	Notificatio	n 👘	Object		0	ther		ForcedOff Reset
Эb	ject Set	tings											
Use		Object Name				00V	1101 10	1.00	went		~		
	10 11-01 0-01/D	1			NO.	increment	NUIassiD	Utthormal	Fault	Normal	Type	11	
H	B1_0102_0x0665	rtup						False	False	False		1.1	
片	B1_01xx02_010113	lanel						False	False	False		11	
-	M1 D1xx04 Excerto	ula						Ealoa	Ealos	Ealao		11	
吕	MO 01xx05 Operat	ionModeSetup						False	False	False		1	
	MI DixxIE Operat	ionModeState						False	False	False			
F	M0 01xx07 FanSper	edSetup						False	False	Fake			
n	WI 01xx08 FanSper	odState						False	False	False			
п	AI 01xx09 RoomTer	IP						False	False	False			
n	AV_D1xx1D_SetTem	2						False	False	False			
	B1_01xx11 Filter	Sian						False	False	False			
	BY_Dixx12 Filter	SignRepet						False	False	False			
	BY_01xx18 Prohib	it ion0n0ff						False	False	False			
	BY_01xx14 Prohib	it i onlifode						False	False	False			
	BY_01xx15 Prohib	itionFilterSignReset						False	False	False			
		it innSetTeen						False	False	False			
	BV_01xx16 Prohib	(TO BOTTOMP											

<BACnet settings: Others>

System Settings	Group Settings	BAGnet Settings			
(DACard) - B	ment and Denne 100	I fant Constant Count fant Final an	Carr.	Otter	County House
ther Settin	gs				
estart Notification Recip	lents				
Network No. D	evice No.				
Local	reactor				
-	-				

<BACnet settings: Forced Off Reset>

SetBACnet_V3000 -			-	i kaning a
le <u>AE-200/AE-50/EW-</u>	50 Help		_	_
		BACnet Settings		
sion h	mort and Device	/ Retrieven - Erec Retrieven	Otane	 ForcedOff Read
prcedOff Re	eset			
ForcedOtt Reset	-			
Form	SOIT Pleaset			
3. System Design Flow

Step1: Selection of air conditioners (devices to be managed and restrictions)				
\sim				
Step2: Confirmation of use of optional function ("Charge" license)				
Use of apportioned electricity billing function of AE-200 Method 1: Electric energy measuring method (PI controller (recommended) or pulse input in main unit) Method 2: Electric energy manual input method				
Use of apportioned electricity billing function of TG-2000A Method 1: Electric energy pulse count method (electric energy count PLC or PI controller) Method 2: Electric energy manual input method Method 3: Billing by meter (direct reading)				
$\overline{\nabla}$				
Step3: Confirmation of connection of BACnet®				
Method 1: Introduction of "BACnet connection" license				
Step4: Selection of system management parts (AE-200/AE-50/EW-50)				
Step5: Construction of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 system (Restrictions on LAN wiring, PLC connection, connection of DIDO controller, PI controller and AI controller, etc.)				
$\overline{\nabla}$				
Step6: Confirmation of use of centralized monitoring function by personal computer (only air conditioners)				
Method 1: Execution of centralized control by personal computer				
Step7: Confirmation of use of weekly/season weekly/monthly schedule function				
Method 1: Implementation of weekly/monthly schedule by AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 Method 2: Implementation of weekly/monthly schedule by integrated software TG-2000A Method 3: Implementation of weekly/annual schedule by Web monitoring Method 3: Implementation of implementation of weekly/ annual schedule by				

ĺ

Step8: Confirmation of use of optional function ("Energy Management License Pack" license)				
Method 1: Energy-saving control	 Method 2: Peak-cut control (1) Electric energy monitoring method or pulse input in main unit (PI controller or electric energy count PLC) (2) Demand controller method (external contact input or demand PLC) (3) Other systems 	Method 3: No implementation		

Step9: Confirmation of use of general equipment control function (AHC, PLC for general equipment or DIDO controller)



Step10: Confirmation of use of interlock control (AE-200/AE-50/EW-50, DIDO controller or AHC) (only air conditioners)

4. System Configuration

[1] System configuration

Up to 200 air conditions can be monitored and operated by using AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. This section explains the system configuration.

The system configuration varies depending on the functions to be used and the scale.

Follow the flowchart below, and refer to section [5] Connection diagram.

When connecting HWHP (CAHV, CRHV, or QAHV) units, refer to section [5]-7, and when connecting chillers (EAHV or EACV), refer to [5]-8.



O: Yes (use) X: No (non-use)

No. in 4.5 "Connection diagram patterns"	Number of units controlled in system: 51 units or more	Use of apportioned electricity billing function	Use of M-NET transmission line of AE-200
(1)	×	×	0
(2)	0	×	0
(3)	×	0	×
(4)	0	0	×
(5)	×	×	×
(6)	0	×	×

(1) Apportioned electricity billing function is not used, M-NET transmission line of AE-200 is used, and number of air conditioners is 50 or less. See [5]-(1).

(2) Apportioned electricity billing function is not used, M-NET transmission line of AE-200 is used, and number of air conditioners is 51 or more. See [5]-(2).

(3) Apportioned electricity billing function is used, and number of air conditioners is 50 or less. See [5]-(3).

(4) Apportioned electricity billing function is used, and number of air conditioners is 51 or more. See [5]-(4).

- (5) Apportioned electricity billing function is not used, M-NET transmission line of AE-200 is not used, and number of air conditioners is 50 or less. See [5]-(5).
- (6) Apportioned electricity billing function is not used, M-NET transmission line of AE-200 is not used, and number of air conditioners is 51 or more. See [5]-(6).

Note: When the apportioned electricity billing function is used, the M-NET transmission line of AE-200 cannot be used.

The M-NET transmission line is a line for communication between AE-50/EW-50 and air conditioners.

Note: HWHP (QAHV) cannot be connected to AE-50 or EW-50.

Note: The apportioned electricity billing function of HWHP (QAHV, CAHV, or CRHV) or chillers is not available. To use the apportioned electricity billing function for air-conditioning units, connect a separate AE-200 that does not use the apportioned electricity billing function, and connect HWHP (QAHV, CAHV, or CRHV) or chillers to it.

[2] Controllers applicable to functions

The expansion controllers AE-50 and EW-50 can be connected to AE-200. EW-50 can be used as a single unit. The controllers applicable to the functions are shown below.

		Notes: O: Required	O: Usable X: Unusable
	AE-200	AE-50	EW-50
Use as single unit	0	×	0
Use as expansion controller	×	0	0
Billing system	Ø	O *1	O *1

*1: Any of AE-50 and EW-50 is required.

[3] M-NET transmission line of AE-200

It is possible to determine whether or not to use the M-NET transmission line of AE-200. If "Non-use" is selected, up to 4 expansion controllers AE-50/EW-50 can be connected.

When the M-NET transmission line of AE-200 is used, the distance to the air conditioner must be within 500 m because of restriction on wiring length. To comprehensively monitor and control the air conditioners remotely by using AE-200, a system can be established without the restriction on wiring length of M-NET transmission line if the M-NET transmission line of AE-200 is not used.

1. When M-NET transmission line of AE-200 is used

The distance between AE-200 which comprehensively control AE-50/EW-50 and the air conditioner must be 500 m or less because of restriction on wiring length of M-NET transmission line.



*1: Another restriction (200 m) may be imposed depending on voltage drop. See 4.-[7] "Wiring" for more information.

2. When M-NET transmission line of AE-200 is not used

Since AE-200 does not control air conditioners, AE-200 which comprehensively controls AE-50/EW-50 can be installed in a remote location.



*1: Although the LAN cable length can be increased without limitation, the transmission delay time between AE-200 and AE-50 must be less than 4000 ms. (If the LAN cable length exceeds the specification for LAN, it is necessary to install switching hubs.)

*2: Another restriction (200 m) may be imposed depending on voltage drop. See 4.-[7] "Wiring" for more information.

[4] Use of expansion controllers AE-50 and EW-50

When the expansion controllers AE-50/EW-50 are connected to AE-200, up to 200 air conditioners can be comprehensively controlled on the floor layout on the LCD screen of AE-200.

This section explains the purposes of use of the expansion controllers AE-50 and EW-50.

<1> About integrated control

Table below summarizes the availability of integrated control by AE-200, display functions of AE-200's LCD, Integrated Centralized Control Web, and BACnet® from AE-200, AE-50, and EW-50. When a given system is under the integrated control from AE-200, floor-layout display is available only from the LCD of AE-200.

Display type	Display content	Integrated control from AE-200	AE-50	EW-50
		0	0	×
	Floor layout	 Air-conditioning units under the control of AE-50 or EW-50 can be 	• Individually set for each AE-50	(No LCD screen)
LCD screen		placed on the floor-layout screen of AE-200.	(Data sharing not possible)	
		0	0	×
Air-conditioning unit status		Displays the status of the air- conditioning units under the control of AE-50 or EW-50	 Displays only the status of air-conditioning units under the control of AE-50 	(No LCD screen)
		0	0	0
Integrated	Floor layout	 Displays the floor layout for the Web that has been set from the Initial Setting Tool 	• Displays the floor layout for the Web that has been set from the Initial Setting Tool	 Displays the floor layout for the Web that has been set from the Initial Setting Tool
Centralized		0	0	0
Air-conditioning unit status		Displays the status of the air- conditioning units under the control of AE-50 or EW-50	 Displays only the status of air-conditioning units under the control of AE-50 	 Displays only the status of air-conditioning units under the control of EW-50
		×	×	×
	Floor layout	 Does not support the floor-layout display function 	 Does not support the floor-layout display function 	 Does not support the floor-layout display function
connection		0	0	0
	Air-conditioning unit status	 Displays only the status of air- conditioning units under the control of AE-200 	• Displays only the status of air-conditioning units under the control of AE-50	 Displays only the status of air-conditioning units under the control of EW-50

(1) LCD screen

AE-200 displays the status of all air-conditioning units under the control of AE-200, AE-50, and EW-50 and integrally controls all units.



units on all levels of floors

(2) Integrated Centralized Control Web

The Integrated Centralized Control Web screen of AE-200 displays the status of air-conditioning units under the control of AE-200, AE-50, and EW-50. The floor layout appears in the format selected on the Initial Setting Tool.



<2> Examples of use

Examples of use of the expansion controllers AE-50 and EW-50 are shown below.

(1) When AE-50 is used

The operating conditions of the air conditioners on each floor can be controlled on the LCD screen of AE-50 or Web browser screen, and the operation conditions of the air conditioners on all floors can be comprehensively controlled on the LCD screen of AE-200 in the manager room.

This system is effective to control the air conditioners on the LCD screen of AE-50 installed on each floor.



1. Control on LCD screen

The conditions of the air conditioners controlled by AE-50 on each floor can be comprehensively controlled on the LCD screen of AE-200 for centralized control in the manager room.



AE-200 for centralized control



[4. System Configuration]

2. Control by Integrated Centralized Control Web

The air conditioners can be controlled by using the Integrated Centralized Control Web screen after logging in to AE-200.



(2) When EW-50 is used

The operating conditions of the air conditioners on each floor can be controlled on the Web browser screen of EW-50, and the operating conditions of the air conditioners on all floors can be comprehensively controlled on the LCD screen of AE-200 in the manager room.



[5] Connection diagram patterns

(1) When the M-NET transmission line of AE-200 is used and the number of air conditioners is 50 or less (the apportioned electricity billing function is not used)

Up to 50 air conditioners can be monitored and operated by one AE-200.

When EW-50 is connected in place of AE-200, the air conditioners can be monitored and operated from the Web browser.



* When AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 is connected via the Internet, ensure the security. When connecting it to the corporate intranet, make sure that the VPN routers can be used. (2) When the M-NET transmission line of AE-200 is used and the number of air conditioners is 51 or more (the apportioned electricity billing function is not used)

To control 51 to 200 units, connect AE-50/EW-50 for expansion in addition to AE-200.

Up to 50 units can be connected to one set of AE-50/EW-50, and 3 sets of AE-50/EW-50 can be connected to a system with AE-200. So, up to 200 units can be connected.



Note: The indication of the power supplies for the outdoor and indoor units is omitted on the following pages.

[4. System Configuration]

(3) When the apportioned electricity billing function is used and the number of air conditioners is 50 or less Up to 50 air conditioners can be monitored and operated by using the apportioned electricity billing function and one expansion controller AE-50/EW-50.



[4. System Configuration]

(4) When the apportioned electricity billing function is used and the number of air conditioners is 51 or more Up to 200 air conditioners can be monitored and operated by using the apportioned electricity billing function and 4 expansion controllers AE-50/EW-50.

- When the apportioned electricity billing function is used, the M-NET transmission line of AE-200 cannot be used.
 When the Web browser function is used, access AE-50/EW-50 to monitor and operate the air conditioners.
- In a system that includes both the HVRF series of City Multi units and other series of City Multi units, use separate
- electricity meters for each series.



(5) When the number of air conditioners is 50 or less (the apportioned electricity billing function is not used and the M-NET transmission line of AE-200 is not used)

Up to 50 air conditioners can be monitored and operated by connecting AE-200 and one expansion controller AE-50/EW-50.



(6) When the number of air conditioners is 51 or more (the apportioned electricity billing function is not used and the M-NET transmission line of AE-200 is not used)

Up to 200 air conditioners can be monitored and operated by connecting AE-200 and four expansion controllers AE-50/EW-50.

• When the Web browser function is used, access each of AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50 to monitor and operate the air conditioners. • AE-50/EW-50 can be connected as an expansion controller.



(7) Connecting the HWHP (CAHV, CRHV, QAHV) units

- Count each HWHP (CAHV, CRHV) unit as one air-conditioning unit.
- HWHP (CAHV) units cannot be connected to AE-50 or EW-50.
- A maximum of 24 HWHP (QAHV) units can be connected to each AE-200.
- When using HWHP (QAHV) units in combination with other models of units, count each HWHP (QAHV) unit as two air-conditioning units.
- Up to 50 air conditioners can be moniterd and operated by one AE-200/AE-50/EW-50



(8) Connecting the chiller (EAHV, EACV) units

- A maximum of 24 chiller units can be connected to each AE-200.
- When using chiller units in combination with other models of units, count each chiller unit as three air-conditioning units.
- Up to 50 air conditioners can be moniterd and operated by one AE-200/AE-50/EW-50



[6] BACnet[®] system configuration

This section shows the system configuration for connecting AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 to BACnet[®] by using the BACnet[®] function. The configuration for connecting to BACnet[®] varies depending on the functions to be used and the devices to be connected. Determine the configuration in accordance with the following flow.



It is necessary to prepare the "BACnet connection" license for each of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 to be connected to BACnet® and register the license in each of them.

Do not connect LAN1 and LAN2 (BACnet®) of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 to the same hub.

Do not duplicate the IP address between LAN1 and LAN2 (BACnet®) of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

(A) Standard BACnet® system configuration

Connect all sets of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 to BACnet®.

The building management system controls the units by the set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 (up to 50 units under each set).



[4. System Configuration]

(B) BACnet[®] system configuration without connection of AE-200 to M-NET

Connect AE-50/EW-50, except AE-200 not connected to M-NET, to BACnet®.

To synchronize the time from the building management system, set the time Master/Sub of AE-200 not connected to M-NET to Sub, so that the time is synchronized with AE-50/EW-50 connected to BACnet[®].

When the apportioned electricity billing function is used, configure the system as shown below.



[7] System chart for each function

The system configurations of electricity meters (with pulse transmitters) to use the apportioned electricity billing function, peak-cut control and energy management function are shown below.

<1> System configuration for apportioned electricity billing function

The system configuration for the apportioned electricity billing function is explained.

The apportioned electricity billing function has two methods; electric energy measurement method and electric energy manual input method.

The electric energy measurement method is designed to collect the electric energy data from the PI controller or the pulse input in AE-50/EW-50 main unit^{*1} and apportion the electric energy with the Charge Calculation Tool. The electric energy manual input method is designed to obtain the ratio of operation amount of outdoor units and indoor units in each energy management block with the Charge Calculation Tool.

*1: When the apportioned electricity billing function is used, it is recommended to use the electric energy measurement method by PI controller. If the pulse input method is used, pulse input cannot be obtained during power interruption in AE-50/EW-50, power shutdown and software updating, and the measured electric energy may be different from the actual value.

<1-1> Electric energy measurement method (with meters)

<Outline of operation>

- 1. AE-50/EW-50 collects the operation information of air conditioners.
- 2. AE-50/EW-50 collects the electric energy data from the PI controller or the electricity meters connected to the pulse input in AE-50/EW-50 main unit.
- 3. AE-200 apportions the electric energy to the outdoor unit and each indoor unit every 30 minutes. The results of apportionment are stored as data obtained every 30 minutes for 4 days, daily data for 62 days and weekly data for 25 months.
- 4. AE-50/EW-50 receives the results of apportionment of electric energy from AE-200 and backs up the data.
- 5. The results of apportionment are displayed in bar graphs on the energy use status and ranking screens of the energy management function of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.
- The electric energy (kWh) is displayed in the energy management list on AE-200.
- 6. The results of apportionment can be checked on the LCD screen of AE-200 and output to a CSV file.
- 7. The charge is calculated with the Charge Calculation Tool by multiplying the unit price (1 to 5) in each time slot based on the electric energy apportioned to each energy management block. The charge can be calculated also based on the values measured by each meter. The calculation results can be displayed, printed and output to a CSV file.



<Points>

- 1. When the apportioned electricity billing function is used, AE-200 is used only for power apportionment and billing, and therefore air conditioners and PI controller cannot be connected to the M-NET of AE-200. In addition, the pulse input cannot be used.
- 2. To apportion the electric energy in one M-NET system (up to 50 air conditioners) by AE-200 main unit, one set of EW-50 or AE-50 is required.
- 3. To apportion the electric energy in four M-NET systems (up to 50 air conditioners × 4 systems) by AE-200 main unit, four sets of EW-50 or AE-50 are required.
- Register the "Charge" license in all of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. Even if part of AE-50/EW-50 connected to AE-200 is not subject to billing, register the "Charge" license in all of AE-200/ AE-50/EW-50.
- 5. Electric energy pulses are input from the PI controller or the pulse input on AE-50/EW-50 main unit. (The pulse count PLC cannot be used.)
- 6. When the electric energy in four M-NET systems (up to 50 air conditioners × 4 systems) is apportioned by AE-200 main unit, the PI controller connected to the M-NET system of any of four sets of EW-50 or AE-50 or at least one electricity meter connected to the pulse input is required.

(At least one electricity meter is required for electric energy apportionment to outdoor units. When electric energy is apportioned to the indoor units, at least one electricity meter is required separately for the indoor units.)

- 7. In the case of the electric energy measurement method, the electric energy consumed by each outdoor unit can be divided into consumed electricity and standby electricity. It is possible to include the standby electricity of the outdoor unit in the consumed electricity without separating it. (One of the methods can be selected.)
- 8. It is possible not to measure or apportion the electric energy consumed by the indoor units. When the electric energy consumed by the indoor units is measured, the electric energy can be divided into consumed electricity and standby electricity. It is possible to include the standby electricity of the indoor units in the consumed electricity without separating it.
- 9. In the case of the electric energy measurement method, it is possible to whether or not to include the standby electricity of outdoor units and indoor units in charge calculation by the Charge Calculation Tool.
- 10. The apportioned electricity billing function can be set by the Initial Setting Tool.
- (It cannot be set on the LCD or Web browser screen.)
- 11. In a system that includes both the HVRF series of City Multi units and other series of City Multi units, use at least one electricity meter for each series. Do not use a single electricity meter to measure the electricity use of both series of units.

<1-2> Electric energy manual input method (without meters)

<Outline of operation>

- 1. AE-50/EW-50 collects the operation information of air conditioners.
- 2. AE-200 calculates the apportionment parameters of outdoor unit and each indoor unit every 30 minutes. The results of calculation are stored as data obtained every 30 minutes for 4 days, daily data for 62 days and weekly data for 25 months.
- The apportionment parameters are displayed in the energy management list as the results of calculation. (They are updated every month.)
- The apportionment parameters can be checked on the LCD screen of AE-200, and the data displayed on the screen can be output to a CSV file.
- 4. The Charge Calculation Tool calculates and displays the charging ratio of the outdoor units and indoor units in each energy management block, and the calculation results can be printed and output to a CSV file. Apportion the separately measured electric energy to the tenants by using the charging ratio of the outdoor units and indoor units in each energy management block calculated by the Charge Calculation Tool.



<Points>

- 1. When the apportionment parameters are calculated by AE-200 main unit, the M-NET of AE-200 cannot be used.
- 2. To calculate the apportionment parameters for one M-NET system (up to 50 air conditioners) by AE-200 main unit, one set of EW-50 or AE-50 is required.
- 3. To calculate the apportionment parameters for 4 M-NET systems (up to 50 air conditioners × 4 system) by AE-200 main unit, four sets of EW-50 or AE-50 are required.
- 4. To calculate the apportionment parameters by AE-200 main unit, register the "Charge" license in all of AE-200/AE-50/ EW-50.

Even if part of AE-50/EW-50 connected to AE-200 does not calculate the apportionment parameters, register the "Charge" license in all of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

- 5. The standby electricity of outdoor units and indoor units is not taken into account for the apportionment parameters.
- 6. The apportioned electricity billing function can be set by the Initial Setting Tool.
- (It cannot be set on the LCD or Web browser screen.)
- 7. In a system that includes both the HVRF series of City Multi units and other series of City Multi units, set the apportioning setting for the electricity use by outdoor units to Thermo-ON time or to fan operation time to ensure appropriate measurement.



<2> System configuration for peak-cut control (demand) function

The system configuration for the peak-cut control function is explained.

<Outline of operation>

The outline of the operation in the following system configuration is described below.

- 1. AE-50/EW-50 collects electric energy data from the PI controller.
- 2. AE-50/EW-50 determines the peak-cut control (PI controller method) level of AE-50/EW-50 based on the collected electric energy data.
- 3. Peak-cut control is performed on the air conditioners controlled by AE-50/EW-50 according to the determined peak-cut control level.
- 4. Set the peak-cut control method of AE-200 to "Other AE," and monitor the control level of AE-50/EW-50 from AE-200.
- 5. AE-200 performs peak-cut control on the air conditioners controlled by AE-200 based on the obtained control level.



<Points>

- 1. To perform the peak-cut control, register "Energy Management License Pack" in all of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.
- 2. Obtain the electric energy data to be used for peak-cut control from the PI controller or the pulse input in AE-200/AE-50/ EW-50 main unit.
- 3. The air conditioners can be controlled (peak-cut control) to reduce the power consumption of the whole equipment by using the main electricity meter that covers the air conditioners and equipment items other than the air conditioners for the peak-cut control.
- 4. When "Other AE" has been selected as the peak-cut control method, a delay of up to 1 minute will occur in execution of the peak-cut control because the control is started after the control levels of other AE controllers are monitored.
- 5. As "Other AE," up to 3 sets of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 to which electricity meters are not connected can be selected.

<3> System configuration for energy management function

The system configuration for the energy management function is explained.

<Outline of operation>

The outline of the operation in the following system configuration is described below.

- 1. AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 collects electric energy data from the PI controller.
- 2. AE-200 calculates the electric energy consumed by each outdoor unit every 30 minutes.
- The results of calculation are stored as data obtained every 5 minutes for 2 months, data obtained every 30 minutes for 2 months, daily data for 25 months, monthly data for 25 months and annual data for 5 years.
- 3. The calculation results are displayed in bar graphs on the energy use status and ranking screens of the energy management function of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.
- 4. The calculation results can be checked on the LCD screen of AE-200 and Web browser screen of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 and output to a CSV file.



<Points>

- 1. Obtain the electric energy data from the PI controller or the pulse input in AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 main unit.
- 2. Install an electricity meter for outdoor unit for each of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.
- However, when the apportioned electricity billing function is used, electric energy can be apportioned also to AE-200/ AE-50/EW-50 to which an electricity meter is not connected within AE-200 system.
- The energy management function does not handle the electric energy consumed by the indoor units. However, when the apportioned electricity billing function is used, also the electric energy consumed by the indoor units is included.
- 4. In a system that includes both the HVRF series of City Multi units and other series of City Multi units, use at least one electricity meter for each series. Do not use a single electricity meter to measure the electricity use of both series of units.

[8] Wiring

<1> Kinds of wiring

The M-NET transmission line, LAN cable and pulse input line shall conform to the following specifications. For other wiring, see each manual.

Transmission cable	Type: Sheathed vinyl cable • CPEVS ø1.2 to ø1.6 mm • CVVS Min. 1.25 to 2 mm ² *CPEVS: PE insulated PVC jacketed shielded communication cable *CVVS: PVC insulated PVC jacketed shielded control cable
LAN cable	Category 5 or above straight cable (Max. 100 m (328 ft))
Electrical wire for pulse input	Type: Copper wire that is suitable for the terminal block Size • Single wire: Ø0.65 to Ø1.2 mm, AWG 21 to 16 • Twisted wire: 0.75 to 1.25 mm ² , AWG 18 to 16

<2> M-NET transmission cable length

Observe the maximum total length of M-NET transmission cables to ensure proper signal transmission to and from the connected equipment over the M-NET transmission cables. If the maximum total length is exceeded, the M-NET signals will be attenuated, resulting in communication error and control failure.

- Maximum total length of M-NET transmission cables: 500 m (1640 ft)
- Maximum total length of power feed: 200 m (656 ft)



 (1) Maximum total length of M-NET transmission cables a + c + d (e) ≤ 500 m (1640 ft) a + b + f ≤ 500 m (1640 ft)

d (e) + c + b + f \leq 500 m (1640 ft)

- (2) Maximum total length of power feed for the indoor-outdoor transmission cables $f \le 200 \text{ m} (656 \text{ ft})$ $c + d (e) \le 200 \text{ m} (656 \text{ ft})$
- (3) Maximum total length of power feed for the centralized control transmission cables a ≤ 200 m (656 ft)
 - a + b ≤ 200 m (656 ft)

<3> LAN cable length

The maximum cable length of 100BASE-TX to be connected to AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 is 100 m.

If the LAN cable length exceeds 100 m, the distance between the personal computer for centralized control and AE-200 and between AE-200 and AE-50/EW-50 can be increased by using switching hubs.

Although the number of connected switching hubs is not restricted, if the network load is increased, a delay may occur, and the network may not be normally connected.

Note: The round-trip transmission delay time shall be within 4 seconds.

See the installation manual for AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 for the method for determining the transmission delay time.

Note: The maximum cable length varies depending on the LAN cable specification.



<4> Length of other lines

The external input/output contact signal lines of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 and the free contact lines from indoor units shall be up to 10 m. However, do not lay these lines parallel to AC power lines, etc. to prevent entry of noise.



[9] Power supply factor for M-NET

<1> Power consumption factor and power supply factor

The power supply factors of AE-200, AE-50, EW-50 and power supply unit for transmission line and the power consumption factors of DIDO controller, PI controller and AI controller are shown below. When system controllers or remote controllers are not connected to the M-NET transmission line for centralized control, it is unnecessary to connect the power supply unit (PAC-SC51KUA).

Table i ower supply and power consumption factor				
Product name	Model name	Power consumption factor	Power supply factor	
Centralized air conditioning control system	AE-200	0	0.75	
Centralized air conditioning control system (expansion controller)	AE-50	0	0.75	
Centralized air conditioning control system (Controller without LCD)	EW-50	0	1.5	
Power supply unit for transmission line	PAC-SC51KUA	-	5	
Transmission booster	PAC-SF46EPA	-	25	
DIDO controller	PAC-YG66DCA	1/4	-	
PI controller	PAC-YG60MCA	1/4	-	
AI controller	PAC-YG63MCA	1/4	_	
System remote controller	AT-50	3/2	-	
ON/OFF remote controller	PAC-YT40ANRA	1	-	
ME remote controller	PAR-U01MEDU PAR-U02MEDA	1/2	-	
AHC ADAPTER	PAC-1F01AHC-J	1/2	_	

Table Power supply and power consumption factor



<2> Setting of power supply connector

The following table shows the necessity of the power supply unit and the setting of the power supply connector.

	Power supply unit for transmission line	Power supply connector of AE-200	Power supply connector of outdoor unit
(1) Without other system controller	Unnecessary	With CN21 (Default)	All CN41 (Default)
(2) With other system controller (Sum of power consumption factors: 0.75 or less)	Unnecessary	With CN21 (Default)	All CN41 (Default)
 (3) With other system controller (Sum of power consumption factors: more than 0.75) 	Necessary	Without CN21 (Remove CN21.)	All CN41 (Default)
 (4) With other system controller (connected to transmission line between indoor and outdoor units) 	Unnecessary	With CN21 (Default)	All CN41 (Default)

Table Necessity of power s	supply unit and	setting of power s	supply connector	(AE-200/AE-50)
----------------------------	-----------------	--------------------	------------------	----------------

* Connect AE-200/AE-50 to the transmission line for centralized control.

* When the M-NET of AE-200 is not used, leave the power supply connector of AE-200 in the factory default state.

	Power supply unit for	Power supply connector of	Power supply connector of
	transmission line	AE-200	outdoor unit
(1) Without other system controller	Unnecessary	With CN21 (Default)	All CN41 (Default)
(2) With other system controller	Unnecessary	With CN21	All CN41
(Sum of power consumption factors: 1.5 or less)		(Default)	(Default)
 (3) With other system controller (Sum of power consumption factors: More than	Necessary	Without CN21	All CN41
1.5)		(Remove CN21.)	(Default)

* Connect EW-50 to the transmission line for centralized control.

(1) Without other system controller









Back of EW-50

(2) With other system controller (connected to transmission line for centralized control) The power supply unit (PAC-SC51KUA) is required.



(3) With other system controller (connected to transmission line between indoor and outdoor units)



Note: When the power supply capacity for the outdoor units through the transmission line between indoor and outdoor units is insufficient, connect the transmission booster (PAC-SF46EPA) to the transmission line between indoor and outdoor units.

<3> Power supply unit for transmission line

(1) Power supply unit for transmission line : PAC-SC51KUA



· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					
ltem		Specifications			
Electrical requirements	Rated input voltage and current	100-240 VAC ±10%; 0.8 A - 0.4 A 50/60 Hz Single-phase			
Electrical requirements	Fuse: 250 VAC 6.3 A Time-delay	type (IEC127-2 S.S.5			
	M-NET	23.0 - 32.0 VDC			
Output voltage/current	DC power supply	24 VDC ±5% 0 - 0.7	'5 A		
	Temperature	Operating range	-10 to +55°C / +14 to +131°F		
Environmental conditions		Storage range	-20 to +60°C / -4 to +140°F		
	Humidity	30-90%RH (No condensation)			
Dimensions	169 (H) × 271 (W) × 72 (D) mm (6	169 (H) × 271 (W) × 72 (D) mm (6-11/16 [H] × 10-11/16 [W] × 2-7/8 [D] in.)			
Weight	1.4 kg (3-1/8 lbs.)	1.4 kg (3-1/8 lbs.)			
Installation environment	In the metal control panel or in the mounting attachment A type (PAC-YG85KTB) (sold separately) * This unit is designed for a business office or similar environment.				
Power feeding capacity	5				

(2) Transmission booster: PAC-SF46EPA



Unit: mm (in.)

Item	Specifications			
Source power requirement	Input voltage 220-240 VAC; 0.7 A (Maximum loading) 50/60 Hz Single-phase			
	Fuse: 2.0 A F (IEC127-2)			
Voltage/current of output on the transmission booster side	28-30 VDC 1.7 A (Maximum loading)			
Environmental condition	Temperature	Operating range	0 to +40°C / +32 to +104°F	
		Storage range	-20 to +60°C / -4 to +104°F	
	Humidity	30-90%RH (No condensation)		
Dimensions	340 (H) × 360 (W) × 59.2 (D) mm			
Weight	3.5 kg (7.8 lbs.)			
Installation environment	Indoor			
Power feeding capacity	25			

[10] Restrictions on system when more than one model is connected

<1> Connection of two sets of AE-200/EW-50 and BM adapter

When two sets of AE-200/EW-50 are connected on the same M-NET line or AE-200/EW-50 and BM adapter are connected, there are restrictions on the functions and setting method.

(1) System configuration





(2) Restrictions on connection of more than one controller

When two sets of AE-200 or one set of AE-200 and BM adapter are connected to M-NET, the contents of group registration in them must be identical.

However, the DIDO controller, PI controller and AI controller must be registered only in AE-200 because the BM adapter is not applicable to them.







AE-200(1) including all in AE-200(2) (BM adapter)



The following table shows the restrictions on connection of more than one controller.

			1		
	Operational restrictions O: None	Restrictions		Subject ✓: Applicable	
	△: Operational and setting restrictions imposed			BM adapter	
Language displayed on AE-200 screen	0	The language can be set for each set of AE-200.	1		
Group setting		The contents of group registration in both controllers must be identical.	1	1	
Group name	0	It is necessary to set for each set of AE-200.	1		
Registration in block Block name	0	It is necessary to set for each set of AE-200.	1		
Floor layout	0	It is necessary to set for each set of AE-200.	1		
Operation of air conditioners	0		1	1	
Operation of DIDO controller	0		1		
Monitoring of air conditioners	0		1	1	
Monitoring of DIDO controller	0		1		
Monitoring (Al controller and PI controller)		One AI controller or PI controller can be monitored only by one set of AE-200.	1		
Energy management	0		1		
Operation prohibition (screen operation and external input)	Δ	Only one controller can be set to the operation prohibition mode. (While one controller is in the operation prohibition mode, the other controller can be used to operate the units. The operation prohibition mode is not displayed on the other controller.)	1	1	
Emergency stop	\triangle	Input the external contact to one controller.	1	1	
External input (start/stop, level signal)		Input the external contact to one controller.	1		
External input (pulse signal)	0		1		
External output	0		1		
Demand level contact input		The input can be connected and set only on one controller.	1		
Time setting and display		Use one controller as the master for time setting.	1	1	

Table	Restrictions	on connection	of more than	one controller

Table Restrictions on connection of more than one controller (continued)					
	Operational restrictions O: None		Subject ✓: Applicable		
	△: Operational and setting restrictions imposed	Restrictions	AE-200	BM adapter	
Schedule	Δ	Set the schedule on one controller. (If schedules are set on some controllers (including a remote controller) for one group, priority will be given to the last schedule.)	1	1	
Display of error history	0		1		
Energy-saving/peak-cut Auto changeover	Δ	 Set the mode only on one controller. Register the license only for the controller for which the mode must be set. When a unit in the energy-saving/peak-cut control mode is operated from another controller, priority will be given to the last operation. In the energy-saving/peak-cut mode, the energy-saving control icon is displayed only on the controller on which the mode was set. 	1		
Setback Outdoor temperature interlock Interlock control	Δ	 Set the mode only on one controller. Register the license only for the controller for which the mode must be set. The setback control icon is displayed only on the controller on which the mode was set. 	1		
Connection of TG-2000A and apportioned electricity billing function	Δ	Connect TG-2000A to one set of AE-200. Communication errors of AE-200 not connected to TG-2000A will not be displayed on it.	1		
Display of icons on AE-200		Displayed only on specified AE-200 With schedule Schedule invalid Energy-saving ON'1 Night setback mode With schedule Schedule invalid Energy-saving ON'1 Night setback mode With schedule Schedule invalid Energy-saving ON'1 Night setback mode Image: Schedule invalid Image: Schedule invalid Image: Schedule invalid Image: Schedule invalid *1: The icon of energy-saving function by outdoor unit is displayed on all sets of AE-200. During demand control by external input to indoor unit, the icon is displayed on all sets of AE-200. Displayed on all sets of AE-200 During operation of interlocked LOSSNAY Display of room temperature'2 Image: Occupied/Vacant'2 Bright/dark'2 Error Image: Occupied/Vacant'2 Bright/d	J		

(3) Setting procedure

When two sets of AE-200 are connected, it is necessary to register each M-NET address in the system controller registration button on the other side.

When the BM adapter is connected, register the address of the BM adapter in the system controller registration button on AE-200.

For the procedure for registering the BM adapter, see the instruction manual for the BM adapter.

Select [Initial Setting] – [Group Setting], and input the address of the other controller in the system controller registration button.

[Example] Registration of AE-200 (1) (M-NET address 0) and AE-200 (2) (M-NET address 201)



• It is necessary to register the addresses in the system controller registration buttons for all registered group numbers. If the addresses are not registered, the air conditioners will stop when the power supply is reset.

Remarks O For the procedure for setting the address on the BM adapter, see the instruction manual for the BM adapter.

<2> Possibility of connection

The following table shows whether or not AE-200/AE-50 can be connected with AG-150 and whether or not AE-200 and AE-50 can be connected in each case of combination.

Note: The indication of the power supplies is omitted.


[11] Pulse input for measurement

<1> Functions that can use pulse input for measurement

The electric energy data collected by using the pulse input can be used by the apportioned electricity billing function and the energy management function.

	N	lotes: O: Usable ∆: R	estricted X: Unusable
Function	AE-200	AE-50	EW-50
Apportioned electricity billing function	X *1	\triangle^{*2}	∆*2
Energy management function	0	0	0
Peak-cut function	0	0	0

*1: The pulse input of AE-200 cannot be used for the apportioned electricity billing function. Use the pulse input of AE-50 or EW-50.
*2: When the apportioned electricity billing function is used, it is recommended to use the electric energy measurement by the PI controller. If the pulse input is used, pulse input cannot be obtained during power interruption in AE-50/EW-50, power shutdown and software updating, and the measured electric energy may be different from the actual value.

<2> Capturing pulses from electricity meter

The pulses from the electricity meter can be captured into AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 by inputting electric energy pulses directly to AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 (pulse input for measurement) and inputting electric energy pulses to the PI controller.

	Pulse input method	PI controller method
Connection diagram	AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 Pulses from up to 4 points are input. Less than 100 m	AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 M-NET line Dedicated line Power supply unit Pl controller Pulses from up to 4 points are input. Less than 200 m (according to restriction on M-NET) Less than 100 m
Peak-cut	Electric energy data is captured from the pulse input, and peak-cut control is performed. The demand is forecast at 1-minute intervals.	Since AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 receives electric energy data from the PI controller every minute, a delay of up to 1 minute will occur in execution of the peak-cut control.
Connected devices	Connect the devices directly to CN7.	PI controller The PI controller and power supply unit may be required. For the necessity of the power supply unit, see [8] "Power supply factor for M-NET."
Wiring length	The distance between AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 and the electricity meter must be less than 100 m.	The distance between the power supply unit and AE-200/ AE-50/EW-50 or PI controller must be less than 200 m. The distance between the PI controller and electricity meter must be less than 100 m.

 Remarks
 Op to 15 PI controllers can be connected to each of AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50. In the AE-200 system, up to 20 PI controllers can be connected. However, when the pulse input function in AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 main unit is used, the function is counted as one PI controller.
 [Example] When one set of AE-200 and three sets of EW-50 are used in a system and the pulse input of each of AE-200 and EW-50 is used, 14 PI controllers (15 – 1) can be connected to each of AE-200 and EW-50, and the total number of PI controllers which can be connected in the AE-200 system is 16 (20 – 4).

<3> Electricity meter used for pulse input

For the pulse input, select an electricity meter which meets the following specifications.

- No-voltage a contact pulse is output every pulse unit.
- Output pulse method: Semiconductor relay
- Pulse width: 100 ms to 300 ms (pause period 100 ms or more)
- Output pulse unit: 0.1/1.0/10/100 [kWh/pulse] (1.0 kWh/pulse or less recommended)



[12] LAN system configuration

<1> LAN setting procedures

<1-1> Setting procedures to connect to dedicated LAN

The setting procedures for configuration of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 system through the dedicated LAN wiring are shown below.

(1) Set the IP addresses.

When LAN wiring is newly laid for AE-200/AE-50/EW-50, assign the IP addresses to AE-200 starting from [192.168.1.1]. Set the IP addresses of the Web monitoring PCs for AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 and the Initial Setting Tool to the network addresses of the same line.

The IP address initial value of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 is [192.168.1.1]. For the second and following units, the IP addresses must be changed.

The recommended ranges for dedicated LAN are shown below.

Model	IP address setting range	
AE-200	[192.168.1.1] to [192.168.1.40]	
EW-50 (used as single unit)	[192.168.1.1] to [192.168.1.40]	
EW-50/AE-50 (used as expansion controller)	[192.168.1.211] to [192.168.1.250]	
Personal computer for monitoring Web browser	[192.168.1.101] to [192.168.1.149]	
Personal computer for integrated software (TG-2000A)	[192.168.1.150]	
PLC	[192.168.1.151] to [192.168.1.200] For pulse count: [192.168.1.151] to [192.168.1.155] For general control: [192.168.1.171] to [192.168.1.190] Peak-cut: [192.168.1.191] to [192.168.1.194] (Demand controller method)	

(2) Set the sub-net mask.

Normally, set to [255.255.255.0] (initial value).



Remarks O When AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 is connected directly with a personal computer through a LAN cable, normal communication may not be made depending on the compatibility with the LAN board. It is recommended to connect AE-200 and personal computer with a LAN cable through a hub.

<1-2> Setting procedures to connect to existing LAN

The setting procedures for configuration of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 system through existing LAN wiring are shown below.

(1) In the case of centralized monitoring by Web browser

When installing AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 in existing LAN wiring, such as a corporate LAN, consult with the network administrator who manages the LAN to set the IP addresses, sub-net mask and gateway address. The gateway address can be set with the Initial Setting Tool or on the initial setting screen on the Web.



(2) In the case of centralized monitoring by TG-2000A

When TG-2000A is used for centralized monitoring, apportioned electricity billing function or peak-cut function, it is recommended to separate the system by using a router.

This is a means to maintain the reliability of each device because a lot of signals are transmitted on the LAN under an environment where many business personal computers are installed in the existing LAN.

Assign IP addresses appropriate to the IP address format on the backbone LAN to AE-200/AE-50/EW-50, and access any of them with the address. Then, the router will convert the address to make communication.

The router address (default gateway address) must be registered as the gateway address in AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 installed under the router.



(3) In the case of centralized monitoring by connection of AE-200 and expansion controllers When expansion controllers (AE-50/EW-50) are connected to the existing LAN, consult with the network administrator to set the IP addresses, sub-net mask and gateway address.



Remarks

 \bigcirc Use switching hubs.

○ The number of stages of gateways, routers, layer 3 switches and hubs for connecting AE-200 and expansion controller must be 4 or less. The round-trip transmission delay time between AE-200 and expansion controller must be 4 seconds or less.

<1-3> In the case of system using optical cable for LAN

The LAN wiring length of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 system can be increased by connecting hubs.

However, if the wiring length is increased to several kilometers and the power supplies for the hubs cannot be secured in the middle of the wiring, they can be connected by using an optical cable.



(1) Switching hub

The switching hub is designed to store the IP address of the device connected to the hub and hold the route to the destination. Therefore, signal collision does not occur theoretically, and the number of stages is not restricted.

(2) Optical media converter

This converter is used to convert normal LAN signals to optical signals.

The recommended optical media converters made by Buffalo come in Type A and Type B. They must be used in pairs.

(3) Optical cable for LAN

This cable is an optical cable for LAN.

A system with a long wiring length can be configured by using this cable.

<2> Recommended devices for LAN connection

The recommended devices for LAN connection are shown below.

Device name	Remarks			
Hub: Select a hub having the number of ports appression personal computer through the hub.	propriate to the number of connected units, and connect AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 and the			
Hub for 100BASE-TX (for 5 ports)	Switching hub (100BASE-T with automatic switching function)			
Hub for 100BATSE-TX (for 8 ports)	Switching hub (100BASE-T with automatic switching function)			
LAN cable: Connect the hub, AE-200/AE-50/EV	V-50 and personal computer with a LAN cable.			
100BASE-TX	Use a cable of Category 5 or higher.			
LAN straight cable for 100BASE-TX (twisted pair cable)	Use to connect an optical cable. * Cables of Categories 5, 6 and 6e can be used.			
Router: Add routers when connecting to a high-traffic corporate LAN or connecting to a network with a different network address.				
Router Use a router when connecting a PLC to an existing LAN, such as a corporate LAN Install AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 and demand input PLC on the same line.				
Devices related to optical cable connection: Recommended devices for connection through optical cable				
Optical media converter (Type A)	Use Type A and Type B in pairs.			
Optical media converter (Type B)	\uparrow			
Optical cable for LAN	Use a single-mode or multi-mode cable.			
Switching hub (for 8 ports)	Connect with the optical media converter through a LAN cable, and connect AE-200/ AE-50/EW-50 and personal computer to other ports.			
LAN cable (twisted pair cable)	To connect to the optical media converters, use LAN cables of Category 5 to 6e conforming to 100BASE-TX.			

<3> Number of devices connected to LAN

The devices which can be connected to the LAN in the AE-200 system and the number of connected devices are shown in the following table.

Connected device	Max. number of connected devices *3	Remarks
Integrated Centralized Control Web (Building manager)		
Integrated Centralized Control Web (Tenant manager)	A maximum of 50 PCs, tablet PCs, and smart phones can be connected.	
Integrated Centralized Control Web (General user)		AE-200 system.
Web browser for administrator	Up to 10 sets of each of AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50	• AE-200: 1 set
Web browser for general users	Up to 10 sets of each of AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50	• AE-50: 1 set
TG-2000A	Up to 1 set in whole system	• EW-50: 1 set
Demand input PLC *1	Up to 1 set of each of AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50	• TG-2000A: 1 set
Electric energy counting PLC *2	Up to 1 set of each of AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50	
Maintenance Tool	Up to 1 set of each of AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50]
Other systems	Up to 1 set of each of AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50	

*1: One set of demand input PLC can communicate with 10 sets of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

*2: One set of electric energy counting PLC can communicate with 14 sets of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

*3: Including the number of sets of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50

<4> Setting for remote monitoring function

The system can be monitored for abnormalities and operated through the Internet from a remote location by using the VPN router.

The following devices are required for remote monitoring through the Internet.

When the VPN router is used, the operator at the remote location can operate the system only by implementing the standard Windows VPN connection after connecting to the Internet as if he/she directly accessed the LAN in the actual place.



Device name	Remarks
VPN router	Router applicable to VPN connection A private network equivalent to LAN can be established on the Internet by using this router. * Some routers require the VPN connection software for the personal computer at the remote location.
Circuit terminating equipment	Use the equipment designated by the carrier. * ADSL, optical fiber lines and cable TV lines can be used. When any of these lines is used, use the equipment designated by the carrier.
Hub for 100BASE-T	The hub is required when the number of connected sets of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 and personal computers exceeds the number of hub ports in the VPN router or when the wiring length is extended.
100BASE-T LAN straight cable	Use a cable of Category 5 to 6e conforming to 100BASE-TX.

Remarks O When connecting AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 and TG-2000A through the Internet, do not connect them directly to the Internet. Connect them through a router with VPN function, and ensure the security. If the security is not ensured, the system may be tampered or the air conditioners may be operated without permission through the Internet.

[4. System Configuration]

Contract name	Remarks
Internet connection contract	An internet connection contract must be made in both actual and remote places. In the actual place, make a contract with a carrier of ADSL, optical fiber line or cable TV line which can be constantly connected.
Global IP address contract or DDNS (dynamic DNS) contract	To identify the VPN router on the Internet, the user in the actual place must make a contract for fixed IP address or fixed URL (when DDNS is used). One fixed IP address or fixed URL is required for one VPN router (some sets of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 can be connected under the VPN router). The fixed IP address service is provided by providers (Internet providers), and the DDNS service is provided by router manufacturers or providers. Generally, the DDNS service requires a lower cost. For the details of the contract, consult each provider.

Remarks The system configuration is based on the specifications for use in the private network. If the system is connected to the Internet, do not disclose AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 directly to the Internet to prevent tampering on the Internet. Connect the system through a router with the VPN function to ensure the security. For the procedures for setting and connecting the VPN router, see the instruction manual for the router.

(1) Setting procedures in actual place

(1-1) Set the VPN router.

Assign a fixed IP address or a fixed URL to the VPN router, and set the router to connect the Internet (WAN side) to the LAN side.

It is recommended to set the IP address of the VPN router on the LAN side to [192.168.1.254] and the IP address of the personal computer at the remote location to [192.168.1.210].

(1-2) Set the network of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

Set the IP addresses, sub-net mask and gateway address of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 with the Initial Setting Tool or on the initial setting screen on the Web.

As the gateway address, set the IP address of the VPN router.



* It is recommended to set the IP address on the LAN side of the VPN router to [192.168.1.254]. For the IP address setting method, read the instruction manual for the VPN router.

* When the VPN router is used, it is necessary to connect a modem (designated by the carrier) between the VPN router and the Internet network.

(2) Setting procedures at remote location

(2-1) VPN connection setting

Create a new VPN connection in Network setting in the Control Panel, and set the fixed URL (host name) or fixed IP address of the VPN router in the actual place to enable connection with the VPN router.

For the details of setting for VPN connection, see the instruction manual for each VPN router.

(2-2) Monitoring operation from the Web browser

To monitor operation from the Web browser, connect the monitoring PC to the Internet, click the VPN connection setting that was created in section (2-1) to connect to the Web page of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 in the same way as with monitoring operation within the building.

Note: Integrated Centralized Control Web integrally displays information about the air-conditioning units connected to all AE-200, AE-50, and EW-50 on the Web browser, using the port number 80 and IP addresses assigned to each unit from AE-200, AE-50, and EW-50.

For this reason, connection method such as NAT or IP masquerade, which converts IP addresses on the router side.

Communication method used by the Integrated Centralized Control Web

- 1. Integrated Centralized Control Web accesses master AE-200 or EW-50 controller that was selected by using the Initial Setting Tool.
- 2. Master AE-200 or EW-50 returns the IP addresses of AE-200, AE-50, and EW-50 that were selected as control target from the Initial Setting Tool to the Integrated Centralized Control Web.
- 3. Integrated Centralized Control Web connects to AE-200, AE-50, and EW-50, using the returned IP addresses.



Reason why the communication method above cannot be used

- ① Client PC accesses master AE.
- http://166.155.14.168/control/index.html
- ② Master AE is accessed using converted IP address (166.155.14.168 \Leftrightarrow 192.168.1.1 Port number 80^{⁺¹}).
- ③ Master AE sends the IP address (192.168.1.211) of the control target to the client PC.
- ④ Information on air-conditioning units connected to the master AE is acquired.
- ⑤ Request to acquire information on the air-conditioning units will be attempted, using the IP address (192.168.1.211) acquired in Step ③ above. This attempt will result in a connection error because the address 192.168.1.211 does not exist on the client PC network.
 - *1 When the port number other than 80 is used, master AE cannot be accessed and the connection @ above cannot be established. In this case, an error message of the browser will be displayed.



[4. System Configuration]

(2-3) Monitoring by TG-2000A in wide-area mode

To remotely monitor the systems in some buildings by TG-2000A, install TG-2000A in the wide-area mode.

When TG-2000A in the wide-area mode is started, the site switching screen will appear. Click the building to be connected to connect it. After this, it can be monitored in the same manner as when TG-2000A in the normal mode is used.



Trouble information of each building can be obtained by e-mail and displayed on the screen (the information can be obtained and displayed also by the standard mode version).

First of all, click the mail tool icon on the desktop to start it, and set the conditions related to mail. After the completion of setting, when an error notification e-mail is received, the building name and error code will be displayed as shown right.

The site change tool for wide area version TG-2000A		- O ×	
File Edit			
	**	3	
Folder	Site name		
TG2000 Building_1 Building_2 Building_3	師 Site_F 師 Site_G 師 Site_H		
We have a second s			
🔩 No connection		li.	

Remarks OWhen the e-mail tool of TG-2000A in the wide-area mode is used, set the error notification e-mail conditions for AE-200/AE-50 in the actual place as shown in the following section.

- \odot When TG-2000A in the wide-area mode is used, the VPN connection name set on the OS must be less than 20 characters long.
- To receive error notification e-mails from a destination other than the VPN connection destination (through a LAN adapter not connected to the VPN), uncheck "Use default gateway on remote network" under TCP/IP settings in Dial-up connection.

<5> Issue of error notification e-mail

If e-mail server information is obtained by connecting to the corporate LAN or establishing an account with an Internet service provider and registering the information in AE-200/AE-50/EW-50, an error code can be issued to the designated e-mail addresses when a trouble occurs.

If information on occurrence of trouble is transmitted to the mobile phone of a serviceperson, prompt measures can be taken against air conditioner trouble. Set the e-mail server information on the e-mail setting screen of the initial setting Web browser of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

Applicable equipment	Error types	Notes
Air conditioner	Communication/abnormality	Notification target is selectable.
General equipment	Problems with general equipments	Monitoring by PLC for the general equipment
PLC for General Equipment	Problems with PLC for general equipments	
DIDO controller	Problems with DIDO controller	



<5-1> Outline

AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 has a function for reporting errors of air conditioners and general equipment to predetermined e-mail addresses.

When the measurement obtained by any temperature/humidity sensor connected to the AI controller exceeds the predetermined upper or lower limit, such an e-mail will be sent.

The e-mail transmission conditions can be set by the administrator user of the Web browser.

To use the e-mail function, it is necessary to register an e-mail server.

In the case of a corporate network, consult the network administrator about the e-mail server information.

When using a mail server on the Internet, establish an account with a provider, connect a designated broadband router, and set the information on connection with the provider's mail server.

<5-2> Image of connection

(1) When there is a mail server in the company



(2) When there is not a mail server in the company



Function	Туре	Description Number of registered e-mail addresses		Person in charge of setting and remarks	
	Unit trouble	Transmitted when an air conditioner trouble occurs.	10 addresses		
	Unit trouble notice	Transmitted when an air conditioner trouble notice occurs.	notice occurs. 10 addresses		
	Communication error	Transmitted when an M-NET communication error occurs.	10 addresses	-	
E-mailing upon occurrence of	General equipment	Transmitted when a trouble with general equipment connected to the PLC for general equipment occurs.	10 addresses	Web browser administrator [Function selection 1] → [E-mail setting]	
lioubic	User setting 1		10 addresses		
	User setting 2	Register any 10 error codes in each	10 addresses		
	User setting 3	category. When any registered error occurs, an e-mail will be trapsmitted to the	10 addresses		
	User setting 4		10 addresses		
	User setting 5	registered e-mail addresses.	10 addresses		
	User setting 6		10 addresses		
Transmission of e-mail about temperature/humidity upper/lower limit		An e-mail is transmitted when the measurement obtained by any temperature or humidity sensor connected to the AI controller becomes out of the predetermined range and when the temperature or humidity returns to the range.	10 addresses	Web browser administrator [Function setting 1] → [Measurement setting]	

<5-3> Types of e-mail transmission

<5-4> Devices necessary for e-mailing

Required devices or information	Description		
Mail server	This server actually transmits the e-mails received from AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 to the designated e-mail addresses. In the case of a corporate network, the server may be installed in the company. Consult with the network administrator about the e-mail server information necessary for setting. If there is no e-mail server in the company, establish an account with a provider, and the information on the provider's e-mail server will be provided.		
Broadband router	When there is an e-mail server in the company, the router is unnecessary. It is required when the system is connected to the e-mail server of the provider with which an account has been established.		
100 BASE-TX HUB	Pequired to connect AE 200/AE E0/EW/E0 to a reuter ato		
100 BASE-TX LAN straight cable			

<5-5> Preparation for transmission of error mail

(1) Making a contract with an Internet provider to transit mails at the ide of user

An internet access needs to be obtained unless a mail server is available on the LAN.

A provider contract on which access point, user ID, and certification password are written will be sent later.

This information is necessary when setting up AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 and the dial-up router/broadband router.

(2) Obtaining the IP address for mail server

The IP address for the mail server may be written on the contract.

If the IP address is not found on the contract, take the following steps to acquire one.

Create an internet environment by connecting to the access point from the computer to be used for monitoring.

Execute the MS-DOS prompt (command prompt on Windows 2000/XP).

Enter "PING send mail server name1" (SMTP server name), and press enter to acquire the IP address of the mail server.

(3) Setting for broadband router and dial-up router

When a broadband router is used, set the connection ID and password obtained when an account is established. Set the provider access point phone number, connection ID, and password to the dial-up router.

(4) Network setting for AE-200/AE-50/EW-50

Set AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 IP address, subnet mask, and gateway address from the initial setting web or the main unit LCD screen. For gateway address, use the IP address of broadband router or dial-up router .

(5) Mail settings for AE-200/AE-50/EW-50

Set mail address, mail server IP address, and error mail destination from the initial setting web.

<5-6> Setting for transmission of error notification e-mails

To transmit e-mails, an e-mail server is necessary.

E-mail setting is required to use the error notification e-mail function or e-mail communication function. The error notification e-mail function is designed to send error information to specific e-mail addresses. The e-mail communication function is designed to send unit maintenance data to specific e-mail addresses of the personal computers on which the Maintenance Tool has been installed.

Click [Setting function 1] – [E-mail setting] on the menu to open the e-mail setting screen. Set the e-mail conditions, and click [Save settings] to save the settings in AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

Remarks O If you have logged in as the administrator user, you may be prohibited from e-mail setting.



(1) E-mail setting for AE-200/AE-50/EW-50

Input the e-mail information obtained from the Internet provider or system administrator. The setting items vary depending on the function to be used. See the following table.

Remarks OWhen transmitting e-mails through an Internet provider, it is necessary to establish an account with the Internet provider.

Items to be set (e-mail setting for AE-200)

	Error notification e-mail function		E-mail communication function		
Item	Without SMTP authentication	With SMTP authentication	Without SMTP authentication	With SMTP authentication	
E-mail address	0	0	0	0	
User ID	-	0	0	0	
Password	-	0	0	0	
Interval between received e-mail checks	-	-	0	0	

DNS Server (Secondary)

(2) Mail Server Information

Mail Server Information	and the second sec	
Outgoing Mail Server (SMTP)	smtp.ae200.co.jp	Port 25
	Use SMTP Authentication	
Incoming Mail Server (POP3) *1	pop.ae200.co.jp	
DNS Server (Primary)	10 , 20 , 30 , 40	
DNS Server (Secondary)	11 21 31 41	

Input the e-mail information obtained from the Internet provider or system administrator. The setting items vary depending on the function to be used. See the following table.

Either the IP address or the host name (server name) can be entered in the [Outgoing Mail Server (SMTP)] and [Incoming Mail Server (POP3)] fields.

Remarks	○ The default number of the transmit port of the outgoing mail server (SMTP) is 25. If the number 25
	cannot be used, change the number to the designated number. However, the mail server to which 465
	has been designated cannot be used.

Items required to be set (Mail server infomation)

			O: Required to be se	et -: Not required to be set
	Error notification	e-mail function	E-mail commur	nication function
Items	Without SMTP authenticationi	With SMTP authentication	Without SMTP authentication	With SMTP authentication
Outgoing Mail Server (SMTP)	O IP address or host name	O Host name	O IP address or host name	O Host name
Port number	25	587	25	587
Use SMTP Authentication *2	-	0	-	0
Incoming Mail Server (POP3)	_	_	O IP address or host name	O IP address or host name
DNS Server (Primary)	(O) *1	0	(O) *1	0

0

(O) *1

0

*1: Not required if the IP address is entered in the [Outgoing Mail Server (SMTP)] or [Incoming Mail Server (POP3)] field

*1

(O)

*2: When the SMTP authentication is required, it is necessary to input the user ID and password on the e-mail setting screen.

(3) Error Mail Settings

Mail Subject	A/C Error at Mitsubishi Building	_
Kind of Errors	Unit Error 👻	
E-Mail Address	1 user10ae200.co.jp	*
	2	E
	3	
	4	
	5	+

- 1. In the [Mail Subject] field, enter the mail subject to be used for the error notification e-mail function in 40 characters or less.
- In the [Kind of Errors] field, select the error type out of the following: [Unit Error], [Preliminary Unit Error], [Communication Error], [General Equipment], and [User Setting 1] through [User Setting 6]. Then, in the [E-Mail Address] field, enter the e-mail addresses of the recipients of the error notification e-mail.
- 3. If [User Setting 1] through [User Setting 6] is selected in the [Kind of Errors] field, a [User Settings] button will appear. To send error notification e-mail only upon occurrences of certain errors, click [User Settings] to display the User Settings screen.

Enter the error codes to be notified. Up to 20 error codes can be set for each user setting. In addition to specific error codes such as [1302] or [6607], codes that use asterisks as wildcards such as $[10^{**}]$ or $[12^{**}]$ can also be used.

If [10**] is entered, for example, error notification e-mail will be sent upon an occurrence of any type of errors between [1000] and [1099]. If error codes are entered on this screen, confirm that the e-mail addresses of the recipients are registered.

4. If [General Equipment] is selected in the [Kind of Errors] field, a [PLC Connection] button will appear. To send error notification e-mail upon occurrences of errors on the general equipment that are connected to PLC Software for General Equipment, click [PLC Connection] to display the [PLC Connection] screen. Enter the IP addresses of PLC Software for General Equipment.

The row number that corresponds to each IP address will appear in the error notification e-mail as a PLC number. (e.g., When an error occurs on the general equipment #20 connected to the PLC Software in the second row, "PLC2-20" will appear in the [Error unit] section in the error notification e-mail.)

Note: A TG-2000A is required to monitor the status of the general equipment that is connected to the PLC Software for General Equipment.

No.		s to be se	ang o	1	F	1 0	7	1 0	1 0	10	
Free Carda	1	2	3	4	0	0	(0	3	10	
Error Code	0012	01*2	0105	0123	0142	11111	2123	2134	4444	5656	
	. 💷 –									•	
User Setting 2 (E	rror code	s to be se	entj								
No.	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	
Error Code	2222										
	1					[-		•	
User Setting 3 (E	ror code	s to be se	ent)			-					
No.	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	
Error Code	3333		·	<u> </u>	- <u> </u>	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	<u> </u>		
	4		,			ľ					
User Setting 4 (E	rror code	s to be se	ent)			1					
No.	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	
Error Code	4444		- <u></u>	-'		<u> </u>	- <u>`</u>	- <u></u>			
	14444	1	1	1	1						



[4. System Configuration]

(4) Mail Communication Setting

Mail	Communication Setting	
AE-21 from	JOA cancommunicate with Maintenance Tool et the following addresses.	tc by e-mail
1	1 maintenance0ae200.co.jp	
	2	1
	3	
	4	

To use an e-mail communication function, enter the addresses of the PCs that will receive the units' maintenance data in the [Mail Communication Setting] section. Up to 10 e-mail addresses can be set.

(5) E-mail format

Error notification e-mail will be sent in the format shown below.

Mail subject	The mail subject entered in section <5-6>-(3)-1 will appear.
From	The name and ID of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 input on the basic system setting screen are displayed.
Date	The date is displayed in the format specified on the basic system setting screen.
Error unit	 When an error occurs on air conditioning units or general equipment, the M-NET address of the unit in error will appear. When an error occurs on general equipment connected to PLC Software for General Equipment, PLC number* (1 to 20) and connection number of general equipment (1 to 32) will appear. When a communication error occurs on PLC Software for General Equipment, PLC number* (1 to 20) will appear. When a communication error occurs on PLC Software for General Equipment, PLC number* (1 to 20) will appear. PLC number indicates the row number on the [PLC Connection] screen. Note: When an error occurs on the general equipment connected via DIDO controller, M-NET address of the DIDO controller will appear. (The recipients will know that an error has occurred on one of the general equipment that is connected to the DIDO controller.)
Error code	 Error code (4-digit) will appear. When an error occurs on air conditioning units, refer to the service manual of the unit for the error codes. When an error occurs on general equipment, "0091" (General equipment error) will appear. When a communication error occurs on PLC Software for General Equipment, "0003" (LAN communication error to PLC) or "0007" (PLC program stopped) will appear.
Status	Error status "Occurrence" (The error is occurring) or "Recovery" (The error has been resolved) will appear.

<5-7> E-mail alarm function settings

To receive an e-mail alarm when the temperature or the humidity exceeds certain predetermined values, set the e-mail settings by following the instructions below.

1. In the [Type of E-Mail] field, select [Out-of-limit alarm]. Then, enter the mail subject and the e-mail addresses. Note: The following characters cannot be used in the [Mail Subject] field: <, >, &, ", or '

An e-mail alarm will be sent in the format shown below.

From: Mitsubishi Building (000001) Date/Time: 13/03/2014 09:38:39
Current value: 24.9 deg C
Status: Exceeded lower limit
Trend Data:
09:38 25.2 deg C
09:37 25.4 deg C
09:36 25.6 deg C
09:35 25.8 deg C
09:34 26.1 deg C
09:33 26.4 deg C
09:32 26.7 deg C
09:31 27.0 deg C
09:30 27.5 deg C
09:29 27.7 deg C

Item	Format
From	AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 name + Unit ID
Date/Time	yyyy/mm/dd hh:mm:ss
Address	M-NET address of AI controller + sensor No.
Current value	Current temperature or humidity (one decimal place) Note: [**.*] may appear until the value measured by sensor becomes stable.
Status	"Exceeded upper limit," "Recovered from upper limit," "Exceeded lower limit," or "Recovered from lower limit"
Trend Data	Time + Temperature or humidity values (for the last 10 minutes)

2. Click [E-Mail Settings] to enter the mail server information.

Note: The setting details are the same as those described in sections 5-6. Refer to those sections for details.

E-Mail Settings of AE-200	DA
E-Mail Address mitsubi	shi@ae200.co.jp
User ID ae200	
Password *****	0
Mail Server Information	
Mail Server Information Outgoing Mail Server (SI	MTP) [satp.ae200.co.jp
Mail Server Information Outgoing Mail Server (SI	ATP) sktp.se200.co.jp
Mail Server Information Outgoing Mail Server (SI DNS Server (Primary)	MTP) [satp.se200.co.jp V Use SMTP Authentication [12] [34] [56] [78]

5. External Input/Output

[1] Outline

The main unit of the AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 is equipped with an external input/output function.

Control the external input on each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

This function uses the main unit of the AE-200/AE-50/EW-50's CN5. For use, please purchase the optional external input/ output adapter (PAC-YG10HA).

[2] External input function

<1> External signal input function

The operation of external signal input shown in V-[2]<3> can be controlled by using the external contact signal (12 V or 24 V DC).

- Connect the external input/output adapter (PAC-YG10HA) to each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.
- The demand input can be controlled by batch input to AE-200. However, since a delay in control occurs for reasons of system configuration, it is recommended to input individually to each device.



<2> External signal input specifications

	Loodwire	Mode 1	Mode 2	Mode 3	Mode 4	Mode 5		
CN5	(PAC- YG10HA-E)	Demand mode (Level signal)	Emergency Stop (Level signal)	Emergency Stop/ Restoration mode (Level signal)	ON/OFF (Level signal)	ON/OFF/ Prohibit/Permit (Pulse signal)		
No.5	Orange	Demand Level 1	Emergency stop/ normal input	Emergency stop/ normal input	ON/OFF	ON input		
No.6	Yellow	Demand Level 2	Demand Level 2	Demand Level 2	Not used	OFF input		
No.7	Blue	Demand Level 3	Demand Level 3	Demand Level 3	Not used	Local remote controller operation prohibit input		
No.8	Gray	Demand Level 4	Demand Level 4	Demand Level 4 Not used		Local remote controller operation enable input		
No.9	Red	External DC source "+ 12 VDC" or "+ 24 VDC"						

<3> Operations of external signal input

Mode	Setting mode	Description
Mode 1	Demand mode (Level signal)	 The use of the level signal: enables selection of the "demand level 1 to 4" input from 4 levels. (When no external signal is input, use Mode 1.)
Mode 2	Emergency stop (Level signal)	 The use of the level signal: enables selection of the "demand level 2 to 4" input from 3 levels, stops all air conditioners connected to each line of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 when "emergency stop" is input, prohibits the starting/stopping operation from a remote controller and prohibits the starting/ stopping operation and prohibition/permission setting on AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 when "emergency stop" is input, and discontinues the scheduled operation, night setback control and night purge operation and interlock control when the system is stopped.
Mode 3	Emergency stop/ Restoration mode (Level signal)	 The use of the level signal: enables selection of the "demand level 2 to 4" input from 3 levels, stops all air conditioners connected to each line of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 when "emergency stop" is input, prohibits the starting/stopping operation from a remote controller and prohibits the starting/ stopping operation and prohibition/permission setting on AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 when "emergency stop" is input, and discontinues the scheduled operation, night setback control and night purge operation and interlock control when the system is stopped. To cancel the emergency stop and restore the system, operation on the main equipment (LCD screen or Web screen) is required.
Mode 4	ON/OFF (Level signal)	 The use of the level signal (emergency stop): starts and stops all air conditioners connected to each line of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 when "ON/ OFF" is input, prohibits the starting/stopping operation from a remote controller and prohibits the starting/ stopping operation and prohibition/permission setting on AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 when "ON/OFF" is input, and discontinues the scheduled operation, night setback control and night purge operation and interlock control.
Mode 5	ON/OFF/ Prohibit/Permit (Pulse signal)	 The use of the pulse signal: starts and stops all air conditioners connected to each line of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 when "ON/ OFF" is input, and prohibits or permits the operation of the air conditioners connected to each line of AE-200/ AE-50/EW-50 from a remote controller when "prohibition/permission" is input.

<4> Level signal and pulse signals (12 or 24 VDC)



<5> Recommended circuit

(A) For level signal



Use relays X1, X2, Y1, and Y2 that meet the following specifications. Contact rating Rated voltage: 12 or 24 VDC

(B) For pulse signal



*1: Select an external power supply suitable for the relays used. (12 or 24 VDC) Connect the external power supply in the correct polarity to input and output the signals.

Connect 5-® (see the figure at left) to the negative side.

*2: Take sufficient precautions against noise when the cable length is long.

Important

- Be sure to use an external power supply
 - (12 or 24 VDC) to avoid malfunctions.
- Connect the external power supply in the correct polarity to avoid malfunctions.

Notes

- The relays, DC power supply, and extension cables are not supplied.
- The total length of the lead wire and extension cable should not exceed 100 m (328 ft). (Use an extension cable of 0.3 mm² or thicker.)
- Cut the excess cable near the connector, and insulate the end of the unused cable with tape.

Rated current: 0.1 A or above Minimum applied load: DC 1 mA

<6> Emergency stop restoration mode

(1) Emergency stop restoration mode

In the emergency stop restoration mode, the system is maintained in the stopped state (wait state for cancelation) also after the external contact is turned off, and the state after cancelation from the LCD screen or Web screen can be selected.

(2) Differences between emergency stop mode and emergency stop restoration mode

In the emergency stop mode, the system will be urgently stopped when the external contact to AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 is turned on, and, when the contact is turned off, the emergency stop will be canceled, and the system will be set to the stopped state.

In the emergency stop restoration mode, even when the contact is switched from ON to OFF, the system will be in the wait state for cancelation of emergency stop and kept in the stopped state, and the operation of the remote controller will be continuously prohibited.

For restoring the system from the wait state for cancelation of emergency stop (restoring indoor units to ON state), the LCD screen or Web screen can be used.

There are the following three methods for restoring the system from the wait state for cancelation of emergency stop.

- 1) Restoration to the state just before emergency stop: Restoration to the ON/OFF state just before emergency stop
- 2 Restoration according to schedule setting: Restoration to the ON/OFF state from the state before emergency stop

according to the schedule which was executed during emergency stop (If the schedule was not executed during emergency stop, the system will be

restored to the state just before emergency stop.)

③ No restoration: The ON/OFF state will not be restored (the system will be kept in the stopped state).

When a host device is defective, the emergency stop can be canceled on the emergency stop cancelation screen of AE-200/ AE-50 main unit or AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 Web browser.

The emergency stop restoration mode is designed to return the air conditioners to the state before emergency stop (or after the schedule is executed) at the same time when the emergency stop is canceled, for example, in the case where a fire alarm is false.

* The air conditioners which have been set to the emergency stop state by the set back control, demand control or interlock control are not subject to restoration.

The following table shows the differences between the emergency stop and emergency stop restoration modes in the operating state and the state of prohibition of remote controller operation.

	Operation	Emergency stop mode	Emergency stop restoration mode
1	Emergency stop contact is turned on.	Shift to emergency stop state (Stopped/prohibition of operation by remote controller)	Shift to emergency stop state (Stopped/prohibition of operation by remote controller)
2	Scheduled operation during emergency stop	Ignored	Stored
3	Emergency stop contact is turned off.	Emergency stop and prohibition of operation by remote controller are canceled. After cancelation, the system is in the stopped state.	Shift to wait state for cancelation (Stopped state and prohibition of operation by remote controller are continued.)
4	Cancelation from main unit LCD screen or Web browser		Emergency stop and prohibition of operation by remote controller are canceled. The state after cancelation can be selected from the followings. ① Restoration to the state just before emergency stop ② Restoration according to schedule setting ③ No restoration (in the stopped state)

[5. External Input/Output]

(3) Operation after power failure in emergency stop restoration mode

(3-1) When the emergency stop contact is turned on during power failure

When power is restored, the system will be set to the emergency stop state. After this, when the emergency stop contact is turned off, the system will be set to the wait state for cancelation, and, when the cancelation command is given by a host device, it will return to the normal state.



*1: They will be stopped after 3 minutes at the earliest if there is not a remote controller or a system controller.

(3-2) When the contact is turned on again in the wait state for cancelation

If the emergency stop contact input is turned on again in the wait state for cancelation, the system will return to the emergency stop state. Then, when the emergency stop contact input is canceled, the system will enter the wait state for cancelation.



[3] External output function

<1> External signal output function

An ON signal is output when one or more units are in operation, and an Error signal is output when one or more units are in error.



*1: Signals of all centralized control systems managed by AE-200 can be collectively output.

<2> External signal output specifications

CN5	Lead wire (PAC-YG10HA-E)	Signal			
No. 3	Brown	Error signal, Normal signal			
No. 2	Black	ON signal*, OFF signal			
No. 1	Green	Common ground for external output (Ground for the external power supply)			

* The operation status of general equipment (via a DIDO controller (PAC-YG66DCA)) will not be output.

* The ON signal will be output even during an error.

<3> Operation of external signal output

Setting	Description			
Start/stop output Abnormal/normal state output	 (Air conditioners) The operating state and error state of air conditioners connected to all lines of AE-200 and AE-50/EW-50 are output with level signals. When one or more air conditioners are operating, the ON signal is output. When one or more air conditioners are in trouble, the Error signal is output. 			

<4> Recommended circuit



Use relays Z1 and Z2 that meet the following specifications.

Operation coil Rated voltage: 12 or 24 VDC

Power consumption: Max. 0.9 W

- *1: Select an external power supply suitable for the relays used. (12 or 24 VDC)Connect the external power supply in the correct polarity to input and output the signals.Connect ① (shown in the figure at left) to the negative side.
- *2: Use a diode at both ends of the relay coils.

Important

- Be sure to use an external power supply (12 or 24 VDC) to avoid malfunctions.
- Connect the external power supply in the correct polarity to avoid malfunctions.
- Do not connect the external power supply without relays being connected to the controller (no load).

Notes

- The relays, lamps, DC power supply, diodes, and extension cables are not supplied.
- The total length of the lead wire and extension cable should not exceed 10 m (32 ft). (Use an extension cable of 0.3 mm² or thicker.)
- Each element will turn on during operation and when an error occurs.

[4] Pulse signal input function

Using pulse signals directly input from metering device such as watt-hour meter, billing data and energy management data will be obtained based on the cumulative number of pulse signal input.

<1> Pulse signal input specifications

CN7	Signal		
No.1,2	Metering device 1 (count input)		
No.3,4	Metering device 2 (count input)		
No.5,6	Metering device 3 (count input)		
No.7,8	Metering device 4 (count input)		

<2> Recommended circuit



Notes

- The total length of the lead wire and extension cable should not exceed 100 m (328 ft). (Use an extension cable of 0.3 mm² or thicker.)
- Cut the excess cable near the connector, and insulate the end of the unused cable with tape.
- Do not run the signal input cable adjacent to M-NET transmission and power cables. Do not let the cable form a loop.
- Peel off the sheath to 6 ±1 mm (4/16 ±1/16 in) from the end, and securely insert the cable into the terminal.
- Leave adequate slack in the cables so that the weight of them will not strain the terminal connectors. Use cable clamps or trunk terminals as necessary.

6. DIDO Controller/PI Controller/AI Controller

[1] Specification

<1> DIDO controller PAC-YG66DCA



Item	Rating and specification						
Power supply	24 VI	DC±10%: 5 \		Screw terminal block (M3) ^{*8}			
	M-NE	T communio	cation	17 to 30 VDC *1	Screw terminal block (M3) ^{*8}		
			ON/OFF, (ON) ^{*3}	Non-voltage relay contact (2)	Applied load MAX: 24 VDC, 5 W MIN: 5 VDC, 2 mW * AC loads cannot be connected.	Screw terminal block (M3.5) ^{*8}	
	ą	Output *2		Transistor (2)	24 VDC 40 mA or less *5	Screwless terminal block	
Interface	Standar	Output 2	(OFF) *3	Non-voltage relay contact (2)	Applied load MAX: 24 VDC, 5 W MIN: 5 VDC, 2 mW * AC loads cannot be connected.	Screw terminal block (M3.5) ^{*8}	
				Transistor (2)	24 VDC 40 mA or less *4	Screwless terminal block	
		Input	ON/OFF Error/Normal	Non-voltage a contact (2 each)	24 VDC 1 mA or less *5	Screwless terminal block	
	nsion	Output ON/OFF, (ON (OFF) *3		Transistor (4 each)	24 VDC 40 mA or less *4	9 pin connector	
	Expai	Input	ON/OFF Error/Normal	- 24 VDC input (4 each)	24 VDC 1 mA or less *6	9 pin connector	
	Outp	ut pulse widt	h	1 s ± 30 ms	1s - 30 mis ≪		
Interlock function	Interl	ock M-NET o	levices and outpu	t contacts according to status of	input contacts. *7		
Environment	Temp	erature		Operating temperature range 0 to 40°C [32°F to 104°F] Storage temperature range -20 to 60°C [-4°F to 140°F]			
conditions	Humi	dity		30 to 90%RH (no condensation)			
Dimensions	200 (W) × 120 (H) × 45 (D) mm / 7 7/8 (W) × 4 3/4 (H) × 125/32 (D) in						
Weight	0.6 kg [1 3/8 lbs.]						
Time backup during power failure	In the event of power failure or shut-off, the internal capacitor will continue to track time for approximately one week. (The internal capacitor takes about 24 hours to fully charge; a replacement battery is not necessary.)					ximately one week. ary.)	
Installation environment	Inside a metal control panel (indoors) * Use this product in a hotel, a business office environment or similar environment.						

[6. DIDO Controller/PI Controller/AI Controller]

- *1: Supply electric power from a power unit for the transmission line or an outdoor unit. Furthermore, the power consumption factor of M-NET circuitry of this device is "1/4" (equivalent to one ME Remote Controller).
- *2: Non-voltage Relay contact or transistor is available for output. Only one can be used at a time.
- *3: () is in the case of a pulse.
- *4: The output is open collector type. Power must be supplied from an external power source to the output circuit of this device.
- *5: Power is supplied from this device to the external contacts.
- *6: Power must be supplied from an external power source.
- *7: Interlock control is performed from the Maintenance Tool. For details, refer to the operation manual for the Maintenance Tool.
- *8: M3 and M3.5 are sizes of the screw on the terminal block (ISO metric screw thread). The number indicates the screw diameter (mm).

<2> PI controller



Item	Rating and specification					
Power supply	24 VDC±10%: 5 W		Screw terminal block (M3) *8			
	M-NET communication		Screw terminal block (M3) *8			
		Number of contacts: 4 Pulse signal: a-contact Pulse width: 100 ms to 300 r (Idle period unti				
Interface	Non-voltage a-contact input	100 ms or	Screwless terminal block			
		Rated voltage: 24 VDC Rated current: 1 mA or less *2				
	Tomporatura	Operating temperature range	0 to 40°C [32°F to 104°F]			
Environment	Temperature	Storage temperature range -20 to 60°C [-4°F to 140°F]				
conditions	Humidity					
Dimensions	200 (W) × 120 (H) × 45 (D) mm / 7 7/8 (W) × 4 3/4 (H) × 1 25/32 (D) in					
Weight	0.6 kg [1 3/8 lbs.]					
Time backup during power failure	kup wer In the event of power failure or shut-off, the internal capacitor will continue to track time for approximately one (The internal capacitor takes about 24 hours to fully charge; a replacement battery is not necessary.)					
Installation environment	Inside a metal control panel (indoors) * Use this product in a hotel, a business office environment or similar environment.					

*1: Supply electric power from a power unit for the transmission line or an outdoor unit. Furthermore, the power consumption factor of M-NET circuitry of this device is "1/4" (equivalent to one ME Remote Controller).

*2: Supply electric power from the main unit to the contacts of the meters.

*3: M3 is the size of the screw on the terminal block (ISO metric screw thread). The number indicates the screw diameter (mm).

<3> AI controller



Item	Rating and specification							
Power supply	24 VDC±10%: 5 W							Screw terminal block (M3) ^{*4}
	M-NET communication				17 to 30 VDC	17 to 30 VDC		
		Ch	h Sensor		Measurement target	Measurement range	Measurement error	External connection method
			Pt100 (3-wire system)		Temperature	-30 to 60°C [-22 to 140°F]	±0.3%FS ±0.1°C (0.18°F) ^{*2} [at 25°C (77°F)]	Screwless terminal block (3 poles)
	ŧ	Ch1	g	4 to 20 mADC	To some overtisses ((Cat by avatant	±0.5%FS ±0.1°C (0.18°F) *2	Consulate terminal
Interface	Inpu		nalo	1 to 5 VDC	lemperature/	controller)	±0.5%FS ±0.1%RH	Screwless terminal block (2 poles)
Intenace			∢	0 to 10 VDC			[at 25°C (77°F)]	
		Ch2	Analog	4 to 20 mADC 1 to 5 VDC	Temperature/ humidity	(Set by system controller)	±0.5%FS ±0.1°C (0.18°F) ^{*2} ±0.5%FS ±0.1%RH [at 25°C (77°F)]	Screwless terminal block (2 poles)
	Upper/lower limit alarm interlock output (non-voltage contact)			mit alarm ut contact)	Applied load MAX: 24 VDC, 5 W MIN: 5 VDC, 2 mW * AC loads cannot be connected.			Screw terminal block (M3.5) ^{*4}
Interlock function	Interlock M-NET devices according to measurement data values. *3							
Environment	Temperature				Operating temperature range 0 to 40°C [32°F to 104°F]			
conditions					Storage temperature range -20 to 60°C [-4°F to 140°F]			
	Humidity 30 to 90%RH (no condensation)							
Dimensions	200 (W) × 120 (H) × 45 (D) mm / 7 7/8 (W) × 4 3/4 (H) × 12 5/32 (D) in							
Weight	0.6 kg [1 3/8 lbs.]							
Time backup during power failure	backup g power e In the event of power failure or shut-off, the internal capacitor will continue to track time for approximately one wee (The internal capacitor takes about 24 hours to fully charge; a replacement battery is not necessary.)				ximately one week. ary.)			
Installation environment	Inside a metal control panel (indoors) * Use this product in a hotel, a business office environment or similar environment.							

*1: Configure the dip switch settings for the analog input method to use while referring to "9. Dip Switch Functions".

*2: The measurement error for the system includes the measurement error for this unit, sensor, and wiring.

a%FS (full scale) = a% × ([measurement range's upper limit value] - [lower limit value])

*3: Settings for the interlock function are performed from the Maintenance Tool. For details, refer to the operation manual for the Maintenance Tool.

*4: M3 and M3.5 are sizes of the screw on the terminal block (ISO metric screw thread). The number indicates the screw diameter (mm).

[2] Outline

One AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 can control and monitor up to 50 units including DIDO Controller (PAC-YG66DCA), PI Controller (PAC-YG60MCA), AI Controller (PAC-YG63MCA), indoor units, and LOSSNAY units.

(1) DIDO controller

The DIDO Controller have Max. 6 sets of contact input/output terminals and can monitor and operate ON/OFF/Malfunction of up to 6 general equipments.

The general equipments can be monitored or operated from AE-200/AE-50 LCD, AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 Web browser or TG-2000A.

Also, Run/Stop schedule of the general equipments can be set.

DIDO Controller has 6 contact points per M-NET address. But one contact is equivalent for one indoor unit.

So if all six contact points are used, it will take up 6 M-NET address.

(2) PI controller

Up to 4 units of Pulse-input measuring instruments (watt-hour meter, gas meter, water meter, and calorimeter) are connectable to PI controller and accumulate the amount based on the pulse unit designated from the AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 monitors the current value of the PI Controller regularly (in 1 minute interval).

The current value can be displayed on AG-200/AE-50 LCD, AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 Web browser or TG-2000A.

In a control system (with four M-NET lines) with AE-200 (1 set) and 200 expansion controllers (AE-50/EW-50), up to 20 PI controllers (80 ch. in all) can be connected. Up to 40 PI controllers (160 ch. in all) can be connected to 1 system of TG-2000.

(3) AI controller

Al controller has 2 ports and can control temperature or humidity.

AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 monitors the status of the AI-controller regularly (in 1-minute interval) and keeps the measured data. Also, when the value exceeds preset upper or lower limit, or recovers. AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 sends alarm e-mail which includes the trend data for the last 10mins (in 1-minute interval) before the occurrence or recovery.

Temperature/Humidity can be displayed on AE-200/AE-50 LCD, AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 Web browser or TG-2000A.



[3] DIDO controller

<1> Connection with DIDO controller

ON/OFF operation status and error status of general equipment can be monitored by using the DIDO controller input/output AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. Also, DIDO controller is equipped with the connector for two sets of standard terminal (channel 1, 2). Up to 6 sets of input/output will be possible by using the external I/O adapter (PAC-YG10HA-E) (2Ch of input/output per adapter, up to 2 adapters connectable).

Up to 50 DIDO controllers (50 contacts) can be connected per an AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 unit, or per an Expansion Controller. Monitoring/operation are possible from AE-200/AE-50 LCD, AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 Web browser or TG-2000A.

This device supports interlock operation functions such as ON/OFF of units or changing the set temperature for the indoor units and devices connected via M-NET, based on changes in input at the contact point. But we recommend you not to use this device for disaster prevention or security control.

It is advised to prepare a circuit which enables ON/OFF from an external switch in case of malfunction of DIDO controller. NOTE: DIDO controllers can be controlled from only one of the system controllers.



<2> Connection of the DIDO controller and signal lines

Relays, power supply for the relays, terminal blocks, and cables are field-supplied parts. The maximum allowable wiring length is 100 m.

However it is recommended to keep the length within 10m for longer wiring is more susceptible to noise.

Connect an additional relay within 10 m from the DIDO interface, to receive an input from a point farther than 10 m. The table below summarizes input/output signal specifications.

The pulse signal output width is $1 \text{ s} \pm 30 \text{ ms}$.

Terminal (Ch No.)	Input/output	Connection method	Status	Signal type	Explanation
	lanut	Non-voltage contact	ON/OFF	Level	Closed contact: Run; Open contact: Stop
	Input	input	Error/Normal	Level	Closed contact: Error; Open contact: Normal *1
Stondard torminal		Non-voltage relay	ON/OFF	Level	Operation output: Closed contact Stop output: Open contact ^{*2}
(Ch1 Ch2)				Pulse	Contact point closes according to the output signal
(0,0)	Output	Transistor output	ON/OFF	Level	Operation output: Transistor ON Stop output: Transistor OFF *2
				Pulse	Transistor turns on or off according to the output signal
	lanut	241/00	ON/OFF	Level	Closed contact :Run; Open contact: Stop
	input	24000	Error/Normal	Level	Closed contact: Error; Open contact: Normal *1
Expansion connector (Ch3-6)	Quitaut		01/055	Level	Operation output: Transistor ON Stop output: Transistor OFF *2
	Output	Transistor output	UN/OFF	Pulse	Transistor turns on or off according to the output signal.

*1: The opposite (Open contact = Error, Closed contact = normal) applies to a b-contact (normally closed).

*2: Operation output can only be used as a-contact (normally open), but not as b-contact (normally closed).

Standard Terminal (Ch1,Ch2) Input (CN10/11/19/20)

(a) Non-voltage contact input

Certain settings are required before use. Refer to "Initial settings" in the Installation/Instructions Manual that came with the unit.



Note Connect the ON/OFF inputs so that closing the contact operates (ON) the device and opening the contact stops (OFF) the device.

Note The error/normal inputs of channels 1 and 2 can be switched between a-contact and b-contact.

CAUTION

- Be sure to match the polarity when using contacts that have polarity.
- Select a contact with a minimum applicable load of 1 mADC or less.
- Supply 24 VDC 1 mA from the positive terminal to the external contacts.
- Do not install alongside or in contact with other wires.
- Strip 12±1 mm of the wire coating and insert firmly into the terminal.
- Make sure that the copper wiring is not shortcircuiting the plates (cover, lower case) or neigboring wires.
- Perform wiring with some space so that the terminal block is not strained.

If strained, use a wire guide or junction terminal to alleviate the stress on the terminal block.

Contacts closed: Operate (ON); detected an error detection Contacts open: Stop (OFF); detected as normal detection * Error/normal detection becomes inverted from contact open/closed logic for a b-contact setting.

Input/output connector layout drawing



Output

Either Non-voltage relay contact or transistor can be used for the output. These units are not designed to be used at the same time.

(a) Non-voltage contact output

Certain settings are required before use. Refer to "Initial settings" in the Installation/Instructions Manual that came with the unit.



() is in the case of a pulse.



CAUTION • Use X1 and Y1 relay, that satisfies the followings. Operating coil [Applied load] MAX: 24 VDC, 5 W (Diode built-in model) MIN: 5 VDC, 2 mW (Diode built-in model) *1: AC loads cannot be connected *2: Provide power supply (V1, V2) that matches the load and relay to be used. To drive a direct load, use ones within the followings. [Applicable load] MAX: 24 VDC, 5 W MIN: 5 VDC, 2 mW *AC loads cannot be connected. • Make sure that the copper wiring is not short-circuiting the plates (cover, lower case) or neigboring wires. • Perform wiring with some space so that the terminal block is not strained. If strained, use a wire guide or junction terminal to alleviate the stress on the terminal block. • Do not connect the wires directly from the top of the control panel to the terminal block. Moisture may enter

Contacts closed: Operate (ON) output

Contacts open: Stop (OFF) output

or wire.

For pulse output, the (ON), (OFF) contacts close according to the output content.

this device along the wiring and cause electric shock

(b) Transistor output (Open collector) (CN06/05/08/03)

Certain settings are required before use. Refer to "Initial settings" in the Installation/Instructions Manual that came with the unit.



Tightening torque for terminal screws: 1 N · m () is in the case of a pulse.

CAUTION

• Use X1, X2 and Y1, Y2 relay that satisfies the following specifications.

. Operating coil

- Rated voltage: 24 VDC (Diode built-in model)
- Power consumption: 0.9 W or less
- *1: Be sure to use the ones with the voltage rated above. Exceeding the rated voltage may affect the ON/OFF of other outputs.
- *2: When using a separate power supply for this device, connect GND of the power supply to V of CN16 of the terminal block of this device.
- *3: Use a relay with a withstanding voltage at least 2000 VAC between the coil and contact. Otherwise, there is the likehood of an electric shock or fire.
- Peel off the sheath to 12 ±1 mm from the end, and securely insert the wire into the terminal.
- Do not let the copper wire short with the metal sheet parts (cover and bottom case) or other wires.
- Provide some slack in the wire to keep undue force from being exerted on the terminal block when the wire is pulled on.

Use cable clamps or trunk terminals as necessary.

 Do not connect the wires directly from the top of the control panel to the terminal block. Moisture may enter this device along the wiring and cause electric shock or wire.

Operate (ON) output: Transistor ON (sink)

- Stop (OFF) output: Transistor OFF (open) * For pulse output, the (ON), (OFF) transistors turn ON
- (sink) according to the output content.

Expansion Connector (Ch3-6)

(a) Expansion I/O (CN12/14)

Please purchase the external I/O adapter (PAC-YG10HA) to use the expansion I/O.

Certain settings are required before use. Refer to "Initial settings" in the Installation/Instructions Manual that came with the unit.



[Input]

Contacts closed (24 VDC applied): ON; error detection

Contacts open: OFF; normal detection

* Error/normal detection becomes inverted from contact open/closed logic for a b-contact setting.

[Output]

Operate (ON) output: Transistor ON (sink)

Stop (OFF) output: Transistor OFF (open)

* Upon pulse output, the (ON), (OFF) transistors turn ON (sink) according to the output content.

CAUTION

- Use X1, X2, X3, X4, Y1, Y2, Y3, and Y4 relays that satisfies the following specifications.
 - Operating coil

Rated voltage: 24 VDC (Built-in diode)

- Power consumption: 0.9 W or less
- *1: Be sure to use the ones with the voltage rated above. Exceeding the rated voltage may affect the ON/OFF of other outputs.
- *2: When using a separate power supply for this device, connect GND of the power supply to V of CN16 of the terminal block of this device.
- *3: Use a relay with a withstanding voltage at least 2000 VAC between the coil and contact. Otherwise, there is a possibility of an electric shock or fire.
- Select a contact with a minimum applicable load 1mADC or less for the input contact.
- Do not install alongside or in contact with other wires. Moisture may enter this device along the wiring and cause electric shock or wire.
<3> Field supplied parts for the DIDO controller

Required parts	Specification				
Unit fixing screws	M4 screw x 4 (*M4: ISO metric screw thread)				
Power supply	Commercially available power supply: 24 VDC±10% 5 W Ripple noise: Lower than 200 mVp-p When using transistor output (including extension output) for the 24 VDC output of this device, increase the capacity to match the number used. • 1set used 8 W • 2set used 10 W • 3set used 12 W • 4set used 15 W • 5set used 18 W • 6set used 20 W				
Power line	Use a sheathed vinyl code or cable. At least 0.75 mm² (AWG18)				
M-NET transmission line	Use a sheathed vinyl code or cable. Type of the cablesCPEVS, CVVS or MVVS Size of the cables(1) Solid wire: 1.2 mm-1.6 mm (2) Stranded wire: 1.25 mm ² (AWG16) -2 mm ² (AWG14) Power needs to be supplied to M-NET of this device. Use an outdoor unit or a separately purchased power supply unit for the transmission line. M-NET Power consumption coefficient is [1/4]				
Signal	Use electric wire of an appropriate size for the terminal block of this device. Cable size(1) Solid wire: ø0.65 mm (AWG21) -1.2 mm (AWG16) (2) Stranded wire: 0.75 mm² (AWG18) -1.25 mm² (AWG16) Single stand: At least 0.18 mm Please purchase the external I/O adapter (PAC-YG 10HA) to use the expansion I/O.				

[Optional Accessories]

Name	Model	Application	Remark
Power supply unit for transmission line	PAC-SC51KUA	Power supply to M-NET transmission line	Not required when power is supplied from an outdoor unit.
External I/O adapter	PAC-YG10HA	Connection adapter for using an expansion input/output. Two devices (2 channels) can be connected with one adapter. To connect four devices (4 channels) to an expansion I/O, two adapters are required.	Required when expansion I/O is used.

[Commercial Parts]

Name	Application	Remark
External 24 VDC power supply *1	Supplied power for using the DIDO controller or transistor output	Refer to "Power supply for this device" in "Required parts" above for the power supply capacity.
Relay device	Requires commercially available relay device depending on the electric specifications with an external device.	

*1: Reference: Commercially available external 24 VDC power supply

Please designate and use the 24 VDC Power supply based on the Major safety standards UL60950-1, EN60950-1 or the products based on the PSE law.

The following tables shows some of the 24 VDC power supplies that are available on market. Contact the manufacturer for details.

<4> Monitoring/operation by DIDO controller <4-1> Outline

General equipment (lighting equipment, etc.) other than air conditioners and air conditioners other than our products can be monitored and operated from AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

This section explains the procedures for monitoring and operating these devices from AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 by using the DIDO controller.

(1) Functions of DIDO controller

The following general equipment can be monitored and operated.

Examples of general equipment Monitoring iten		Operation item	Remarks
Lighting equipment Ventilating fans Air conditioners other than our products	 Monitoring of ON/OFF state Monitoring of normal/abnormal state 	Starting/stopping operation	To monitor errors, an error
Opening/closing of windows	Monitoring of open/closed state	-	provided on the general
Upper limit water level of water tank	Monitoring of normal/abnormal state	_	equipment side.
Lower limit water level of water tank	Monitoring of normal/abnormal state	-	

(2) Selection of general equipment monitoring/operating method General equipment can be monitored and operated by the following two methods. Select the method that suits your needs referring to the features and selection points.

Method Explanation	Use of DIDO controller (PAC-YG66DCA)	Use of free contact of indoor unit
	 The devices can be easily monitored and operated from the LCD screen of AE-200/AE-50. They can be monitored and operated also from the Web browser screen of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. 	 The devices are displayed on the screen of TG-2000A. A system can be configured by using the connectors on the control board of indoor unit. (The DIDO controller and PLC for general equipment are not required.)
Features (screen for monitoring	Schedules can be set.	 Schedules can be set from TG-2000A. (Schedules cannot be set on AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.)
and operation)	* When TC 2000A is used, they can be displayed also	* They cannot be displayed on the LCD screen of AE-200/ AE-50.
	on the screen of TG-2000A.	It is possible only to monitor the input/output state on the administrator's Web browser screen of AE-200/AE-50/ EW-50. They cannot be operated.
	6 general equipment can be connected to one DIDO controller	 Connect the general equipment to the connectors (input/ output terminals) on the control board of indoor unit.
Points of selection	 One contact of the DIDO controller is counted as one unit 	 Up to 4 input terminals and up to 3 output terminals of indoor unit can be used.
	When 6 general equipment are connected to one DIDO controller, they are counted as 6 units.	 M-NET addresses are not consumed. Up to 350 input/output contacts can be connected to one set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.^{*1}
Required devices	• DIDO controller (PAC-YG66DCA)	 For monitoring/operation of free contact *2 TG-2000A Adapter for free contact connection Adapter for remote starting and stopping (2 input points) Remote display kit for M control (2 input points and 3 output points) "PLC for General Equipments" license

*1: The function of the indoor unit free contact enables to connect up to 350 general equipment (7 input/output points × 50 devices in all). However, when the integrated software TG-2000A is used, up to 2000 general equipment can be connected by the indoor unit free contact function.

*2: The state of the indoor unit free contact can be monitored on the Web browser screen of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. The contact cannot be operated. To operate it, use TG-2000A.

Method Explanation	Use of DIDO controller (PAC-YG66DCA)	Use of free contact of indoor unit	
lcons which can be selected for general equipment	<example ae-200="" ae-50="" lcd="" of="" screen=""></example>	 Any icons created by the user can be registered on the screen of TG-2000A. 	
Necessity of license	 No license is required for monitoring and operating only. The "Interlock control" license is required to interlock the air conditioners and general equipment. 	 No license is required for monitoring by using the Web browser screen of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. For monitoring and operating by using TG-2000A: 1. The "PLC for General Equipments" license is required. 2. To interlock the air conditioners and general equipment, the "PLC for General Equipments" license or "Interlock control" license is required. 	
Reference for detailed explanation	See the Instruction Book for AE-200/AE-50/ EW-50.	 See the Instruction Book for AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 Web browser. TG-2000A: See the Instruction Book for TG-2000A. 	

<4-2> Configuration of general equipment monitoring/operating system

(1) By using DIDO controller

General equipment can be easily monitored and operated on the LCD screen of AE-200/AE-50 on a simple system. The devices can be monitored and operated also on the Web browser screen of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

They can be displayed also on the screen of TG-2000A.

Below explained are the procedures for monitoring and operating general equipment on the LCD screen of AE-200/AE-50 using the DIDO controller or monitoring and operating them on the Web browser of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

Up to 50 general equipment can be monitored and operated by one set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. When air conditioners are contained, the sum of the number of indoor units and the number of controlled general equipment is 50. Six general equipment can be connected to one DIDO controller.

Monitoring the state on the screen

When the general equipment to be monitored has a terminal to output the ON/OFF state and normal/abnormal state, the state can be displayed on the LCD screen of AE-200/AE-50 or the Web browser screen of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 by capturing the state signals by the general-purpose controller.

* To monitor the error state, the general equipment must have an error output terminal.

* It is possible to monitor one of the ON/OFF state and the normal/abnormal state.

Operating on the screen

When the general equipment to be operated has a terminal for starting and stopping operation, the state can be displayed on the LCD screen of AE-200/AE-50 or the Web browser screen of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 by outputting the operation signal by the DIDO controller.

The device can be started and stopped at the predetermined time by the schedule setting function.

* When AT-50 is connected to a low-order system controller, the DIDO controller cannot be monitored on AT-50.

(2) Outline of system



* Supplementary explanation

- 1. To connect general equipment and DIDO controller, field instrumentation work is required to connect them through relays, etc. For details, see 6. [3] <2> "Connection of the DIDO controller and signal lines."
- 2. No license is required for monitoring or operation of general equipment. However, for interlock control among the monitored and operated general equipment or among the monitored and operated general equipment and the air conditioners connected to M-NET, the "Interlock control" license is required. For details, see Chapter 8, "Interlock Control."

(3) Required devices

Device name (model name)	Manufacturer	Remarks
AE-200/AE-50/EW-50	Mitsubishi Electric	EW-50 enables monitoring and operation only from the Web browser and TG-2000A.
DIDO controller (PAC-YG66DCA)	Mitsubishi Electric	Up to 6 general equipment can be connected to one controller. To connect 3 or more general equipment to one DIDO controller, the following external input/output adapter is required.
External input/output adapter (PAC-YG10HA)	Mitsubishi Electric	To connect 3 or 4 general equipment to one DIDO controller, one set of the following external input/output adapter is required. To connect 5 or 6 general equipment to one DIDO controller, two sets of the following external input/output controller are required.
Power supply unit for transmission line (PAC-SC51KUA) Power supply expansion unit for transmission line (PAC-SF46EPA)	Mitsubishi Electric	Although the DIDO controller can be connected to AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 without the power supply unit, if a DIDO controller or a system remote controller exceeding the value of the supply capacity of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 is connected to the transmission line for centralized control, the power supply unit for transmission line or the power supply expansion unit for transmission line is required.
Connection with general equipment (relay circuit, power supply, etc.)	Locally procured products (field work)	To connect the general equipment and DIDO controller, field instrumentation work for connection through relays is required.* For details, see 6. [3] <2> "Connection of the DIDO controller and signal lines."

* The distance from the DIDO controller to general equipment must be up to 100 m.



[6. DIDO Controller/PI Controller/AI Controller]

(4) Required setting

Setting item	Description	Reference
Group setting	Registration of group of general equipment connected to AE-200/ AE-50/EW-50	Instruction Book for AE-200/AE-50/EW-50

[4] PI controller

<1> Connection of the PI controller

PI controller is a device which counts pulse from a power meter, gas meter, water meter, and calorimeter.

On a control system with AE-200 (1 set) and 200 expansion controllers (AE-50/EW-50) (for 4 M-NET lines), up to 20 PI controllers (80 ch. in all) can be connected.

Meters that does not have pulse oscillation cannot be used with the PI controller. Add an external converter circuit to enable the use of pulse signal input.

Notes

- Charge function will not work when there is combination of pulse count PLC and PI controller in a system. (For charge function, use either PLC or PI controller.)
- Charging function is not available for the DIDO controller.
- It is recommended to connect the UPS to the PI controller power supply.



<2> Connection of PI controller and the signal wire

Terminal blocks and cables are field-supplied parts. The maximum allowable wiring length is 100 m. Longer wiring is more susceptible to interference noise. It is recommended to keep the length within 10 m for longer wiring is more susceptible to noise.

The table below summarizes input/output signal specifications.

Terminal (Ch No.)	Input/ Output	Connection	Operation	Signal type	Explanation
Input terminal (Ch 1-4)	Input	Non-voltage contact input	Pulse count	Pulse	Calculates the measured value at the preset pulse unit (weight) Ex). 1 kWh per a pulse input in the case that the pulse unit (weight) is 1 kWh/pulse.

[Recommended watt-hour meter]

The table below shows the model of watt-hour consumption meter with pulse signal function.

Use the pulse-oscillation meters for gas, water and calorie as well.

Item	Explanation		
Manufacturer (Reference)	MITSUBISHI ELECTRIC CORPORATION		
Model name (Reference)	M1L (H) M-K11 (V), M1L (H) M-K12 (V) R, M2L (H) M-K11 (V), M2L (H) M-K12 (V) R, M7P-K30VR, M8P-K30VR		
Output pulse method	Semiconductor relay		
Pulse range	100-300 ms (100 ms or larger) Output non-voltage a-contact pulse for each pulse unit		
Output pulse unit	0.1/1.0/10/100 [kWh/pulse] *1 kWh/pulse or less recommended *1		

*1: Use the watt-hour meter of 1 kWh or less/pulse for charge apportioning.

(a) Pulse input (non-voltage a-contact)

Certain settings are required before use. Refer to "Initial settings" in the Installation/Instructions Manual that came with the unit.



A pulse is counted each time the output pulse of the meter goes on.

- Note Pulse unit (weight) can be set for each channel (Ch1-4). Set the pulse unit (weight) from the AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 or TG-2000A. * Make the "SC setting" (default value) for the
 - dip switch SW02 (pulse unit (weight) value setting).

Note This unit is not applicable to the levelmethod meters. When using the level-method meters, install the external convertible circuit for the pulse input.

- Be sure to match the polarity when using contacts that have polarity.
- Supply 24 VDC 1 mA from the positive terminal to the external contacts. Select the measuring instrument that works with its contact at 1 mA.
- It is recommended to use watt-hour meter with pulse unit of 1 kWh/pulse as the use of those with more kWh/pulse may cause greater margin of error for apportioning.
- Do not run the sensor input wire adjacent to M-NET transmission line and power supply cable.
- Peel off the sheath to 12 ±1 mm from the end, and securely insert the wire into the terminal.
- Do not let the copper wire short with the metal sheet parts (cover and bottom case) or other wires.
- Provide some slack in the wire to keep undue force from being exerted on the terminal block when the wire is pulled on. Use cable clamps or trunk terminals as necessary.

<3> Field supplied parts for the PI controller

Required parts	Specification			
Unit fixing screws	M4 screw x 4 (* M4: 250 metric screw thread)			
Power supply	Commercially available power supply: 24 VDC±10% 5 W Ripple noise: Lower than 200 mVp-p			
Power line	Use a sheathed vinyl code or cable. At least 0.75 mm ² (AWG18)			
M-NET transmission line	Use a sheathed vinyl code or cable. Type of the cablesCPEVS, CVVS or MVVS Size of the cables(1) Solid wire: 1.2 mm-1.6 mm (2) Stranded wire: 1.25 mm ² (AWG16) -2 mm ² (AWG14) Power needs to be supplied to M-NET of this device. Use EW-50 or a separately purchased power supply unit for the transmission line. M-NET Power consumption coefficient is [1/4]			
Signal	Use electric wire of an appropriate size for the terminal block of this device. Cable size ···· (1) Solid wire: 0.65 mm (AWG21) -1.2 mm (AWG16) (2) Stranded wire: 0.75 mm ² (AWG18) -1.25 mm ² (AWG16) Single stand: At least 0.18 mm			

[Optional Accessories]

Name	Model	Application	Remark
Power supply unit for transmission line	PAC-SC51KUA	Power supply to M-NET transmission line	Not required when power is supplied from an outdoor unit or AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

[Commercial Parts]

Name	Application	Remark
External 24 VDC power supply *2	Supplies power to the PI controller	Refer to "Power supply for this device" in "Required parts" above for the power supply capacity.

*2: Reference: Commercially available external 24 VDC power supply

Refer to the section marked with *1 in the "Field-supplied parts for the DIDO controller" for more details on commercially available external 24 VDC power supply.

[5] AI controller

<1> Connection for the AI controller

The AI controller is a device that measures temperature and humidity. The measurement data can be monitored from the AE-200/AE-50/EW-50, or TG-2000A. Settings can be made so that alarm signals are output when the measurement value exceeds a preset upper or lower limit.

Up to 50 AI controllers can be connected to each AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

This device supports interlock operation functions such as ON/OFF of units or changing the set temperature for the indoor units and devices connected via M-NET, based on changes in temperature or humidity.

Do not use this device for disaster prevention control or security control.



<2> Connecting sensors to the AI controller

Ch 1 supports Pt100 detection, DC4-20 mA, 1-5 VDC, and 0-10 VDC analog input.

Ch 2 supports DC4-20 mA, 1-5 VDC, and 0-10 VDC analog input.

A different sensor can be connected to each Ch. The allowable wiring length depends on the sensor specifications.

However, it is recommended to keep the length within 12 m for longer wiring is more susceptible to noise.

Use a sensor cable with a shield, and connect the shield to the FG terminal on AI controller or on control board.

(a) Ch1 Pt100 input

Certain settings are required before use. Refer to "Initial settings" in the Installation/Instructions Manual that came with the unit.



- Only use shielded cables.
- Pt100 has A and B poles. Observe the polarity.
- Do not run the sensor input wire adjacent to the M-NET transmission line and power supply cable. Do not let the cable form a loop.
- Strip 12±1 mm of the wire coating and insert firmly into the terminal.
- Make sure that the copper wiring is not short-circuiting the plates (cover, lower case) or neigboring wires.
- Perform wiring with some play so that the terminal block is not strained. If strained, use a wire guide or junction terminal to alleviate the stress on the terminal block.

(b) Ch1 (Ch2) Analog input (DC4-20 mA, DC1-5 V, DC0-10 V)

Certain settings are required before use. Refer to "Initial settings" in the Installation/Instructions Manual that came with the unit.



- Select the power supply that suits the sensor.
- Do not run the sensor input wire adjacent to M-NET transmission line and power supply cable. Do not let the cable form a loop.
- Peel off the sheath to 12 ±1 mm from the end, and securely insert the wire into the terminal.
- Do not let the copper wire short with the metal sheet parts (cover and bottom case) or other wires.
- Provide some slack in the wire to keep undue force from being exerted on the terminal block when the wire is pulled on. Use cable clamps or trunk terminals as necessary.

<3> Connecting upper/lower limit alarm (Non voltage contact)

The maximum wire length is 100 m. Longer wiring is more vulnerable to noise interference. It is recommended to keep the length within 10 m for longer wiring is more susceptible to noise.

Certain settings are required before use. Refer to section "Initial settings" in the Installation/Instructions Manual that came with the unit.

The output signal specifications are shown below.

When the temperature or humidity exceeds the upper or lower limit alarm value specified on the measurement setting screen on the main unit LCD screen or Web browser screen, a level signal can be output from the terminal of ch1 or ch2. For the setting of the upper and lower limit alarm values, see the Instruction Book for AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

Terminal (Ch No.)	Input/ output	Connection	Usability	Signal type	Refrirant Type
Standard terminals (ch1, ch2)	Output	Non-voltage contact output	upper and lower limits	Level	Upper/lower limit alarm detected: contact closed; Upper/lower limit alarm not detected: contact open.



Tightening torque for terminal screws: 1 N · m.

* While the upper/lower limit alarm is being detected, the built-in relay contact will always be ON. (level signal output)

- Use the relay (X1) that meets the following specifications. Operating coil
 - [Load]
- Maximum: 24 VDC, 5 W (Built-in diode) Minimum: 5 VDC, 2 mW (Built-in diode)
- *1: AC loads cannot be connected.
- *2: Provide the power supply (V1, V2) that matches the load and relay to be used.
- To drive a direct load, use ones within the followings.
- [Load]
- Maximum: 24 VDC, 5 W
- Minimum: 5 VDC, 2 mW * AC loads cannot be connected.
- Do not let the copper wire short with the metal sheet parts (cover and bottom case) or other wires.
- Provide some slack in the wire to keep undue force from being exerted on the terminal block when the wire is pulled on. Use cable clamps or trunk terminals as necessary.
- To keep water from trickling down the cable and causing current leak or fire, do not route the cable from the top of the control board directly to the terminal block on the controller.

<4> Field-supplied parts for the AI controller

Required parts	Specification
Unit fixing screws	M4 screw x 4 (* M4: 250 metric screw thread)
Power supply for this device	Commercially available power supply: 24 VDC±10% 5 W Ripple noise: Lower than 200 mVp-p
Power supply for sensors	A separate power supply may be required for sensors. When 24 VDC is used, power can be supplied to the sensor by increasing the capacity of the power supply to the AI controller using it to feed power to the sensor.
Power line	Use a sheathed vinyl code or cable. At least 0.75 mm ² (AWG18)
M-NET transmission line	Use a sheathed vinyl code or cable. Type of the cablesCPEVS, CVVS or MVVS Size of the cables(1) Solid wire: 1.2 mm-1.6 mm (2) Stranded wire: 1.25 mm ² (AWG16) -2 mm ² (AWG14) Power needs to be supplied to M-NET of this device. Use an outdoor unit or a separately purchased power supply unit for the transmission line. M-NET Power consumption coefficient is [1/4].
Signal	Use electric wire of an appropriate size for the terminal block of this device. Select the signal wire based on the sensor specifications. Only use shielded cables. Cable size ···· (1) Solid wire: 0.65 mm (AWG21) -1.2 mm (AWG16) (2) Stranded wire: 0.75 mm ² (AWG18) -1.25 mm ² (AWG16) Single stand: At least 0.18 mm

[Optional Accessories]

<u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>	1		
Name	Model	Application	Remark
Power supply unit for transmission line	PAC-SC51KUA	Power supply to M-NET transmission line	Not required when power is supplied from an outdoor unit or AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

[Commercial Parts]

Name	Application	Remark
External 24 VDC power supply *1	Supplies power to the AI controller	Refer to "Power supply for this device" and "Power supply for sensors" in "Required parts" above for the power supply capacity.
Sensor	Measures temperature and humidity	Temperature sensor (PAC-SE40TSA, PAC-SE41TS) cannot be connected.

*1: Reference: Commercially available external 24 VDC power supply

Refer to the section marked with *1 in the "Field-supplied parts for the DIDO controller" for more details on commercially available external 24 VDC power supply.

[6] Installation/Wiring method (applicable to all controllers)

<1> Installation

DIDO, PI, or AI controller does not have a waterproof structure.

Prepare a control panel capable of storing the controller such as the one shown in the figure below. Install the controller (device) in a controller panel strong enough to withstand a weight of 0.6kg [13/8 lbs].

This device can be installed flat or vertically. Clear the space shown below when installing.



Space required to install a controller

Size of the device: 200 (W) x120 (H) x 45 (D) mm

Unit: mm

Notes

- The space indicated above does not include the space for peripheral parts. The amount of space required for installation depends on which functions are used and how the cables are routed. Secure adequate space for a given type of installation.
- In the case of installing horizontally in the control board, the upper part of the cover should be hooked to the lower case, as it is originally designed to be installed vertically.
 For horizontal installation, be sure to install carefully holding the upper case and screwfix with the lower case to avoid the fall.
- (1) Fix the top of this device to the control panel at two points by loosely tightening the screws (M4) procured locally. Fix the bottom in place with two screws and then tighten all four of the screws.



- (2) To remove the cover, as shown in the figure, remove the two screws fixing the cover and then remove the cover by unhooking the upper hook section from the lower case.
- To attach the cover, hook the upper hook section on the lower case and then fix the cover in place with the two screws that were removed.



Note Two hooks are located on the upper section of the cover.

(3) Connect the power wire and M-NET transmission line by following the instructions in the section "Connecting the power wire and M-NET line."



CAUTION

- Perform wiring with some play so that the terminal block is not strained. If strained, use a wire guide or junction terminal to alleviate the stress on the terminal block.
- Do not connect the wires directly from the top of the control panel to the terminal block. Moisture may enter this device along the wiring and cause electric shock or wire.

Note

Do not install the input signal wire alongside or in contact with M-NET transmission line or other wires.

* The wiring in the diagram has been simplified.

Inside the control panel (DIDO Controller)

<2> Connecting the power wire and M-NET cable



CAUTION

• Use a power line and M-NET transmission line that satisfy the specifications described in "Parts to Procured Locally".

- Attach a circuit comprising the following component to the supply primary side of the 24 VDC power supply. (1) Varistor (2) Arrester (3) Noise filter (4) Fuse
- It is important to pay attention to the polarity when connecting the 24 VDC power supply terminal block. Connecting the positive and negative in the reverse order will cause a failure.
- Fix the power line and M-NET transmission line in place on the outside to ensure that the terminal block is not affected by any external force.

Not securely connecting and fixing the wires in place may cause heat generation and fire.

• Make sure that the copper wiring is not short-circuiting the plates (cover, lower case) or neigboring wires. Cover the shielded line of M-NET transmission line with materials such as vinyl tape and prevent short-circuiting with the plates.

Note If this device is connected to an M-NET indoor control line and the outdoor control unit shuts down due to service failure, the DIDO controller cannot be controlled from the system controller.

Note The use of an uninterruptible power supply (UPS) is recommended for PI controllers in order to prevent the loss of pulse data in the event of a power failure. If the connection of the UPS is not possible, it is recommended that the power of the 24 VDC-objective unit (100/200 VAC system) is supplied from the same power source as the AC power supply line.

7. Schedule Function

AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50 have a weekly (5 kinds), annual and daily scheduling function.

[1] Outline

	AE-200/AE-50	AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 Web	TG-2000A		
Schedule setting	Setting on AE-200/AE-50	Setting on Web monitoring PC	Setting on TG-2000A software		
	No. of operation per day: 2	24 times	No. of operation per day:24 times		
	Operation items: ON/OFF, set temperature, flow direction, local remote	operation mode, fanspeed, air controller prohibition/permision	Operation items: ON/OFF, set temperature, operation mode, fanspeed, air flow direction, local remote controller prohibition/permision		
	Time setting unit: 1 minute		Time setting unit: 1 minute		
Weekly schedule	Veekly schedule Operation subjects: Group, Block, All groups		Operation subjects: Groups, (All) Floors blocks, Whole building		
	Pattern: 5 different schedule setting Each schedule can have ti (Weekly 1, Weekly 2, Wee * Operation settings can be temperature only" or "Op	gs can be made. me period. kly 3, Weekly 4, Weekly 5) e made separately such as "Set eration mode only".	Pattern: Possible to set for 5 patterns for Summer/Winter * Operation settings can be made separately such as "Set temperature only" or "Operation mode only".		
Annual schedule	Possible to set for a maxin No. of pattern: 5 patterns	num of 50 days and up to 24 mo	nths including the current month		
Today schedule	Today schedule can be ch	anged without changing the wee	kly schedules or the annual schedules.		
Optimized start-up	Units start automatically in	order to reach the scheduled te	mperature at the scheduled time.		

(1) What is the weekly schedule?

This term refers to the operation schedule of each day of the week.

(2) What is the seasonal schedule?

5 sets of weekly schedules (Weekly 1, Weekly 2, Weekly 3, Weekly 4, Weekly 5) can be set, and each can be designated its scheduled term.

(3) What is the annual schedule?

In addition to the weekly schedule, for special days (national holidays, summer vacation, and etc.) a different schedule can be set for a maximum of 50 days up to 24 months (including the current month) in advance. During the days set in the annual schedule, the weekly schedule settings will not be performed while the schedule set in the annual schedule will be performed.

(4) What is today's schedule?

After setting the weekly and annual schedules, today's schedule can be used for sudden changes in the regular schedule. When today's schedule is set, the weekly and annual schedule settings will not be performed. However, from the following day, operations will resume according to the weekly and annual schedules settings.

(5) Optimized start-up function

When this function is scheduled, the units start automatically in order to reach the scheduled temperature at the scheduled time. To schedule this function, select "Optimized startup" button on schedule setting screen.

Setting time	ON O	FF Optimi	zed Start	
12 💙 : 18 🗸	Cool	Dry	Fan	
_	Heat	Auto		
	Set Temp.		Air Di	rection
	1		Fan Sp	eed

The left graph below shows the example to make the room temperature 26°C at 9:00 during cooling operation. The right graph shows the example to make the room temperature 24°C at 9:00 during heating operation.



[2] Annual/Weekly/Today schedule

The annual, weekly (Weekly 1 to Weekly 5) and today's schedules can be set on the main unit or Web browser by the standard function of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

[Weekly schedule]

- 1. It can be set in 1-minute interval.
- 2. Items can be set 24 times per a day (each day of a week).8 times per day for HWHP (QAHV) (each day of a week)
- Partial setting, such as only operation mode setting or temperature setting, is available.
- 3. Settable items are as follows; ON/OFF, operation mode, temperature, fan speed, air flow direction, and operation prohibition from the local remote controllers.
- 4. Objectives can be set for each group, block, floor or all groups.
- 5. 5 patterns of weekly schedule (Weekly 1 to Weekly 5) can be set.
- 6. The period (month, day) for each of Weekly 1 to Weekly 5 can be set.

[Annual schedule]

- 1. It can be set in 1-minute interval.
- 2. 50 specific days can be set within the period of 24 months including the current month.
- 3. Objectives can be set for each group, block, floor or all groups collectively.
- 4. Up to 5 schedule patterns can be set and allotted each pattern to a specified day. (Setting contents are the same as the weekly schedule.)Weekly and seasonal schedule shall not be executed on the day the annual schedule is also set.

[Today schedule]

- 1. It can be set in 1-minute interval.
- 2. Objectives can be set for each group, block, floor or all groups collectively.
- 3. The today's schedule is implemented in priority to other schedules.
- (Setting contents are the same as the weekly schedule.)

<1> Setting on main unit LCD screen

Annual schedule

Su	n Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu Fri	Sat	Сору	Paste
1	a a6:00	12:68	18:00 00	3			
1	87:15	C.	Heat	25°C	10	4 es	
2	18:88	0	Heat	26°C	1	•	
з	12:00				1	U	
4	13:00		Fan		1		W
5	17:10					Sec.	W
6	28:18	-			- 1	U #	

Weekly schedule



Today schedule



Season setting

Season Settings	5			
Week ly1	Honth Day B1 X / B1 X	•	Manth 83 👗 /	Day 31
🚫 Week I y2	Month Day B4	•	Month 86 🚺 /	Day 30
1/3 🔻			OK	Cancel



Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu Fri	Sat	Сору	Past
-sa	and the second	TA		7			
1	97:15		Heat	25°C		4 es	
2	10:00	0	Heat	26°C			
1	2:00		- 75		The second se	U	
ı d	3:00		Fan		1		
5	17:10					5	
5 3	28:18	-			1 million	10 m	

1	0	12100		-				
1	87:15	0	Heat	25°C	10	1 es ⁴		
2	18:08		Heat	26°C		>		I
3	12:00		÷		1	3		ľ
4	13:00	5	Fan		36	110		l
5	17:18			**	1	94 1		l
6	20:10					24	W	l
7	:	1.00	Ξ	1	1.0	111	W	F

<2> Setting on Web browser

<Weekly scheduling screen Details>



Edit schedule settings Admin.Dept.1 Weekly1 22.00 AM 03.00 AM 06.00 AM 09.00 AM 12.00 FM 03.00 FM 06.0 e e e 🛡 💮 Coo Edit 12:00PM 💧 🕅 Edi 12 Edit 01:00PM Cool 12 03:00PM 🔻 👹 Cool Edi Edit

<Weekly scheduling screen>

Set the details of operations for each setting unit (group, block or all groups) on the screen shown left.



<Schedule period setting screen>



	Edit schedule	e settings		
Admin.Dept.1			E	lased on
12:00 AM 03:00 AM	06:00 AM 09:00 AM	CN 12:00 PM 03:0	ОГГ 0 РМ 06:00 РМ	Other event 09:00 PM 12:00 AM
			Prohibited op	eration
08:00AM 🔻 🚎 Cool	23.5°C	0	- ⁶⁰ ⁶⁰ ⁶⁰	Edit
12:00PM 💧 🕅				Edit
01:00PM 🔻 Cool	22.5°C	The second	- ⁶⁹ - ⁶⁹	Edit
03:00PM 🛡 💮 Cool	20.0°C	1	≂ [₽]	Edit
05:00PM 🛕 🕽				Edit
	Add			
	Cancel	ОК		

<Annual schedule period setting screen>



<3> Weekly schedule of TG-2000A

The integrated software TG-2000A allows scheduling for air conditioners without consciousness of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. Set the schedule for each setting object (group, block, floor, etc.).

<TG-2000A schedule setting screen>



The scheduling function of TG-2000A can change the schedules set by AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 in the same manner as the settings on the Web browser.

8. Energy Management Function

[1] Outline

The energy management function can graphically display the conditions relating to energy management, such as power consumption, operation time and outdoor temperature.

The energy management data is saved in AE-200/AE-50 and can be output in CSV format to a personal computer.

5-minute, 30-minute, daily, monthly and yearly data are saved. The data are retained for 2 months (5-minute), 25 months (30-minute, daily and monthly) and 5 years (yearly).

For more information, see 8.[11]<5> "List of energy management data."

It is possible to display the data of each block, group or unit address specifying the day, month and year and check the status of use of energy by the relevant indoor unit in detail.

It is possible to display the status of use of energy by indoor units in different areas (blocks) on the same screen for comparison. The data can be compared with the data in the last year.

This function visualizes the energy and, therefore, can be used for the following purposes.

1. Understanding of current status

The actual energy (electric energy) use status and operation condition (operation time, temperature setting, etc.) can be understood.

According to the operation condition, it is possible to check for wasteful factors (failure to turn off, excessive temperature setting, etc.) and examine the energy-saving measures.

- Confirmation of effect of energy-saving The reduction in power consumption after the energy-saving measures are taken and the effect of improvement of
- operation condition can be confirmed. 3. Understanding of condition of air conditioner

It is possible to check that the power consumption of each air conditioner is appropriate to the operation time.

If the power consumption of any air conditioner is not appropriate, the capability of the air conditioner may have decreased, or the external environment may have affected it. Checking the condition can give an opportunity to examine the air conditioner.



Remarks	 In case of failure of AE-200/AE-50, periodically save the energy management data in a personal computer. For the saving procedure, see 4.[10] "Data downloading" and 4.[11] "CSV output." For more information on the retention period of CSV data, see 4.[11] The power consumption is calculated based on the electric energy consumed by outdoor units. The power consumption of indoor units is not taken into account. The power consumption data shall be used for reference only.
	 The power consumption calculated by the energy management function must not be used for charging tenants for air conditioning fee. The data cannot be used for transactions or certifications (by measurement) prescribed by the Measurement Act. The energy management function cannot be used for air feeding fans, devices connected to DIDO controller or devices connected to PLC for general equipment. For the possibility of apportionment of electric energy, see 4.[4]<3> "Selection of apportionment mode when more than one models are connected."

[2] Electric energy calculation method

<1> Calculation of electric energy

The energy management function apportions the power consumption of the outdoor units according to the amount of operation (usage) of each indoor unit and calculates the electric energy consumed by each indoor unit.

The calculated power consumption is displayed graphically on the energy use status and ranking screens.

Only the power consumption of outdoor units is included in the calculation.

The power consumption of indoor units is not included.



Note: The indication of the power supplies for the indoor units is omitted.

<2> Transition of energy management screens

To display the energy use status and ranking, it is necessary to set the date, display device and display item. To display the target values on a graph, it is necessary to set the target values. Transition of these screens is shown below.

(1) Energy use status





Set the target to be displayed on the graph and the period.

(2) Ranking



Display item settings Date Month Display Group



Touch [Bar graph] or [Line graph]. or [|



Select the item to be displayed in bar graph or line graph.

Disp	olay item settings	
	Bar graph	
	Electric Energy	FAN operation time
	Thermo-ON time	
	Total	Cool Heat
	Line graph	
	Outdoor Temp.	Room Temp.
	Cal Tana dan asal	Set Terrs for best
	Set lemp. for cool	Set Temp. for heat
		OK Cance I

Set the target of ranking to be displayed, date and display item.

Controlle	AE208	Mitsubishi Ele	
ate range	Month	Display	Group
Date	86/2815	Gridline	Show
Elect	ric Energy	FAN	l operation time
Elect	ric Energy time	FAN	l operation time
Elect Thermo-DN Tota	ric Energy time al	Cool	operation time

]

[8. Energy Management Function]

(3) Setting of target values



(4) Peak cut control status

3/3 🔻



OK Cancel

<3> Apportionment mode (base data for apportionment)

Select the base data for apportionment among outdoor units from the following three items. Set the mode on the Web browser for initial setting.

For the setting procedure, see 5.[5]<2> "Setting of apportionment mode for indoor units."

- (1) Capacity save amount ... Default
- (2) Thermo ON time (time of use of refrigerant)
- (3) FAN operation time (working time)

The differences among these apportionment modes are shown in the following table.

	Capacity save amount	Thermo ON time	FAN operation time
Measurement method	Value approximate to amount of refrigerant used by each indoor unit	Time during which refrigerant is being fed into each indoor unit	Operation time of indoor unit
	0	0	\bigtriangleup
Accuracy of apportionment	Since the calculation is based on values approximate to the amounts of refrigerant fed into the indoor units, the power consumption can be calculated with the highest accuracy.	The time during which the cooling thermostat is on or the heating thermostat is on is counted. The time of air blowing (the refrigerant is not used) is not counted.	Since the FAN operation time is counted, the time of air blowing is also counted.

If Mr. Slim air conditioner is used, power can be apportioned based on "Capacity save amount" in the outdoor unit apportionment mode only when the following model of M-NET adapter is used. If another model is used, set the apportionment mode based on "Thermo ON time" or "FAN operation time." M-NET adapter: PAC-SJ10MA, PAC-SJ18MA and PAC-SJ31MA

<4> Selection of apportionment mode when more than one models are connected

The applicable apportionment modes vary depending on the connected models. Select the apportionment mode for each set of AE-200/AE-50 according to the following table.

Note: If an apportionment mode inapplicable to a connected model is selected, the electric energy cannot be calculated correctly. Select an apportionment mode applicable to all connected models.

	CITY MULTI	CITY MULTI	Fauinment	A-control	RAC	/HAC	Free plan	LOSSNAY
apportionment mode	(Including Multi S)	(HVRF series)	PAC	Mr. Slim (simultaneous)	Independent	Multi	Interlocked	Independent
Capacity save amount	0	*1	0	0	-	-	-	-
Thermo ON time	0	0	0	0	-	-	-	-
FAN operation time	0	0	0	0	-	_	-	_

Electric energy	OA Proce	ssing Unit	Air to Water	HWHP (CAHV)	Device connected	Device connected to	Heat storage	Chiller
apportionment mode	Interlocked	Independent	(PWFY)	HWHP (CAHV, CRHV, QAHV)	to DIDO controller	PLC for general equipment	model	Onliner
Capacity save amount	-	0	0	-	-	-	-	-
Thermo ON time	-	0	0	_	_	-	_	-
FAN operation time	0	0	0	-	-	-	-	-

*1: Apportioned based on Thermo-ON time, even when the setting is made to apportion it based on the capacity save amount.

<5> Setting of electricity meter for apportionment

Set the electricity meter for apportionment.

Select an electricity meter on the outdoor unit side.

Set the meter on the Web browser for initial setting.

For the setting procedure, see 5.[5]<3> "Setting of electricity meter for apportionment to indoor units."



Note: The indication of the power supply units is omitted.

When a system includes both the HVRF series and other series of City Multi units, install a separate electricity meter for each series.



<6> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection only of CITY MULTI)

The amount of standby electricity consumed by one outdoor unit for 30 minutes is calculated as a fixed amount, 35 Wh (70Wh for 1 hr).

(The amount is fixed regardless of model, capacity and operating state.)

The amount of standby electricity is distributed according to the indoor unit capacities.

When only CITY MULTI is connected, the amount of standby electricity is calculated as stated below.

[Example] Method of calculating the amount of standby electricity for 30 minutes (An example for 30 minutes is shown because the apportionment calculation is performed every 30 minutes.)



*1: The values are rounded down to one decimal place.

Therefore, the total standby electricity is 34.8 Wh, and there is a difference from the amount before calculation (35 Wh). *2: When the outdoor units are connection type, the amount of standby electricity is 35 Wh per unit. [Example]

When one unit of OC and two units of OS are connected, the amount of standby electricity is: 35 Wh × 3 = 105 Wh.

<7> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection only of CITY MULTI)

When only CITY MULTI is connected, the electric energy for 30 minutes is calculated as stated below. Note: In the case where the capacity save amount has been selected as the apportionment mode

[Example] Method of calculating the electric energy for 30 minutes (An example for 30 minutes is shown because the apportionment calculation is performed every 30 minutes.)



*1: The capacity save amount (100 to 0%) is counted every minute, and the integrated value for 30 minutes is divided by 100. [Example] 1 minute: 100 %, 2 minutes: 0 %, ... 30 minutes: 100 %

(100 + 0 + ... 100) /100 = capacity save amount for 30 minutes

*2: The values are rounded down to one decimal place.

<8> Method of calculating amount of standby electricity (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI and Mr. Slim)

When CITY MULTI and Mr. Slim are connected, the amount of standby electricity for 30 minutes is calculated as stated below. Note: The standby electricity of Mr. Slim is not taken into account.

[Example] Method of calculating the amount of standby electricity for 30 minutes



- *1: The values are rounded down to one decimal place.
- Therefore, the total standby electricity is 34.9 Wh, and there is a difference from the amount before calculation (35 Wh). *2: When the outdoor units are connection type, the amount of standby electricity is 35 Wh per unit. [Example]

When one unit of OC and two units of OS are connected, the amount of standby electricity is: 35 Wh × 3 = 105 Wh.

<9> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection of CITY MULTI and Mr. Slim)

When CITY MULTI and Mr. Slim are connected, the electric energy for 30 minutes is calculated as stated below. Note: In the case where the capacity save amount has been selected as the apportionment mode

[Example] Method of calculating the electric energy for 30 minutes



*1: The values are rounded down to one decimal place.

*2: When two or three Mr. Slim Air Conditioners are connected, if even one of the indoor units is operating, the operation time of the unit will be counted.

<10> Method of calculating electric energy (in the case of connection only of Mr. Slim) (When the outdoor unit and indoor units are powered by the same power supply)

When Mr. Slim is connected and the outdoor unit and indoor units are powered by the same power supply, the electric energy is calculated as stated below.

[Example] Method of calculating the electric energy for 30 minutes



Unit 2 : 42.1 Wh

- *1: The values are rounded down to one decimal place.
- *2: When two or three Mr. Slim Air Conditioners are connected, if even one of the indoor units is operating, the operation time of the unit will be counted.

[3] Initial setting of energy management function

To use the energy management function, it is necessary to set the conditions on the Web browser for initial setting or main unit LCD screen.

Without the initial setting, the graphs of outdoor temperature, electric energy and target values will not be displayed on the energy use status screen or ranking screen.

The conditions cannot be set on the screen of any of AE-200 and AE-50 main units. The conditions for each set of AE-200 and AE-50 must be set individually on each Web browser. Set them on AE-50 without fail.

The energy management function requires the AI controller (PAC-YG63MCA) or AHC for measurement of outdoor temperature and the PI controller (PAC-YG60MCA) for measurement of electric energy. (The AI controller or AHC is required only when the outdoor temperature must be displayed.)

For each set of AE-200 and AE-50, one or more AI controllers or AHCs and one or more PI controllers are required. The power consumption measured by the PI controller(s) connected to each set of AE-200/AE-50 will be apportioned only among the indoor units connected to the same set of AE-200/AE-50. The power consumption cannot be apportioned across some AE-200/AE-50 systems.

The initial setting items are shown below.

- 1. Setting of outdoor temperature measurement unit
- 2. Setting of apportionment mode for indoor units
- 3. Setting of electricity meter for apportionment among indoor units
- 4. Setting of target values
- *1: When the apportioned electricity billing function of AE-200 is used, it is unnecessary to set the apportionment mode and electricity meter for apportionment.

Before performing the initial setting of the energy management function, set the conditions of the AI controllers, AHCs and PI controllers. To set the conditions of the AI controllers and PI controllers, select Functions 1 – Measurement setting on the initial setting screen on the main unit to open the Measurement setting screen, or select Functions 1 – Measurement setting on the Web browser for initial setting to open the Measurement setting screen.

The conditions of AHCs must be set with the Maintenance Tool.

Connect to the temperature

The temperature sensor to be used for the energy management function must be connected to Input 1 or Input 2 of DC power type α 2 (AL2-14MR-D/AL2-24MR-D) of AHC.

If it is connected to another input, the temperature cannot be displayed on the energy management screen.

— Set the conditions of DI/AI 01 and 02 on the I/O Port

Setting screen of the Maintenance Tool.

Digital/Analog: Select Analog.

Not Use/Use: Select Use. Function Name (°C/°F): Select Room Temp (°C/°F) or

Outdoor (°C/°F).

For details, see Chapter 3.18 "Initial Settings and

Monitoring AHC ADAPTER" of the manual for Maintenance Tool for MN Converter & Centralized Controller.

VER / DC M	ITSUBISHI	
	٠	
	Θ	

sensor.

Address	214	10	ange		ttribute	AHC				DuteTim	ø
Connec	tion Setting	1/0 Po	n Se	tting	Sensor	Setting	Operational	Status Settin	0	Operation Setting	R.
DI/Al det	ting Digital/Analog	Not Use/Use	F	Function Name		DO/AO	Setting Digital/Analog	Not Use/Us		Function Name	
DI/AI 01	Analog 🔹	Use	•	Outdoor temp(*	B/° F∓	DO 01	Digital	Use	٠	Heater	-
DI/AI 02	Analog +	Use	•	Outdoor temp(*	67 F+	DO 02	Digital	Use	•	Heater 1	-
DI/AI QS	Analog +	Use	•	Room templ* C	(* F) -	DO 03	Digital	Use		Heater 2	
DI/AI 04	Digital -	Usei	•	Heater 2 error	•	DO 04	Digital	Use	•	Humidifier	
DI/AI 05	Digital +	Uşe	•	Dehumidifier em	ar 💌	DO 05	Digital	Upe	*	Dehumidifier	-
DI/AI 06	Digital -	Use		Other input	•	DO 06	Digital	Lisé		Fan	
DI/AI 07	Digital •	Use	•	Heater 1 error		DO 07	Digital	Use	٠	Fan for heater	
DI/AL OB	Digital *	Use	•	Heateremor		DO 08	Digital	Use		Fan for humidifier	-
DI 09	Digital	Use	-	Pump interlock	-	DO 09	Digital	Use	•	Damper	
DL10	Digital	Use	•	Dehumidifier erm	w v	EO OI	Digital	Use:		Heater	
DE 11	Digital	Use	- 8	Brightness sense	or •	E0 02	Digital	Not Use			
DI 12	Digital	Use	•	Heater error	-	BO 03	Digital	Not Use			
DI 13	Digital	Use	- [Brightness seria	or 🔹	E0 04	Digital	Not Use	٠	1	
DI 14	Digital	Use	•	Key input		AO 01	Analog	Not Use	-	Heater (Linear)	
DI 15	Digital	Use	-	Other Input	+	AO 02	Analog	Not Upe	1	Humidifinr (Linear)	
EI 01	Digital	Not Use			1	Expand N	Abdule Setting				
E 02	Digital	Not Use			1	and a s					
E 08	Digital	Not Use	- 1			01	ione 💿	E	9.6	DA C AO	
E 04	Digital	Max Mau	-11		-						

- The temperature sensor cannot be connected to AC power type α2 (AL2-14MR-A/AL2-24MR-A).
- Before the initial setting of the energy management function, make sure that all units have been started up and correctly connected.

Remarks	 The initial setting of the energy management function can be performed only on the Web browsers for initial setting. (Only the target values can be set on the main unit screens.)
	 One or more AI controllers or AHCs and one or more PI controllers are required for each set of AE-200 and AE-50.
	(The PI controllers and AHCs are required only when the outdoor temperature must be displayed.)
	○ "Energy Management License Pack" is required.

O The electric energy counting PLC cannot be used for the energy management function.

(1) Setting on LCD screen

Ex	Initial Settings Function Neasurement Controller AE288 Minit At Temp Sensor 49-1 Outsi	on1 Function2 Energy Management tsubishi Electric ide temp	27/93/2015	Touch the button on the "Outdoor temperature measurement unit" line.	
E E	AN operation time Th	ermo-ON time Capacit	y save amount		
1.00	Group1	1 EAST	1 -		
2	Entrance 2	47-1 1F		or [cancer].	
3	Entrance 3	47-1 1F		Ext Temp Sensor	
4	Entrance 4	47-1 1F		47-1 Outdoor status	
		Save Sett	ings		47-1 Outdoor status
Touch the butto address in the for apportionme	on of each "Electricity meter ent" column.	Touch or [ca	[OK] ancel].	47-2	
EI	lectricity meter				
	2 MEST 4 NORTH 47-2 ZF 47-4 4F	1 EAST 3 SOUTH 47-1 1F 47-3 3F			OK Cancel

(2) Setting on Web browser screen Energy Management Settings on the Web browser for initial setting to open the energy management setting screen.

DK Cancel

	Function setting 1			
Hitp://192165.11/en/administrator.html	.戶 ← 월 수 X ■ METSUBESHEA	Air Conditions_X	6 € *	
nitial Settings Functions 1	Functions 2 Functions 3	User Settings Utility	A MISARSI	
E-Mail Peak Cut Measure	ment Energy Management S	ettings		
Energy Management Set External TemperatureSensor	Indoor unit operation apportion FAN operation time Thermo-Q	ning mode N time Capacity save amount	-	 Energy Manageme Settings
Addiassee - Concool Laubarante	Indoor unit electricity meter	2 E. 1 IV 2 158504	_	
	Address Group Name	Electricity meter	1000	
	1 Entrance	Address50-1 Electric Meter1	~ 2월	
	2 Lobby(South)	Address50-1 Electric Meter1	•	
	3 Lobby(East)	Address50-1 Electric Meter1	· · · ·	
	4 Lobby(Center)	Address50-1 Electric Meter1	•	
	5 Lobby(West)	Address50-1 Electric Meter1	(x)	
	6 Conference Room A	Address50-2 Electric Meter2		
	7 Conference Room B	Address50-2 Electric Meter2		
	8 Conference Room C	Address50-3 Electric Meter3		
	9 Conterence Room D	Address50-3 Electric Meter3	······	
	10 Conference Room E	Address50-4 Electric Meter4	4. • }	
	Conterence Room F	Address50-4 Electric Meter4		
Refresh		Save Settings		
		Convisitie) 2004-3613 MITSUBISHI ELECTRIC CORPORAT	TION All Rights Reserved	

<1> Setting of outdoor temperature measurement unit

Specify the sensor for the AI controller (PAC-YG63MCA) or AHC which measures the outdoor temperature.

When the outdoor temperature is selected on the energy use status screen, the outdoor temperature measured by the outdoor temperature measurement unit specified on this screen will be displayed in a line graph.

Considerations of energy-saving can be made by comparing the electric energy, FAN operation time and thermo ON time (bar graph) with the outdoor temperature.

If it is unnecessary to display the line graph of outdoor temperature, this setting is unnecessary.



Saving of settings

Select a temperature sensor for measuring the outdoor temperature in External Temperature Sensor.

The pull-down menu shows the temperature sensors connected to the AI controller or AHC. Only one of the temperature sensors can be selected.

Click the Save Settings button to save the settings in AE-200/AE-50.

<2> Setting of apportionment mode for indoor units

Set the apportionment mode for the indoor units. The electric energy measured by the PI controller will be apportioned to the indoor units in the apportionment mode set on this screen, and the power consumption in each block, group or unit address will be displayed graphically on the energy use status screen and ranking screen.

The following three apportionment modes for indoor units are available. Select one of them. The capacity save amount mode is recommended.

- (1) Capacity save amount (default): Usage of capacity of outdoor unit (converted to time)
- (2) Thermo ON time: Time during which indoor unit thermo was on
- (3) FAN operation time: Time during which indoor unit was running

For the details of each mode, see 4.[4]<2> "Apportionment modes" and 4.[4]<3> "Selection of apportionment mode when more than one models are connected."

File Edit View Favorites Tools Help	Mitsuesee Ar Con		
ntial Settings Functions 1	Eunctions 2 Eunctions 3 Us	er Settings Utility	let les
E-Mail Peak Out Mea	surement Energy Management Setting	25	
Energy Management	Settings		 Apportionment mode f indoor units
External TemperatureSensor	Indoor unit operation apportioning	mode	
Address49-1 Outdoor Temperature	. IEAN operation time IThermo-ON time	Capacity save amount	
	Indoor unit electricity mater		
	Address Broup Name	Electricity meter	
	1 Entrance	Address50-1 Electric Meter1 +	
	2 Lobby(South)	Address50-1 Electric Meter1 + =	
	3 Lobby(East)	Address50-1 Electric Meter1 +	
	4 Lobby(Center)	Address50-1 Electric Meter1 -	
	5 Lobby(West)	Address50-1 Electric Meter1 .	
	6 Conference Room A	Address50-2 Electric Meter2 +	
	7 Conterence Room B	Address50-2 Electric Meter2 -	
	8 Conference Room C	Address50-3 Electric Meter3 -	
	9 Conference Room D	Address50-3 Electric Meter3 🔹	
	10 Conference Room E	Address50-4 Electric Meter4 -	
	11 Conference Room F	Address50-4 Electric Meter4 👻 👻	
AD-4		Savo Sottinge	

- Saving of settings

Select one of FAN operation time, Thermo ON time and Capacity save amount in Indoor unit operation apportioning mode. Click the Save Settings button to save the settings in AE-200/AE-50.
<3> Setting of electricity meter for apportionment to indoor units

Specify the electricity meter for measuring the power consumption of the outdoor unit to which the indoor units in the group are connected (refrigerant system).

The power consumption of the outdoor unit measured by the specified electricity meter will be apportioned to the connected indoor units (refrigerant system). Correctly set all indoor units.



Remarks The power consumption of the outdoor unit will be apportioned. The power consumption of the indoor units is not included in the apportionment calculation. When the PI controller gets out of order and is replaced with a new one, the power consumption during replacement may be counted abnormally largely. (Since the integrated value of power consumption of the PI controller is 0 on the counter, the difference from the integrated value on the counter of the previous PI controller is large.) Set an electricity meter for each indoor unit. If any meter is not set for a unit, the apportionment calculation cannot be performed correctly.

• Before operating, make sure that the outdoor unit and electricity meter are correctly connected. If they are connected improperly, the apportionment calculation will not be performed correctly.

Run the indoor units connected to the outdoor unit, and make sure that the power consumption of the outdoor unit is correctly counted on the electricity meter.

File Edit View Favorites Tools Help	,0 - B	a 🗶 🔳 MITSUBISHI Air Cond	Rione_ X	0.00	
nitial Settings Functions 1	Functions 2	Functions 3 Use	er Settings Utility		
E-Mail Peak Cut Mea	surement Ener	y Management Setting:	5		
Energy Management	Settings				
ExternalTemperatureSensor	Indoor unit op	eration apportioning r	node	-	
Address49-1 Outdoor Temperature	· EAN operation	time Thermo-ON time	Capacity save amount		 Electricity meter
	Indoor unit ele	Indoor unit electricity meter			for apportionme
	Address	Group Name	Electricity meter	10000	
	1 Entranc	e	Address50-1 Electric Meter1	1	
	2 Lobby(S	outh)	Address50-1 Electric Meter1	• =	
	3 Lobby(B	ast)	Address50-1 Electric Meter1		
	4 Lobby(0	Center)	Address50-1 Electric Meter1		
	5 Lobby(V	Vest)	Address50-1 Electric Meter1		
	6 Confere	nce Room A	Address50-2 Electric Meter2	1.0	
	7 Confere	nce Room B	Address50-2 Electric Meter2		
	8 Confere	nce Room C	Address50-3 Electric Meter3		
	9 Confere	nce Room D	Address50-3 Electric Meter3		
	10 Confere	nce Room E	Address50-4 Electric Meter4		
	11 Confere	nce Room F	Address50-4 Electric Meter4		
Refresh	1.00		Save Settings		
		Copyright	HICI 2004-2015 MITSUBION ELECTRIC CORPORAT	NON Atl Rights Reserved	
					 Saving of setting

In Electricity meter, select the electricity meter to be used to measure the power consumption of the indoor units in each group.

The pull-down menu will show [Address + address of PI controller + "-" + electricity meter number + electricity meter name].

Click the Save Settings button to save the settings in AE-200/AE-50.

Remarks	○ Some group names may not be displayed completely depending on the length.
	○ If a group name has not been registered, [Group + group number] will be displayed.
	Only the electricity meters whose measurement unit has been set to kWh on the measurement setting screen can be selected.
	O Groups with LOSSNAY or DIDO controller only are not displayed (they are out of the scope of apportionment calculation).

[4] Energy use status

On the energy use status screen, the conditions relating to energy management, such as power consumption, operation time and outdoor temperature, are graphically displayed. The energy use status of the target indoor units can be checked in detail by displaying the data of each group, block, energy management block(EM block) or unit address on the specified date. In addition, it is possible to display the energy use status of other indoor units on the screen for comparison.

The energy use status every hour, day or month can be displayed graphically to visualize the energy-saving status. It is possible to make an energy-saving plan according to the transition of power consumption and room temperature with time. If the target values are set, energy-saving measures can be taken timely by comparing the current energy use status with the target value.

Note: For some display items, "Energy Management License Pack" is required.

For details, see 4.[6]<5> "Display range and items which can be displayed in graphs."

The data will be saved in each set of AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50. The data on AE-50/EW-50 will not be saved in AE-200. In each of AE-200 or AE-50 or EW-50, the data only on the units connected to M-NET of the controller will be saved. When the screen is displayed on AE-200, it will receive the data from AE-50/EW-50 and display the data. The retention periods of the data are shown below.

Period of display	Data retention period
Day	For last 24 months *
Month	For last 24 months *
Year	For last 2 years

* The data for 25 months are retained internally. However, the data for 24 months can be displayed in graphs.

The data is saved in an SD card (= a nonvolatile memory: data will not be deleted even if power is turned off from AE-200/AE-50/EW-50) every hour on the 15 minute.

To display the graphs, the initial setting is required. The initial setting can be performed on the LCD or the energy management screen of the Web browser for initial setting.

On the main unit screen of AE-200, the energy use status of connected AE-50/EW-50 can be displayed by switching the display mode.

On the main unit screen of AE-50, the energy use status only of AE-50 can be displayed.

On the Web browser, the status of each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 can be displayed. On the browser of each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50, the status of the units connected to M-NET of the controller can be displayed.

The units under more than one set of AE-200 can be displayed on the Integrated Centralized Control Web.

Remarks O The initial setting must be performed on the Web browsers for initial setting.

In case of failure of AE-200/AE-50, it is recommended to periodically save the data on the energy use status screen on each Web browser in a file in CSV format with the download function or from the CSV output screen.
For details, and 4 [10] "Data Downloading" and 4 [11] "CSV Output,"

For details, see 4.[10] "Data Downloading" and 4.[11] "CSV Output."

<1> Differences in functions between LCD and Integrated Centralized Control Web

The differences in energy management functions between LCD and Integrated Centralized Control Web are shown below.

Item	LCD	Integrated Centralized Control Web
Display of bar graphs	One item common to the display target and comparison target is displayed.	The item to be displayed can be selected for each of the display target and comparison target.
Display of line graphs	Two items in the same unit can be selected for the display target and comparison target. * However, only in the case of air conditioners Two items for each of the display target and comparison target are displayed, and up to 4 line graphs are displayed.	The item to be displayed is selected for each of the display target and comparison target. Therefore, up to 2 line graphs are displayed.
Data display interval	60 minutes * When the screen is opened or the button is manually pressed, the most recent data at the time will be displayed (the data will be updated at 15 minutes).	30 minutes * Automatic updating (The non-volatile most recent data will be displayed 10 minutes and 40 minutes after the Web screen is started. The data will be updated at 15 minutes.)

<2> Contents displayed on screens

Main unit screen



Item		Details	Remarks
	Upper stage	The name of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 is displayed.	 If AE-50 has been selected when AE-50/EW-50 was connected, the name of AE-50/EW-50 is displayed.
Display larger	Lower stage	The block name, group name or address number of the displayed bar graph or line graph is displayed.	
Upper sta		The name of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 is displayed.	 If AE-50 has been selected when AE-50 was connected, the name of AE-50 is displayed.
Comparison target	Lower stage	The block name, group name or address number of the bar graph or line graph displayed for comparison is displayed.	• This graph can be displayed to compare the displayed data with the data on another indoor unit.
Display item in bar graph	The item displayed in a bar graph is displayed.		
Display item in line graph	The item displayed in a line graph is displayed.		
Date of displayed data	The date of displayed data is displayed.		
Date of compared data	The date of data displayed for comparison is displayed.		• The displayed data can be compared with the previous data by specifying the same block, group or address as that of the Display target for the Comparison target and changing the date of data to be compared.

[8. Energy Management Function]

Item	Details	Remarks
Display switching button	To display a graph, first touch this button. Then, the screen for setting the contents of graph will appear. The graph will be displayed according to the contents set on the display item setting screen.	• For details, see 4.[6]<5> "Display range and items which can be displayed in graphs."
Unit/scale of bar graph	The unit and scale of the bar graph are displayed.	 The unit appropriate to the Display item is displayed. The scale is automatically adjusted according to the maximum value of the data.
Unit/scale of line graph	The unit and scale of the line graph are displayed.	 The unit appropriate to the Display item is displayed. The scale is automatically adjusted according to the data range. The temperature is displayed in the range for 25°C in 5°C steps. When the data are not included in the range for 25°C, the range will be automatically increased. (The humidity is displayed in the range for 50% in 10% steps.)
Bar graph	The bar graph is displayed.	• For the display format, see 4.[6]<4> "Graph display
Line graph	The line graph is displayed.	 When any Comparison target has not been selected, only the data on the selected Display target will be displayed in a graph. If a time period during which there is no data is caused by changing the present time setting, the data during the period will not be displayed. If time is duplicated by changing the present time setting, the last data will be displayed in a graph as the data at the duplicated time.
Target value	The target value graph is displayed.	 This graph is displayed only when the Display range is Block and the Date range is Month or Year. For the display format, see 4.[6]<4> "Graph display formats."
Hour Day Month	The time axis is displayed according to the date range.	 When the Date range is Day, the scale is graduated in hour, but the time is displayed in intervals of 3 hours. The date is displayed in the format specified on the unit information screen.
CSV output	Click Download, and the displayed measurement data will be output in CSV format.	For details, see <9> "CSV output on energy use status screen."
Update	The graphs are updated to the most current state.	Retained data are updated once an hour.

Web browser screen



Item	Details	Remarks
Display target	The display target displayed in graph is displayed.	
Date of displayed data	The date of the display target displayed in graph is displayed.	• The date will be displayed in the format specified on the basic system setting screen on the Web browser for initial setting.
Comparison target	The comparison target displayed in graph is displayed.	
Date of compared data	The date of the comparison target displayed in graph is displayed.	• The date will be displayed in the format specified on the basic system setting screen on the Web browser for initial setting.
Display item(line)	The item of the displayed line graph is displayed. Clicking will hide the graph.	 For the display format, see 8.[4]<4> "Graph display formats." If a time period during which there is no data is caused by changing the present time setting, the
Display item(bar)	The item of the displayed bar graph is displayed. Clicking will hide the graph.	data during the period will not be displayed. If time is duplicated by changing the present time setting, the last data will be displayed in a graph as the data at the duplicated time.
Bar graph	The data of the display target (navy blue) and the data of the comparison target (light blue) are displayed in bar graphs. When the target electric energy has been set, the graph will turn orange if the target value is exceeded (only the display target).	 The data of the display target is displayed in front. The line graph is displayed in front. When the unit of the item selected for the display target is different from that for the comparison target a curve displayed or the displayed of the displayeed of th
Line graph	The data of the display target (orange) and the data of the comparison target (blue) are displayed in line graphs. When AI controller has been selected and the upper and lower limit alarms have been set, a red line graph will be displayed.	 When the memory exceeds 1,000, 1,000,000 and 1,000,000,000, the unit will change to k, M and G, respectively.
Detail view	The graph data at the mouse cursor position is displayed.	When a tablet is used, this view is not displayed.
Download	Click Download, and the displayed measurement data will be output in CSV format.	For details, see <9> "CSV output on energy use status screen."

<3> Items which can be displayed in graphs

Two kinds of graphs, bar graph and line graph, can be displayed on the energy use status screen. One item of bar graph and two items of line graphs can be simultaneously displayed. The following table shows the items which can be displayed in each graph.

Type of graph	Display target	Display item	Remarks
		Target values	 The target electric energy automatically calculated from the annual total power consumption, ratio of power consumption in each month and ratio of power consumption on each day of the week set on the target setting screen is displayed. Since the target values are determined for each block, the values are displayed only when the display range is Block. Also the future target values can be displayed. When target values are changed, the target value graph in the past will be unchanged, but the graphs on and after this day will be displayed with the new target values.
Bar graph	Indoor unit	Electric energy	 The power consumption of an outdoor unit is apportioned to the indoor units, and the obtained electric energy is displayed. The power consumption of the indoor unit is not displayed. Only the electric energy measured by the PI controller (PAC-YG60MCA) is displayed. The electric energy consumed by an outdoor unit is measured by the PI controller and apportioned based on the air conditioner usage of indoor units, and the obtained results are displayed. To display the graph of electric energy, it is necessary to preliminarily set the electricity meter (name of PI controller electricity meter) for each unit on the energy management setting screen of the Web browser for initial setting. The air conditioner usage of indoor units is calculated based on the indoor unit apportionment mode which has been set on the energy management setting screen of the Web browser for initial setting. The capacity save amount (default) (2) Thermo ON time (3) FAN operation time (working time) For the details of each mode, see 4.[4]<2> "Apportionment modes." The power consumption is calculated from the capacities of the indoor unit is automatically obtained from the indoor unit default) (2) Thermo ON time (so feach indoor unit is unnecessary to set the capacity of each indoor unit is unnecessary to set the capacities on AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. The power consumption includes the standby electricity of each indoor unit. For details, see 4.[4]<5> "Method of calculating standby electricity." Insignificant power consumption may be displayed on the graph although no indoor units are used. This is because the standby electricity is apportioned to the units, and there is no problem. The electric energy consumed by LOSSNAY cannot be displayed.
		FAN operation time	 Time during which the indoor unit is running AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 obtains the operating state of the indoor unit (through M-NET) and counts the time every minute. When the display range is Group, the data on the unit having the lowest number in the group is displayed. The data on LOSSNAY can be displayed.
		Thermo ON time (total)	 Time during which the indoor unit is in the thermo ON state. AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 obtains the thermo ON state from the indoor unit (through M-NET) and counts the time every minute. When the display range is Group, the data on the unit having the lowest number in the group is displayed. The data on LOSSNAY cannot be displayed.

Type of graph	Display target	Display item	Remarks
Bar graph		Thermo ON time (cooling)	 Time during which the indoor unit is in the thermo ON state in the cooling mode. AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 obtains the thermo ON state and mode from the indoor unit (through M-NET) and counts the time every minute. When the display range is Group, the data on the unit having the lowest number in the group is displayed. The data on LOSSNAY cannot be displayed.
	Indoor unit	Thermo ON time (heating)	 Time during which the indoor unit is in the thermo ON state in the heating mode. AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 obtains the thermo ON state and mode from the indoor unit (through M-NET) and counts the time every minute. When the display range is Group, the data on the unit having the lowest number in the group is displayed. The data on LOSSNAY cannot be displayed.
	PI controller (PAC-YG60MCA)	Measurements	 Measurements (electric energy, quantity of water and quantity of heat) measured by the PI controller (PACYG60MCA) The measurements can be displayed only for the channels for which the units have been set to kWh, m³ and MJ on the measurement setting screen.
Line graph	_	Outdoor temperature	 The temperature measured by the AI controller or AHC which has been specified as the outdoor temperature measurement unit on the energy management setting screen of the Web browser for initial setting. It is necessary to preliminarily set on the energy management setting screen of the Web browser for initial setting. One sensor (connected to the channel of AI controller or AHC) can be specified for each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. To display the outdoor temperature graph for each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50, it is necessary to measure the outdoor temperature with the AI controller or AHC of each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. The outdoor temperature can be displayed in a graph regardless of the display target.
	Indoor unit	Cooling temperature setting	 The temperature setting in the cooling mode is displayed. When the unit is running in the heating mode, the marker and line graph are not displayed. In the case of a model on which the cooling and heating temperatures in the automatic mode can be individually set, the cooling temperature setting is constantly displayed. The data on LOSSNAY cannot be displayed.
		Heating temperature setting	 The temperature setting in the heating mode is displayed. When the unit is running in the heating mode, the marker and line graph are not displayed. In the case of a model on which the cooling and heating temperatures in the automatic mode can be individually set, the heating temperature setting is constantly displayed. The data on LOSSNAY cannot be displayed.
		Indoor temperature	 The indoor temperature (suction temperature) is obtained from the indoor unit (through M-NET) and displayed. The data on LOSSNAY cannot be displayed.
	Al controller	Temperature	The temperature is displayed.
	(PAC-YG63MCA)	Humidity	The humidity is displayed.
	AHC	Temperature	The temperature is displayed

<4> Data for graphs

The values displayed in bar graph and line graph vary depending on the date range.

Select the date range from Day, Month and Year.

When Day is selected, the graph from 0:00 to 24:00 on the day will be displayed on an hourly basis.

When Month is selected, the graph from the 1st to the 31st in the month will be displayed on a daily basis.

When Year is selected, the graph from January to December in the year will be displayed on a monthly basis.

The data only during the period during which power was supplied to AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 are displayed in graphs. The data during the period during which power was not supplied to AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 are not displayed.

The values displayed in each mode are shown below.

When the date range is Day





When the date range is Month





[8. Energy Management Function]

When the date range is Year Bar graph, The target electric energy in one day is displayed. The target electric energy automatically calculated frome the ratio of power target value consumption on each day is displayed. ۲ſ 40000 -86 30 • • • 24000 25 16000 8000 15 Feb. Mar. May. Dec Line graph The average value in one month is displayed. The displayed value for this month is the average of the values in one month including the average value on this day on which the graph was displayed. (The average value on this day is the average of the instantaneous values on the day including the instantaneous value on the hour just before the time when the graph was displayed.) The sum of the daily integrated values in one month is displayed. Bar graph The displayed value for this month is the sum of integrated values in the month including

the integrated value on this day on which the graph was displayed.



<5> Graph display formats

The bar and line graph display formats and colors are shown below.

The bar graph of the comparison target is displayed on the right side of the graph of the display target. When the comparison target has not been selected, its bar graph is not displayed.

The line graph of the comparison target is displayed on the same horizontal axis as that of the display target. When the line graph of the comparison target overlaps with that of the display target, the graph of the display target comes to the front. The target value is displayed when the display range is Block and the display item is Electric energy. The upper and lower

The target value is displayed when the display range is Block and the display item is Electric energy. The upper and lower limit values are displayed when the display target is the AI controller (PAC-YG63MCA) and the upper and lower limit values have been set.

Note: For the AHC, the upper and lower limit values cannot be set.

Main unit screen

Graph t	type	Display target	Comparison target	Target value	Upper and lower limit values
В	3ar graph	(Yellow) When the target value is exceeded, the part over the target value is displayed in orange.) (Orange)	(Blue)	(Gray frame and red triangle on top)	
	ine graph	(Red,Orange)	(Green,Blue)		(Orange)

Web browser screen

Graph type	Display target	Comparison target	Target value	Upper and lower limit values
Bar graph	(Deep blue) When the target value is exceeded, also the part over the target value is displayed in the same color. (Pink)	(Light blue)	(Gray frame and Deep blue traiangle on top)	
Line graph	(Orange)	(Blue)		(Red)

If once the temperature or humidity exceeds the upper or lower limit value after the graph of temperature or humidity measured by the AI controller (PAC-YG63MCA) is displayed, the whole background of the graph above the upper limit or under the lower limit will be displayed in red on the main unit screen. Even if the temperature or humidity returns to the range between the upper and lower limit values, the background will be kept in red.

Note: For the AHC, the upper and lower limit values cannot be set.



<6> Display range and items which can be displayed in graphs

Select the display range from Address, Group and Block. Some items cannot be displayed in graphs depending on the display range. After the display range is selected, the selection buttons for the items which cannot be displayed will not be displayed on the screen.

The items which can be displayed in graphs in each range are shown below.

Table Display range and items which can be displayed in graphs	
--	--

				0 1	O: Displayed -	: Not displayed	
Tupo of graph	Display target	Diaplay itom	Display range				
Type of graph Display targe		Display item	Address	Group	Block	EM Block	
		Target value (kWh)	-	-	O *1	O *1	
		Electric energy (kWh)	O *1	O *1	O *1	O *1	
	Indoor unit	FAN operation time (min)	O *1	O *1	-	-	
Bar graph		Thermo ON time (total) (min)	O *1	O *1	-	-	
		Thermo ON time (cooling) (min)	O *1	O *1	-	-	
		Thermo ON time (heating) (min)	O *1	O *1	-	-	
	PI controller (PAC-YG60MCA)	Measurements (kWh, m ³ , MJ)	O *2	_	_	-	
	-	Outdoor temperature (°C) (°F)	0	0	0	-	
		Cooling temperature setting (°C) (°F)	O *1	O *1	-	-	
	Indoor unit	Heating temperature setting (°C) (°F)	O *1	O *1	-	-	
Line graph		Indoor temperature (°C) (°F)	O *1	O *1	-	-	
	AI controller	Temperature (°C) (°F)	O *2	-	-	-	
	(PAC-YG60MCA) *3	Humidity (%)	O *2	_	-	-	
	AHC *3	Temperature (°C) (°F)	O *1	_	-	-	

*1: "Energy Management License Pack" is required.

*2: If "Energy Management License Pack" has not been registered, only Day is available for selection as a Date range. To select Month or Year, "Energy Management License Pack" is required.

For the setting procedure, see 4.[5]<1> "Setting of outdoor temperature measurement unit."

^{*3:} When the temperature sensor of the AI controller or AHC is set to measure the outdoor temperature (°C) (°F), the line graph will be displayed in any display range of Address, Group and Block.

<7> Procedure for displaying graphs

Main unit screen

To display graphs on the main unit screen, touch the Display switching button on the energy use status screen.

-	Dpera	or/ tion Mgmt	Schedule Settings	▶ 2	8/10/2015 15:22	2	
-		Energy Use Sta	tus	Ranking			
	Display target Comparison target	AE200 Group1 AE200 Group29		Date Date	08/2015 08/2015	\square	Display switching button
		Electric Energy Room Temp.		Display	switchi	ng	
КМЛ 50 40 - 30 - 20 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 1 - - - - - - - - - -	Line graph Room Temp.						
	CSV outpu	ut		Upd	ate		

The display item setting screen will appear. Set the display item, touch the OK button, and the graphs will be displayed.

Display item settings			
Date Month	Display range		Group
🖶 Display target			
Controller AE200			
Group1		Date	08/2015
🖶 Comparison target			
Controller AE200			
Group29		Date	08/2015
📙 Bar graph	🖁 Line g	raph	
Electric Energy		Room T	emp.
	[OK	Cancel

	Table Display item setting	screen
Item	Details	Remarks
Date range	Select Day, Month or Year.	 When Day is selected, the hourly data from 0:00 to 24:00 on the day will be displayed in graphs. When Month is selected, the daily data from the 1st to 31st in the month will be displayed in graphs. When Year is selected, the monthly data from January to December in the year will be displayed in graphs
Display range	Select the range of data to be displayed from EN Block, Block, Group and Address.	Λ
Display target Display ta	To display the data on AE-200, select AE200. To display the data on each set of AE-50/EW-50, select Exp1, Exp2, Exp3 or Exp4. Select the EM Block name, block name, group name or address number of the display target. • When Display range is EM Block: Image: Display target - EM Block Image: Display target - Block	EM Block1 EM Block3 Block3 OK Cance1 displayed. mer. The blocks will be shown in the first line in the left column, in the second line in the left column, in the second line in the left column, in the second line in the second line in the left column, in the second line in the left column is the second line in the left column. Image: Second line in the left column is the second line in the left column. Image: Second line in the left column. Block1 Block5 Block5 Block5 Block9 OK Cance1

	Table Display item setting screen (continued)														
lte	m	Details				Remarks									
		Select the El	1 block r ess num	name, blo ober of th	ock name, ne displav i	group									
		When Display range is Group:							-						
					·										
		Display	targe	et - Gr	roup										
				_			_	_		_	_	_			
		Air-	condit	ioner 🤉	group					AE2	00				
		Gro	up1				Gro	up2	_	_	_] [
		Gro	up3				Gro	up4				וו			
		Gro	up5				Gro	up6							
		Gro	up7				Gro	up8					7		
									OK	[ancel			
								-							
		The group na	me list v mes will	vill be dis	splayed. vn in the fil	st line i	in the le	eft colur	mn in th	ne first	line in	the riah	nt colun	nn in the	- -
Display target	Display target	second line in	the left	column,	in the sec	ond line	e in the	right co	olumn, i	n the t	hird line	e in the	left col	umn,	in
		For groups w	hose na	mes have	e not been	registe	ered, [G	Group +	group r	numbe	r] will b	e displa	iyed.		
		The groups of DIDO controller will not be displayed.													
		When Display range is Address													
		Displa	y targ	let - #	Address										
		PI						AE	200						
		1	2	3	4 5	6	7	8	9	10					
		11	12	13	14 15	16	17	18	19	20	n				
		21	22	23	24 25	26	27	28	29	30					
		31	32	33	34 35	36	37	38	39	40	Ш				
		41	42	43	44 45	46	47	48	49	50					
								0	(Cance	ı			
		The address	list will b	e display	yed.										

		Table Display item setting screen (continued)	
lte	em	Details	Remarks
		Specify the date of the data to be displayed in graphs	
		giapris.	
		When Date range is Year	
		Year	
		2013 2014 2015	
		When Date range is Month	
		Nonth	
		MUITTI	
		2015	
		2013	
		lan Ech Mar	
Display target	Date	Ann Han Inn	
		Apr. May Jun.	
		Jul. Aug. Sep.	
		Oct. Nov. Dec.	
		OK Cancel	
		When Date range is Day	
		Date	
		butt	
		2015	
		Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat	
		1 2 3	
		4 5 6 7 8 9 10	
		11 12 13 14 15 16 17	
		18 19 29 21 22 23 24	
		25 26 27 28 29 30 31	
		OK Cance I	

	Table Display item setting screen (continued)						
Item		Details	Remarks				
	Device	To display the data on AE-200, select AE200. To display the data on each set of AE-50/EW-50, select Exp1, Exp2, Exp3 or Exp4. (The screen is the same as that for the display target.)					
Comparison target	Comparison target	Select the block name, group name or address of the comparison target. (The screen is the same as that for the display target.)	• Only the Display range (EM block, block, group or address) selected for the display target can be selected.				
	Date	Specify the date of the data to be displayed in graph. (The screen is the same as that for the display target.)					

	Table Display item setting screen (continued)						
Item	Details Remarks						
	 Only one item can be selected from the bar graph Select the item to be displayed in a bar graph. Only one item can be selected from the bar graph field. The item to be displayed in a line graph can be selected at the same time. 						
	To display the data on indoor units						
	Display item settings						
	Bar graph						
	Thermo-ON time						
	Total Cool Heat						
	Outdoor Temp. Room Temp.						
	Set Temp. for cool Set Temp. for heat						
	OK Cancel						
Bar graph	The display item buttons, Electric Energy, FAN operation time and Thermo-ON time Total, Cool and Heat, will be displayed. The buttons of the items which cannot be displayed for the selected display range will not be displayed. When Display range for LOSSNAY is Group or Address, only the FAN operation time button will be displayed.						
	 To display the data on PI controller (PAC-YG60MCA) 						
	Display item settings						
	Bar graph						
	Electric Energy 1 Electric Energy 2						
	Electric Energy 3 Electric Energy 4						
	Outdoor Temp.						
	OK Cance I						
	The display item buttons of the names of the meters connected to the PI controller will be displayed. The names have been set on the measurement setting screen.						
	quantity 4 and Heat quantity 1 to Heat quantity 4 will be displayed when the meter unit is kWh, m ³ and MJ, respectively.						

	Table Display item setting screen (continued)
Item	Details	Remarks
	Select the item to be displayed in a line graph.	 Only one item can be selected from the line graph field. The item to be displayed in a bar graph can be selected at the same time.
	• To display the data on indoor units	
	Display item settings	
	📙 Bar graph	
	Electric Energy	FAN operation time
	Thermo-ON time	Hest
	🚦 Line graph	
	Outdoor Temp.	Room Temp.
	Set Temp. for cool	Set Temp. for heat
Line graph	The display item buttons, Outdoor Temp., Room Ter be displayed. Two items can be selected simultaned displayed for the selected Display range will not be only when an outdoor temperature measurement ur screen. For LOSSNAY, only the Outdoor Temp. button will b	np., Set Temp. for cool and Set Temp. for heat, will ously. The buttons of the items which cannot be displayed. The Outdoor Temp. button will be displayed hit has been set on the energy management setting be displayed.
	To display the data on AI controller (PAC-YG63M0	CA) or AHC
	🖁 Line graph	
	Outdoor Temp.	
	Temperature 1	Humidity 2
		OK Cancel
	The Outdoor Temp. button and the display item butt controller or AHC will be displayed. The names have The Outdoor Temp. button will be displayed only wh	cons of the names of the sensors connected to the Al e been set on the measurement setting screen. ien an outdoor temperature measurement unit has been
OK button	Touch the OK button, and the graphs will be display	ved

Web browser screen

To display the graphs on the Web browser screen, press the Edit button on the energy use status screen to display the display target selection screen.



After the display target selection screen appears, select the display target, bar graph item and line graph item of the display target, comparison target and bar graph item and line graph item of the comparison target.



	Table Web browser screen					
Item	Details	Remarks				
Display range of displayed target /Display range of comparison target	Select the range of data to be displayed from Energy mgmt block, Block, Group and Address.	 It is possible to set different display ranges for the display target and comparison target. 				
Display target /Comparison target	Select the energy management block name, block name, group name or address number of the display target or comparison target.	 When Display range is Energy mgmt block The Energy management block name list will be displayed. For EM blocks whose names have not been registered, [EM Block + EM block number] will be displayed. If [] is selected, the screen will return to the state with no target selected. When Display range is Block The block name list will be displayed. "All blocks" will be displayed in the uppermost line. "Unregistered block" will be displayed in the lowermost line. For blocks whose names have not been registered, [Block + block number] will be displayed. The blocks of DIDO controller will not be displayed. When Display range is Group. The group name list will be displayed. When Display range is Address. The groups of DIDO controller will not be displayed. When Display range is Address. The address list will be displayed. If "Same as display target" is checked, the same settings as those for the display target will be made. 				
Date of displayed data /Date of comparison data	Specify the date of the data to be displayed in graphs. Select one of year, month and day, and select the date of the data to be displayed. Date selection	 Only the same unit can be selected for the display target and comparison target. If "Same as display target" is checked, the same date as that of the display target will be set. 				

	Table Web browser screen (continued)						
Item	Details	Re	emarks				
	 One it target Select the bar graph item and line graph item. The set target 	 One item can be selected for each of the display target and comparison target for each of the bar graph and line graph. The selectable items vary depending on the selected target and display range. 					
	 To display the data on indoor units When Group or Address has been selected, the following item 	ns can be selected	1.				
	Bar graph Line graph						
	Fan operation time Thermo-ON time Total Thermo-ON time Cool Thermo-ON time Heat						
	When Block or Energy mgmt block has been selected, only E selected.	lectric Energy and	Outdoor Temp can be				
	Outdoor Temp. Room Temp. Set Temp. (Cool) S	Set Temp. (Heat)					
	Electric Energy FAN operation time Thermo-ON time	thermo-ON time	Thermo-ON time				
	(Total)	(Cool)	(Heat)				
Display item(line)of displayed target /Display item(line)of	To display the data on LOSSNAY units When Group or Address has been selected, the following item Bar graph Line graph Fan operation time Outdoor Temp. To display the data on PL controller (PAC_YG60MCA)	ns can be selected	1.				
comparison target	10 display the data of P1 controller (PAC-1 GoomCA)						
	Meter 1 *1 Meter 2 *1 Meter 3 *1 Meter 4 *1 Meter 4 *1						
	 *1:The display item buttons of the names of the meters connected to the PI controller will be displayed. The names have been set on the measurement setting screen. If the names have not been registered, Electric Energy 1 to Electric Energy 4, Water quantity 1 to Water quantity 4 and Heat quantity 1 to Heat quantity 4 will be displayed when the meter unit is kWh, m³ and MJ, respectively. 						
	Outdoor Temp.						
	Electric Energy	Electric Energy					
	• To display the data on AI controller (PAC-YG63MCA) or AHC						
	Bar graphLine graph-Outdoor Temp. Measurement 1 *2 Measurement 2 *2						
	*2:The display item buttons of the names of the sensors of be displayed. The names have been set on the measurem	connected to the ent setting screen	AI controller or AHC will				
OK button	Touch the OK button, and the graphs will be displayed.						

<8> Display updating

The main unit screen will not be automatically updated. The screen will be updated by pressing the Update button, pressing the OK button on the display switch screen or reopening the energy use status screen. The Integrated Centralized Control Web screen will be updated every 30 minutes while the energy use status screen is open (at 10 minutes and 40 minutes after the Web screen is started).

However, since the data for every one hour is displayed, the data will be updated once an hour (at 15 minutes).

Also when the date range is Month or Year, the graphs plotted with the data obtained for every one hour will be displayed every hour on the hour.



<9> CSV output on energy use status screen <9-1>Output from LCD

To output the data in CSV format from the LCD, touch [CSV output] on the energy use status screen, and the displayed measurement data will be output to USB memory in CSV format.

The data will be output in the following format with the following name according to the selected date range.

File name

[When a comparison target has been selected in Comparison target]

Date range: Day

EM_DailyTrend_(yyyy)-(mm)-(dd)_(display target)_(YYYY)-(MM)-(DD)_(comparison target)_(type of bar graph)_(type of line graph1)_(type of line graph2).csv

Date range: Month

EM_MonthlyTrend_(yyyy)-(mm)_(display target)_(YYYY)-(MM)_(comparison target)_(type of bar graph)_(type of line graph1)_(type of line graph2).csv

Date range: Year

EM_AnnualTrend_(yyyy)_(display target)_(YYYY)_(comparison target)_(type of bar graph)_(type of line graph1)_(type of line graph2).csv

[When a comparison target has not been selected in Comparison target]

Date range: Day

EM_DailyTrend_(yyyy)-(mm)-(dd)_(display target)_(type of bar graph)_(type of line graph1)_(type of line graph2).csv Date range: Month

EM_MonthlyTrend_(yyyy)-(mm)_(display target)_(type of bar graph)_(type of line graph1)_(type of line graph2).csv Date range: Year

EM_AnnualTrend_(yyyy)_(display target)_(type of bar graph)_(type of line graph1)_(type of line graph2).csv

Contents of file name

Contents of file name	Format				
(уууу)	Year specified in Date of dis	splayed data			
(mm)	Month specified in Date of c	displayed data			
(dd)	Day specified in Date of dis	Day specified in Date of displayed data			
	Address	AE number(1 to 4) +"-" + "A" + M-NET address (000 to 250) + "_" + (In the case of indoor unit) "00" (In the case of PI controller, AI controller or AHC) meter No., sensor No. (00 to 04) * No M-NET address in the case of built-in meter * To output the data in AE-200, the AE number field must be left blank. If the field is blank, "-" after the blank will be hidden.			
(display target)	Group	AE number(1 to 4 or blank) + "-" + "G" + group No. (001 to 050) + "_" + "00" *To output the data in AE-200, the AE number field must be left blank. If the field is blank, "-" after the blank will be hidden.			
	Block	AE number(1 to 4 or blank) + "-" + "B" + block No. (000,001 to 050 or 999 *1) + "_" + "00" *To output the data in AE-200, the AE number field must be left blank. If the field is blank, "-" after the blank will be hidden.			
	Energy management block	"E" + Energy management block No.(001 to 200 or 999 ^{*1}) + "_" + "00"			
(YYYY)	Year specified in Date of compared data				
(MM)	Month specified in Date of c	compared data			
(DD)	Day specified in Date of cor	mpared data			
(comparison target)	Address	AE number(1 to 4) +"-" + "A" + M-NET address (000 to 250) + "" + (In the case of indoor unit) "00" (In the case of PI controller, AI controller or AHC) meter No., sensor No. (00 to 04) * No M-NET address in the case of built-in meter *To output the data in AE-200, the AE number field must be left blank. If the field is blank, "-" after the blank will be hidden.			
	Group	AE number(1 to 4 or blank) + "-" + "G" + group No. (001 to 050) + "_" + "00" *To output the data in AE-200, the AE number field must be left blank. If the field is blank, "-" after the blank will be hidden.			
	Block	AE number(1 to 4 or blank) + "-" + "B" + block No. (000,001 to 050 or 999 *1) + "_" + "00" *To output the data in AE-200, the AE number field must be left blank. If the field is blank, "-" after the blank will be hidden.			
	Energy management block	"E" + Energy management block No.(001 to 200 or 999*1) + "_" + "00"			

*1: "B000" = Group in which no blocks have been registered, "B999" = Total of all blocks, "E999" = Total of all energy management blocks

[8. Energy Management Function]

Contents of file name	Format				
	B01: Electric energy (indoor unit)				
	B02: FAN operation time				
	B03: Thermo ON time (total)				
	B04: Thermo ON time (cooling)				
(type of bar graph)	B05: Thermo ON time (heating)				
	B06: Electric energy on PI controller and built-in meter				
	B08: Quantity of water on PI controller and built-in meter				
	B09: Quantity of heat on PI controller and built-in meter				
	B00: No selection				
	L00: No selection				
	L01: Temperature setting (cooling)				
	L02: Temperature setting (heating)				
(type of line graph)	L03: Indoor temperature				
(type of life graph)	L04: AI controller temperature				
	L05: AHC temperature				
	L06: Outdoor temperature				
	L08: AI controller humidity				

File format

Line	Item	Date range	Format				
		Day	401				
1st line	Classification of file	Month	402				
		Year	403				
		Day	yyyy/mm/dd:YYYY/MM/DD ^{*1}				
2nd line	Date	Month	yyyy/mm:YY	'YY/MM *1			
		Year	уууу:ҮҮҮҮ				
			Address	"Address" + No.(compari * In the case "address No * In the case 4)."	address No. (display target)/"Address" + address son target) e of PI controller, AI controller or AHC, the address number is + meter No. or sensor No. (1 to 4)." e of built-in meter, the address number is "built-in meter - (1 to		
	langer		Group	Group name (display target)/group name (comparison target) *3			
			Block	Block name (display target)/block name (comparison target) *3			
			Energy management block	Energy management block name (display target)/ energy management block name (comparison target) *3			
		Day	"Time"		"Address" + address No. (display target) (bar) + "-" + display item (bar), "Address" + address No. (comparison target)(bar) + "-" + display item (bar), "Address" + address No. (display target) (line) + "-" + display item 1(line), "Address" + address No. (comparison target) (line) + "-" + display item 1(line), "Address" + address No. (display target) (line) + "-" + display item 2 (line), "Address" + address No. (comparison target) (line) + "-" + display item 2(line) * In the case of built-in meter, "built-in meter" + "-" + sensor No. (1 to 4) is set in place of "Address" + address No.		
4th line	Measurement item	Month	"Day"	Address Group Block Energy management block	Group name ^{*3} (display target) (bar) + "-" + display item (bar), group name ^{*3} (comparison target)(bar) + "-" + display item (bar), group name ^{*3} (display target)(line) + "-" + display item 1(line), group name ^{*3} (comparison target) (line) + "-" + display item 1(line), group name ^{*3} (display target)(line) + "-" + display item 2 (line), group name ^{*3} (comparison target) (line) + "-" + display item 2 (line)		
		Year	ar "Month"		Block name ^{*3} (display target) (bar) + "-" + display item (bar), block name ^{*3} (comparison target)(bar) + "-" + display item (bar), "target electric energy [kWh]" ^{*2} , block name ^{*3} (display target)(line) + "-" + display item (line), block name ^{*3} (comparison target) (line) + "-" + display item (line)		
					Energy management block name ^{*3} (display target) (bar) + "-" + display item (bar), Energy management block name ^{*3} (comparison target)(bar) + "-" + display item (bar), "target electric energy [kWh]" ^{*2}		
Eth line and	Data ^{*4}	Day	hh:mm,	Data value (bar), comparison data value (bar), target electric energy value *2, data value1 (line), comparison data value1 (line), data value2 (line), comparison data value2 (line),			
following *5		Month	dd,				
lonowing		Year	mm,				

*1: The dates will be displayed in the formats set on the basic system setting screen on the Web browser for initial setting or main unit LCD screen.

*2: The "target electric energy [kWh]" and target electric energy value will be displayed only when the data is displayed in a graph.

*3: If the group name has not been given, ["Group" + AE number + "-" + group No.] will be shown. If the block name has not been given, ["Block" + AE number + "-" + block No.] will be shown. If the EM block name has not been given, ["EM block" +EM block No.] will be shown.

*4: As the data delimiters and decimal point delimiters, the characters selected on the measurement setting screen on the Web browser for initial setting will be used.

*5: The number of lines varies depending on the selected date range. (Day: 5th to 28th lines, Month: 5th to 35th lines, Year: 5th to 16th lines)

Examples of files

(When Display range is Block)

Date range: Day

Г

401
2014/08/19:2013/06/01
Block 1/Block 5
Time, block 1 – indoor unit electric energy [kWh], block 5 – indoor unit electric energy [kWh], block 1 – outdoor temperature [°C], block 5
- outdoor temperature [°C]
00:00, 0.61, 0.25, 23.2, 17.8
01:00, 0.65, 0.51, 23.1, 17.6
02:00, 0.66, 0.48, 22.1, 18.1
03:00, 0.66, 0.58, 23.3, 18.2
04:00, 0.63, 0.47, 24.5, 17.5
05:00, 0.59, 0.39, 26.8, 19.1
06:00, 0.52, 0.52, 28.1, 22.1
23:00, 0.59, 0.23, 23.4, 17.1

Date range: Month

402
2014/08:2013/06
Block 1/Block 5
Day, block 1 – indoor unit electric energy [kWh], block 5 – indoor unit electric energy [kWh], target electric energy [kWh], block 1 – outdoor
temperature [°C], block 5 – outdoor temperature [°C]
01, 24.69, 8.74, 22, 26.2, 17.9
02, 25.31, 8.22, 22, 27, 17.4
03, 12.36, 22.33, 10, 25.2, 16.6
04, 10.37, 21.36, 10, 25.1, 19.3
05, 27.02, 17.55, 22, 27.7, 20.5
06, 24.55, 16.58, 22, 26.3, 19
07, 24.69, 17.96, 22, 24.9, 18.9
31, 13.2, 20.22,10, 27.3, 20.2

Date range: Year

403 2014:2013 Block 1/Block 5 Month, block 1 – indoor unit electric energy [kWh], block 5 – indoor unit electric energy [kWh], target electric energy [kWh], block 1 – outdoor temperature [°C], block 5 – outdoor temperature [°C] 01, 675.17, 661.93, 600, 0.4, 0.5 02, 697.38, 683.71, 700, 0.3, 3.2 03, 528.63, 518.26, 400, 4.5, 3.8 04, 403.67, 395.75, 500, 9.8, 10 05, 420.28, 412.04, 500, 15.9, 15.6 06, 450.33, 477.88, 500, 18.2, 20.6 07, 594.13, 582.48, 550, 22.8, 24.8 : 12, 602.58, 590.76, 550, 3.3, 3.4

Remarks	O When data is output with the date range setting "Day," the data of the bar graph to be output in each time line is the data obtained between the hour (00 minute) of the time and the hour (00 minute) after one hour. The data of the line graph is the instantaneous value at the hour (00 minute) of the time. Example: When data is output at the present time 22:27, the data will be output as shown below.					
	22:00, 12, 15.0 21:00, 15, 15.2 22:00,,15.3 The data of bar graph at 22:00 is blank. 23:00,,					

<9-2>Output from Web screen

To output the data in CSV format from the Web screen, touch [Download] on the energy use status screen, and the displayed measurement data will be output to USB memory in CSV format.

The data will be output in the following format with the following name according to the selected date range.

File name

[When a comparison target has been selected in Comparison target]

Date range: Day

EM_DailyTrend_(yyyy)-(mm)-(dd)_(display target)_(type of bar graph1)_(type of line graph1)_(YYYY)-(MM)-(DD)_ (comparison target)_(type of bar graph2)_(type of line graph2).csv

(comparison target)_(type of bar graph2)_(type of line graph2). Date range: Month

EM_MonthlyTrend_(yyyy)-(mm)_(display target)_(type of bar graph1)_(type of line graph1)_(YYYY)-(MM)_(comparison target)_(type of bar graph2)_(type of line graph2).csv

Date range: Year

EM_AnnualTrend_(yyyy)_(display target)_(type of bar graph1)_(type of line graph1)_(YYYY)_(comparison target)_(type of bar graph2)_(type of line graph2).csv

[When a comparison target has not been selected in Comparison target]

Date range: Day

EM_DailyTrend_(yyyy)-(mm)-(dd)_(display target)_(type of bar graph1)_(type of line graph1).csv Date range: Month

EM_MonthlyTrend_(yyyy)-(mm)_(display target)_(type of bar graph1)_(type of line graph1).csv Date range: Year

EM_AnnualTrend_(yyyy)_(display target)_(type of bar graph1)_(type of line graph1).csv

Contents of file name

Contents of file name	Format				
(уууу)	Year specified in Date of displayed data				
(mm)	Month specified in Date of displayed data				
(dd)	Day specified in Date of dis	played data			
(display target)	Address	AE number + "A" + M-NET address (001 to 250) + "_" + (In the case of indoor unit) "00" (In the case of PI controller, AI controller or AHC) meter No., sensor No. (01 to 04) * No M-NET address in the case of built-in meter *To output the data in AE-200, the AE number field must be left blank. If the field blank, "-" after the blank will be hidden.			
	Group	AE number(1 to 4 or blank) + "-" + "G" + group No. (001 to 050) + "_" + "00" *To output the data in AE-200, the AE number field must be left blank. If the field is blank, "-" after the blank will be hidden.			
	Block	AE number(1 to 4 or blank) + "-" + "B" + block No. (000,001 to 050 or 999 *1) + "" + "00" *To output the data in AE-200, the AE number field must be left blank. If the field is blank, "-" after the blank will be hidden.			
	Energy management block "E" + Energy management block No.(001 to 200) + "_" + "00"				
(YYYY)	Year specified in Date of compared data				
(MM)	Month specified in Date of compared data				
(DD)	Day specified in Date of compared data				
	Address	AE number + "A" + M-NET address (001 to 250) + "_" + (In the case of indoor unit) "00" (In the case of PI controller, AI controller or AHC) meter No., sensor No. (01 to 04) * No M-NET address in the case of built-in meter *To output the data in AE-200, the AE number field must be left blank. If the field is blank, "-" after the blank will be hidden.			
(comparison target)	Group	AE number(1 to 4 or blank) + "-" + "G" + group No. (001 to 050) + "_" + "00" *To output the data in AE-200, the AE number field must be left blank. If the field blank, "-" after the blank will be hidden.			
	Block	AE number(1 to 4 or blank) + "-" + "B" + block No. (000,001 to 050 or 999 *1) + " "+"00" *To output the data in AE-200, the AE number field must be left blank. If the field is blank, "-" after the blank will be hidden.			
	Energy management block	"E" + Energy management block No.(001 to 200) + "_" + "00"			

*1: "B000" = Group in which no blocks have been registered, "B999" = Total of all blocks

[8. Energy Management Function]

Contents of file name	Format				
	B01: Electric energy (indoor unit)				
	B02: FAN operation time				
	B03: Thermo ON time (total)				
	B04: Thermo ON time (cooling)				
(type of bar graph)	B05: Thermo ON time (heating)				
	B06: Electric energy on PI controller and built-in meter				
	B08: Quantity of water on PI controller and built-in meter				
	B09: Quantity of heat on PI controller and built-in meter				
	B00: No selection				
	L01: Temperature setting (cooling)				
	L02: Temperature setting (heating)				
	L03: Indoor temperature				
(type of line graph)	L04: AI controller temperature				
(type of life graph)	L05: AHC temperature				
	L06: Outdoor temperature				
	L08: AI controller humidity				
	L00: No selection				

File format

Line	Item	Date range	Format				
1st line		Day	401				
	Classification	Month	402				
	of file	Year	403				
		Day	yyyy/mm/dd:YYYY/MM/DD ^{*1}				
2nd line	Date	Month	yyyy/mm:YYYY/MM *1				
		Year	yyyy:YYYY				
3rd line	Toract		Address	"Address" + No.(compari * In the case "address No * In the case 4)."	Address" + address No. (display target)/"Address" + address Jo.(comparison target) In the case of PI controller, AI controller or AHC, the address number is address No. + meter No. or sensor No. (1 to 4)." In the case of built-in meter, the address number is "built-in meter - (1 to 4)."		
	larger		Group	Group name	Group name (display target)/group name (comparison target) *3		
			Block	Block name	lock name (display target)/block name (comparison target) *3		
			Energy management block	Energy management block name (display target)/ energy management block name (comparison target) ^{*3}			
4th line	Measurement item	Day	"Time"	Address Group Block Energy	"Address" + address No. (display target) (bar) + "-" + display item1 (bar), "Address" + address No. (comparison target)(bar) + "-" + display item2 (bar), "Address" + address No. (display target) (line) + "-" + display item 1(line), "Address" + address No. (comparison target) (line) + "-" + display item 2(line), * In the case of built-in meter, "built-in meter" + "-" + sensor No. (1 to 4) is set in place of "Address" + address No.		
		Month	"Day"		Group name ^{*3} (display target) (bar) + "-" + display item1 (bar), group name ^{*3} (comparison target)(bar) + "-" + display item2 (bar), group name ^{*3} (display target)(line) + "-" + display item 1(line), group name ^{*3} (comparison target) (line) + "-" + display item 2(line)		
		Year "Month"	block	Block name ^{*3} (display target) (bar) + "-" + display item1 (bar), block name ^{*3} (comparison target)(bar) + "-" + display item2 (bar), "target electric energy [kWh]" ^{*2} , block name ^{*3} (display target)(line) + "-" + display item1 (line), block name ^{*3} (comparison target) (line) + "-" + display item2(line)			
					Energy management block name ^{*3} (display target) (bar) + "-" + display item 1(bar), Energy management block name ^{*3} (comparison target)(bar) + "-" + display item2 (bar), "target electric energy [kWh]" ^{*2}		
Eth line and		Day	hh:mm,	Data value (har) comparison data value (bar) target electric energy		
following *5	Data ^{*4}	Month	dd,	value ^{*2} , data value (line), comparison data value (bar), target electric energy value ^{*2} , data value (line)			
ionowing		Year	mm,				

*1: The dates will be displayed in the formats set on the basic system setting screen on the Web browser for initial setting or main unit LCD screen.

*2: The "target electric energy [kWh]" and target electric energy value will be displayed only when the data is displayed in a graph.

*3: If the group name has not been given, ["Group" + AE number + "-" + group No.] will be shown. If the block name has not been given, ["Block" + AE number + "-" + block No.] will be shown. If the EM block name has not been given, ["EM block" + AE number + "-" + EM block No.] will be shown.

*4: As the data delimiters and decimal point delimiters, the characters selected on the measurement setting screen on the Web browser for initial setting will be used.

*5: The number of lines varies depending on the selected date range. (Day: 5th to 28th lines, Month: 5th to 35th lines, Year: 5th to 16th lines)

Examples of files (When Display range is Block)

Date range: Day

401
2014/08/19:2013/06/01
Block 1/Block 5
lime, block 1 – indoor unit electric energy [kWh], block 5 – indoor unit electric energy [kWh], block 1 – outdoor temperature [°C], block 5
- outdoor temperature [°C]
00:00, 0.61, 0.25, 23.2, 17.8
01:00, 0.65, 0.51, 23.1, 17.6
02:00, 0.66, 0.48, 22.1, 18.1
03:00, 0.66, 0.58, 23.3, 18.2
04:00, 0.63, 0.47, 24.5, 17.5
05:00, 0.59, 0.39, 26.8, 19.1
06:00, 0.52, 0.52, 28.1, 22.1
23:00, 0.59, 0.23, 23.4, 17.1
23:00, 0.59, 0.23, 23.4, 17.1

Date range: Month

402
2014/08:2013/06
Block 1/Block 5
Day, block 1 – indoor unit electric energy [kWh], block 5 – indoor unit electric energy [kWh], target electric energy [kWh], block 1 – outdoor
temperature [°C], block 5 – outdoor temperature [°C]
01, 24.69, 8.74, 22, 26.2, 17.9
02, 25.31, 8.22, 22, 27, 17.4
03, 12.36, 22.33, 10, 25.2, 16.6
04, 10.37, 21.36, 10, 25.1, 19.3
05, 27.02, 17.55, 22, 27.7, 20.5
06, 24.55, 16.58, 22, 26.3, 19
07, 24.69, 17.96, 22, 24.9, 18.9
31, 13.2, 20.22,10, 27.3, 20.2

Date range: Year

403 2014:2013
Block 1/Block 5
Month, block 1 – indoor unit electric energy [kWh], block 5 – indoor unit electric energy [kWh], target electric energy [kWh], block 1
 – outdoor temperature [°C], block 5 – outdoor temperature [°C]
01, 675.17, 661.93, 600, 0.4, 0.5
02, 697.38, 683.71, 700, 0.3, 3.2
03, 528.63, 518.26, 400, 4.5, 3.8
04, 403.67, 395.75, 500, 9.8, 10
05, 420.28, 412.04, 500, 15.9, 15.6
06, 450.33, 477.88, 500, 18.2, 20.6
07, 594,13, 582,48, 550, 22,8, 24,8
12, 602.58, 590.76, 550, 3.3, 3.4

Remarks	O When data is output with the date range setting "Day," the data of the bar graph to be output in each time line is the data obtained between the hour (00 minute) of the time and the hour (00 minute) after one hour. The data of the line graph is the instantaneous value at the hour (00 minute) of the time. Example: When data is output at the present time 22:27, the data will be output as shown below.				
	22:00, 12, 15.0 21:00, 15, 15.2 22:00,,15.3 The data of bar graph at 22:00 is blank. 23:00,,				

<10> Energy management data list

The following table "Data items" shows the energy management items which can be output in CSV format, measurement units and data ranges for the data types.

The following table "Data periods" shows the amount of data (number of months or years) which can be contained in each CSV file.

Table Data items								
	Item	Data type (interval)				Measurement	Data ranga *11	
Unit type		5-minute	30-minute	Daily *6	Monthly *7	Annual *8	unit	Data range
Outdoor unit	Data 1 *1	0	0	0	0	0	_	0 to 999999.99
	Data 2 *1	0	0				-	0 to 9999.99
	Data 3 ^{*1}	0	0	0	0	0	_	0 to 99.99
	Outdoor temperature	0	O *2	O *3	O *4		°C, °F	-100.0 to 1000.0
	Cooling temperature setting	0	O *2	O *3	O *4		°C, °F	-100.0 to 1000.0
	Heating temperature setting	0	O *2	O *3	O *4		°C, °F	-100.0 to 1000.0
	Room temperature	0	O *2	O *3	O *4		°C, °F	-100.0 to 1000.0
	FAN operation time		O *9	O *10	O *10	O *10	minute	0 to 2147483647
	Cooling operation time		O *9	O *10	O *10	O *10	minute	0 to 2147483647
	Heating operation time		O *9	O *10	O *10	O *10	minute	0 to 2147483647
	Thermo On time		O *9	O *10	O *10	O *10	minute	0 to 2147483647
Indoor unit	Thermo ON time for cooling		O *9	O *10	O *10	O *10	minute	0 to 2147483647
	Thermo ON time for heating		O *9	O *10	O *10	O *10	minute	0 to 2147483647
	Thermo ON/OFF count *5		O *9				-	0 to 2147483647
	Capacity save amount		O *9	O *10	O *10	O *10	minute	0 to 21474836.47
	Cooling capacity save amount		O *9	O *10	O *10	O *10	minute	0 to 21474836.47
	Heating capacity save amount		O *9	O *10	O *10	O *10	minute	0 to 21474836.47
	Apportioned electric energy		O *9	O *10	O *10	O *10	kWh	0 to 999999.9999
	Target electric energy			O *10	O *10	O *10	kWh	0 to 4294967
MCP (PI controller)	MCP1	O *9	O *9	O *10	O *10	O *10	kWh, m³, MJ	0 to 999999.99
	MCP2	O *9	O *9	O *10	O *10	O *10	kWh, m³, MJ	0 to 999999.99
	MCP3	O *9	O *9	O *10	O *10	O *10	kWh, m³, MJ	0 to 999999.99
	MCP4	O *9	O *9	O *10	O *10	O *10	kWh, m³, MJ	0 to 999999.99
MCT (Al controller)	MCT1	0	O *2	O *3	O *4		°C, °F, %	-1000.0 to 1000.0
	MCT2	0	O *2	O *3	O *4		°C, °F, %	-1000.0 to 1000.0
АНС	AHC temperature 1	0	O *2	O *3	O *4		°C, °F	-1000.0 to 1000.0
	AHC temperature 2	0	O *2	O *3	O *4		°C, °F	-1000.0 to 1000.0

*1: These values are for factory use only. Do not use them for any other purposes.

*2: These values are temperature or humidity values measured at 00 minute and 30 minutes of every hour.

*3: These values are the daily average values of the temperatures or humidity values measured at 00 minute of every hour.

*4: These values are the monthly average values of the temperatures or humidity values measured every day.

*5: The Thermo ON/OFF count indicates the number of times the unit was switched from the thermo OFF mode to the thermo ON mode.

*6: When the data to be output includes the data on the current day, the data up to the point of output of the CSV file will be output.

*7: The data in the current month includes the data up to the point of output of the CSV file.

*8: The data in the current year includes the data up to the point of output of the CSV file.

*9: These are the values accumulated since the start of operation. When any value exceeds the maximum value, it will return to 0.

*10: These values are the sum totals in the measurement period (1 day, 1 month or 1 year).

*11: The number of displayed decimal places varies depending on the data item. For example, when the data range is 0 to 99.99, the values will be displayed to two decimal places.

[5] Ranking

On the ranking screen, the power consumption, FAN operation time and thermo ON time (total, cooling and heating) of indoor units in each energy management block or block or group or unit address can be displayed in bar graphs in descending order to visualize the energy-saving state. Blocks and groups which consume more electric energy will be visually indicated to facilitate preparation of an energy-saving plan.

Energy-saving measures can be taken timely by setting the target values and comparing the present energy use status with the target value.

Note: To display the ranking screen, "Energy Management License Pack" is required.

The data will be saved in the internal memory in each AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50. In AE-200, the data on AE-50/EW-50 will not be saved. The data only on the units connected to M-NET of each controller will be saved in it. The ranking of units on the AE-50/EW-50 system can be displayed on the screen of AE-200. AE-200 will receive the data from AE-50/EW-50 when the ranking screen for AE-50/EW-50 is displayed.

The retention periods of data are shown below.

Period of display	Data retention period
Day	For last 24 months *
Month	For last 24 months *
Year	For last 5 years

* The data for 25 months are retained internally. However, the data for 24 months can be displayed in graphs.

The data is saved in an SD card (= a nonvolatile memory: data will not be deleted even if power is turned off from AE-200/AE-50/EW-50) every hour on the 15 minute.

To display the graph, the initial setting is required. The initial setting can be performed only on the energy management setting screen on the Web browser for initial setting. The initial setting cannot be performed on the main unit screen of AE-200/AE-50. It is necessary to perform the initial setting individually on the Web browser for initial setting of each set of AE-200,AE-50 and EW-50.

To display the target values, it is necessary to set the target values for each unit on the target value setting screen on the main unit (in percentage against all units).

On the main unit screen of AE-200, the ranking of the units connected to AE-50/EW-50 can be displayed by switching the display mode.

On the main unit screen of AE-50, the ranking of the units only of AE-50 can be displayed.

On the Web browser, the ranking of the units of each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 can be displayed. On the browser of each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50, the ranking of the units connected to M-NET of the controller can be displayed.

Remarks O The initial setting must be performed on the Web browsers for initial setting. O In case of failure of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50, it is recommended to periodically save the data on the energy use status screen on each Web browser in a file in CSV format with the download function or from the CSV output screen. For details, see 4.[10] "Data Downloading" and 4.[11] "CSV Output."

<1> Contents displayed on screens

Main unit screen



Item Details		Remarks			
Device	The name of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 is displayed.	 When AE-50/EW-50 is selected after AE-50/EW-50 is connected, the name of AE-50 /EW-50 will be displayed. When the ranking of all controllers is displayed, "All 			
		controllers" will be displayed.			
Display range	The display range of ranking graph is displayed. The graph can be displayed in an address, group,block or energy management block unit.	 The ranking of energy management blocks can be displayed when "All controllers" has been selected. 			
Display item	The item displayed in the ranking graph is displayed.	 The display item is one of electric energy, FAN operation time, thermo ON time (total), thermo ON time for cooling and thermo ON time for heating. 			
Rank	The units are displayed in ascending order of power consumption or operation time from the first one.	 Even if some units show the same power consumption, FAN operation time or thermo ON time, the units will not be displayed in the same rank. The unit having a lower EM block number, block number, group number or unit address number will be ranked higher. 			
Name	The energy management block name, block name, group name or unit address number is displayed.	 The name changes depending on the item selected in Display range. For a block whose block name has not been registered, [EM Block +EM block number] will be displayed For a block whose block name has not been registered, [Block + block number] will be displayed. For a group whose group name has not beenregistered, [Group + group number] will be displayed. 			
Date	The date of the ranking graph is displayed.				
Display switching Display switching To display a graph, touch this button first of all. Then, the screen for setting the data to be displayed in a graph will appear. The graph will be displayed with the data set on the display item setting screen.		 For details, see 4.[7]<5> "Display range and items which can be displayed in graphs." 			
Ranking graph	The ranking graph is displayed.	• For the display format, see 4.[7]<4> "Graph display format."			
Target value A red triangle is displayed at the position of each target value.		 The target values will be displayed only when Display range is Block and Date range is Month or Year. For the display format, see 4.[7]<4> "Graph display format." When the target values have not been set or are 0, they will not be displayed. 			

[8. Energy Management Function]

Display of percentage against target values	The ratio (percentage) of the present value to the target value is numerically displayed. When the present value exceeds the target value, the percentage will be more than 100 %.	 The target values will be displayed only when Display range is Block and Date range is Month or Year. For the display format, see 4.[7]<4> "Graph display format." When the target values have not been set or are 0, they will not be displayed. The display and non-display can be switched on the display item setting screen. (The default is Display.) 		
Unit/scale	The unit and scale of the ranking graph are displayed.	 The unit appropriate to the Display item will be displayed. The scale will be automatically adjusted according to the maximum value in the data. 		
Update The data will be updated to the most recent information.		• The most recent information is retained every hour.		
Web browser screen



Item	Details	Remarks
Display range	Select the range of the units to be displayed from Block, Group and Address.	Click in the field, the setting window will be displayed.
Date	Specify the date of the data to be displayed in a graph.	 Click in the field, the setting window will be displayed. When Day has been selected in Date range, the setting window will be displayed. Select a year, month and day in the last 24 months from the current date. When Month has been selected in Date range, select a year and month (yyyy/mm) in the last 24 months from the current month.
		 When Year has been selected in Date range, select a year (yyyy) in the last 5 years from the current year. The date will be displayed in the format set on the basic system setting screen on the Web browser for initial setting.
Ranking graph	The data is displayed in a bar graph.	 For the display format, see 4.[7]<4> "Graph display format."
Unit/scale	The unit and scale of the ranking graph are displayed.	 The unit appropriate to the Display item will be displayed. The scale will be automatically adjusted according to the maximum value in the data.
Target value A deep blue triangle is displayed at the position of each target value.		 The target values will be displayed only when Display range is Block and Date range is Month or Year. For the display format, see 4.[7]<4> "Graph display format." When the target values have not been set or are 0, they will not be displayed.
Detail view	The graph data at the mouse cursor position is displayed.	When a tablet is used, this view is not displayed.
Display item Select the item to be displayed in a graph.		 The selectable display items vary depending on Display range. For details, see 4.[7]<5> "Display range and items which can be displayed in graphs."
Download	Click Download, and the displayed data will be output in CSV format.	• For details, see 4.[10] "Data downloading."

<2> Item which can be displayed in graphs

On the ranking screen, only one of the display items, electric energy, FAN operation time and thermo ON time, can be displayed in a graph. The items which can be displayed in graphs are shown below.

Display item	Remarks
Target values	 The target electric energy automatically calculated from the annual total power consumption, ratio of monthly power consumption and ratio of daily power consumption set on the target value setting screen is displayed. The target values are displayed only when Display item is electric energy. When the target values are changed, the displayed target values in the past will not be changed, but the new
	target values will be displayed on and after the day of change.
	 The displayed electric energy is obtained by apportioning the power consumption of the outdoor unit to the indoor units. The power consumption of the indoor units is not displayed. Only the electric energy measured by the PI controller (PAC-YG60MCA) is displayed. The electric energy cannot be displayed by connecting the PLC (electric energy counting software). The results of apportionment of the electric energy of the outdoor unit measured by the PI controller according to the air conditioner usage of the indoor units are displayed. To display the electric energy graph, it is necessary to set the electricity meter (name of electricity meter of PI controller = Ch) for each indoor unit in advance on the energy management setting screen on the Web browser for initial setting.
Electric energy	 The air conditioner usage of each indoor unit is calculated in advance based on the apportionment mode of indoor units set on the energy management setting screen on the Web browser for initial setting. The following three apportionment modes are available for indoor units. Select one of them. The capacity save amount mode is recommended. (1) Capacity save amount (default) (2) Thermo ON time (3) FAN operation time For the details of these modes, see 4.[4]<2> "Apportionment mode."
	 The power consumption is calculated from the capacity and usage of each indoor unit. Since the capacity of each indoor unit is automatically obtained from the indoor unit (through M-NET), it is unnecessary to set the capacity on AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. The power consumption includes the standby electricity determined by apportionment of the standby
	 electricity of outdoor unit. For details, see 4.[4]<5> "Method of calculating standby electricity." Insignificant power consumption may be displayed on the graph although no indoor units are used. This is because the standby electricity is apportioned to the units, and there is no problem. The electric energy for LOSSNAY cannot be displayed
	Time during which the indoor unit is running
FAN operation time	• AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 obtains the operating state of the indoor unit (through M-NET) and counts the time every minute.
	 When the display range is Group, the data on the unit having the lowest number in the group is displayed. The data on LOSSNAY can be displayed.
Thermo ON time (total)	 Time during which the indoor unit is in the thermo ON state. AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 obtains the thermo ON state from the indoor unit (through M-NET) and counts the time every minute. When the display range is Group, the data on the unit having the lowest number in the group is displayed. The data on LOSSNAY can be displayed.
Thermo ON time (cooling)	 Time during which the indoor unit is in the thermo ON state in the cooling mode. AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 obtains the thermo ON state and mode from the indoor unit (through M-NET) and counts the time every minute. When the display range is Group, the data on the unit having the lowest number in the group is displayed.
Thermo ON time (heating)	 Time during which the indoor unit is in the thermo ON state in the heating mode. AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 obtains the thermo ON state and mode from the indoor unit (through M-NET) and counts the time every minute. When the display range is Group, the data on the unit having the lowest number in the group is displayed. The data on LOSSNAY can be displayed.

<3> Data for graph

Select the date range from three types, Day, Month and Year.

The integrated values in the selected day, month or year including the selected date will be displayed in a bar graph.





The graph of data in the date range including the day of change will be displayed with the new target value.

<4> Graph display format

The graph display formats and colors are shown below. The target values will be displayed when the display range is Block.

Main unit screen

Table Display of graph of main unit screen				
Integrated value	Integrated value (excess from target value)	Target value		
(Yellow)	(Orange) The part over the target value is displayed in orange.	(Gray frame + red triangle at upper right corner)		

Table Display of graph on main unit screen

Web browser screen

Table Display of graph on Web browser screen



<5> Display range and items which can be displayed in graphs

Select the display range from Address, Group, Block and EM Block. Some items cannot be displayed in graphs depending on the display range. After the display range is selected, the selection buttons for the items which cannot be displayed will not be displayed on the screen.

The items which can be displayed in graphs in each range are shown below.

Table Display range and items which can be displayed in graphs

			e. Biopiayoa .	not alopiayou
Dianlay itam	Display range			
Display item	Address	Group	Block	EM Block
Target value (kWh)	-	-	0	0
Electric energy (kWh)	0	0	0	0
FAN operation time (min)	0	0	_	-
Thermo ON time (total) (min)	0	0	-	-
Thermo ON time (cooling) (min)	0	0	_	-
Thermo ON time (heating) (min)	0	0	-	-

<6> Procedure for displaying graphs

Main unit screen

To display a graph on the main unit screen, touch the Display switching button on the energy use status screen. Pressing Update will update the graphs to the most current state.



The display item setting screen will appear. Set the display item, touch the OK button, and the graph will be displayed.



Table Display item setting screen



	Table	e Display item s	etting screen (cor	itinued)
Item		Details		Remarks
	Specify the date of th	e data to be displ	ayed in a graph.	
	When Date range is	s Year		
	Yoor			
	i Cai			
	2010	2011	2012	
	2010	2011	2012	
	2012	2014		
	2013	2014		
		ОК	Cancel	
Date				
	When Date range is	s Month		
	a contraction of the second se			
	M 11			
	Month			
		0044		
		2014		
	Jan.	Feb.	Mar.	
	Apr	Max	Jun	
			- June -	
	Jul.	Aug.	Sep.	
	Oct.	Nov.	Dec.	
		UK	Cancel	
				1

Table Display item setting screen (continued)				
Item	Details	Remarks		
Date	 When Date range is Day Date 2014 May Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fr i Sai 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 16 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 OK Cancel 			
Display of graduation line	To display the graduation line of the ranking graph, select Show. Not to display, select Hide.	 The default is Hide. The setting will be returned to the default by turning off the power to AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. 		
Display item	Select the item to be displayed in a ranking graph. Display item Electric Energy Thermo-ON time Total Cool The display item buttons, Electric Energy, FAN operative displayed. When Display range is Block, the display item buttons	FAN operation time Heat On time and Thermo-ON time Total, Cool and Heat, will except Electric Energy will not be displayed.		
Display of percentage against target values	To display the percentages against target values in the ranking graph, select Show. Not to display, select Hide	 The default is Show. The setting will be returned to the default by turning off the power to (restarting) AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. The percentage of the present integrated value against each target value is displayed. If the value exceeds the target value, the percentage will exceed 100%. 		
OK button	Touch the OK button, and the graph will be displayed.			

Web browser screen

To display the ranking graph on the Web screen, click the Display range button or Date button, and set the Display range and Date.

If the Date range is changed, other selections will be cleared.



The Display items which can be displayed for the selected Display range will be displayed. Select a display item, and the graph will be displayed.





<7> Display updating

The main unit screen will not be automatically updated. When the display item is changed by pressing the Update button or display switching button, the screen will be updated.

The Integrated Centralized Control Web screen will be updated every 30 minutes while the screen is open (at 10 minutes and 40 minutes after the Web screen is started).

However, since the data for every one hour is displayed, the data will be updated once an hour (at 15 minutes).



<8> CSV output of ranking

Click Download, and the displayed measurement data will be output in CSV format.

The data will be output in the following format with the following name according to the selected date range.

- File name
 - Date range: Day

EM_DailyRanking_(yyyy)-(mm)-(dd)_(display range)_(type of ranking graph).csv

Date range: Month

EM_MonthlyRanking_(yyyy)-(mm)_(display range)_(type of ranking graph).csv Date range: Year

EM_AnnualRanking_(yyyy)_(display range)_(type of ranking graph).csv

Contents of file name

Contents of file name	Format		
(уууу)	Year specified in Date		
(mm)	Month specified in Date		
(dd)	Day specified in Date		
	Address	AE number + "-" + "A999" ^{*1}	
(Diaple) (rapge)	Group	AE number + "-" + "G999" *1	
(Display range)	Block	AE number + "-" + "B999" ^{*1}	
	EM Block	"ALL-E999"	
	B01: Electric energy (in	door unit)	
	B02: FAN operation tim	e	
(Type of ranking graph)	B03: Thermo ON time (total)		
	B04: Thermo ON time (cooling)		
	B05: Thermo ON time (heating)		

*1: The AE number is blank when AE-200 has been selected, one of 1 to 4 when one of Exp1 to 4 has been selected and ALL when ALL has been selected. When the AE number is blank, "-" after the blank will be hidden.

File format

Line	Item	Date range	Format		
		Day	404		
1st line	Classification of	Month	405		
	liic	Year	406		
		Day	yyyy/mm/dd *1		
2nd line	Date	Month	yyyy/mm *1		
		Year	уууу		
			Address	"All addresses"	
Ord line	Dianlay range			"All groups"	
sid line	Display range		Block	"All blocks"	
			EM Block	"All EM blocks"	
	Measurement item		Address	"Address No.", display item	
4th line			Group	"Group name ^{*2} ", display item	
401 11110			Block	"Block name ^{*2} ", display item, "target electric energy [kWh]" *3	
				"EM Block name ^{*2} ", display item, "target electric energy [kWh]" ^{*3}	
			Address	Address No., data value	
Eth to 20th lines	Data *4		Group	Group name ^{*2} , data value	
Sun to Zoth lines	Dala			Block name *2, data value, target electric energy value *3	
			EM Block	EM Block name *2, data value, target electric energy value *3	

*1: The dates will be displayed in the formats set on the basic system setting screen on the Web browser for initial setting.

*2: If the group name has not been given, [Group + group No.] will be shown. If the block name has not been given, [Block + block No.] will be shown. If the EM block name has not been given, [EM Block + block No.] will be shown.

*3: The "target electric energy [kWh]" and target electric energy value will be displayed only when the data is displayed in a graph.

*4: As the data delimiters and decimal point delimiters, the characters selected on the measurement setting screen on the Web browser for initial setting will be used.

[8. Energy Management Function]

Examples of files

(When Display range is Block)

Date range: Day

404 2014/06/01 All blocks Block name, indoor unit electric energy [kWh], target electric energy [kWh] Block 1, 25.19, 21.2 Block 5, 19.58, 18.13 Block 5, 11.2, 16.9 Block 6, 6.19, 5.24 Block 2, 5.98, 10.96

Date range: Month

405 2014/06 All blocks Block name, indoor unit electric energy [kWh], target electric energy [kWh] Block 1, 780.89, 657.2 Block 5, 606.98, 562.03 Block 5, 3347.2, 523.9 Block 6, 191.89, 162.44 Block 2, 185.38, 339.76

Date range: Year

406 2014 All blocks Block name, indoor unit electric energy [kWh], target electric energy [kWh] Block 1, 9370.68, 7886.4 Block 5, 7283.76, 6744.36 Block 3, 4166.4, 6286.8 Block 6, 2302.68, 1949.28 Block 2, 2224.56, 4077.12:

[6] Setting of target values

On the target value setting screen, you can set the target values to be displayed on the energy use status screen and ranking screen.

First of all, set the target value of annual total power consumption, and set the percentage in each month or on each day of the week. Then, the daily target electric energy will be automatically calculated. The annual target value is the total power consumption in January to December.

Based on the automatically calculated daily target electric energy, the target electric energy in each block will be automatically calculated according to the percentage set for the block.

It is unnecessary to input the target electric energy for each day. Input only the percentage, and the target electric energy for each block will be automatically calculated. So, the target values (electric energy) can be set easily.



* Actually, the value is calculated simply based on the number of days of the week in one month.

In this example, the value is calculated on the condition that one month has 4 weeks (28 days) and there are four Sundays in a month.

Set the target values based on the energy-saving plan for this year referring to the record in the previous year if available. In the first year without the record in the previous year, use the monthly usage ratio and the daily usage ratio which have been preset as the default values, or make a plan of use, and change the preset values.

(By default, the percentages for cooling in the summer months and for heating in the winter months are set higher, and the percentages on the weekdays are set higher and those on Saturdays and Sundays are set lower. Change the values according to the actual usage conditions.)

The percentages can be set to one decimal place.

The default percentage for each block will be automatically calculated based on the ratio of the capacity of each indoor unit to the capacity obtained from the indoor unit through M-NET. If the target values cannot be determined properly because the record in the previous year is not available and the usages in the blocks are unclear, the usage ratio in each block can be set by the automatic calculation. When the record in the previous year is available, set the usage ratio in each block according to the usage condition in each block in the previous year based on the energy-saving plan for this year.

Monthly usage ratio		Daily us	age ratio	Usage ratio in each block	
Month	Default value (%)	Day of the week	Default value (%)	Block	Default value (%)
1	8.0	Sunday	2.0		
2	8.0	Monday	18.0		
3	2.0	Tuesday	18.0		
4	2.0	Wednesday	18.0		
5	2.0	Thursday	18.0		
6	6.0	Friday	18.0	Each block	Automotio coloulation *
7	20.0	Saturday	8.0	Each Diock	Automatic calculation
8	20.0				
9	20.0				
10	2.0				
11	2.0				
12	8.0				

Table Default percentages of usage

* Procedure for automatic calculation of usage ratio in each block (in the case of automatic calculation of percentages for all blocks)



Remarks

S O When the usage ratio in each block is automatically calculated, the capacities of the indoor units to be used for the calculation will be obtained from the indoor units through M-NET. Therefore, it is unnecessary to set the capacities.

The target values can be set on any of the main unit screen and the Web browser for initial setting.

On the main unit screen of AE-200, the target values for connected AE-50/EW-50 can be set by switching the display mode. On the main unit screen of AE-50, the target values only for AE-50 can be set.

The target values must be set for each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. It is necessary to set the annual total power consumption, monthly usage ratio and daily usage ratio for each unit (block) connected to M-NET of each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

If target values are changed after the start of operation, the target values on the graphs on the energy use status screen and ranking screen in the past will not be changed, but the graphs for the period including the day of the change and in the future will be displayed with the new target values.

The new target values will be reflected on the graphs on the energy use status screen and ranking screen after the next hour. (The graphs are updated on the hour every hour. However, the screens will not be automatically updated. It is necessary to refresh the screens.)

• Set the target values in the state where all units are correctly connected after they have started up.

Remarks	 Set the target values on each set of AE-200,AE-50 and EW-50. When setting the monthly usage ratio, daily usage ratio or percentage for each indoor unit, ensure that the sum total of the percentages is 100%. If the sum total is not 100%, the values cannot be set.
	O When the percentage for each block is automatically calculated, if some blocks have the same number of units with the same capacity, the percentages may not be identical among the blocks for a reason of rounding, and differences may be caused among them.

9. Ventilation Setting

[1] Night purge

The night purge function is designed to take the outdoor air into a room in the night at lower outdoor temperatures and discharge the air in the room to reduce the cooling load at the start of cooling on the next day.

The night purge function is activated when the room temperature is high and the difference from the outdoor temperature is large.

The execution of the night purge is controlled by the main unit of LOSSNAY.

<1> Details of control



* During the night purge, the system is running in the normal ventilation mode. (The ventilation mode cannot be changed.)

* The outdoor temperature threshold setting range is from 15°C to 30°C.

* The setting range of indoor-outdoor temperature differential is from 0°C to 7°C.

* When selecting the day of the week on which the night purge is executed, set the day of the week on which the night purge will be started. For example, when the start time is 23:00, the end time is 6:00 and Monday is selected, the night purge will be started at 23:00 on Monday and ended at 6:00 on Tuesday. More than one day of the week can be selected. When some groups are selected and the screen is opened, all days of the week are selected.

Starting condition

Condition #1: LOSSNAY units stop at 20:00.

Condition #2: Between the start time 1:00 (setting value 1) and the end time 6:00 (setting value 2).

- Condition #3: LOSSNAY units detected the outdoor temperature threshold 17°C (setting value 3) or higher in the past 24 hours.
- Condition #4: The current room temperature is higher than 22°C. (Cannot be set from AE-200, AE-50, or EW-50)
- Condition #5: The temperature difference between room temperature and outdoor temperature is greater than the temperature difference 5°C (setting value 4).

• LOSSNAY units start the night purge operation at 3:00 when the temperature difference between room temperature and outdoor temperature exceeds 5°C.

• The night purge operation is not activated at 1:00 or 2:00 because the temperature difference between room temperature and outdoor temperature less than 5°C.



[9. Ventilation Setting]

When the following conditions 1 to 3 are met, the night purge will be stopped.

Condition 1: When the indoor temperature is 22°C or less

Condition 2: When the indoor-outdoor temperature differential is lower than the set temperature Condition 3: When the end time has come

- * The indoor and outdoor temperatures detected by LOSSNAY are applied.
- * For the details of night purge starting conditions, see the technical data on LOSSNAY.
- * The night purge is started when the night purge starting conditions are met and LOSSNAY is not working.
- * The start time and end time can be set only on AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.
- (They cannot be set on the remote controller.)

<2> System restrictions

① Grouping

It is prohibited to include units compatible with the night purge and incompatible units in one group.

If both types of units are included in a group and the parent unit (the unit with the lowest address in the group) is incompatible with the night purge, the night purge function is disabled even when the child units are compatible with the night purge.

- * The unit with the lowest address in a group serves as the parent unit.
- ⁽²⁾ The night purge function does not work during level operation by external input.
- ③ Restart of night purge
- If the night purge is suspended, the night purge will not be restarted on the day.
- ④ Schedule setting
- If any event during the night purge period has been scheduled, priority will be given to the schedule.
- ⑤ Interlock control

If interlock control during the night purge period has been set, priority will be given to the interlock control.

10. Night Setback Control

[1] Outline

Night Setback control prevents indoor dew or excessive temperature rise by heating or cooling automatically when the room temperature goes outside of the specific range during the scheduled time.

The following figures show the operation patterns of the unit that the setback control is active.



- **Remarks** O This control starts heating operation when the control object group stops and the temperature drops below the Min. temperature. Also this control starts cooling operation when the control object group stops and the temperature rises above the Max. temperature.
 - If the room temperature is measured by the air-conditioner's suction temperature sensor, the temperature may not be correct when the air-conditioner is inactive and the air is not fresh. When the temperature is not measured correctly, switch the sensor to external temperature sensor (PAC-SE40TSA/PAC-SE41TSA) or remote control sensor.
 - Only air conditioner groups can be controlled. LOSSNAY and general equipment cannot be controlled.

[2] Details of control

This control setting is made on the AE-200 or via the Web browser.

- ① Set the time to enable the night setback operation.
- ⁽²⁾ Set the maximum/minimum temperature for each group.

When the room temperature goes outside of the range that is set in 2 above during the night setback control period, night setback control is automatically performed.

۹.	Initial Settings Settings	1 Function2 P 27/03/2015
	Ext Temp Interlock	Setback
C	ontroller Exp1 Mitsu	ubishi
C	Control Time 01:00	- 09:00
	Group Name	Minimum Temp - Maximum Temp
1	Entrance 1	17°C
2	Lobby A	18°C - 30°C
3	Lobby B	25°C - 28°C
5	Meeting room	26°C
		Save Settings

* When the temperature becomes lower than the lower limit, heating operation will be started. When the temperature becomes higher than the upper limit, cooling operation will be started.

* Even if the setback operation is suspended, the setback control will be restarted when the restart conditions are met.

11. Outside Temperature Interlock Function

[1] Outline

Outside temperature interlock function controls the temperature during the cooling operation so that the air temperature difference between outside and inside (entrance area) is reduced. This function prevents our physical shock (heat shock) by the extreme temperature difference when entering into a building.

The temperature difference of 6°C does not cause the physical shock to most people, but some people feel physical discomfort when the temperature difference exceeds 3°C or so. This outside temperature interlock function controls the temperature so that the temperature difference that most people feel comfort can be kept.

This function also saves energy by raising the set temperature during the cooling operation.



Remarks

Connect our AI controller (PAC-YG63MCA) or AHC to measure outside temperature.
 Only air conditioning group can be controlled. LOSSNAY and general equipment cannot be controlled.

[2] Details of control

The set temperature variation range can be selected for each air conditioning group. Level 1 through 4 can be selected depending on the temperature difference of the areas. (Preset temperature: $\pm 1^{\circ}$ C through $\pm 4^{\circ}$ C) The certain areas can be excluded for the outside temperature interlock control.

	🔧 Initial Settings 🌂 Fun	ction1 🔧 Function2	27/03/2015				
	Ext Temp Interlock Setback						
Co	Controller <mark>Exp1</mark> Mitsubishi						
Ext	Temp Sensor <mark>47-1 Ou</mark>	itdoor status					
	Group Name	Control	levels				
1	Entrance 1	None ±1°C ±	2°C ±3°C ±4°C				
2	Lobby A	None ±1°C ±	2°C ±3°C ±4°C				
3	Lobby B	None ±1°C ±	2°C ±3°C ±4°C				
5	Meeting room	None ±1°C ±	2°C ±3°C ±4°C				
		1 II II					
		Sa	ave Settings				

The followings are the example settings.

Level 4 : entrance area where the temperature difference is large

Level 3 : hallway

Level 2 : office entrance

Excluded : inside the office

Setting the levels for each place helps to reduce the temperature difference from the building entrance to the office. This setting also helps to prevent the physical shock by the extreme temperature difference and to maintain space comfort.



(1) In cooling or dry mode



External Temperature	Set Temperature
External Temperature ≤ Preset temperature +1.4°C	Preset temperature
External Temperature ≥ Preset temperature +1.5°C	Preset temperature +1°C
External Temperature ≥ Preset temperature +4.5°C	Preset temperature +2°C
External Temperature ≥ Preset temperature +6.5°C	Preset temperature +3°C
External Temperature ≥ Preset temperature +7.5°C	Preset temperature +4°C

(2) In heating mode



External Temperature	Set Temperature
External Temperature ≥ Preset temperature -3.9°C	Preset temperature
External Temperature ≤ Preset temperature -4.0°C	Preset temperature -1°C
External Temperature ≤ Preset temperature -6.0°C	Preset temperature -2°C
External Temperature ≤ Preset temperature -8.0°C	Preset temperature -3°C
External Temperature ≤ Preset temperature -10.0°C	Preset temperature -4°C

[3] Required items

Table shows the required items for outside temperature interlock function.

Parts name	Manuracturer	Notes
Centralized controller (AE-200)	MITSUBISHI ELECTRIC CORPORATION	
AI controller (PAC-YG63MCA)	MITSUBISHI ELECTRIC CORPORATION	24 VDC power is required.
AHC ADAPTER	—	Refer to 14 "Connection of AHC" for details.
Temperature sensor	_	Refer to 6.5.1 "Connection for the AI controller" for details.

12. Energy-Saving/Peak-Cut Control

[1] Outline

This function is optional (only for AE-200E, AE-50E and EW-50E). Register "Energy Management License Pack" in each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 to be controlled.

This section explains the air conditioner energy-saving control and peak-cut control.

Notes	 The software of PLC vary depending on the method. The energy-saving control function is included in the "Energy Management License Pack." The control devices connected to DIDO controller (PAC-YG66DCA) or PLC software for general equipment do not support energy-saving and peak-cut control. Depending on the air conditioning unit model, the restrictions for energy-saving and peak-cut control vary. When the indoor unit rotation control is used during heating operation, time is taken to restart the operation from the viewpoint of prevention of feeling of cold air, and the performance cannot be delivered for a certain period after the restart. To avoid this, it is recommended to use the capacity saving function (energy-saving without stop of compressor) for the outdoor unit when the energy-saving control is used during heating. When the energy-saving control for indoor units is used, set the control time shorter (setting of 3 minutes is recommended).
• • • • • • • • •	

During the use of the peak-cut function, any damage such as the exceeding of power consumption than the contract demand due to the trouble of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50, PLC or PI controller such damage will not be indemnified, for which your kind understanding is requested. When power to either the AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 units (power supply unit) or to the PLC supply is cut off due to instantaneous power failure or power failure, their peak-cut control and the alarm level will be reset. Even after power is restored, it may take time for the peak-cut to function normally. There is a possibility that power consumption will go above peak-cut level. It is recommended that the uninterruptible power supply system (UPS) is installed to the AE-200/AE-50/EW-50/EW-50 when using the peak-cut function.

[2] Details of control

The details of the energy-saving/peak-cut control are explained below.

Indoor unit control method	Control time	Control unit	Details of control of indoor units	Number of energy-saving/ peak-cut control levels
±2°C	Selection		 The set temperature is shifted. It is shifted by +2°C during cooling and drying and by -2°C during heating. It is shifted by ±2°C at the control start time and returned to the set temperature at the control end time. The temperature shifted during control is displayed on the remote controller, etc. * The temperature is not controlled during air blowing or in the automatic operation mode. * If the control continues after the set temperature is changed by operation or according to the schedule during the control, the newly set temperature is shifted by ±2°C. This operation is performed in 1-min cycles. * Even if the set temperature is changed by operation or according to the schedule during the temperature at the end of the control differs from the set temperature at the start of the control, the temperature will not be returned to that before the start of the control. 	5 levels from 0 to 4
Air blowing	3 min, 6 min, 9 min, 15 min and 30 min		The indoor units are set to the thermo OFF state at the start of the control and returned to the original operating state at the end of the control. "Cooling/heating" is kept displayed on the remote controller during control. * If the mode is changed by operation or according to the schedule during the temperature control and the units are not in the air blowing mode at the end of the control, they will not be returned to the operation mode before the start of the control at the control end time.	* Level 0 corresponds to the energy- saving control.
Stop			The indoor units are stopped at the start of the control and returned to the original operating state at the end of the control. The remote controller displays "Stop" during stop control. When the control time has been set to 30 min, the indoor units cannot be operated from the remote controller, LCD screen, Web browser, TG-2000 or schedule. (The operation prohibition sign will be displayed.) * When the control time has been set to 3 to 15 min, if the control continues after the units are started by operation on the remote controller or according to the schedule during stop control, they will be stopped again. This operation will be performed in 1-min cycles.	
Outdoor unit control method	Control time	Control unit	Details of control of outdoor unit	Number of energy-saving/ peak-cut control levels
Selection from 50%, 60%, 70%, 80% and 90%	Selection from 3 min, 6 min, 9 min, 15 min and 30 min	Outdoor unit address	This control is designed to maintain the operating capacity of the outdoor unit compressor within the maximum value although its operating capacity fluctuates depending on the load to the indoor units. * Note that the energy-saving effect is not obtained while the outdoor unit is running at a capacity lower than that set by the compressor according to the load to the indoor units.	One of 5 levels from 0 to 4 can be set for each address.

Setting of difference between set temperature and indoor temperature for peak-cut setting



By setting the difference between set temperature and indoor temperature, it is possible to avoid the start of "Energy Management License Pack" or energy-saving peak-cut control on level 0 when the difference between the set cooling/heating temperature and indoor temperature is large.

The temperature setting range is -- and 3°C to 9°C (in 1°C units). The default is --, which means no setting.

[3] Control setting screen

This screen is used to set the energy-saving/peak-cut control conditions.

<Setting screen on LCD of AE-200/AE-50>

Indoo	or unit settin	g						
	Initi Sett	al ings 🔧	Functio	on1 🔧 F	unction2	27/03	/2015 13:09	H
	Pea	ak-Cut	Se	ttings	Air-con	Measu	reme	
C	Controller	AE	200 Mit	subishi E	Electric			
Inda	oor Units: f	Entrance		Batch Op	erations	Сору	Pas	ste
		Contro	l Method		Cont	rol Time		
4	None	±2°C	FAN	OFF	3 6	9 15	30	
3	None	±2°C	FAN	OFF	36	9 15	30	
2	None	±2°C	FAN	OFF	36	9 15	30	
1	None	±2°C	FAN	OFF	36	9 15	30	
0	None	±2°C	FAN	OFF	36	9 15	30	
*	1/2 🔻			j	Save S	ettings		

Outdoor unit setting

4	A Initial Settings A Function1	unction2 > 27/03/2015 13:09	
	Peak-Cut Settings	Air-con Measureme	
C	Controller AE200 Mitsubishi E	lectric	
Outd	oor Units: Address51 Batch Op	erations Copy Pa	ste
	Maximum Capacity	Control Time	100
4	100 90 80 70 60 50	3 6 9 15 30	
3	100 90 80 70 60 50	3 6 9 15 30	
2	100 90 80 70 60 50	3 6 9 15 30	
1	100 90 80 70 60 50	3 6 9 15 30	
0	100 90 80 70 60 50	3 6 9 15 30	
	2/2	Save Settings	

[4] Control action

<1> Energy-saving control for indoor unit

For the energy-saving control by indoor units, select one from 3/6/9/15/30 minutes to specify how many minutes in 30 minutes the control selected in "Control method" will be performed in each group. The groups in an operation block will be controlled in rotation in ascending order of group numbers at equal intervals.

This rotation is controlled so that, if possible, the energy-saving control is not performed at the same timing in some groups in the operation block. Some examples of rotation control timing are shown below.

Reference: When "Control method: Stop" or "Control time: 30 min" has been specified for the energy-saving control, no groups in the operation block can be operated from any controller.

Example of indoor unit rotation 1



Example of indoor unit rotation 2



However, if one operation block has only one group, the control is always performed at the same timing. Note that the control is not performed in rotation in each group.



<2> Energy-saving control for outdoor unit

Energy-saving control for outdoor unit, select a time portion to be applied to the energy-saving control from 3/6/9/15/30 minutes. The operation time is divided evenly by the number of outdoor units, and energy-saving control is performed so that their operation times does not overlap.

Example of rotation of outdoor units



[5] Energy-saving control system design flow

The following are the steps to be taken to execute an energy-saving control plan.

 (1) Decide the energy-saving control

 Energy-saving control

 Perform energy-saving control regardless of the consumed electricity.

 Reduce electric power consumption charge

 Perform energy-saving control according to the consumed electricity.

 Reduce contracted electricity charge

 Perform energy-saving control in addition to the demand controller.

(2)Required Materials

Prepare the materials required for a given energy-saving control system.

(3) Deciding on the level of energy-saving control

Five levels of control needs to be set to perform the peak-cut control.

Take into consideration the current contract demand and target contract demand, and determine the highest level (Level 4). Then determine each of the remaining levels.

[Example] Target contract demand: 100 kW

Level 4:	85	kW ~ 90 kW
Level 3:	75	kW ~ 85 kW
Level 2:	65	kW ~ 75 kW
Level 1:	55	kW ~ 65 kW
Level 0:		~ 55 kW

Determine the value for each _____. The value setting is not required for a system running on the demand controller method because control is performed by the level signals.

(4) Select the energy-saving control method

As an energy-saving control method, choose either [energy-saving control using indoor units],

[energy-saving control using outdoor units], or both. [Example] Use both indoor unit and outdoor unit energy-saving control.

(5) Confirm the energy-saving area

The energy-saving control of indoor units rotate group operation among operation block. The energy-saving control of outdoor units is done by rotating the outdoor unit in numerical order of small address. The control order is sequenced from a small group number. Therefore, you confirm the order of control within the operation

block.

[Example] In the figure shown on the right, Group 1 to Group 6 belong to the same operation block (Office A). In this case, Group 1 and Group 2 on the window side will be controlled consecutively and the room temperature rises temporarily compared to the Group 5 and Group 6 side of the room (in summer).

By rearranging the groups, you can provide energy-saving control with great comfort.

In this case, Group 4 should become Group 2, Group 5 should become Group 3, Group 2 should become Group 4, and Group 3 should become Group 5. By doing so, you can avoid two window side units having energy-saving control at the same time and improve the comfort level.



(6) Control settings

Make appropriate control settings for the operation block and for each outdoor unit. To run an energy-saving control on both indoor and outdoor units at the same level, make a setting for each unit.

[Example] Target contract demand: 100 kW

Level	Office A	Outdoor unit 51
Level 4: 85 kW ~	30 minutes OFF	30 minutes Capacity saving 60%
Level 3: 75 kW ~ 85 kW	6 minutes Fan control	30 minutes Capacity saving 70%
Level 2: 65 kW ~ 75 kW	3 minutes Fan control	30 minutes Capacity saving 80%
Level 1: 55 kW ~ 65 kW	3 minutes Fan control	30 minutes Capacity saving 80%
Level 0: 0 kW ~ 55 kW	3 minutes Temperature	0 minutes N/A

Advantages and disadvantages of various types of control.

	Items	Advantages	Disadvantages
Indoor units	Temperature control (Set temperature ±2°C)	 Although not as energy-saving as other types of control, maintains comfort in a room. 	 Not very energy-saving when room temperature is high. (When the set temperature is 23°C and the room temperature is 29°C, no effects of energy-saving control can be expected when the set temperature is changed from 23°C to 25°C.) The changes in the set temperature are indicated on the remote controller, so the users will know if the unit is running an energy-saving operation.
	Fan control (Thermo OFF)	Energy-saving effect can surely be obtained.	Although solidly energy-saving, the level of comfort in a room may be compromised.
	Stop control	Energy-saving effect can surely be obtained.	 Although solidly energy-saving, the level of comfort in a room may be compromised. Because the unit makes periodical stops, it tends to be mistaken that the unit is having problems.
Outdoor units	Capacity saving	Rapid temperature changes do not occur because the capacity is limited.	When running below the capacity saving value set by the outdoor unit, energy-saving effect cannot be expected.

• For control Level 4, choose a setting that will certainly lower the power consumption. Example: OFF, Thermo OFF Also, set the control time "30 minutes" for Level 4 so that the power consumption will certainly lower.

[6] Peak-cut control method

<1> Peak-cut control methods

Six peak-cut control methods are available.

Set the peak-cut control conditions on the following screen on each of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. The setting and required items for each method are shown below.

No.	Peak-cut method	Required items	Remarks
1	External contact input	 "Energy Management License Pack" license External input adapter Demand controller 	The control level signals from the demand controller are input directly to AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.
2	PL controllor	 "Energy Management License Pack" license External input adapter Pulse detector 	AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 predicts the control level using the pulse input for measurement (electric energy pulse is input directly to AE-200/ AE-50/EW-50).
2		 "Energy Management License Pack" license Measuring MC Pulse detector 	Electric energy pulses are input to the measuring MC, and AE-200/ AE-50/EW-50 predicts the control level.
3	Other systems	 "Energy Management License Pack" license 	The control level is input to AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 through LAN.
4	Electric energy counting PLC	 "Energy Management License Pack" license PLC (a set of CPU, power supply, etc.) Electric energy counting software Pulse detector 	Electric energy pulses are input to the PLC, and AE-200/AE-50/ EW-50 predicts the control level. One electric energy counting PLC can be connected with 14 sets of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.
5	Demand input PLC	 "Energy Management License Pack" license PLC (a set of CPU, power supply, etc.) Demand input PLC software Demand controller Pulse detector 	The control level signals from the demand controller are input to AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 through the PLC and LAN. One demand input counting PLC can be connected with 10 sets of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.
6	Other AE	 "Energy Management License Pack" license 	The peak-cut control levels of other AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 are referred to. * This method can be used only when at least one set of LAN-connected AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 uses any of the peak-cut methods No.1 to No.5. * When using this method, understand that the timing of the peak-cut control is delayed because a delay of up to 1 minute is caused for referring to (monitoring) the peak-cut control levels of other AE-200/ AE-50/EW-50.

<2> Selection of energy-saving/peak-cut control method and setting screen

The six energy-saving/peak-cut control methods are briefly explained below.

- (1) External contact input method
- The demand level signals from the demand controller are input directly to AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.
- (1-1) Connection diagram



Note: When the demand controller is connected to AE-50/EW-50, the demand level can be monitored by other AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

[12. Energy-Saving/Peak-Cut Control]

(1-2) Connection with demand controller



*1 When the contact of the demand controller used is non-voltage, prepare an external power supply. (External DC power supply: +12 V or +24 V)

The control by demand level signals is performed as shown below.





• When "ON/OFF level signal" or "ON/OFF, prohibition/permission pulse signal" has been selected, this method cannot be used.

[12. Energy-Saving/Peak-Cut Control]

(1-3) Required materials The required items are shown in the following table.

Name (Model name)	Maker	Remarks
Centralized controller (AE-200/AE-50/EW-50)	Mitsubishi Electric	
"Energy Management License Pack"	Mitsubishi Electric	Requires for each AE-200/AE-50/EW-50
External input/output adapter (PAC-YG10HA)	Mitsubishi Electric	

(2) Power consumption monitoring method (measuring pulse input method) Electric energy pulses are input directly to AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. For details, see 4.10 "Measuring pulse input."

(2-1) Connection diagram



Note: When the electric energy pulses are connected to AE-200/AE-50/EW-50, the demand level can be monitored by other AE-200/AE-50/ EW-50.

Connecting Watt-hour meter allows conducting the energy-saving control divided into 5 levels (Level 0 to Level 4) by estimating the power consumption for 30 minutes.

Meantime, the control level is judged by AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 with an interval of 1 minute, applying the higher level of control in accordance with the measured power consumption for the past 30 minutes and estimated value.

[How to obtain the estimated value]

Estimated value (kW) = Power consumption in the past 5 minutes (kWh)

6 (Power consumption for 30 minutes) \cdot 2 (kWh \rightarrow kW <30 minutes> converted) ----- ①

An example is shown in the following figure. It is assumed that the control at the energy-saving Level 1 is being conducted in accordance with [Power consumption for the past 30 minutes].

In this occasion, the estimated value after 30 minutes is calculated from [Power consumption for the past 5 minutes] by Equation ①, reaching the energy-saving Level 2. In this case, the energy-saving control set at the energy-saving control Level 2 will be carried out.

By making the energy-saving ineffective temperature difference effective, under the control of Level 0, when the temperature difference between the set and inlet temperature is exceeding 3°C (6°F) to 9°C (18°F) (able to set in a unit of 1°C (2°F)), it is possible not to allow conducting the energy-saving control set at Level 0 in consideration of comfort. (The control set at Level 1 to Level 4 will be conducted regardless of the temperature difference.)



By setting the target demand value and [Stopping control for 30 minutes] of the energy-saving control item, the peak-cut control can be practiced as an application of the level control above.

(2-2) Required materials

The required items are shown in the following table.

Name (Model name)	Maker	Remarks
Centralized controller (AE-200/AE-50/EW-50)	Mitsubishi Electric	
"Energy Management License Pack"	Mitsubishi Electric	Requires for each AE-200/AE-50/EW-50
PI controller	Mitsubishi Electric	It can be used with the one used for the meter charging.

(3) Power consumption monitoring method (PI controller PAC-YG60MCA) Electric energy pulses are input to the measuring MC.

(3-1) Connection diagram



Note: When the electric energy pulses are connected to AE-200/AE-50/EW-50, the demand level can be monitored by other AE-200/AE-50/ EW-50.

Connecting Watt-hour meter allows conducting the energy-saving control divided into 5 levels (Level 0 to Level 4) by estimating the power consumption for 30 minutes.

Meantime, the control level is judged by AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 with an interval of 1 minute, applying the higher level of control in accordance with the measured power consumption for the past 30 minutes and estimated value.
[How to obtain the estimated value]

Estimated value (kW) = Power consumption in the past 5 minutes (kWh)

6 (Power consumption for 30 minutes) \cdot 2 (kWh \rightarrow kW <30 minutes> converted) ----- ①

An example is shown in the following figure. It is assumed that the control at the energy-saving Level 1 is being conducted in accordance with [Power consumption for the past 30 minutes].

In this occasion, the estimated value after 30 minutes is calculated from [Power consumption for the past 5 minutes] by Equation ①, reaching the energy-saving Level 2. In this case, the energy-saving control set at the energy-saving control Level 2 will be carried out.

By making the energy-saving ineffective temperature difference effective, under the control of Level 0, when the temperature difference between the set and inlet temperature is exceeding 3°C (6°F) to 9°C (18°F) (able to set in a unit of 1°C (2°F)), it is possible not to allow conducting the energy-saving control set at Level 0 in consideration of comfort. (The control set at Level 1 to Level 4 will be conducted regardless of the temperature difference.)



By setting the target demand value and [Stopping control for 30 minutes] of the energy-saving control item, the peak-cut control can be practiced as an application of the level control above.

(3-2) Required materials

The required items are shown in the following table.

Name (Model name)	Maker	Remarks
Centralized controller (AE-200/AE-50/EW-50)	Mitsubishi Electric	
"Energy Management License Pack"	Mitsubishi Electric	Requires for each AE-200/AE-50/EW-50

(4) Method by other systems

Demand level signals from other systems are input to AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 through LAN.

(4-1) Connection diagram



(4-2) Required materials

The required items are shown in the following table.

Name (Model name)	Maker	Remarks
Centralized controller (AE-200/AE-50/EW-50)	Mitsubishi Electric	
"Energy Management License Pack"	Mitsubishi Electric	Requires for each AE-200/AE-50/EW-50

(5) Power consumption monitoring method (PLC) Electric energy pulses are input by using the PLC (mounted with the electric energy counting software).

(5-1) Connection diagram



Connecting watt-hour meter (PLC) allows conducting the energy-saving control divided into 5 levels (Level 0 to Level 4) by estimating the power consumption for 30 minutes.

Meantime, the control level is judged by AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 with an interval of 1 minute, and the control of higher level is applied in accordance with the measured power consumption for the past 30 minutes and estimated value.

[How to obtain the estimated value]

Estimated value (kW) = Power consumption in the past 5 minutes (kWh)

 \cdot 6 (Power consumption for 30 minutes) \cdot 2 (kWh \rightarrow kW <30 minutes> converted) ---- \odot

An example is shown in the following figure. It is assumed that the control at the energy-saving Level 1 is being conducted in accordance with [Power consumption for the past 30 minutes].

In this occasion, the estimated value after 30 minutes is calculated from [Power consumption for the past 5 minutes] by Equation ①, reaching the energy-saving Level 2. In this case, the energy-saving control set at the energy-saving control Level 2 will be carried out.

By making the energy-saving ineffective temperature difference effective, under the control of Level 0, when the temperature difference between the set and inlet temperature is exceeding 3°C (6°F) to 9°C (18°F) (able to set in a unit of 1°C (2°F)), it is possible not to allow conducting the energy-saving control set at Level 0 in consideration of comfort. (The control set at Level 1 to Level 4 will be conducted regardless of the temperature difference.)



By setting the target demand value and [Stopping control for 30 minutes] of the energy-saving control item, the peak-cut control can be practiced as an application of the level control above.

(5-2) Required materials

The required items are shown in the following table.

Name (Model name)	Maker	Remarks
Centralized controller (AE-200/AE-50/EW-50)	Mitsubishi Electric	
"Energy Management License Pack"	Mitsubishi Electric	Requires for each AE-200/AE-50/EW-50
Sequencer (PLC)	Mitsubishi Electric	Can be used with the one used for WHM charging.
Electric amount count software (PAC-YG11CDA)	Mitsubishi Electric	

[12. Energy-Saving/Peak-Cut Control]

(6) Peak-cut control by Demand controller (PLC)

The demand level signals from the demand controller are input by using the PLC (mounted with the demand input PLC software).

Note • It is recommended to connect them by the demand level contact input method if the wiring length is not restricted.

(6-1) Connection diagram



(6-2) Required materials

The required items are shown in the following table.

Name (Model name)	Maker	Remarks
Centralized controller (AE-200/AE-50/EW-50)	Mitsubishi Electric	
"Energy Management License Pack"	Mitsubishi Electric	Requires for each AE-200/AE-50/EW-50
Sequencer (PLC)	Mitsubishi Electric	Can be used with the one used for WHM charging.
PLC software for demand input (PC-YG41CDA etc.)	Mitsubishi Electric	

[7] Energy-saving control status/History monitor

<1> Current energy-saving control status

You can confirm whether or not an air-conditioning group is under energy-saving control.

If energy-saving control is ON, operation status icons shown below will be indicated on the display by the AE-200 or web browser, or TG-2000A.



- * When status is monitored, only the air conditioning group under energy-saving control will have icons displayed.
- * During level 0 control, if a difference between the set temperature and return air temp. Is ineffective for energy-saving, energy-saving will not be executed and there will not be an energy-saving control icon on the display for the group.

<2> Peak-cut status history

From the menu bar in the TG-2000A control screen, select [tool]-[peak-cut data] and you will be able to output peak-cut status history daily report and monthly report as a CSV file.1.

The daily and monthly report files will automatically be stored in the automatic trend output folder for two years.

CAUTION	Daily and monthly reports <automatic file="" output=""></automatic>	* TG-2000A is required to use this function.
	The automatic output file i from AE-200/AE-50/EW-50	s automatically created daily (or monthly) as TG-2000A gathers information and PLC. Therefore it is not created if TG-2000A is not running.
	You can manually output TG-2000A database while collected from AE-200/AE	each file from the TG-2000A tool bar. Monthly data will be created from daily data for the current day, the day before and two days before will be -50/EW-50.
		will be created from TG-2000A database.

(1) Peak-cut status history (daily report)

Control level at every one minute and power consumption (kWh) data by the unit of 30 minutes can be output as a CSV file. The daily report can be selected and output for the past 31 days (Maximum).

- * This function for consumed electricity in each 30 minutes is available only in the electricity amount monitoring method.
- * Power consumption for each 30 minutes equals the amount of power consumption (kWh) x 2.
- (2) Peak-cut status history (monthly report)

Power consumption data per day can be output as a CSV file. The monthly report can be selected and output for the past 62 days (Maximum).

* This function is available only for the electricity amount monitoring method.

(3) Creation of daily report/monthly report trend graphs

You can turn a CSV file (trend graph) into a graph using "Trend graph display tool" that comes with TG-2000A.

[Peak-cut status history on AE-200/AE-50 and WEB browser]

(1) Peak-cut status history (daily report)

- The control level at 1 minute intervals and the power consumption in 30 minutes increments (kWh) can be output in the CSV format. The daily reports of today, yesterday, and the day before yesterday can be selected to be output.
- * The power consumption in 30 minutes increments is output only when electric amount monitoring method is selected.
- * Power consumption in 30 minutes increments equals the amount of power consumption (kWh) x 2.

(2) Daily trend graph

Select [Energy management] on the Web browser or the screen of AE-200/AE-50, and select [Peak-cut control status]. The peak-cut status history (daily report) will be displayed in graph form. The graph can show the peak-cut status history of today, yesterday, and the day before yesterday. Also, the displayed data can be downloaded in the CSV format.





13. Interlock Control

[1] Outline

The interlock control is designed to interlock the air conditioners connected to AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. To use the interlock control, it is necessary to register the "Interlock control" license.

<1> Operations which can be realized by interlock control

The following table shows examples of uses of the interlock control which can be realized by registering the optional "Interlock control" license in AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

Example	Interlock item	Usage	Classification of interlock method
1	Interlock among air conditioners (prevention of wasteful operation)	When the representative indoor unit is started or stopped, other indoor units are started or stopped in conjunction with the unit.	
2	Interlock among air conditioners (synchronization of operation mode)	When the operation mode of the representative indoor unit is changed, the operation mode of other indoor units is changed in conjunction the unit.	Interlock control among air conditioners
3	Interlock among air conditioners (backup operation)	An alternative air conditioner is operated in conjunction with the trouble signal of an indoor unit.	-
4	Security interlock	 All air conditioners in the target group are stopped in conjunction with the exit signal of the last exiting person. If necessary, it is possible to set the condition to prohibit the operation of the remote controllers in conjunction with the exit signal (contact) of the last exiting person. The prohibition of operation of the remote controllers of all air conditioners in the target group is canceled in conjunction with the cancel of the exit signal (contact) of the last exiting person. Security system: Exit signal ON/OFF 	Interlock control
5	Interlock between card key and air conditioner	 The air conditioner in a hotel room is started in conjunction with insertion of the card key (presence). The air conditioner in a hotel room is stopped in conjunction with removal of the card key (absence). Card key: Inserted/removed 	between general equipment and air conditioners
6	Interlock with lighting equipment	The air conditioner is started and stopped in conjunction with ON/OFF of lighting equipment.	

Example	Interlock item	Usage	Classification of interlock method
7	Interlock between window operation and air conditioner	The air conditioner is stopped or started in conjunction with window operation (opening or closing). * For hotels, etc., it is required to stop the air conditioner in each room when the window is opened. Window: Open/closed	
8	Interlock with another manufacturer's ventilator	Another manufacturer's ventilator is started and stopped in conjunction with start and stop of air conditioner.	
9	Interlock between air conditioners and another manufacturer's ventilator	When any of the air conditioners A and B is started, another manufacturer's ventilation fan will be started. When all air conditioners A and B are stopped, another manufacturer's ventilation fan will be stopped. Air conditioners A and B: One of them started → Another manufacturer's ventilation fan: Started	
10	Security interlock	Lighting equipment is turned off in conjunction with the exit signal (contact) of the last exiting person. * Example when no interlock is provided between security system and air conditioner Security system: Exist signal ON Lighting: OFF	Interlock between general equipment

<2> Operations which cannot be realized by interlock control Control which cannot be realized by the interlock control is explained below.

Example	Interlock item	Usage	Remarks
A	Interlock between room temperature and operation mode	 When the room temperature (suction temperature) reaches 30°C, cooling operation will be started. When the room temperature (suction temperature) reaches 10°C, heating operation will be started. 	The room temperature (suction temperature) cannot be used as an interlocking source condition.
В	Interlock between card key and air conditioner temperature setting	 When a guest is absent in a hotel room (the card key has been removed), the set cooling temperature will be raised in the summer. When a guest is absent in a hotel room (the card key has been removed), the set heating temperature will be reduced in the winter. 	The interlock operation activated by one signal cannot be varied between cooling and heating.
С	Interlock between demand signal and air conditioner	 The set cooling and heating temperatures of air conditioner are shifted in conjunction with the demand signal. When the demand signal is canceled, the set cooling/heating temperature of air conditioner is returned to the value before the activation. The air conditioner is stopped in conjunction with activation of demand signal. When the demand signal is canceled, the air conditioner is returned to the state before the activation. (It is possible only to stop the air conditioner by the demand signal.) 	The temperature shift function is not provided. The function to return the operation to the previous state is not provided.
D	Interlock by outdoor temperature	 The air conditioner is stopped or the ventilator is started in conjunction with the outdoor temperature. When the outdoor temperature is comfort, the air conditioner is stopped. When the outdoor temperature is lower than the indoor temperature, the air conditioner is stopped, and the ventilator is operated to take in the outdoor air for cooling. 	Factors, such as temperature, humidity and CO ₂ concentration, which change linearly cannot
E	Switching of ventilation fan speed according to CO ₂ sensor value	The ventilation fan speed level is changed according to the CO_2 sensor value. (The fan speed can be used as an interlocking source condition if a signal is given when the concentration reaches the set value on the CO_2 sensor side.)	be set as interlocking source conditions.
F	Interlock control of outdoor unit	 The capacity of outdoor unit is saved by the contact input from the host system. The outdoor unit is operated in the night mode by the contact input from the host system. 	Interlock control to outdoor unit cannot be performed.

[2] Selection of interlock control method and system configuration

<1> Selection of interlock control method

The interlock control can be achieved by using AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 or PLC for general equipment. This document explains the method by using AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

Item	Method by using AE-200/AE-50/EW-50
Features	 Interlock can be set across AE-200, AE-50 and EW-50 Ver. 7.5 or later. More than one device can be selected as interlocking sources for one interlock control condition. Interlock control among air conditioners can be realized. Interlock control between general equipment connected to the DIDO controller and air conditioners can be realized. Interlock control among general equipment connected to the DIDO controller can be realized. Interlock control among general equipment connected to the DIDO controller can be realized. Interlock control among general equipment connected to the DIDO controller can be realized. Interlock control among general equipment connected to the DIDO controller. One contact is counted as one connected device. A general equipment connected to a free contact of an indoor unit can be set as an interlocking source or destination.
Place of registration of interlock conditions	Each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50
Number of interlock conditions	 200 (150 for Ver. 7.46 or earlier) conditions for each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 Interlocked control of units that are connected via an expansion controller is possible on Ver. 7.50 or later.
Interlock setting	 To be set from the Initial Setting Tool on Ver. 7.5 or later To be set from the Initial Setting Web on Ver. 7.46 or earlier (or from the interlock setting tool)
Required items 1	Main unit of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 "Interlock control" license
Required items 2 Items required only for setting	Initial Setting Tool (personal computer and LAN)
Required items 3 For connection of general equipment	 DIDO controller (PAC-YG66DCA) Adapter for remote start/stop (PAC-SE55RA): When free contact is used M-control remote display kit (PAC-YU80HK): When free contact is used

<2> System outline

The system outline is explained below.

<In the case of interlock control among air conditioners>



<Interlock control between air conditioner and general equipment connected to general-purpose DC>



<Interlock control between air conditioner and general equipment connected to free contact>



Remarks O For the items and setting necessary for interlock control by using AE-200/AE-50/EW-50, see 13.-3 "Interlock control using AE-200/AE-50/EW-50." O For the connection of general equipment to the DIDO controller, see 6.-3 "DIDO controller."

[3] Interlock control using AE-200/AE-50/EW-50

<1> Features

The interlock control of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 sends a predetermined signal to the interlocking destinations (output destinations) (5) when any change is caused in the status of the interlocking sources (input sources) (1) as shown in the following figure.

The device status set in the interlocking source table is obtained every 3 to 5 seconds, and, if any change is found in the interlocking source table @, the units registered in the interlocking destination table @ are operated as specified in the interlock operation table @.

These settings have been registered in AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.



Interlocks of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 can be set by two methods, by registering directly from the Web browser of AE-200/ AE-50/EW-50 and by using the interlock setting tool.

For the procedures for registering from the Web browser, see 13.-[3]-<3> "Interlock setting by Web browser" and "Operation of Web Browser for Initial Setting" in the Instruction Book.

For the procedures by using the interlock setting tool, see 13.-[3]-<4> "Interlock control setting by interlock setting tool" and the Instruction Book for interlock setting tool for AE-200/AE-50.

Remarks	OMake the settings for AE-200 when performing interlocked control across AE-200, AE-50, or EW-50. When the range of control is limited within AE-200, AE-50, or EW-50, make the settings for each type of controllers.
	O "ON/OFF" and "Error" of general equipment, "Contact input ON/OFF" of free contacts and "ON/OFF" of air conditioners can be used as input signals from the interlocking sources.
	 ○ For the interlock control to general equipment, "ON/OFF" can be set. ○ For the interlock control to free contacts, "ON/OFF" can be set.

 Do not set conditions under which processing as shown below is repeated. The ON/OFF operations in the conditions 1 and 2 will be repeated permanently, and the air conditioners may be disordered. Condition 1: When Group 1 is turned on, Group 1 is turned off. Condition 2: When Group 1 is turned off, Group 1 is turned on.

<2> Required materials

Required items	Description
AE-200/AE-50/EW-50	
"Interlock control" license	The license must be registered in each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 connected to the devices to be interlocked.
Personal computer for Web browser *1	Required to set the interlocks of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.
Interlock setting tool *1	Tool for creating interlock setting data on a personal computer and writing and reading the data into and from AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 through LAN or USB.

*1: The interlocks of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 can be set by any of these methods. (Both are not required.)

When general equipment are connected to the DIDO controller, the following items are required.

Required items	Description
DIDO controller (PAC-YG66DCA)	6 general equipment can be connected one DIDO controller. One M-NET address is used for one general equipment. (When 6 general equipment are connected to one DIDO controller, 6 M-NET addresses are used.)
External input/output adapter (PAC-YG10HA)	When 3 or 4 general equipment are connected to one DIDO controller, one unit of the following external input/output adapter is required. When 5 or 6 general equipment are connected to one DIDO controller, two units are required.
Power supply unit for transmission line PAC-SC51KUA Power supply extension unit for transmission line PAC-SF46EPA	When the DIDO controller is connected to AE-200/AE-50/EW-50, the power supply unit for transmission line is required. The DIDO controller can be connected to EW-50 without the power supply unit. However, if a DIDO controller or a system remote controller whose power supply capacity exceeds that of EW-50, 6, is connected to the transmission line for centralized control, the power supply unit for transmission line or the power supply expansion unit for transmission line is required.
Connection with general equipment (relay circuit, power supply, etc.)	To connect general equipment and DIDO controller (PAC-YG66DCA), field instrumentation work, such as connection through a relay, is required.*

* The distance from general-purpose DC to general equipment must be up to 100 m. It is recommended to connect them within 10 m.

To connect a general equipment to the free contact of an indoor unit, also the following items are required.

Required items	Description
Adapter for remote start/stop	Required to connect general equipment to free contact of indoor unit. The status of the general equipment can be connected to the input (2 points).
M-control remote display kit	Required to connect general equipment to free contact of indoor unit. The status of the general equipment can be connected to the input (2 points) and the output for operation (3 points).
Connection with general equipment (relay circuit, power supply, etc.)	To connect a general equipment and the free contact of an indoor unit, field instrumentation work, such as connection through a relay, is required.

* The distance from the free contact of an indoor unit to a general equipment must be up to 10 m.

<3> Interlock setting

Remarks	O To use the interlock control function, another license is required. Ensure that the required license has been correctly registered on the Optional function license registration screen.
	O If you have logged in as an administrator user, the interlock control setting may be prohibited.
	O When "External input setting" has been set to "ON/OFF mode (level input)," the interlock control is not enabled.
	O When changing or deleting a group selected as an interlocking source device or an interlocking destination device on the group setting screen, delete the interlock control settings for the group, and reset the conditions as needed.

(1) Setting of conditions for interlocking sources

Setting of interlocking source type and interlock conditions

Select an interlocking source type and interlock conditions 1 and 2 referring to the following table.

Interlock conditions for each interlocking source type and unit of device selection

Options for	Interlocking	Options for interlock conditions *1 *2		Unit of interlocking source	
interlocking source type	source icon	Interlocking source condition (upper stage)	Interlocking source condition (lower stage)	selection	
Group (ON/OFF) 3		All Groups On All Groups Off One or more Groups On One or more Gropus Off	_	Group	
Group (Mode) *4*5		All groups in the mode All groups out of the mode One or more groups in the mode One or more groups out of the mode	Cool, Dry, Fan, Heat, Auto, Setback Bypass(LOSSNAY), Heat Recovery(LOSSNAY), Auto(LOSSNAY)	Group	
Group (Error/Normal)		All units in error, All units in normal operation, One or more units in error, One or more units in normal operation	_	Group	
Free input points (ON/OFF)		All Units On, All Units Off, One or more Units On, One or more Units Off	_	Unit (contact)	

*1: For the interlock conditions 1 and 2, select the status after change of the status of interlocking source device from the right column of the following table.

(The devices are in the status shown in the left column before change of the status.)

Before change of status of interlocking source device	After change of status of interlocking source device
Stop of one or more groups	Start of all groups
Start of one or more groups	Stop of all groups
Stop of all groups	Start of one or more groups
Start of all groups	Stop of one or more groups

*2: More than one interlocking source type cannot be selected for one interlock condition.

*3: When Group (ON/OFF) or Group (Error/Normal) is selected as the interlocking source type, a group of air conditioners, LOSSNAY or general-purpose DC (PAC-YG66DCA) can be selected from the interlocking source devices.

*4: When Group (Mode) is selected, functions which the interlocking source devices do not have cannot be interlocked. If any function other than the functions of these devices is set, the devices may be damaged.

*5: When Group (Mode) is selected, the group of general-purpose DC (PAC-YG66DCA) cannot be set as an interlocking source device.

(2) Setting of operation at interlocking destination

Setting of interlocking destination type and interlock operation Select an interlocking destination type and interlock operation referring to the following table.

Options for	Interlocking	Options for interlock operation *1			
destination destination		Item	Options	Selection unit	
Group *1 *2 *3		ON/OFF	ON OFF		
		Mode	(Air conditioner) Cool Dry Fan Heat Auto Setback (LOSSNAY) Bypass Heat Recovery Auto		
	_	Set Temp.	14 to 35°C (Cool, Dry) 4.5 to 28°C (Heat) 14 to 28°C (Auto)		
	Ail Fa Pr Cc Op (0) (M (S)	Air Direction	Mid 3 Mid 2 Mid 1 Mid 0 Horizontal Swing Auto	Group	
		Fan Speed	Low Mid 2 Mid 1 High Auto		
		Prohibit Remote Controller Operation (ON/OFF) (Mode) (Set Temp.)	Permitted Prohibited		
Free output points		ON/OFF	ON OFF	Unit (contact)	

Interlock operation of each interlocking destination type and selection unit

*1: When Group is selected as the interlocking destination type, a group of air conditioners, LOSSNAY or general-purpose DC (PAC-YG66DCA) can be selected from the interlocking destination devices.

*2: Do not set a different type of group (air conditioners, LOSSNAY or general-purpose DC (PAC-YG66DCA)) as the interlocking source device.

*3: When Group (Mode) is selected, functions which the interlocking source devices do not have cannot be interlocked. If any function other than the functions of these devices is set, the devices may be damaged.

<4> Cautions for system configuration

- 1. Do not configure a system which may affect human life.
 - Do not configure a system which will interlock devices in case of disaster or emergency.
 - The interlock control cannot be performed when a power failure occurs or a device, such as AE-200/AE-50/EW-50, is disabled.
 - Do not configure a control system associated with disaster prevention or security. If such a system is configured for an unavoidable reason, take into consideration the measures to be taken upon occurrence of power failure.
 - In any case, provide a switch circuit which can stop the system in an emergency, e.g. trouble with AE-200/AE-50/ EW-50.
- 2. Design a system in consideration of lag in interlocking.
 - It takes 10 seconds (in the case of 1 unit) to 90 seconds (in the case of some units) to complete the operation at the interlocking destination after the status of the interlocking source changes. However, it may take up to 3 minutes depending on the device status.
 - When control other than the interlock control, e.g. scheduled operation or energy-saving control, is executed concurrently, a delay may be caused in interlock control.
 - When the ON/OFF mode (level input) has been selected for external input, the interlock control will not be performed.
 - Time may be required for execution of the control depending on the system condition.
- 3. Conduct test runs to check the interlocks among devices.
 - If any change is made in the air conditioner group configuration in AE-200/AE-50/EW-50, check the interlocking sources and destinations without fail.
 - If settings made before the group configuration is changed are left, unspecified interlocks will work.
 - If any devices in the system are powered off or disabled, the interlock control will not work normally.
 - The interlock control will start immediately after the power supply of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 is started.
- 4. Others
 - Set the interlock conditions within the operating ranges of the interlocking destination and source devices.
 - Setting out of the ranges may cause malfunction or damage the devices.
 - More than one interlocking source type cannot be selected for one interlock.
 - Up to 50 units can be connected to one set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50^{*}.
 - The general equipment controlled by the DIDO controller are counted by replacing the number of general equipment contacts by the number of units.
 - * Indoor units, LOSSNAY, DIDO controllers and AI controllers
- 5. Free contacts of indoor units
 - The free contacts can be used when the software version of the indoor units applicable to R410A or R407C is 33 or later. (Check the software version of the indoor units with the Maintenance Tool.)
- 6. The interlock control cannot be performed in the following cases.
 - When the signals for energy-saving control or peak-cut control to the group is "Stop" or "Prohibition of operation" However, the interlock control of the indoor unit free contacts and the interlock control of the DIDO controller can be performed.
 - When the external input signal is "Emergency stop" However, the interlock control of the indoor unit free contacts can be performed.
 - When the external input signal is "ON/OFF (level input)"

<5> System design for the general equipment to be connected to the free contact point on the indoor unit

(1) Indoor unit selection and switch setting method

In order to monitor and control general equipment connected to the free contact point on the indoor unit, choose an R410A-compatible indoor unit.*1

In order to make the function of the free contact point effective, set the dipswitch (SW1) as the following while the unit is stopped.

*1: Free contact point may be used by R410A compatible indoor units or R407C compatible indoor units (S/W version 33 or later). Check the S/W version of the indoor units with the Maintenance Tool.

Indoor unit SW1		Eurotion	
No.5	No.9	No.10	FullClion
ON	ON	ON	Free contact point function is effective (Auto-recovery after power failure)
OFF	ON	ON	Free contact point function is effective (Normal operation (remains stopped after power restoration))

(2) Verifying the input/output specifications of the general equipment

Confirm the general equipment to be connected to the free contact point on the indoor unit.

Those general equipment to be controlled must be able to handle the following signals because controlling and monitoring of the equipment is performed via the connected indoor unit.

	Signal specifications	Contact point specifications	Connector number
Operation	Relay contact point output	Output signal1 to 3 Contact point ON Contact point OFF Output OFF Output ON	Output 1 : CN52-2 Output 2 : CN52-3 Output 3 : CN52-4
Monitor	Level input with or without voltage	Intput signal1 to 4 Contact point ON Contact point OFF Input OFF Input ON	Input 1 : CN32-2 Input 2 : CN32-3 Input 3 : CN51-2 Input 4 : CN52-5

(3) Specifications for free contact point connection

When using input 1 and 2 (CN32), connect a remote maneuvering adapter (PAC-SE55RA) on the indoor unit, and send input signals to the indoor unit via a relay.



SW1	Switch for input 1 CN32-2 port
SW2	Switch for input 2 CN32-3 port
Х, Ү	Relay (Contact point: Minimum applied load 12 VDC 1 mA)

For using the input 3 (CN51), input 4, output 1, output 2, output 3 (CN52), input the signal via a relay using adapter PAC-SA88MA connected to indoor unit.



<In the case of with-voltage input (with-polarity)>

External power supply	12 to 24 VDC Input current (per a contact) about 10 mA (12 VDC)
SW12	Switch for Input CN51-port 2
SW22	Switch for Input CN52-port 5

<In the case of non-voltage input>

SW11	Switch for Input CN51-port 2	
SW21	Switch for Input CN52-port 5	
Contact rating current 12 VDC 1 mA		

<Relay contact output>

Power supply for the display	30 VDC A 100 ADC/200 ADC 1 A
L1	Operation status display lamp
L2	Error status display lamp
L3	Lamp for Output CN52-port 2
L4	Lamp for Output CN52-port 3
L5	Lamp for Output CN52-port 4
XA to XE	Relay (current capacity 10 mA to 1 A)

14. Connection of AHC

[1] Outline

The operation condition, error status, temperature and humidity of the devices connected to the AHC can be monitored on the screen of AE-200/AE-50 or the Web browser.

Note: The devices connected to the AHC cannot be started or stopped from AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

The AHC (Advanced HVAC CONTROLLER) is a generic name for combinations of SIMPLE APPLICATION CONTROLLER $\alpha 2$ (hereinafter, referred to as $\alpha 2$) and AHC Adapter made by Mitsubishi Electric Corporation. One AHC requires one $\alpha 2$ and one AHC Adapter. More than one $\alpha 2$ cannot be connected to one AHC Adapter.

On a PC on which the α 2 programming tool has been installed, the interlock control can be set (programmed) for α 2. This enables the interlock control between M-NET devices and other manufacturers' devices or between other manufacturers' devices.

Note: The interlock control for devices connected to the AHC cannot be set (programmed) from AE-200/AE-50/EW50.

The following $\alpha 2$ controllers are applicable to the AHC.

- AL2-14MR-A
- AL2-14MR-D
- AL2-24MR-A
- AL2-24MR-D

Note: AL2-10MR-A and AL2-10MR-D cannot be connected with $\alpha 2$.

Up to 50 AHCs can be connected to each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. However, when air conditioners are connected, the following restrictions are imposed.

When the maintenance monitors are connected: The maximum number of indoor units and AHCs is 60.

When maintenance monitors are not connected: The maximum number of indoor units and AHCs is 70.

When using the AHC, connect at least one remote controller or centralized controller that is compatible with the AHC. As the AHC status cannot be displayed if no controller is connected, it may not be possible to observe the error status. The AHC must be set to a group containing at least one indoor unit. A maximum of one AHC can be connected to a group.

For the AHC, a program appropriate to the customer's requirements can be prepared on a PC.



Note: The indication of the power supplies is omitted.

[2] System configuration

<1> Connected devices



<2> Required devices

Table Required devices				
Device name	Manufacturer	Remarks		
SIMPLE APPLICATION CONTROLLER α2	Mitsubishi Electric Corporation	The DC type and AC type are available. For the DC type, a 24 V DC power supply is required. To use analog input and output (temperature/humidity sensor and CO2 sensor), the DC type α 2 is required.		
AHC Adapter	Mitsubishi Electric Corporation	The power consumption factor is 0.5. Connect the power supply unit or transmission booster unit as needed.		
Maintenance Tool	Mitsubishi Electric Corporation	It is necessary to install the Maintenance Tool on the PC for setting. The Maintenance Tool must be installed without fail for the input of the devices connected to the AHC. It can be installed also on the PC for Web browser.		
"Maintenance Tool" license	Mitsubishi Electric Corporation	The license must be registered for each set of AE-200/AE-50/ EW-50. When connecting using the MN converter (CMS-MNF-B/CMS- MNG- E), the license is unnecessary.		
α2 programming tool	Mitsubishi Electric Corporation	For programming, it is necessary to install this tool on the PC for setting. It can be installed also on the PC for Web browser.		
Connection cable (AL-232CAB) between α 2 and PC	Mitsubishi Electric Corporation	It is necessary to download the program prepared on the PC to $\alpha 2$. The connection cable is required only when the program is downloaded to $\alpha 2$.		

<3> Examples of control

	Table Examples of control	
AHC function	Example of control	Supplementary note
 Control of another manufacturer's device using suction sensor of indoor unit or remote controller sensor 	 Another manufacturer's heater can be interlocked by using the temperature sensor of the indoor unit or remote controller. 	Since the sensor of the indoor unit or remote controller can be used, it is unnecessary to install a new sensor.
(2) Control of another manufacturer's device interlocked with unit con- nected to M-NET	 Interlock control can be performed to run another manufacturer's heater when an indoor unit is running or in the heating mode. Interlock control can be performed to run another manufacturer's humidifier when even one of indoor units is running. 	
(3) Control of unit connected to M-NET	 On/off control of indoor unit interlocked with connection and disconnection of card reader can be performed. 	
(4) Control in combination of above (1) to (3)	• The drying operation of indoor unit can be controlled by using the humidity sensor on the remote controller.	
(5) Monitoring of input/output status of α2 on AE-200/AE-50/EW-50		

.

.. –

[In the case of interlock control with another manufacturer's heater]



<4> List of functions which can be displayed on AE-200/AE-50

The data displayed on AE-200/AE-50 are shown below.

However, the names can be changed on the Web browser. For details, see 14.[3]<6> "Setting of individual names of AHC ports."

	Table F	unction list	
Digital Input (On/off display)	Analog Input	Digital Output (On/off display)	Analog Output (% display)
Heater Error	Room Temp (°C/°F)	Heater	Heater (Linear)
Heater 1 Error	Outdoor Temp (°C/°F)	Heater 1	Humidifier (Linear)
 Heater 2 Error 	• SA Temp (°C/°F)	Heater 2	Damper (Linear)
 Humidifier Error 	 Water Temp (°C/°F) 	Humidifier	 Fan (Linear)
Dehumidifier Error	Other Temp (°C/°F)	Dehumidifier	Valve (Linear)
Fan Error	Room Humidity (%)	• Fan	Pump (Linear)
 Fan Error (Heater) 	Outdoor Humidity (%)	Fan for Heater	 External Unit (Linear)
 Fan Error (Humidifier) 	CO ₂ Sensor (ppm)	Fan for Humidifier	
 External Unit Error 	Static Pressure Sensor (%)	Damper	
 Brightness Sensor 	Brightness Sensor (%)	Valve	
 Occupancy Sensor 	Water Level (%)	Pump	
Pomp Interlock	Other Sensor (%)	Error Output	
Key Input		Light	
Other Input		 Ventilation 	
		Key Output	
		External Unit	

<5> List of connected models

The input/output data held by our air conditioners include information input from the units connected to M-NET and data output to operate the units connected to M-NET. Table shows a list of the units holding input data and the units which can be operated.

Table Possibility of interlock control

Unit name	Input (capture of information)	Output (unit operation)
Indoor Unit (I/U)	Possible	Possible
Outdoor Unit (O/U)	Possible	Possible
Remote Controller (R/C)	Possible	Impossible
LOSSNAY	Possible	Possible
Air to Water (PWFY)	Possible	Possible
Hot Water Heat Pump (CAHV) *	Possible	Possible
AHC	Impossible	Possible

* Hot Water Heat Pump (CAHV) is not available in North America.

[3] Initial setting of AHC

<1> Transition of initial setting

To control the system with the AHC, it is necessary to perform programming with "ALVLS Programming Software", initial setting for AHC ADAPTER and registration of the AHC group.

(1)Programming

Program the interlock control between the devices connected to the AHC and the devices on M-NET using "ALVLS Programming Software".



(2)Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER

<I/O port setting>

Register other manufacturers' devices connected to the AHC.

Attens		14	A second	char	P	Atres	P4	AHC				Date Tree	£			
Cores	the family		10	Port	lating .		-	terring	Operations	Operational Status Listing		Common farming		Common Larray		
Di/Willer	Digital/Ans	-	Not Use/U		Function Fe	-		00/40	Date/Analy	RA Uner's		Future New				
25/40 01	Aning	•	Aller-		Cualities In	- C.P.	8.0	DOD	Dani	Line		(mante				
15/4 15	Analog	•	1.000		O.REAR TH	- cr	1.0	10.02	Dyna	Lton		Heater 1				
05/46-08	Anaba		Use .		Name Income	C 90 B	1.0	00-08	Date	Line		Heater 2				
53/W 04	Digital		Uter -		Hotor 2 a	-		00.04	Dytul	Um		Hanidike				
CD/4E 05	Digital	٠	Line		(hhankit)	-		00.05	Dyna	Une		Consumitive				
03/10/04	Digital		1000		Other more			00.06	Date	100		Pan				
05/49-00	Ligital		Use		literari e			00.07	Date	Use		Tan for header				
51/4 W	Digital		Liter.		Healer are	e		DO DE	Dyna	LAw		Part for Isanid/Sec				
EE 0#	Digital		Line		Permitteet	and in		DO 08	Døvi	1240	٠	Danger .				
22.60	Date		line !	. *	Celumite	r arme		80.01	Dyne	(be		Inder				
0111	Date		100		Digitizes	-		80.00	Date	Int Los						
DL1E	Digital		Liter.	. •	Photos on			80.08	Dyna	Ren Uker	٠					
0118	Eight		Une.		frequents.	aireast.		80.04	Deni	Apr Line						
8214	Digital		100		Hey mant			90.01	Ante	- Marchaine		starter tarent				
2115	Date		UNP		OTHER MAN			AD-LE	Ave	And Chev.		PLANETAR (Limps)				
0.01	Dytal		Shet Mar-					Lagard 2	ALL A LARGE							
0.02	fignal		Day Line													
0.05	Dignal		Port Line.					-01	ine 0	8		04.0 04				
0.04	Date		within .													

<Sensor information setting>

Register the information on the sensors to be controlled by the AHC among the M-NET devices.



(3)Setting of individual names of devices connected to AHC The data set by the Maintenance Tool will be displayed in "AHC port names" on the administrator Web browser.

Change the names as needed.



[LCD]

The operation condition of the devices connected to the AHC can be checked on the LCD or the administrator Web browser.



<Operation information setting>

Register the settings of operation information on the units to be controlled by the AHC among the M-NET devices.



<Operation device setting>

Register the settings for operation of the M-NET devices from the AHC.



[LCD]

Touch Status of related equipment, and the operation condition, temperature, humidity and error status of the M-NET devices set by the Maintenance Tool can be checked.



<2> Programming

To control the air conditioners connected to M-NET and other manufacturers' air conditioners by using the AHC, program the control on a PC on which "ALVLS Programming Software" has been installed. For the details of programming, see the technical manual for AHC.



<3> Registration of AHC in group

Register the M-NET address of the AHC in AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

- Note: Only one AHC can be registered in one group.
- Note: Register the AHC in a group in which indoor units have been registered.
- (The AHC can be registered in any group of indoor units.)
- Note: Do not register the AHC in any group in which water heaters, LOSSNAY, HWHP (CAHV) or DIDO controller have been registered.
- Note: When connecting more than one AHC, register each AHC in another group of indoor units.
- Note: If the indoor units in a group in which the AHC has been registered are deleted, the registered AHC will be also deleted.



The M-NET address of AHC can be seen by removing the cover of $\alpha 2$.



<4> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to AHC)

(1) I/O port setting

Associate the information on the devices connected to the ports of $\alpha 2$ on a PC on which the Maintenance Tool has been installed.

For the details of setting procedure, see Chapter 3.18 "Initial Settings and Monitoring AHC ADAPTER" of the manual for Maintenance Tool for MN converter & Centralized Controller.

The following example shows the registration in the case where a temperature sensor, a humidity sensor, a motion sensor, a fan and a pump are connected.



Address	214		Change		Char		attribute	AHC				DateTime_
Connec	ion Setting I/Q Port Setting		Setting Sento	r Setting	Operational	Status Settin	Operation Setting					
N/Al Set	ting Digital/Analo	2	NOT USE/US		Function Name	DO/AO	Setting Digital/Analog	Not Use/U		Function Name		
10 IA/JI	Analog	٠	Use		Room temp(" C/" F) ·	DO 01	Digital	Use		Fan		
01/AI 02	Analog	٠	Use		Room humidity(%) +	00.02	Digital	Use		Pump .		
01/AI 03	Digital	-	Use.	-	Brightness sensor -	DO 03	Digital	Not Use	•			
06/AI 04	Digital		Not Use	12		00.04	Digital	Not Use				
DL/AL 05	Digital	•	Not Use			DO 05	Digital	Not Use				
DE/AL 05	Digital	٠	Not Use			DO 06	Digital	Not Use				
01/A1 07	Digital	٠	Not Use			00 07	Digital	Not Use	٠			
01/AI 08	Digital	٠	Not-Use			00.00	Digital	Not Use				
DE 08	Digital		Not Use	*	1	DO 09	Dighal	Not Use	٠			
01 10	Digital		Not Use			EO 01	Digital	Not User	1			
DE 11	Digital		Not Use		2	EO 02	Digital	Not Uw		-		
DI 12	Digital		Not Use	1.		EO 03	Digital	Not Line				
DÉ13	Digital		Not Use	10		E0.04	Digital	Not Use	+			
DE 14	Digital		Not Use	٠	C	AQ 01	Analog	Not Like				
DE 15	Digital		Not Use			AO 02	Analog	Not User				
E 01	Digital		Not Use			Excand 1	Andule Setting					
E 02	Digital		Not Use			Differio i	and provide					
EI 03	Digital		Not Use	-	- *		None 01	B	IV B	OA 🔿 OI		
E 04	Digital		Not Use		-							



	Connected device	Digital/Analog	Not Use/Use	Function Name
DI/AI 01	Temperature sensor	Analog	Use	Room Temp (°C/°F)
DI/AI 02	Humidity sensor	Analog	Use	Room humidity (%)
DI/AI 03	Motion sensor	Digital	Use	Brightness sensor
DO 01	FAN	Digital	Use	FAN
DO 02	Pump	Digital	Use	Pump

Remarks	O To display the outdoor temperature by the energy management function, connect the temperature sensor to DI/AI 01 or DI/AI 02. If it is connected to another port, the outdoor temperature will not be displayed on the energy management screen.
	○ The Function names to be displayed on the LCD screen or Web browser can be changed. For details, see %[3]<6> "Setting of AHC port names."

<5> Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to M-NET)

Set the operation information and contents of operations of the sensors and units to be controlled by the AHC among the M-NET devices.

For the details of setting procedure, see Chapter 3.18 "Initial Settings and Monitoring AHC ADAPTER" of the manual for Maintenance Tool for MN converter & Centralized Controller.

(1) Setting of sensor information

Click the Sensor Setting tag, and register the sensors and M-NET addresses of the M-NET devices to be controlled by the AHC.

Correction Setting		-	teritoute	AHO			DateTime
	1/O Port Setting		Senior Set	He .	Opinitional Sta	tue Setting	Operation Setting
Nam	r .	_	MINET	Atleus	-	and the second	-
		1			le le		
Room tamp(1/U)2		1			-		
Dutdoor tempt		51			10		
Duttioor terrigit		51			-		
nlet water templ PMPV/t		1					
inlet water temp(PV/PV/2		1					
Outlet water terrg(PWFY)1		1			10		
Dutlet water templ PWFY12		1			-		
hiet water temp(CAHV)1		1			10		
inlet water templ(CAHV)2		1			10		
Outlet water temp(CAHV)1		1			6		
Outlet water templ CAHVI2		3			le le		
Representative water templo	CAHVA .	1			10		
Representative water terrol (CARRY DZ	1			10		

Name	M-NET address range
Room temp (I/U) 1, 2	1 to 50
Room temp (R/C) 1, 2	151 to 200
Indoor humidity 1, 2	151 to 200
Indoor occupancy sensor 1, 2	151 to 200
Indoor brightness sensor 1, 2	51 to 100
Outdoor temp 1, 2	1 to 50
Inlet water temp (PWFY) 1, 2	1 to 50
Outletwater temp (PWFY) 1, 2	1 to 50
Inletwater temp (CAHV) 1, 2	1 to 50
Outletwater temp (CAHV) 1, 2	1 to 50
Representative water temp (CAHV) 1, 2	1 to 50

(2) Setting of operation information

Click the Operational Status Setting tag, and register the operational status and M-NET addresses of the M-NET devices to be controlled by the AHC.

Address 214 Oberge	termine into	Attribute AHO		DeteTime
Connection Setting 1/O Port Se	eting	Sensor Setting	Operational Statue Setting	Operation Setting
Name		M-NET Astress	ANEL/OR	Contenta
Saf komp for heated	1			
Set temp. for heating?	2		-	
Air conditioner ON/OFF1	T			
Air conditioner ON/OFT2	2		(m)	
Air conditioner model	5		-	1000 C
Air conditioner mode2	6		6	
Indoor unit thermo1	T		-	
Indoor unit thermo?	2		(
Indoor unit capacity cave1	1			
Indoor unit capacity save?	2			
Set humidity	-			
Ventilation ON/OFF1	10		10	
Ventilation ON/OFF2	116		-	
Humidilier ON/OFF1	12			
Humidifier ON/OFF2	13		-	
Outdoor unit capacity save!	51		(m)	
Outdoor unit capacity save2	51			
Heat source ON/OFFI	4			
Heat source ON/OFF2	1			
Det water terral OAHVH	1			1
Edit				

Name	M-NET address range
Set temp.for heating 1, 2	1 to 50
Set temp.for cooling 1, 2	1 to 50
Air conditioner ON/OFF 1, 2	1 to 50
Air conditioner mode 1, 2	1 to 50
Indoor unit thermo 1, 2	1 to 50
Indoor unit capacity save 1, 2	1 to 50
Set humidity	-
Ventilation ON/OFF 1, 2	1 to 50
Humidifier ON/OFF 1, 2	1 to 50
Outdoor unit capacity save 1, 2	51 to 100
Heat sorce ON/OFF 1, 2	1 to 50
Set water temp (CAHV) 1, 2	1 to 50
Analog signal 1, 2	—
unit error 1, 2	1 to 50
M-NET communication error	-
M-NET popwer supply status inf?	-
defrost 1, 2	1 to 50

(3) Setting of operation devices

Click the Operational Setting tag, and register the contents of operations and M-NET addresses of the M-NET devices to be operated by the AHC.

	-17	1		Prill Book						41918-
Correction Setting 1/O Pun Setting			Serror	or Setting	Operation	al Sta	itue Setting	Openation S	Operation Setting	
	Narra		-		-NET Address	G		P	ort Number	
ON/OFF operat	tion 1		£				10			_
ON/OFF operat	Ion 2		2				4	-		_
Mode operation										
Mode operation	2		2				18	-		_
Indoor unit cap	solty save ope	ration 1	3				18	-		
Indoor unit cap	outy nave cos	ration 2	4				à	-		
Fan speed open	stion		4				-14			
Fan speed open	ation?		2				12	-		
Ventilation open	ation 1		1					-		
Ventilation oper	etton 2		2				12	-		_
Outdoor unit ca	mecky save p	Definition 1	51				- lê			
Outdoor unit ca	quicity save o	peration 2	52							
Heat source Of	4/GPF openat	bn t	TI.							
Heat source CR	VOFF openid	ipin 2	12				1	1		
Direct control o	cention		201				. la	DO ÚT		
Direct suritive of	sanation2		201				1	D(1 02		
Direct portrol o	Brothnog		201				j.	DO 00		
Direct control o	Protereq		-				1	DO 01		
Direct control o	porntion6		-				1	DO OF		
Direct control o	Brothneg		-				1	00.01		
Ex.										

Name	M-NET address range
ON/OFF operation 1, 2	1 to 50
Mode operation 1, 2	1 to 50
Indoor unit capacity save operation 1, 2	1 to 50
Fan speed operation 1, 2	1 to 50
Ventilation operation 1, 2	1 to 50
Outdoor unit capacity save operation 1, 2	51 to 100
Heat source ON/OFF operation 1, 2	1 to 50
Direct control operation 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10	201 to 250

<6> Setting of individual names of AHC ports

Set the names of the devices connected to the AHC and the error information names on the AHC port name setting screen. The names set by the Maintenance Tool have been registered as the default names.

Note: If it is not required to change the default names, this setting is unnecessary.

Note: The names can be set only on the Web browser for initial setting.

- Note: If an administrator who is not allowed to set the AHC conditions has logged in, the administrator cannot input the names.
- Note: The set names will be displayed on the LCD screen, administrator Web browser and AHC monitor screen.
- Note: On the AHC status monitors of the LCD screen and Web browser, the names of the port numbers not connected to the AHC will not be displayed.



Item	Details	Remarks
Unit address	The M-NET address of the AHC is displayed.	
Port No.	The port number of the AHC is displayed.	The port number is displayed regardless of whether the AHC port is connected or not.
Input port name	Set the names to be displayed on the AHC monitor screen for the error status of the connected devices and input status of the illuminance sensors, etc.	Each name must be 20 characters or less long. In the Input port name column, the following characters cannot be used: < > + & " '
Digital input	The data set in DI/AI01 to 08 and DI09 to 15 of the Maintenance Tool are displayed.	The digital input 1 to 8 or the analog output 1 to 8 can be used.
Extended input (1 to 4)	Up to four points of digital input can be added. The data set in EI01 to 04 of the Maintenance Tool are displayed.	The analog input cannot be extended. When the extended input is used, the extended output and analog output cannot be used.
Output port name	Set the names to be displayed on the AHC monitor screen for the error status and the operation condition output status of the connected devices.	Each name must be 20 characters or less long. In the Output port name column, the following characters cannot be used: < > + & " '
Digital output	The data set in DO 01 to 09 of the Maintenance Tool are displayed.	
Extended output	Up to four points of digital output can be added. The data set in EO 01 to 04 of the Maintenance Tool are displayed.	When the extended output is used, the extended input and analog output cannot be used.
Analog input	The data set in AI01 to 08 of the Maintenance Tool are displayed.	To display the temperature and humidity, it is necessary to perform the setting with the α^2 programming tool.
Analog output	Up to two points of analog output can be added. The data set in AO 01 and 02 of the Maintenance Tool are displayed.	When the analog output is used, the extended input and extended output cannot be used.

[4] AHC status monitor

Main unit screen



Item	Details	Remarks
	To display the data of AE-200, select AE. To display the data of AE-50, select 1, 2 or 3.	
Display item	AHC AE-200 Mitsubishi Electric AE-50 1 2 3 OK Cance I	
AHC icon	The status of the AHC is displayed with one of the following icons. INormal	Even if an error occurs in any device connected to the AHC, the error icon will not be displayed.
	:When a communication error occurs or an error signal is input to the AHC	The display will be updated every minute.

Item	Details	Remarks
	The M-NET address of the connected AHC is displayed.	
AHC address	AHC 201 202 203 204 205 206 207 206 209 219 211 212 213 214 215 216 217 218 219 220 221 222 223 224 225 226 227 228 229 238 231 232 233 234 235 236 237 238 239 240 241 242 243 244 245 246 247 248 249 258 OK Cancel	
Input status	Among the devices connected to the AHC, the items set in 14. [3]<4> "Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to AHC)"are displayed in the format "input port No.* + input port name + input status." * D11 to D115 are digital input ports, EI1 to EI4 are extended digital input ports, and A11 to Al8 are analog input ports. When the names have been set in 14. [3]<6> "Setting of individual names of AHC ports", the names will be displayed.	 If the numbers of ports not connected to α2 have been set with the Maintenance Tool, the input status of the ports are displayed. However, the digital devices are kept OFF, and the analog devices are kept 0. For D11 to D15 and E11 to E14, the ON/OFF status is displayed. For Al1 to Al8, the values and units are displayed. When the AHC has been set to display the temperature, the values of Al1 to Al8 will be displayed in °C or °F. When it has been set to display the humidity, the values will be displayed in %. In the case of CO₂, ppm will be displayed as the unit. In other cases, "-" (no unit) will be displayed.
Output status	Among the devices connected to the AHC, the items set in 14. [3]<4> "Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to AHC)" are displayed in the format "output port No.* + output port name + output status." * DO1 to DO9 are digital output ports, EO1 to EO4 are extended digital output ports, and AO1 to AO2 are analog output ports. When the names have been set in 14. [3]<6> "Setting of individual names of AHC ports", the names will be displayed.	 If the numbers of ports not connected to α2 have been set with the Maintenance Tool, the input status of the ports are displayed. However, the digital devices are kept OFF, and the analog devices are kept 0. DO1 to DO9 and EO1 to EO4: ON or OFF is displayed. AO1 to AO2: The values and units are displayed. (Unit: %, fixed) The display will be updated when the screen is switched.
Status of related devices	Click Status of related equipment, and the status of the related devices The items set in 14. [3]<5> "Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices For the displayed names and units, see the following page. Note: The display will be updated when Status of related equipment is It cannot be updated by pressing the page changing button ▲ of Status of related equipment Witsubishi Electric Room Temp 23.0 °C Ventilation 0V/OFF OFF Room Temp 23.0 °C Ventilation 0V/OFF OFF Set Teme, for heating 0.0 °C Humidifier 0V/OFF OFF Air conditioner 0V/OFF OFF OUtdoor Temp 30.0 °C Air conditioner 0V/OFF OFF OUtdoor Temp 30.0 °C Air conditioner mode Heat inlet water temp 0.0 °C Indoor unit capacity save 0 % outlet water temp 0.0 °C Indoor unit capacity save 0 % outlet water temp 0.0 °C Indoor unit capacity save 0 % outlet water temp 0.0 °C Indoor unit capacity save 0 % inlet water temp 0.0 °C Indoor unit capacity save 0 % inlet water temp 0.0 °C Indoor unit capacity save 0 % inlet water temp 0.0 °C Indoor unit capacity save 0 % inlet water temp 0.0 °C Indoor unit capacity save 0 % inlet water temp 0.0 °C Indoor numidity 100 % inlet water temp 0.0 °C Indoor numidity 100 % inlet water temp 0.0 °C Indoor occupancy sensor OFF outlet water temp 0.0 °C Indoor occupancy sensor OFF outlet water temp 0.0 °C Indoor occupancy sensor OFF outlet water temp 0.0 °C Indoor bumidity 100 % inlet water temp 0.0 °C Indoor occupancy sensor OFF Representative water temp 0.0 °C Indoor bumidity 0°F OFF OFF OUTLet water temp 0.0 °C Indoor brightness sensor OFF Representative water temp 0.0 °C Indo	s connected to the AHC will be displayed. connected to M-NET)" are displayed. s touched. or ▼.

Web browser screen



Item	Details	Remarks
Update	Click to show the most recent conditions. When [Auto] is selected, the conditions are updated automatically every minute.	
AHC icon	The status of the AHC is displayed with one of the following icons. Image: Im	Even if an error occurs in any device connected to the AHC, the error icon will not be displayed.
AHC address	The M-NET address of the connected AHC is displayed. When some AHCs are connected, the next AHC addresses will be displayed by moving the scroll bar downward.	
Input status	Among the devices connected to the AHC, the items set in 14. [3]<4> "Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to AHC)" are displayed in the format "input port No.* + input port name + input status." * DI1 to DI15 are digital input ports, EI1 to EI4 are extended digital input ports, and AI1 to AI8 are analog input ports. When the names have been set in 14. [3]<6> "Setting of individual names of AHC ports", the names will be displayed.	 The status of the ports not in use is not displayed. When a communication error occurs in the AHC, the port information will not be displayed. For DI1 to D115 and EI1 to EI4, the ON/OFF status is displayed. For Al1 to Al8, the values and units are displayed. When the AHC has been set to display the temperature, the values of Al1 to Al8 will be displayed in °C or °F. When the AHC has been set to display the humidity, the values will be displayed in %. In the case of CO₂, ppm will be displayed as the unit. In other cases, "-" (no unit) will be displayed.
Output status	Among the devices connected to the AHC, the items set in 14. [3]<4> "Initial setting for AHC ADAPTER (devices connected to AHC)" are displayed. The names set in 14. [3]<6> "Setting of individual names of AHC ports" are displayed. The names are displayed in the format "output port No.* + output port name + output status." * DO1 to DO9 are digital output ports, EO1 to EO4 are extended digital output ports, and AO1 to AO2 are analog output ports.	 The status of the ports not in use is not displayed. When a communication error occurs in the AHC, the port information will not be displayed. For DO1 to DO9 and EO1 to EO4, the ON/ OFF status is displayed. For AO1 to AO2, the values and units are displayed. (Unit: %, fixed)



15. Apportioned Electricity Billing Function

[1] Outline

The apportioned electricity billing function can be implemented by using AE-200 or the integrated software (TG-2000A). This document explains the procedures for implementing the apportioned electricity billing function by AE-200.

The following features can be used by introducing the optional "Charge" license into Ver. 7.23 or later of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

<Features of apportioned electricity billing function>

- The electric energy consumed by air conditioners can be calculated, and the electric energy (kWh) and graphs can be displayed.
- One of two methods, electric energy measurement method and electric energy manual input method, can be selected. The electric energy measurement method enables calculation of electric energy used by each tenant and charge to the tenant.

The electric energy manual input method enables calculation of ratio of consumption (charge rate) by each tenant.

- The results of calculation of electric energy and charges can be printed on a printer from a personal computer.
- The results of calculation of electric energy and charges can be output to a CSV file from a personal computer.
- The charges in each day or month or in both can be automatically calculated.
- Not only the electric energy consumed by air conditioners, but also the values indicated by meters, such as gas meters and water meters, can be displayed, and the charges can be calculated.
- AE-200 apportions the electric energy and retains the results. The results of apportionment are saved (backed up) also in the expansion controllers AE-50/EW-50 to enhance the reliability.

Notes The user using the apportioned electricity billing function of Mitsubishi Air Conditioning Control System AE-200 is considered to have agreed on the following terms.

 Mitsubishi Electric Corporation and its distributors do not accept liability for incidental, consequential or special damages to customers in any cases even if the seller has been informed of the possibility of occurrence of such damages.

They do not assume any liability for claims of rights from third parties.

Before using the function, the building owner shall gain agreement and sign individual contracts with each tenant on condition that the tenant will be charged for use of electricity (including temporary measures against failure) based on apportionment in consideration of the operation condition of air conditioners.

- This system is designed to estimate the electric energy consumed by air conditioners. Therefore, <u>the function</u> <u>cannot be used for trading and certification defined by the Measurement Act (based on measurement).</u> Also, the electricity meters cannot be used for trading certificates because they count electricity through pulse conversion.
- It is not a system that measures the electric energy consumed by each air conditioner directly at the power supply point (nor an equivalent system).
- Since the function apportions electric energy based on the operation conditions of air conditioner indoor units, the power consumption may vary depending on the outdoor unit configuration and operation conditions even if the indoor units were operated for the same time.

(The apportioned electric energy may be different from that measured by the electricity meter installed for each air conditioner.)

- Current is being applied to air conditioners even while they are stopped. The electricity will be apportioned as standby electricity even if the air conditioners are not used.
- The electric energy, water usage and gas usage are captured through pulse conversion. The performance and accuracy depend on the meters. Therefore, we do not have any responsibility for them.
- The charge to each tenant (energy management block) is calculated by rounding down to the indicated digit for each unit price. Therefore, the calculated charge may differ from the charge for overall power consumption.
- If a time lag occurs, errors will be caused in the apportionment results. Periodically set the clock to the right time on AE-200.

(Even if the clock on AE-50/EW-50 is set, the time will be overwritten by the time on AE-200.)

Remarks	O The apportioned electricity billing function to be used on AE-200 main unit is applicable to Ver. 7.23 or later.
	 When the apportioned electricity billing function on AE-200 main unit and TG-2000A are used simultaneously, the following restrictions are imposed. Use Ver. 6.60 or later of TG-2000A.
	2) Do not use the apportioned electricity billing function of TG-2000A.
	\odot For the billing by TG-2000A, see the Instruction Book for TG-2000A.
	○ If the apportioned electricity billing function on AE-200 main unit is used, the M-NET (outdoor units and indoor units) cannot be connected to AE-200. To connect them, an expansion controller is required.
	O The PI controller (recommended) and AE-50/EW-50 with built-in pulse input (PI) can be used to capture electric energy data to be used by the apportioned electricity billing function on AE-200 main unit. AE-200 with built-in pulse input (PI) and PLC software for electric amount count cannot be used.
	 Electric energy data must be captured to each AE-200 system. Capture the electric energy data to each AE-200 system by the PI controller (recommended) or AE-50/EW-50 with built-in pulse input (PI).

The image of the system configuration is shown below.



<1> Functions of devices

Below are given brief descriptions of the major devices used by the apportioned electricity billing function explained in this section.

The details are explained in each item.

① Electricity meter with pulse oscillator

The electricity meter with pulse oscillator is used to output pulses according to the power consumed by air conditioners. There are some pulse units (weight), such as 1 kWh/pulse and 0.1 kWh/pulse. (1 kWh/pulse or less is recommended.) This electricity meter is required when the electric energy measurement method or meter pulse count (direct reading) method is used.

It is not required for the electric energy manual input method.

* If an electricity meter without pulse oscillator is used, it is necessary to install a pulse detector.

2 PI controller (PAC-YG60MCA)

The PI controller is a device to send the pulses output from the meters to AE-50/EW-50. It integrates the measurement in each of the time slots of unit prices 1 to 5.

Up to 4 electricity meters with pulse oscillator can be connected to one PI controller.



AE-50/EW-50 has a built-in pulse input (PI) function, and up to 4 electricity meters with pulse oscillator can be connected to one set of AE-50/EW-50 as to the PI controller.

When AE-50/EW-50 with built-in pulse input (PI) is used, pulses cannot be obtained during power interruption in AE-50/EW-50 and software updating, and the measured electric energy may be different from the actual value. Accordingly, the measurement by PI controller is recommended.

When using AE-50/EW-50 with built-in pulse input (PI), ensure that the customer understands the above restriction.



Up to 20 PI controllers can be connected to one AE-200 system, and up to 15 PI controllers can be connected to one set of AE-50/EW-50. When AE-50/EW-50 with built-in pulse input (PI) is used, it is counted as one PI controller.

Remarks O The apportioned electricity billing function of AE-200 cannot use the PLC software for electric amount count.
3 AE-50/EW-50

AE-50/EW-50 monitors the operation amounts of indoor units every minute and retains the data in each charging time slot.



AE-50/EW-50 monitors the information on integrated values of electric energy in the PI controller every 30 minutes (XX:00 and XX:30) and retains the data in each charging time slot.



@ AE-200

AE-200 collects the operation information and measurement information for 30 minutes from AE-50/EW-50 at 10 and 40 minutes past the hour and apportions the electric energy.

It calculates the electric energy consumption from XX:31 to XX:00 at 10 minutes past the hour and that from XX:01 to XX:30 at 40.

The electric energy or apportionment parameter can be displayed in the energy management list after 0:15 on the day after the adjustment date in each month.

When the apportioned electricity billing function is used on AE-200 main unit, the M-NET of AE-200 cannot be used.



Example: Apportionment calculation at 05:40

⑤ Charge Calculation Tool

The Charge Calculation Tool is dedicated to AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

It can display and print the charge to each energy management (billing) block of tenant and output the data to a CSV file using the results of apportionment of electric energy by AE-200.

It can display the values not only of electric energy consumed by air conditioners, but also of the values measured by electricity meters, gas meters and water meters, calculate the charges for them, print the data and output CSV files. The Charge Calculation Tool is supplied with the "Charge" license.



The charges for 40 sets of AE-50/EW-50 in all (up to 2000 air conditioners) can be calculated collectively.



In this example of configuration, 8 sets of AE-50/EW-50 are connected in all.

The charges to other 32 sets can be calculated simultaneously.

6 Initial Setting Tool

The Initial Setting Tool is dedicated to AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. The apportioned electricity billing function conditions are set with the Initial Setting Tool.

The setting data created by the Initial Setting Tool is loaded to AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 from the personal computer through LAN.

Up to 40 sets of AE-50/EW-50 can be initialized collectively.

The Initial Setting Tool is supplied with the "Charge" license.



<2> Definitions of terms

The major terms related to the apportioned electricity billing function are defined below.

- ① Electricity meter measurement (with meters) method
- The electric energy consumed by each of outdoor and indoor units is apportioned according to the ratio of use of the indoor unit.

The PI controller or AE-50/EW-50 with built-in pulse input (PI) integrates the electric energy pulses output from the electricity meter with pulse oscillator by unit price.



^② Electric energy manual input (without meters) method

The charge rate of each of outdoor and indoor units is determined.

The charge can be determined by separately multiplying the electric energy and unit price by the charge rate.



The apportionment parameter is determined by the rated capacity and operation time of indoor unit and used as the basis of calculation of the ratio to the total electricity used by all blocks. The apportionment parameter is used for reference for calculation of the charge rate.

3 Apportionment of electric energy

The electric energy consumed by each of outdoor and indoor units is determined according to the ratio of use of the indoor unit.

For example, in the case of the following configuration, the electricity meter for outdoor units measures the electric energy consumed by the outdoor units A and B and apportions the energy to each indoor unit.

The electricity meter for indoor units measures the electric energy consumed by the indoor units A1, A2, B1 and B2 and apportions the energy to each indoor unit.



④ Charges

Charges for electricity, gas and water actually consumed by air conditioners and tenants

The charges can be output to a printer and to a CSV file.

The charges can be calculated by the following three methods.

• Calculation on adjustment date (automatic calculation)

The charges are automatically calculated by the Charge Calculation Tool connected with AE-200 main unit through LAN. The monthly and daily charges can be calculated.

Daily: The charge for each utility in the previous day is automatically calculated at 5:00 am.

Monthly: The charge for each utility in one month is automatically calculated at 5:00 am on the day after the adjustment date registered in the Charge Calculation Tool.

The adjustment date can be selected from two types, end of month and designated date. For the designated date, 29, 30 and 31 cannot be designated.

The adjustment results can be output to a printer and/or a CSV file.

Remarks	 Prepare a personal computer (Charge Calculation Tool) meeting the following requirements. The personal computer and AE-200 must be connected through LAN. The personal computer must be on and not in the standby or sleep mode at the time (5:00 am) at which
	The deta is automatically output
	In the case of a personal computer which must be logged in, the personal computer must have been logged in.
	 The printer must be on at the time (5:00 am) at which the data is automatically output (only when the data must be printed).
	 The Charge Calculation Tool must not be started before the time (5:00 am) at which the data is automatically output.
	O When using the automatic calculation, observe the following instructions.
	 Set the clocks of the personal computer and AE-200 to the right time about once a month to avoid time lag between them.
	The clocks of AE-50/EW-50 are automatically synchronized with the time in AE-200.
	• Some unauthorized operations may be caused while the personal computer is running for a long time. Periodically restart the personal computer.
	 Periodically replenish the printer with paper to prevent running out of paper. (Only when the data must be printed)

• Calculation of charges in specified period (manual calculation by obtaining data through LAN) The charges are calculated with AE-200 main unit and the Charge Calculation Tool connected through LAN. It is unnecessary to connect AE-200 and personal computer through LAN except when the charges are calculated. The charges in any desired period of 62 days before the previous day (including the previous day) can be calculated.

 Calculation of charges in specified period (manual calculation by obtaining data from USB) The charges are calculated by using the CSV file of apportionment calculation results output to an USB memory from AE-200 main unit.

The data for 62 days from the previous day (including the previous day) can be output to an USB memory. The charges in the specified period are calculated from the CSV file containing the data in the period.

^⑤ Charging time slot

One day can be divided into up to 10 time slots, and the unit prices in these time slots can be selected from 5 unit prices according to operation amounts and measured values to change the charge unit prices in the morning, afternoon, overtime work hours and weekend.

Since the unit price can be set for each meter unit (kWh, MJ, m³, -- (no unit specified)), the charge can be determined precisely by each meter. The unit prices (yen/meter unit) are common to the weeks, seasons and specific days.

One charging time slot setting can be made on one AE-200 system, and one charge unit price (** yen/kWh) setting can be made by the Charge Calculation Tool. Different settings for meters or tenants cannot be made.

Therefore, when the charge unit prices of all buildings are the same although the charging time slots vary by building (AE-200 system), the charges to the buildings can be collectively calculated by the Charge Calculation Tool.

Example of setting with charge unit price divisions 1 to 3 and 5

	From 0:00 to 7:00	From 7:00 to 12:00	From 12:00 to 15:00	From 15:00 to 23:00	From 23:00 to 24:00
Charge setting	Charge unit price 1 = Midnight charge	Charge unit price 2 = Daytime charge	Charge unit price 3 = Peak charge	Charge unit price 2 = Daytime charge	Charge unit price 1 = Midnight charge
		(20 yen/kvvn)	(25 yen/kvvn)	(20 yen/kvvn)	(15 yen/kvvn)

6 Weekly charge

The charging time slots for 7 days from Monday to Sunday can be set. This enables, for example, to charge for electricity used only for overtime hours on weekdays and charge for entire day on holidays.

	From 0:00 to 7:00	From 7:00 to 17:00	From 17:00 to 24:00			
Monday	Charge unit price 1 = Charged (15 yen/kWh)	Charge unit price 2 = Not charged (0 yen/kWh)	Charge unit price 1 = Charged (15 yen/kWh)			
Tuesday	From 0:00 to 7:00	From 7:00 to 17:00	From 17:00 to 24:00			
Wednesday	From 0:00 to 7:00	From 7:00 to 17:00	From 17:00 to 24:00			
Thursday	From 0:00 to 7:00	From 7:00 to 17:00	From 17:00 to 24:00			
Friday	From 0:00 to 7:00	From 7:00 to 17:00	From 17:00 to 24:00			
		From 0:00 to 24:00				
Saturday	Charge unit price 1 = Charged (15 yen/kWh)					
Sunday		From 0:00 to 24:00				

⑦ Seasonal charge

The weekly charges can be managed in two categories, for example, seasonal charge in summer and regular charge. This enables, for example, to charge at a higher unit price than the regular price in the summer months (July to September) because the electricity usage for air conditioning is high in these months.

Example of setting of seasonal charge periods

Seasonal	From Jan. 1 to June 30	From July 1 to Sept. 30	From Oct. 1 to Dec. 31
	Regular charge	Seasonal charge	Regular charge

8 Specific days

50 specific days can be set in the range of the next 24 months (including the current month) separately from the above weekly charge and seasonal charge.

Set five specific day patterns, and assign the patterns to up to 50 days. This enables, for example, to apply the holiday charge to holidays.

From 0:00 to 24:00
Pattern A
Charge unit price 1 = Charged
(15 yen/kWh)



9 Energy management block

Unit for displaying and outputting the results of calculation of electric energy and charges. Up to 200 energy management blocks can be set per one AE-200 system.

Set each tenant as an energy management block.

* The block corresponds to the Charge Block on TG-2000A.

One energy management block consists of one or more operation blocks, one or more OA Processing units in FU attribute or both.



Energy management blocks controlled by more than one expansion controller (AE-50/EW-50) can be created.



The following table shows whether groups, operation blocks and energy management blocks under more than one controller can be set.

Type	Under more than one AE-200	Under more than one expansion controller (AE-50/EW-50)
Group	×	×
Operation block	×	×
Energy management block	Possible only for Charge Calculation Tool	0

It is possible to connect energy management blocks having the same name to the Charge Calculation Tool so that a tenant having blocks under more than one AE-200 can be charged.

(It is possible to determine whether or not to integrate the blocks by the relevant setting item of the Charge Calculation Tool.)

[When energy management blocks having the same name are not integrated]



[When energy management blocks having the same name are integrated]



<3> Operations which can be performed by apportioned electricity billing function

The apportioned electricity billing function on AE-200 main unit, the standard energy management function (without "Charge" license) and the apportioned electricity billing function of TG-2000A are compared in the following table to explain the differences among these functions.

					O: Possible X: Impossible
No.		Function	AE-200 Apportioned electricity billing function	AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 Energy management function (without "Charge" license)	(Reference) TG-2000A Apportioned electricity billing function
		Centralized controller	4 sets of AE-50/EW-50	Each set of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50	40 sets of AE-200/AE-50/ EW-50, AG-150A/GB-50ADA or G-50A/GB-50A
		Air conditioner	200 units	50 units	2000 units
1	Max. number of units in 1 system	Meter	20 PI controllers (80 meters) * 15 units per set of AE-50/EW-50 (60 meters) * At least 1 unit per AE-200 system (at least 2 units when also electricity for indoor units is measured)	15 PI controllers (60 meters) * At least 1 unit per AE-200/AE-50/ EW-50	80 PI controllers (320 meters) or 5 units of PLC software for electric amount count (160 meters) * At least 1 unit per TG-2000A system (at least 2 units when also electricity for indoor units is measured)
2	Max. number o calculation	f sets for charge	40 sets of AE-50/EW-50 (Charge Calculation Tool)	×	40 sets of AE-200/AE-50/ EW-50, AG-150A/GB-50ADA or G-50A/GB-50A
		Calculating equipment	AE-200	AE-200/AE-50/EW-50	TG-2000A
	Apportionment	Method	Electric energy measurement (with meters) method Electric energy manual input (without meters) method	Electric energy measurement (with meters) method	Electric energy measurement (with meters) method Electric energy manual input (without meters) method
3 6	calculation	Intended units	Outdoor units (consumed and standby electricity) Indoor units (consumed and standby electricity) *1, 2	Outdoor units (consumed and standby electricity)	Outdoor units (consumed and standby electricity) Indoor units (consumed electricity) *3
		Cycle	Every 30 min	Every 30 min	Every day
		Calculating equipment	Charge Calculation Tool		TG-2000A
		Intended units	 Charge to each energy management block Charge by each meter 		Charge to each charge blockCharge by each meter
		Basic charge	×		0
4	Calculation of charges	Period (for automatic calculation)	Every day or month	×	Every month
		Max. period for manual calculation	For 62 days before current day		For 122 days before current day
		Outputting method	Printing and outputting to CSV file (Charge Calculation Tool)		Printing, outputting to CSV file and sending e-mail
		Assist in preparing bills	X *4		0
5	Graphical displ electric energy	ay of apportioned	O Energy management and ranking	O Energy management and ranking	×
		Data updating timing	15 past the hour	15 past the hour	
	in table	ortionea electric energy	Energy management list		Air conditioning charge
6		Data updating timing	0:15 on day after adjustment date	×	4:40 on day after adjustment date
		Data retention period	25 months		3 months
	Output of appo for billing to CS	rtioned electric energy	0		0
7		Type of output and retention period	Every month: 25 months before current month Every day: 62 days before current day Every 30 min: Past 3 days from current day	×	Every month: 3 months before current month Every day: 122 days before current day
8	8 Operation of personal computer for billing		 In the case of automatic output, the personal computer must be constantly on. In the case of manual output, start the personal computer only when calculating the charges. 	×	The dedicated personal computer must be constantly on.
9	Apportionment	to K-control models	X	X	O *5
10	Apportionment	to heat storage models	×	X	0

No.	Function	AE-200 Apportioned electricity billing function	AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 Energy management function (without "Charge" license)	(Reference) TG-2000A Apportioned electricity billing function
11	Destination to save apportioned electric energy data	 Stored in AE-200 main unit Stored in AE-50/EW-50 as backup data Retained in the personal computer with Charge Calculation Tool after calculation of charges 	Retained in each of AE-200/ AE-50/EW-50 main units	Retained in TG-2000A

*1: Energy management blocks controlled by several sets of AE-50/EW-50 can be set.

*2: Energy management blocks controlled by several sets of AE-200 cannot be set.

However, if energy management blocks having the same name are set in more than one set of AE-200, the electric energy (in the case with meters) or charge rate (in the case without meters) of the energy management blocks can be totalized by the Charge Calculation Tool.

- *3: Charge blocks under some sets of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 can be set.
- *4: If necessary, separately prepare the bill for each energy management block (Charge Block) based on the output results of charge calculation.
- *5: K-control models can be connected only to AG-150A/GB-50ADA or G-50A/GB-50A.

The differences between electric energy measurement (with meters) method and electric energy manual input (without meters) method are shown in the comparison table.

No.		Function	Electric energy measurement (with meters) method	Electric energy manual input (without meters) method
	AE-200	AE-50/EW-50	4 units	4 units
1	Max. number	Air conditioner	200 units	200 units
	of units in 1 system	Meter *1, 2	20 PI controllers (80 meters) ^{*3} * 15 units per set of AE-50/EW-50 (60 meters)	-
2	Max. number o	f Charge Calculation Tools	Up to 40 sets of AE-50/EW-50 (Up to 2000 air conditioners)	Up to 40 sets of AE-50/EW-50 (Up to 2000 air conditioners)
3	Apportionment	Intended units	Outdoor units (consumed and standby electricity) Indoor units (consumed and standby electricity)	Outdoor units (consumed electricity) Indoor units (consumed electricity)
	calculation	Cycle	Calculation of electric energy from XX:31 to XX:00 at 10 min past the hour and that from XX:01 to XX:30 at 40 min past the hour.	Calculation of electric energy from XX:31 to XX:00 at 10 min past the hour and that from XX:01 to XX:30 at 40 min past the hour.
	Calculation of	Intended units	 Charge to each energy management block 	 Charge rate of outdoor unit in each energy management block Charge rate of indoor unit in each energy management block
4	charges	Period (for automatic calculation)	Every day or month Calculated at 5:00 am	Every day or month Calculated at 5:00 am
		Max. period for manual calculation	For 62 days before current day	For 62 days before current day
5	AE-200 Display on AE-200 LCD	For air conditioners	 Electric energy consumed by each energy management block 	 Outdoor unit apportionment parameter for each energy management block Indoor unit apportionment parameter for each energy management block
l I	management	For meters	 Value measured by each meter 	-
	list)	Data retention period	For 25 months before current month	For 25 months before current month
6	Display on personal computer with	For air conditioners	 Electric energy consumed by each energy management block Charge to each energy management block 	 Charge rate of outdoor unit in each energy management block Charge rate of indoor unit in each energy management block
	Charge Calculation	For meters	 Value measured by each meter Charge by each meter 	-
	1001	Data retention period	25 months	25 months
7	AE-200 Output of CSV file	Results of apportionment calculation	Every month: 25 months before current month Every day: 62 days before current day Every 30 min: Past 3 days from current day	Every month: 25 months before current month Every day: 62 days before current day Every 30 min: Past 3 days from current day
	Output of CSV	Results of charge calculation (for automatic calculation)	Daily or monthly Calculated and output at 5:00 am	Daily or monthly Calculated and output at 5:00 am
8	Calculation	Results of charge calculation (for manual calculation)	Designated period (for 62 days before current day)	Designated period (for 62 days before current day)
	Print of data of Charge	Results of charge calculation (for automatic calculation)	Daily or monthly Calculated and output at 5:00 am	Daily or monthly Calculated and output at 5:00 am
9	Calculation Tool	Results of charge calculation (for manual calculation)	Designated period (for 62 days before current day)	Designated period (for 62 days before current day)

*1: The PLC software for electric amount count cannot be used.

*2: The PI controller can be connected for any purpose other than the apportioned electricity billing function.

*3: 15 units (60 meters) per set of AE-50/EW-50. When AE-50/EW-50 with built-in pulse input (PI) is used, it is counted as one PI controller.

<4> Models to which apportioned electricity billing function is applicable

The models to which the apportioned electricity billing function is applicable are shown below.

O: Supported 1

∴ Apportioning function not available (direct meter reading)

		(unect meter	reaulity)
X. Not supported	4		

<u> </u>			, in the cappenda	
		Apportioned electr	icity billing function	
		Systems where electric energy is metered (with- metering-device method)	Systems where electric energy is entered manually (no-metering-device method)	Remarks
	Y series	0	0	
	HP series	0	0	
	R2 series	0	0	
O'to Malt' ¹²	WY series	0	0	
	WR2 series	0	0	
	HVRF series	0	0	Power consumptions of outdoor units will be apportioned based on Thermo-ON time, even when the setting is made to apportion it based on the capacity save amount.
Inverter of packaged air conditioner for equipment (PEAV)		0	0	Separately install an electricity meter for packaged air conditioner for equipment.
Packaged air conditioner for equipment (PEV/PFV)		\bigtriangleup	0	
LOSSNAY		0	0	
OA Processing Unit		0	0	Power for humidifying is not taken into account.
A-control unit	t (Mr. Slim) *3 ^{*4}	0	0	Separately install an electricity meter for Mr. Slim air conditioner.
AK-control ur	nit (Mr. Slim) ^{'3}	0	0	Apportioned in the same manner as to City Multi.
Room air cor	ditioner (RAC)	\bigtriangleup	×	
Housing air c	onditioner (HAC)	\bigtriangleup	×	
Air To Water Booster unit/Air To Water HEX unit		0	0	
HWHP (CAHV/CRHV/QAHV)		×	×	
Chiller unit		×	×	
General equipment via DIDO controller			×	
General equi free contact	pment via indoor unit	Δ	×	Cannot be monitored or operated with the AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.
K-control uni	t	×	×	Cannot be monitored or operated with the AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.

*1: Some types of this model of units do not support the apportioned electricity billing function.

*2: REPLACE Multi is included.

*3: Only when the following M-NET adapter is used, apportionment is possible by setting the apportioning mode for the outdoor unit electric energy to [Capacity save amount].

PAC-SJ10MA, PAC-SJ18MA, PAC-SJ31MA

When other model of M-NET adapter is used in the system, set the apportioning mode to [Thermo-ON time] or [Fan operation time].

*4: Select one of the "Power source of A-control unit" setting options from [Same power source (O/U - I/U)] and [Separated power source (O/U - I/U)].

<5> Number of connected units and M-NET address

The number of connected air conditioners and the M-NET address range are shown below.

			MNET			
Unit or controller		Symbol	max. number of connected units *1	M-NET address setting range	Method for determining M-NET address	
City Multi Equipment PAC indoor unit		IC				
Mr. Slim (Adapter for M-NET connection)	Base unit, sub-unit	AIC		01 to 50	Assign the lowest address to the indoor unit to be used as the base unit in a group, and	
Room air conditioner (Interface for M-NET control)		RA	50		assign sequential numbers as the addresses to the indoor units in the same group.	
Free Plan Lossnay/ OA processing unit		LC, FU				
LOSSNAY · OA proces	sing unit					
M-NET remote	Main remote controller	МЕ	100	101 to 150	Set to the lowest indoor unit address in the same group + 100.	
controller	Sub remote controller	IVIE		151 to 200	Set to the address of the main remote controller + 50.	
MA remote controller		MA	-	-	It is unnecessary to set the address. (However, when two remote controllers are used for operation, a main-sub selector switch setting is required.)	
Outdoor unit City Multi, equipment P	AC outdoor unit	OC		51 to 100	Set to the lowest indoor unit address among the indoor units in the refrigerant system + 50.	
	Sub outdoor unit	OS1, OS2				
	Heat storage unit	TU	50		Set to the outdoor unit address in the	
Auxiliary outdoor unit	Distribution controller (Base unit)	BC		52 to 100	refrigerant system + 1.	
	Distribution controller (Sub unit 1, sub unit 2)	BS1, BS2			Set to the lowest indoor unit address among the indoor units connected to the distribution sub controller + 50.	
	Group remote controller	GR			Set to the lowest No. of group to be controlled + 200.	
	System remote controller	SR, SC	4	201 to 250	Set any address in the range shown left.	
System controller	ON/OFF remote controller	ANR			Set to the lowest No. of group to be controlled + 200.	
	Schedule timer	ST			Set any address in the range shown left.	
	Integrated monitoring system	AE-200/AE-50/ EW-50	-	0 (201 to 250)	Set to 0. However, when the BM adapter is connected, set any of them to 201 to 250.	

*1: The number of connected units may be restricted depending on the connected device. See the instruction manual for the connected device.

[2] System configuration

Information necessary for system configuration for the apportioned electricity billing function is explained in a flow chart. (1) System configuration for electric energy measurement (with meters) method





(2) System construction for electric energy manual input (without meters) method





<1> Electric energy measurement (with meters) method

- 1. AE-50/EW-50 collects the operation amounts of air conditioners.
- 2. AE-50/EW-50 collects the electric energy data from the PI controller and the electricity meters connected to AE-50/EW-50 with built-in pulse input (PI).
- 3. AE-200 apportions the electric energy to the outdoor unit for each indoor unit and each indoor unit every 30 minutes. The results of apportionment are stored as monthly data for 25 months, daily data for 62 days and data obtained every 30 minutes for 4 days.
- 4. AE-50/EW-50 receives the results of apportionment of electric energy from AE-200 and backs up the data.
- 5. The results of apportionment are displayed in bar graphs on the energy use status and ranking screens for energy management function by AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. The electric energy (kWh) is displayed in the energy management list on AE-200.
- 6. The results of apportionment can be checked on the energy management list on the LCD screen of AE-200 and output to a CSV file.
- 7. The charge is calculated with the Charge Calculation Tool by multiplying the unit price (1 to 5) in each time slot based on the electric energy apportioned to each energy management block. The charge can be calculated also based on the value measured by each meter.

The calculation results can be displayed, printed and output to a CSV file.

① Connection diagram



* The power lines other than those for outdoor units and indoor units are omitted.

* When the electricity meters do not have pulse oscillators, pulse detectors are required.

2 Required devices

Device name (model name)	Manufacturer	Remarks		
AE-200	Mitsubishi Electric Corporation			
AE-50/EW-50	Mitsubishi Electric Corporation			
PI controller PAC-YG60MCA	Mitsubishi Electric Corporation	A device through which the pulses from the electricity meters are automatically introduced to AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. Up to 4 meters can be connected to one PI controller.		
Power supply unit PAC-SC51KUA Transmission booster PAC-SF46EPA	Mitsubishi Electric Corporation	 AE-50: When the PI controller, system remote controller, etc. are connected to the transmission line for centralized control, a power supply unit is required. EW-50: When the power consumption factor of the PI controller, system remote controller, etc. connected to the transmission line for centralized control exceeds 6. a power supply unit is required. 		
"Charge" license	Mitsubishi Electric Corporation	The license must be registered in all sets of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. Register it in AE-50/EW-50 which do not have units to be subjected to apportionment under AE-200 system.		
Initial Setting Tool	Mitsubishi Electric Corporation	This tool is used for initial setting. It is supplied with the "Energy Management License Pack."		
Charge Calculation Tool	Mitsubishi Electric Corporation	This tool is used for charge calculation. It is supplied with the "Energy Management License Pack."		
Pulse type electricity meter (for outdoor units)	Commercially available product	For measurement of electric energy consumed by outdoor units. For the specifications for electricity meter applicable to the PI controller, see the remarks on the pulse detector. In a system that includes both the HVRF series of City Multi units and other series of City Multi units use at least one electricity meter for each series.		
Pulse type electricity meter (for indoor units)	Commercially available product	For measurement of electric energy consumed by indoor units. When the electric energy consumed by indoor units is not apportioned, it is not required. For the specifications for electricity meter applicable to the PI controller, see the remarks on the pulse detector. In a system that includes both the HVRF series of City Multi units and other series of City Multi units, use at least one electricity meter for each series.		
Pulse detector	Commercially available product	Pulse width: 100 to 300 ms Pulse unit: 0.1 kWh/pulse recommended 1.0 kWh/pulse recommended		
Personal computer	Commercially available product	A personal computer on which the Initial Setting Tool and Charge Calculation Tool are installed. The hardware requirements for the personal computer are shown below. Item Requirement CPU 1 GHz or more (2 GHz or more recommended) Memory 2 GB Screen resolution 1024 × 768 or more Windows7, Windows7, Windows 10 (64 bit) NET Framework 4.5.2 or later Built-in LAN port or LAN card 100BASE-TX or higher Pointing device Mouse, etc.		
Printer	Commercially available product	A printer is required to print the results of charge calculation from the Charge Calculation Tool.		
USB memory	Commercially available product	An USB memory is required to obtain the CSV data (results of apportionment calculation).		
LAN cable	Commercially available product			
Switching hub	Commercially available product	A LAN cable is required to connect AE-200, AE-50/EW-50 and personal computer.		

3 Required setting

Before setting the following items, complete the unit setting, network setting, license registration, group setting, operation block setting and measurement setting.

Classification of setting	Setting screen	Setting item	Description
AE 200	Maintenance	License registration	Register the "Charge" license in all sets of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.
AE-200	Initial setting	Unit information	The apportionment function of AE-200 is enabled.
	Unit setting	Refrigerant system setting	Set the conditions of connection of outdoor units and indoor units to the refrigerant system.
		Energy management block setting	Set each tenant as an energy management block.
		Apportionment by connected meters	Set to "Connected."
		A-control model power supply	Specify whether to use the same power supply or different power supplies for the outdoor units and indoor units of Mr. Slim model.
	Billing setting	Outdoor unit consumed electricity apportionment mode	Select one of the following three apportionment modes for outdoor units. ① Capacity save amount (operating ability) Default ② Thermo ON time (time during which refrigerant is being fed) ③ Fan operation time (operating time)
		Outdoor unit standby electricity apportionment mode	Specify whether or not to apportion the standby electricity of outdoor units.
		Indoor unit consumed electricity apportionment mode	Specify whether or not to apportion the energy consumed by indoor units.
		Indoor unit standby electricity apportionment mode	Specify whether or not to apportion the standby electricity of indoor units. * This item can be set only when the indoor unit consumed electricity apportionment mode is "Apportion."
Initial Setting Tool	Outdoor unit setting		Input the following data on each of the outdoor units and sub outdoor units. ^① Outdoor unit standby electricity (kW) * Standby electricity of 0.07 kW is recommended. However, for a model provided with two compressors in one outdoor unit address, set the standby electricity twice as high (0.140 kW).
	Indoor unit setting		Select the model of each indoor unit, and input the following data. ① Indoor unit cooling capacity (kW) ② Indoor unit fan power consumption (cooling) (kW) ③ Cooling unit standby electricity (kW) * Standby electricity of 0.005 kW is recommended. * When a model not included in the database in the Initial Setting Tool is used, see the catalog, and input the model name.
	Measurement setting		Set the following conditions. ① Correspondence between outdoor units and meters ② Correspondence between indoor units and meters
		Period of seasonal charge	Determine whether or not to apply two unit prices, for example, seasonal and regular prices in summer, and determine the periods.
	Charge setting	Weekly charge time	Predetermined 5 charge zones can be set in up to 10 time slots on each day of week. When the seasonal charge has been set, set the charge zones in each of the two periods. This setting is common to all energy management blocks and meters.
		Charge time on specific days	Set five charging time slot patterns, and the five patterns can be set on 50 days in the range from the current month to the 24th month.
		Adjustment date	Set the period for totalizing the data in one month on the energy management list.

Classification of setting	Setting screen	Setting item	Description
		Apportionment by connected meters	Set to "Connected."
		Calculation of charge for standby electricity	Determine whether or not to charge for standby electricity. * When the price for standby electricity is not charged (not included in the charge), set the standby electricity apportionment mode in the Initial Setting Tool to "Apportion."
		Currency unit	Set the currency unit and the number of decimals. The charges will be rounded down to the set number of decimals.
Charge Calculation Tool	Detailed setting for charge calculation	Order of display of results of charge calculation	Set the sorting order of energy management blocks to be displayed on the screen of the Charge Calculation Tool, output to a CSV file and printed to "By No." or "By name."
		Integration of energy management blocks having the same name	Determine whether or not to integrate the results of calculation of charges to energy management blocks having the same name. When the air conditioners of one tenant are controlled under some sets of AE-200, the results of charge calculation can be integrated if the energy management blocks have the same name.
		Decimal marker for CSV file Separator for CSV file	Set the same decimal marker and separator as those for CSV file in AE-200.
		Charge unit price setting	Set up to five charge unit prices for each of electricity meters and other meters.
		Automatic output setting	Determine whether or not to automatically print or output a CSV file every day or month.
		Adjustment date setting	Set the date for automatic output of monthly data. The data will be automatically output on the day after the set date. * Set the same adjustment date as that set by the Initial Setting Tool.
		IP address setting	Set the IP address of AE-200 which will automatically output data.

④ When a system includes both the HVRF series and other series of City Multi units, install a separate electricity meter for each series.



^⑤ Billing by apportionment to Mr. Slim models and LOSSNAY

Since the charges for electric energy consumed by these units may not be precisely calculated owing to their energy-saving capabilities, it is recommended to install an electricity meter for outdoor unit of each model as shown below.



<2> Electric energy measurement (without meters) method

- 1. AE-50/EW-50 collects the operation amounts of air conditioners.
- 2. AE-200 calculates the apportionment parameters of outdoor unit for each indoor unit and indoor units every 30 minutes. The calculation results are stored as monthly data for 25 months, daily data for 62 days and data obtained every 30 minutes for 4 days.
- 3. The calculation results can be checked on the energy management list on the LCD screen of AE-200 and output to a CSV file.
- 4. The Charge Calculation Tool can calculate the charge rates of the outdoor and indoor units in each energy management block and output the rates to a printer or a CSV file. Apportion the separately obtained electric energy to each tenant using the charge rates of outdoor and indoor units in each energy management block calculated by the Charge Calculation Tool.
- ① Connection diagram



* The power lines other than those for outdoor units and indoor units are omitted.

[15. Apportioned Electricity Billing Function]

2 Required devices

Device name (model name)	Manufacturer			Remarks	
AE-200	Mitsubishi Electric Corporation				
AE-50/EW-50	Mitsubishi Electric Corporation				
"Charge" license	Mitsubishi Electric Corporation	The license must be registered in all sets of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50. Register it in AE-50/EW-50 which do not have units to be subjected to apportionment under AE-200 system.			
Initial Setting Tool	Mitsubishi Electric Corporation	This tool is use t is supplied wi	d for initial se th the "Charg	etting. ge" license.	
Charge Calculation Tool	Mitsubishi Electric Corporation	This tool is use t is supplied wi	d for charge	calculation. ge" license.	
Personal computer	Commercially available product	A personal com are installed The hardware r Item CPU Memory Screen resol Operation er	nputer on whi requirements ution wironment	ch the Initial Setting Tool and Charge for the personal computer are shown Requirement 1 GHz or more (2 GHz or more recommended) 2 GB 1024 × 768 or more Windows7, Windows8.1 (32 bit/64 bit) Windows 10 (64 bit) .NET Framework 4.5.2 or later	Calculation Tool
		Built-in LAN card Pointing devi	port or LAN	100BASE-TX or higher Mouse, etc.	
Printer	Commercially available product	A printer is requ Calculation Toc	uired to print	the results of charge calculation from	the Charge
USB memory	Commercially available product	/ailable An USB memory is required to obtain the CSV data (results of apportionm calculation).		portionment	
LAN cable	Commercially available product		required to a		record computer
Switching hub	Commercially available product	A LAN CADIE IS required to connect AE-200, AE-50/EW-50 and personal con		rsonal computer.	

3 Required setting

Before setting the following items, complete the unit setting, network setting, license registration, group setting, operation block setting and measurement setting.

Classification of setting	Setting screen	Setting item	Description
AE-200	Maintenance	License registration	Register the "Charge" license in all sets of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50.
	Initial setting	Unit information	The apportionment function of AE-200 is enabled.
	Unit setting	Refrigerant system setting	Set the conditions of connection of outdoor units and indoor units to the refrigerant system.
		Energy management block setting	Set each tenant as an energy management block.
		Apportionment by connected meters	Set to "Not connected."
	Billing setting	Outdoor unit consumed electricity apportionment mode	 Select one of the following three apportionment modes for outdoor units. ① Capacity save amount (operating ability) Default ② Thermo ON time (time during which refrigerant is being fed) ③ Fan operation time (operating time) * In a system that includes both the HVRF series of City Multi units and other series of City Multi units, set the apportioning setting for the electricity use by outdoor units to Thermo-ON time or to fan operation time to ensure appropriate measurement.
		Indoor unit consumed electricity apportionment mode	Specify whether or not to apportion the energy consumed by indoor units.
Initial Setting Tool	Indoor unit setting		Select the model of each indoor unit, and input the following data. ① Indoor unit cooling capacity (kW) ② Indoor unit fan power consumption (cooling) (kW) * When a model not included in the database in the Initial Setting Tool is used, see the catalog, and input the model name.
	Charge setting	Period of seasonal charge	Determine whether or not to apply two unit prices, for example, seasonal and regular prices in summer, and determine the periods.
		Weekly charge time	Predetermined 5 charge zones can be set in up to 10 time slots on each day of week. When the seasonal charge has been set, set the charge zones in each of the two periods. This setting is common to all energy management blocks.
		Charge time on specific days	Set five charging time slot patterns, and the five patterns can be set on 50 days in the range from the current month to the 24th month.
		Adjustment date	Set the period for totalizing the data in one month on the energy management list.
	Detailed setting for charge calculation	Apportionment by connected meters	Set to "Not connected."
Charge Calculation Tool		Order of display of results of charge calculation	Set the sorting order of energy management blocks to be displayed on the screen of the Charge Calculation Tool, output to a CSV file and printed to "By No." or "By name."
		Integration of energy management blocks having the same name	Determine whether or not to integrate the results of calculation of charges to energy management blocks having the same name. When the air conditioners of one tenant are controlled under some sets of AE-200, the results of charge calculation can be integrated if the energy management blocks have the same name
		Decimal marker for CSV file Separator for CSV file	Set the same decimal marker and separator as those for CSV file in AE-200.
		Charge unit price setting	Set up to five charge unit prices for each of electricity meters and other meters.
		Automatic output setting	Determine whether or not to automatically print or output a CSV file every day or month.
		Adjustment date setting	Set the date for automatic output of monthly data. The data will be automatically output on the day after the set date. * Set the same adjustment date as that set by the Initial Setting Tool.
		IP address setting	Set the IP address of AE-200 which will automatically output data

[3] Apportionment calculation

This section explains the procedures for apportioning the electric energy to air conditioners based on the operation amount (consumed electricity) of each indoor unit.

<1> In the case of City Multi

(1) Outline of apportionment

The electric energy consumed by outdoor units A and B is measured, and the energy is apportioned to electricity consumed by outdoor units and standby electricity of the units.

The electric energy consumed by indoor units A1, A2, B1 and B2 is measured, and the energy is apportioned to electricity consumed by indoor units and standby electricity of the units.

* When the charge unit price has been set for each time slot, the electric energy is counted by unit price.

The apportionment in this case is schematically shown below.



* AE-200, AE-50/EW-50, PI controller and pulse detector are omitted.

(2) Method for calculating outdoor unit standby electricity

The calculation method varies depending on how to handle the outdoor unit standby electricity.

The standby electricity is calculated on condition that it is consumed for 24 hours.

Calculation method	Outdoor unit standby electricity apportionment mode (Initial Setting Tool)	Calculation of charge for standby electricity (Charge Calculation Tool)
 Apportion the standby electricity together with the consumed electricity. 	Not apportioned	_
② Separately apportion the standby electricity, and charge to each tenant. (Default)	Apportioned	Included in charge
③ Separately apportion the standby electricity, and do not charge to each tenant.	Apportioned	Not included in charge

* In the case of the electric energy manual input method, the calculation method is constantly "① Apportion the standby electricity together with the consumed electricity."



The method for calculating outdoor unit standby electricity for each indoor unit is explained below. The calculation is performed for each outdoor unit every 30 minutes.



[15. Apportioned Electricity Billing Function]

[Exceptional case of calculation of standby electricity of outdoor unit]

If the indoor units are not running, the calculation result (standby electricity of outdoor unit) shown on the previous page may be different from the increase on the electricity meter for outdoor unit.

The calculation result shown on the previous page may be larger than the increase on the electricity meter for outdoor unit depending on the pulse input timing.

In such a case, the ratio of outdoor unit standby electricity is calculated as shown below in place of the calculation shown on the previous page to make the standby electricity equal to the increase on the electricity meter for outdoor unit. In this case, the electricity consumed by outdoor unit is 0.



(3) Method for calculating electricity consumed by outdoor unit

There are the following three kinds of base data for apportionment of electricity consumed by outdoor unit. Select one of them.

	Capacity save amount	Thermo ON time	Fan operation time
Measurement method	Value approximate to amount of refrigerant used by indoor unit	Time during which refrigerant is being fed to indoor unit	Indoor unit operation time
	© *1	0	\bigtriangleup
Apportionment accuracy	The consumed electricity is calculated with the highest accuracy because a value approximate to the amount of refrigerant fed into the indoor unit is used.	The cooling thermo ON or heating thermo ON time is counted. The time is not counted during air blowing (while the refrigerant is not used).	The fan operation time is counted. The time is counted also during air blowing.

*1: Electricity use of the HVRF series of City Multi units is apportioned based on Thermo-ON time.



AE-50/EW-50 integrates these data of each indoor unit in each charging time slot, and AE-200 collects the data every 30 minutes.

The method for calculating the electricity consumed by outdoor unit for each indoor unit is explained below. The calculation is performed on each meter for outdoor unit every 30 minutes.

- * The meter for outdoor unit regards the outdoor units as one large outdoor unit. Therefore, the influence of the energysaving capabilities of the outdoor units is not included in the calculation.
- To take the energy-saving capabilities of the outdoor units into account, it is recommended to install an electricity meter for each outdoor unit.





[Exceptional case of calculation of electricity consumed by outdoor unit]

When the outdoor unit standby electricity apportionment mode is "Not apportioned," the pulse of the electricity meter for outdoor unit may be increased by the outdoor unit standby electricity even if no indoor unit is running.

In this case, the ratio of outdoor unit consumed electricity is calculated in place of the calculation shown on the previous page to make the electricity equal to the increase on the electricity meter for outdoor unit.



Remarks	O When the outdoor unit standby electricity apportionment mode is "Not apportioned," in the above exceptional case, the electricity consumed by outdoor unit may increase as if all indoor units were
	running although they are not running.

(4) Method for calculating indoor unit standby electricity

The calculation method varies depending on how to handle the indoor unit standby electricity.

The standby electricity is calculated on condition that it is consumed for 24 hours.

Calculation method	Indoor unit standby electricity apportionment mode (Initial Setting Tool)	Calculation of charge for standby electricity (Charge Calculation Tool)
 Apportion the standby electricity together with the consumed electricity. 	Not apportioned	-
② Separately apportion the standby electricity, and charge to each tenant. (Default)	Apportioned	Included in charge
③ Separately apportion the standby electricity, and do not charge to each tenant.	Apportioned	Not included in charge

* In the case of the electric energy manual input method, the calculation method is constantly "① Apportion the standby electricity together with the consumed electricity."



The method for calculating indoor unit standby electricity for each indoor unit is explained below. The calculation is performed for each indoor unit every 30 minutes.



[Exceptional case of calculation of standby electricity of indoor unit]

If the indoor units are not running, the calculation result (standby electricity of indoor unit) shown on the previous page may be different from the increase on the electricity meter for indoor unit.

The calculation result shown on the previous page may be larger than the increase on the electricity meter for indoor unit depending on the pulse input timing.

In such a case, the ratio of indoor unit standby electricity is calculated as shown below in place of the calculation shown on the previous page to make the standby electricity equal to the increase on the electricity meter for indoor unit. In this case, the electricity consumed by the indoor unit is 0.



(5) Method for calculating electricity consumed by indoor unit

For apportionment of electricity consumed by indoor unit, the fan operation time is used.



AE-50/EW-50 integrates this data of each indoor unit in each charging time slot, and AE-200 collects the data every 30 minutes.

[15. Apportioned Electricity Billing Function]

The method for calculating the electricity consumed by indoor unit for each indoor unit is explained below. The calculation is performed on each indoor unit meter every 30 minutes.





[Exceptional case of calculation of electricity consumed by indoor unit]

When the indoor unit standby electricity apportionment mode is "Not apportioned," the pulse of the electricity meter for indoor unit may be increased by the indoor unit standby electricity even if no indoor unit is running.

In this case, the ratio of indoor unit consumed electricity is calculated in place of the calculation shown on the previous page to make the electricity equal to the increase on the electricity meter for indoor unit.



Remarks	O When the indoor unit standby electricity apportionment mode is "Not apportioned," in the above
	running although they are not running.

(6) Vacant stores

When there are vacant stores, one of the following three kinds of measures can be selected.

Measures	Vacant stores	Other stores
 The charge for consumed electricity and standby electricity of vacant stores are apportioned to all other tenants. 	Consumed electricity: 0	Consumed electricity: The charge for consumed electricity and standby electricity of vacant stores is added to the charges to other tenants according to the ratio of electricity consumed by the tenants.
	Standby electricity: 0	Standby electricity: Calculated as usual
The charge for standby electricity of vacant stores is apportioned to all other tenants. The charge for electricity consumed by vacant stores is borne by the building owner.	Consumed electricity: Calculated as usual	Consumed electricity: The charge for consumed electricity of vacant stores is added to the charges to other tenants according to the ratio of electricity consumed by the tenants.
		Stanuby electricity. Calculated as usual
③ The charge for consumed electricity and standby electricity of vacant stores is borne by the building owner	Consumed electricity: Calculated as usual	Consumed electricity: Calculated as usual

For the vacant stores, set the outdoor unit and indoor unit conditions as shown below in each of the cases ① to ③.

ĺ	Measures	Outdoor unit setting	Indoor unit setting
	 The charge for consumed electricity and standby electricity of vacant stores are apportioned to all other tenants. 	Outdoor unit standby electricity: 0 kW	Cooling capacity: 0 kW Fan power consumption: 0 kW Indoor unit standby electricity: 0 kW
	The charge for standby electricity of vacant stores is apportioned to all other tenants. The charge for electricity consumed by vacant stores is borne by the building owner.	Outdoor unit standby electricity: 0 kW	Cooling capacity: Set a value appropriate to the indoor unit. Fan power consumption: Set a value appropriate to the indoor unit. Indoor unit standby electricity: 0 kW
	③ The charge for consumed electricity and standby electricity of vacant stores is borne by the building owner.	Outdoor unit standby electricity: Set a value appropriate to the outdoor unit.	Cooling capacity: Set a value appropriate to the indoor unit. Fan power consumption: Set a value appropriate to the indoor unit. Indoor unit standby electricity: Set a value appropriate to the indoor unit.

Remarks	O When any method other than ③ is selected, change the vacant store settings every time a tenant moves in or out.
	O When the outdoor unit standby electricity apportionment mode is "Not apportioned," it is unnecessary to set the outdoor unit standby electricity.
	○ When the indoor unit consumed electricity apportionment mode is "Not apportioned," it is unnecessary to set the indoor unit cooling capacity.
	O When the indoor unit standby electricity apportionment mode is "Not apportioned," it is unnecessary to set the indoor unit standby electricity.
<2> In the case of Mr. Slim (with same power supply for outdoor and indoor units)

When the apportioned electricity billing function is used for Mr. Slim models using the same power supply for outdoor and indoor units, set "A-control model power supply" to "Same power supply for outdoor and indoor units" by the Initial Setting Tool.

(1) Outline of apportionment

The electric energy consumed by outdoor units A and B is measured, and the energy is apportioned to electricity consumed by outdoor units and standby electricity of the units.

* When the charge unit price has been set for each time slot, the electric energy is counted by unit price.

The apportionment in this case is schematically shown below.



* For Mr. Slim models (simultaneous type), the units enclosed by a dotted line are regarded as one indoor unit (including the outdoor unit). * AE-200, AE-50/EW-50, PI controller and pulse detector are omitted. (2) Method for calculating outdoor unit standby electricity

The calculation method varies depending on how to handle the outdoor unit standby electricity.

The standby electricity is calculated on condition that it is consumed for 24 hours.

Calculation method	Outdoor unit standby electricity apportionment mode Indoor unit standby electricity apportionment mode (Initial Setting Tool)	Calculation of charge for standby electricity (Charge Calculation Tool)
 Apportion the standby electricity together with the consumed electricity. 	Not apportioned	-
② Separately apportion the standby electricity, and charge to each tenant. (Default)	Apportioned	Included in charge
③ Separately apportion the standby electricity, and do not charge to each tenant.	Apportioned	Not included in charge

* In the case of the electric energy manual input method, the calculation method is constantly "① Apportion the standby electricity together with the consumed electricity."



The method for calculating outdoor unit standby electricity for each indoor unit is explained below. The standby electricity of each outdoor unit is calculated every 30 minutes.

When the outdoor units and indoor units are powered by the same power supply, the indoor unit standby electricity is added to the outdoor unit standby electricity.



[15. Apportioned Electricity Billing Function]

[Exceptional case of calculation of standby electricity of outdoor unit]

If the indoor units are not running, the calculation result (standby electricity of outdoor unit) shown on the previous page may be different from the increase on the electricity meter for outdoor unit.

The calculation result shown on the previous page may be larger than the increase on the electricity meter for outdoor unit depending on the pulse input timing.

In such a case, the ratio of outdoor unit standby electricity is calculated as shown below in place of the calculation shown on the previous page to make the standby electricity equal to the increase on the electricity meter for outdoor unit. In this case, the electricity consumed by the outdoor unit is 0.



[15. Apportioned Electricity Billing Function]

(3) Method for calculating electricity consumed by outdoor unit

There are the following three kinds of base data for apportionment of electricity consumed by outdoor unit. Select one of them.

	Capacity save amount	Thermo ON time	Fan operation time
Measurement method	Value approximate to amount of refrigerant used by indoor unit	Time during which refrigerant is being fed to indoor unit	Indoor unit operation time
	O	0	\bigtriangleup
Apportionment accuracy	The consumed electricity is calculated with the highest accuracy because a value approximate to the amount of refrigerant fed into the indoor unit is used.	The cooling thermo ON or heating thermo ON time is counted. The time is not counted during air blowing (while the refrigerant is not used).	The fan operation time is counted. The time is counted also during air blowing.



AE-50/EW-50 integrates these data of each indoor unit in each charging time slot, and AE-200 collects the data every 30 minutes.

Remarks Only when any of the following models of M-NET connection adapters is used, apportionment can be performed in the outdoor unit power consumption apportionment mode, "capacity save amount mode." PAC-SJ10MA, PAC-SJ18MA, PAC-SJ31MA When another model of M-NET connection adapter is used, set the apportionment mode to "thermo ON time" or "fan operation time."

The method for calculating the electricity consumed by outdoor unit for each indoor unit is explained below. The calculation is performed on each outdoor unit meter every 30 minutes.

- * The outdoor unit meter regards the outdoor units as one large outdoor unit. Therefore, the influence of the energy-saving capabilities of the outdoor units is not included in the calculation.
- To take the energy-saving capabilities of the outdoor units into account, it is recommended to install an electricity meter for each outdoor unit.

When the outdoor units and indoor units are powered by the same power supply, the indoor unit standby electricity is added to the outdoor unit standby electricity.



[Exceptional case of calculation of electricity consumed by outdoor unit]

When the outdoor unit standby electricity apportionment mode and indoor unit standby electricity apportionment mode are "Not apportioned," the pulse of the electricity meter for outdoor unit may be increased by the outdoor and indoor unit standby electricity even if no indoor unit is running.

In this case, the ratio of outdoor unit consumed electricity is calculated in place of the calculation shown on the previous page to make the electricity equal to the increase on the electricity meter for outdoor unit.



Remarks

○ When the outdoor unit standby electricity apportionment mode and indoor unit standby electricity apportionment mode are "Not apportioned," in the above exceptional case, the electricity consumed by outdoor unit may increase as if all indoor units were running although they are not running.

(4) Vacant stores

When there are vacant stores, one of the following three kinds of measures can be selected.

Measures	Vacant stores	Other stores
 The charge for consumed electricity and standby electricity of vacant stores are apportioned to all other tenants. 	Consumed electricity: 0	Consumed electricity: The charge for consumed electricity and standby electricity of vacant stores is added to the charges to other tenants according to the ratio of electricity consumed by the tenants.
	Standby electricity: 0	Standby electricity: Calculated as usual
② The charge for standby electricity of vacant stores is apportioned to all other tenants. The charge for electricity consumed by vacant stores is borne by the building owner.	Consumed electricity: Calculated as usual Standby electricity: 0	Consumed electricity: The charge for consumed electricity of vacant stores is added to the charges to other tenants according to the ratio of electricity consumed by the tenants. Standby electricity: Calculated as usual
③ The charge for consumed electricity and standby electricity of vacant stores is borne by the building owner.	Consumed electricity: Calculated as usual Standby electricity: Calculated as usual	Consumed electricity: Calculated as usual Standby electricity: Calculated as usual

For the vacant stores, set the outdoor unit and indoor unit conditions as shown below in each of the cases ① to ③.

Measures	Outdoor unit setting	Indoor unit setting
 The charge for consumed electricity and standby electricity of vacant stores are apportioned to all other tenants. 	Outdoor unit standby electricity: 0 kW	Cooling capacity: 0 kW Fan power consumption: 0 kW Indoor unit standby electricity: 0 kW
② The charge for standby electricity of vacant stores is apportioned to all other tenants. The charge for electricity consumed by vacant stores is borne by the building owner.	Outdoor unit standby electricity: 0 kW	Cooling capacity: Set a value appropriate to the indoor unit. Fan power consumption: Set a value appropriate to the indoor unit. Indoor unit standby electricity: 0 kW
③ The charge for consumed electricity and standby electricity of vacant stores is borne by the building owner.	Outdoor unit standby electricity: Set a value appropriate to the outdoor unit.	Cooling capacity: Set a value appropriate to the indoor unit. Fan power consumption: Set a value appropriate to the indoor unit. Indoor unit standby electricity: Set a value appropriate to the indoor unit.

Remarks	O When any method other than ③ is selected, change the vacant store settings every time a tenant moves in or out.
	O When the outdoor unit standby electricity apportionment mode is "Not apportioned," it is unnecessary to set the outdoor unit standby electricity.
	O When the indoor unit consumed electricity apportionment mode is "Not apportioned," it is unnecessary to set the indoor unit cooling capacity.
	O When the indoor unit standby electricity apportionment mode is "Not apportioned," it is unnecessary to set the indoor unit standby electricity.

<3> In the case of Mr. Slim (with different power supplies for outdoor and indoor units)

When the apportioned electricity billing function is used for Mr. Slim models using the different power supplies for outdoor and indoor units, set "A-control model power supply" to "Different power supplies for outdoor and indoor units" by the Initial Setting Tool.

(1) Outline of apportionment

The electric energy consumed by outdoor units A and B is measured, and the energy is apportioned to electricity consumed by outdoor units and standby electricity of the units.

The electric energy consumed by indoor units A and B is measured, and the energy is apportioned to electricity consumed by indoor units and standby electricity of the units.

* When the charge unit price has been set for each time slot, the electric energy is counted by unit price.

For the apportionment procedures in this case, see <1> "In the case of City Multi."



* For Mr. Slim models (simultaneous type), the units enclosed by a dotted line are regarded as one indoor unit (including the outdoor unit). * AE-200, AE-50/EW-50, PI controller and pulse detector are omitted.

Remarks Only when any of the following models of M-NET connection adapters is used, apportionment can be performed in the outdoor unit power consumption apportionment mode, "capacity save amount mode." PAC-SJ10MA, PAC-SJ18MA, PAC-SJ31MA When another model of M-NET connection adapter is used, set the apportionment mode to "thermo ON time" or "fan operation time."

<4> In the case of LOSSNAY

(1) Outline of apportionment

The electric energy consumed by indoor units A1 and A2 and LOSSNAY B1 and B2 is measured, and the energy is apportioned to electricity consumed by indoor units and standby electricity of the units.

* When the charge unit price has been set for each time slot, the electric energy is counted by unit price.

For the apportionment procedures in this case, see <1> "In the case of City Multi."

However, since outdoor units are not connected to LOSSNAY, only the electric energy for the indoor units is calculated.



* AE-200, AE-50/EW-50, PI controller and pulse detector are omitted.

Remarks O Electric energy cannot be apportioned to interlocked LOSSNAY not registered in any group. Register also the interlocked LOSSNAY in the group, operation block or energy management block in the same manner as single LOSSNAY.

<5> In the case of OA processing unit (individually operated by remote controller)

(1) Outline of apportionment

The electric energy consumed by outdoor units A and B is measured, and the energy is apportioned to electricity consumed by outdoor units and standby electricity of the units.

The electric energy consumed by indoor units A1 and B1 and the OA processing units A2 and B2 (individually operated by remote controller) is measured, and the energy is apportioned to the electricity consumed by indoor units and standby electricity of the units.

* When the charge unit price has been set for each time slot, the electric energy is counted by unit price.

For the apportionment procedures in this case, see <1> "In the case of City Multi."



* AE-200, AE-50/EW-50, PI controller and pulse detector are omitted.

<6> In the case of OA processing unit (interlocked with City Multi)

(1) Outline of apportionment

The electric energy consumed by outdoor units A and B is measured, and the energy is apportioned to electricity consumed by outdoor units and standby electricity of the units.

The electric energy consumed by indoor units A1 and B1 and the OA processing units A2 and B2 (interlocked with City Multi) is measured, and the energy is apportioned to the electricity consumed by indoor units and standby electricity of the units. * When the charge unit price has been set for each time slot, the electric energy is counted by unit price.

The apportionment in this case is schematically shown below.



* AE-200, AE-50/EW-50, PI controller and pulse detector are omitted.

The OA processing units (interlocked with City Multi) cannot be registered in groups. They must be registered in the energy management blocks of the relevant units.

The setting method varies depending on whether or not one OA processing unit (interlocked with City Multi) is interlocked with units of different tenants (energy management blocks).

(2) When one OA processing unit (interlocked with City Multi) is interlocked with different energy management blocks (tenants)



In this case, the electric energy in the OA processing unit can be allocated to the tenants on the same electricity meter system by setting the OA processing unit (interlocked with City Multi) as shown below.

 By the refrigerant system setting function of the Initial Setting Tool, disconnect the OA processing unit E so that the outdoor unit consumed electricity and standby electricity are not apportioned to the OA processing unit E. (In the actual environment, the refrigerant system is connected as shown above.)

The settings for this case are shown below.

Outdoor unit A: Indoor unit A, indoor unit B Outdoor unit B: Indoor unit C, indoor unit D

• By the meter setting function of the Initial Setting Tool, disconnect the OA processing unit E from the indoor unit meter so that the indoor unit consumed electricity and standby electricity are not apportioned to the OA processing unit E. (In the actual environment, the electric energy is measured as shown above.)

The settings for this case are shown below.

Electricity meter for outdoor unit : Outdoor unit A, outdoor unit B

Electricity meter for indoor unit : Indoor unit A, indoor unit B, indoor unit C, indoor unit D

• Unregister the OA processing unit E from the energy management block.

The settings for this case are shown below.

Energy management block 1 (tenant 1): Indoor unit A, indoor unit B

Energy management block 2 (tenant 2): Indoor unit C, indoor unit D

When the conditions are set as shown above, the electric energy for the five units, the indoor units A to D and OA processing unit E, are apportioned to the indoor units A to D, and the electric energy for the OA processing unit E is apportioned according to the use ratio of the indoor units A to D.



(3) When OA processing units (interlocked with City Multi) are interlocked with different energy management blocks (tenants)



In this case, the electric energy for the OA processing units can be included in the charges to the tenants by setting the OA processing units (interlocked with City Multi) as shown below.

• Set the OA processing units E and F by the refrigerant system setting function of the Initial Setting Tool.

The settings for this case are shown below.

Outdoor unit A: Indoor unit A, indoor unit B

Outdoor unit B: Indoor unit C, indoor unit D, OA processing unit E and OA processing unit F.

• Set the OA processing units E and F for the indoor unit meter by the meter setting function of the Initial Setting Tool. The settings for this case are shown below.

Electricity meter for outdoor unit: Outdoor unit A, outdoor unit B

Electricity meter for indoor unit : Indoor unit A, indoor unit B, indoor unit C, indoor unit D, OA processing unit E, OA processing unit F

• Register the OA processing units in the energy management blocks.

The settings for this case are shown below.

Energy management block 1 (tenant 1): Indoor unit A, indoor unit B, OA processing unit E

Energy management block 2 (tenant 2): Indoor unit C, indoor unit D, OA processing unit F

In the case of the above settings, the electric energy for the OA processing units (interlocked with City Multi) is apportioned to the energy management blocks. For the apportionment calculation method, see <1> "In the case of City Multi."



<7> In the case of meter pulse count (direct reading)

(1) Outline of apportionment

Apportionment calculation is not performed.

Systems, such as M-Series (RAC), that directly read electric energy, use directly the electric energy data collected by the meters.



When some direct reading systems are installed in one tenant, the direct reading meters can be arranged as shown below.



* AE-200, AE-50/EW-50, PI controller and pulse detector are omitted.

When using direct reading meters, set the unit type as shown below.

• Set the unit type to "Other" by the meter setting function of the Initial Setting Tool.

<8> In the case of electric energy manual input (without meters) method

In the case of the electric energy manual input method, the electric energy is calculated by using the meter readings without the use of PI controller.

(1) Outline of apportionment parameters

The electric energy manual input method is used to calculate the apportionment parameters that indicate the power consumption by AE-200 instead of apportioning electric energy.

The apportionment parameters calculated by AE-200 will be used for calculation of the charge rate to the total of all energy management blocks by the Charge Calculation Tool.



* AE-200 and AE-50/EW-50 are omitted.

[15. Apportioned Electricity Billing Function]

(2) Method for calculating outdoor unit apportionment parameter

There are the following three kinds of base data for calculation of outdoor unit apportionment parameter. Select one of them.

	Capacity save amount	Thermo ON time	Fan operation time
Measurement method	Value approximate to amount of refrigerant used by indoor unit	Time during which refrigerant is being fed to indoor unit	Indoor unit operation time
	Ø	0	Δ
Apportionment accuracy	The consumed electricity is calculated with the highest accuracy because a value approximate to the amount of refrigerant fed into the indoor unit is used.	The cooling thermo ON or heating thermo ON time is counted. The time is not counted during air blowing (while the refrigerant is not used).	The fan operation time is counted. The time is counted also during air blowing.



AE-50/EW-50 integrates these data of each indoor unit in each charging time slot, and AE-200 collects the data every 30 minutes.

The method for calculating the outdoor unit apportionment parameter for each indoor unit is explained below. The calculation is performed for each indoor unit every 30 minutes.



(3) Method for calculating indoor unit apportionment parameter

For calculation of the indoor unit apportionment parameter, use the fan operation time.



AE-50/EW-50 integrates this data of each indoor unit in each charging time slot, and AE-200 collects the data every 30 minutes.

The method for calculating the indoor unit apportionment parameter for each indoor unit is explained below. The calculation is performed for each indoor unit every 30 minutes.



[4] Charge calculation

The methods for calculating the charges with the Charge Calculation Tool based on the results of apportionment calculation are explained.

<1> Electric energy measurement (with meters) method

In the case of the electric energy measurement (with meters) method, the charge for each energy management block is calculated based on the apportioned electric energy to each unit output from AE-200.



<2> Electric energy manual input (without meters) method

In the case of the electric energy manual input (without meters) method, the charge rates of outdoor units and indoor units in each energy management block are calculated based on their apportionment parameters output from AE-200. The total rate for all sets of AE-200 calculated by the Charge Calculation Tool is 100%.

The charge to each tenant can be determined by multiplying the total energy charge by the charge rate.



[5] Screen display and output

<1> AE-200 LCD

The results of monthly apportionment calculation can be checked on the LCD screen of AE-200. The results of apportionment calculation can be output to a CSV file from this screen.

The data for past 25 months from the previous month can be displayed.

Remarks O The results of apportionment calculation cannot be displayed on AE-50/EW-50.

(1) Electric energy measurement (with meters) method

Two kinds of data, data on energy management blocks and on meters, can be displayed.

• Example of display of data on energy management blocks

The apportioned electric energy to each energy management block in each month is displayed.

Monitor/	gy 🔂 Sch	edule ettings	27/04/2015
Ranking	Energy m	anagement li	st 🕨 🕨
		Display :	switching
Energy management block name	2015/01/01 - 2015/01/31	2015/02/01 - 2015/02/28	2015/03/01 - 2015/03/31
Tenant A	210.9 kWh	210.9 kWh	210.9 kWh
Tenant B	262.7 kWh	262.7 kWh	262.7 kWh
Tenant C	225.4 k\\h	225.4 kWh	225.4 kWh
Tenant D	258.9 kWh	258.9 kWh	258.9 kWh
Tenant E	258.9 k\\h	258.9 kWh	258.9 kWh
Tenant F	225.4 kilh	225.4 kWh	225. 4 klih
Total	1442.2 kWh	1442.2 kWh	1442.2 kWh
		CSV	output

• Example of display of data on meters

The value measured by each meter in each month is output.

Monitor/	Sch Se	edule ttings	27/04/2015 15:23	2
Ranking	Energy m	anagement li	st 🚺	
		Display	switching	
PI Controller name	2015/01/01 - 2015/01/31	2015/02/01 - 2015/02/28	2015/03/01 - 2015/03/31	-
PI-Ch1	349.0 kWh	349.0 kWh	349.0 kWh	
PI-Ch2	350.0 kWh	350.0 kWh	350.0 kWh	П
PI-Ch3	118.0 kWh	118.0 kWh	118.0 kWh	
PI-Ch4	106.0 kWh	108.0 kWh	108.0 kWh	
		CSV	output	

(2) Electric energy manual input (without meters) method

Two kinds of data, data on outdoor units and on indoor units in each energy management block, can be displayed on the screen.

- Example of display of data on energy management blocks (outdoor units)
 - The apportionment parameter for outdoor units in each energy management block in each month is displayed.

Monitor/	gy 🔁 Sche Set	dule tings	27/84/2015 15:23
Ranking	Energy ma	nagement li	ist 🕨
	nt block - Outdoor units	Display	switching
Energy management block name	2015/01/01 - 2015/01/31	2015/02/01 - 2015/02/28	2015/03/01 - 2015/03/31
Tenant A	210.9	210.9	210.9
Tenant B	262.7	262.7	262.7
Tenant C	225. 4	225.4	225. 4
Tenant D	258.9	258. 9	258. 9
Tenant E	258.9	258.9	258. 9
Tenant F	225. 4		225. 4
Total	1442.2	1442.2	1442.2 output

- Example of display of data on energy management blocks (indoor units)
- The apportionment parameter for indoor units in each energy management block in each month is displayed.

Monitor/	t Sche	dule tings	27/04/2015 15:23
Ranking	Energy ma	nagement li	st 🕨
	ent block - Indoor units	Display	switching
Energy management block name	2015/01/01 - 2015/01/31	2015/02/01 - 2015/02/28	2015/03/01 - 2015/03/31
	19.0		19.0
Tenant B	67.2	67.2	67.2
Tenant C	24.5	24.5	24.5
Tenant D	59.8	59.8	59.8
Tenant E	59.8	59.8	59.8
Tenant F	24.5	24.5	24.5
Total	254.8	254. 8	254. 8
		CSV	output

<2> Output of CSV file from AE-200

CSV files can be output by pressing the CSV output button on the energy management list screen of AE-200.

CSV output	
Data to be output	
Energy management block	PI Controller
Data type	
1-month intervals	1-day intervals
30-minute intervals	
Data-acquisition period	
Date range 2015/02/0	01 - 2015/03/26
	CSV output Close

The following three kinds of CSV files can be output.

Kind	Period of data which can be output
1-month intervals	For 25 months before current month
1-day intervals	For 62 days before current day
30-minute intervals	For past 3 days from current day

 Remarks
 O Files cannot be output from AE-50/EW-50.

 O For calculation of charges by the Charge Calculation Tool, daily data is used.

(1) Electric energy m Two kinds of data, c	easurement (with meters) method lata on energy management blocks and on meters, can be output.
The CSV file is outp Example: When t	but to the "¥[serial number of AE-200]¥ApportionData" folder in the USB memory. he serial number is 12345-123 \rightarrow "¥12345-123¥ApportionData¥"
The name of the file Monthly:	e of the results of apportionment calculation for each energy management block is shown below. "App_IC_M_[start year]-[start month]_[end year]-[end month].csv" Example: Output of data from Feb. 2015 to Mar. 2015 → "App_IC_M_2015-02_2015-03.csv"
Daily:	"App_IC_D_[start year]-[start month]-[start day]_[end year]-[end month]-[end day].csv" Example: Output of data from Feb. 26, 2015 to Mar. 25, 2015 → "App_IC_D_2015-02-26, 2015-03-25 csv"
Every 30 minutes	S: "App_IC_30 m_[start year]-[start month]-[start day]-[start hour]-[start minute]_[end year]-[end month]- [end day]-[end hour]-[end minute].csv" Example: Output of data from Feb. 26, 2015 to Feb. 28, 2015 → "App_IC_30 m_2015-02-26-00-30_2015-02-28-24-00.csv"
The name of the file Monthly:	e of the results of apportionment calculation by each meter is shown below. "App_MC_M_[start year]-[start month]_[end year]-[end month].csv" Example: Output of data from Feb. 2015 to Mar. 2015 → "App_IC_M_2015-02_2015-03 csv"
Daily:	"App_MC_D_[start year]-[start month]-[start day]_[end year]-[end month]-[end day].csv" Example: Output of data from Feb. 26, 2015 to Mar. 25, 2015 → "App_IC_D_2015-02-26, 2015-03-25 csv"
Every 30 minutes	 App_IC_D_2010-02-20 [2010-03-20:05-02:05
Remarks or	C, MC, M, D and 30 m in the file names indicate the energy management block, PI controller, monthly

R gy y J data, daily data and data every 30 minutes, respectively.

[15. Apportioned Electricity Billing Function]

• Example of display of data on energy management blocks The electric energy apportioned to each energy management block is output.

601	Apportioned	calculation results (Air-conditio	ner)	5	1	1			
Time period:2015/05/01_00	0.00 - 2015/	05/31 00.00							
Energy management block	1	Apportioned Amotric entry	Outdoor units - Apportioned electric energy	(Unit price 1)	(Unit once 2)	(Unit price 3)	(Unit price 4)	(Unit price 5)	Indoor units
		Down	[kwn]	DAMAN	Dovis)	[AW6]	[Jawn]	Downd	D/Wini]
1	TermitA	1961	177.4	1402	372		0	0	
	Tenante	1901	1718	1129	58.9		0.4	0	
3	TenentC	2012	1994	1274			2 0	0	
	TenantO	05.2	76.3	53.2	231	0	0 C	0	
5	Transite	-1133	101.6	â79	337	0	0	0	
Ľ.	TenuntF	36.1	1190 trib	82.7	20.0	- 0	0	0	
	TenantG	197	2881	1064	61.0		3 0	0	1
2	TenantH	58.4	821	34.5	.18	0	0 0		
9	Tenanti	46.6	41.2	- 異型 //	61.5		0	0	
10	TenantJ	2013	1505	151.9	\$3.6		0	0	
Biergy municipament, block		Unit address	Date	-		-	-	Outdoor anits - Apportioned electric energy	(Unit price 1)
			[Yeur]	[Monsh]	[Day]	THOUR	Minutel	Down3	Divin)
1	TermitA	15-015	2015	5	1		2	9.549025157	
3	TerattA	A+015	2015	5	2	0	0 0	0 186866666	
.1	TenantA	3+015	.2015	5	3		0	0.249399999	
.1	TermitA	1-015	2015		4)	7 050318678	
1	TermitA	9-015-	-2015		-5	6	0	3905846769	

11										//
										1
										,
por	units - Apportioned electric energy	(Unit price 1)	(Unit price 2)	(Unit price 3)	(Unit price 4)	(Unit price 5)				
h		[kWh]	[kWh]	[kWh]	[kWh]	[kWh]				
	21.7	14.6	7.1	0	0	0				
	18.3	11.5	6.8	0	0	0				
	20.8	15.6	5.2	0	0	0				
	8.9	7.5	1.4	0	0	0				
	11.7	9.4	2.3	0	0	0				
	16.4	12.7	3.7	0	0	0				
	18.8	11.8	7	0	0	0				
	6.3	5.2	1.1	0	0	0				
	5.4	4.7	0.7	0	0	0				
11	22.8	18.2	4.6	0	0	0				
11										
Unit p	price 1)			(Unit price 2)			(Unit price 3)			(Unit price 4)
Electri	c energy consumption	Standby electric energy		Electric energy consumption	Standby electric energy		Electric energy consumption	Standby electric energy		Electric energy
[kWh]		[kWh]	Status	[kWh]	[kWh]	Status	[kwh]	[kWh]	Status	[kWh]
	9.290691829	0.122499995		0	0.135833333		0	0		
	0	0		0	0.166666666		0	0		
\square	0	0		0	0.249999999		0	0		
	4.602971284	0.116666661		2.194847402	0.135833331		0	0		
//										`

//))
11											$\Box $
11											
1											
- 1											
1											
11											\square
11											\square
TL											\square
IL											
\square											
10	nit price 4)			(Unit price 5)			Indoor units - Apportioned electric energy	(Unit price 1)			(Uni
Ele	ectric energy consumption	Standby electric energy		Electric energy consumption	Standby electric energy			Electric energy consumption	Standby electric energy		Elec
<u>[k</u> i	A/h_	[kWh]	Status	[kWh]	[kWh]	Status	[kWh]	[kWh]	[ki//h]	Status	LKW
\square	0	0		0	0		1 200866664	0.7812	0.135833331		\square
\square	0	0		0	0	1	0	0	0		+11
Π	0	0		0	0	-	0.20429487	0	0		+ -11
11	0	0		0	0		0.41 41 28203	0.091794871	0.112499999		<u> </u>
//	\										/

11												
- 1												
- 1	<u> </u>											
1												
11				(11.11.1.1.0)			(11.15.1.4)			(11.5. ·		
TE	Unit price 2)	Chandles a la adula ja na una		(Unit price 3)	Observables and the state of the second		(Unit price 4)	Otomalle : elle stale : energie :		(Unit price 5)	Otomollo : a la atolar a serva	<u> </u>
18	lectric energy consumption	Standby electric energy	Cherkura	Electric energy consumption	Standby electric energy	Chabura	Electric energy consumption	Standby electric energy	Cherkow	Electric energy consumption	Standby electric energy Dwwl]	Chattan
١ŀ	0148	0195899999	Status	Down 0	Devenu	อเลเนร	LKWIN	Drowing O	Status	[Keat1]	Dennin	Status
IF	0.148	0.133633333		0	0		0	0		0	0	<u> </u>
11	0.091794871	0112/00000		0	0		0	0		0	0	<u>t – </u>
1	0.001104071	0135833333		0	0		0	0		0	0	<u> </u>
	1	0.100000000		· · · · · ·			· · · · · ·	v		· · · · · ·	0	
	\ \											

[15. Apportioned Electricity Billing Function]

• Example of display of data on meters The values measured by each meter are output.

									/			
611	611 Apportioned calculation results (Metering device)											
Time period:2015/05/	01 00:00 - 20	015/05/31 00:00										
Metering device name	Unit address	Measurement value	(Unit price 1)	(Unit price 2)	(Unit price 3)	(Unit price 4)	(Unit price 5)	Measurement unit				
PI-Ch1	1-049-1	349	253	96	0	0	0	kWh				
PI-Ch2	1-049-2	286	223	63	0	0	0	kWh	/			
PI-Ch3	1-049-3	164	126	38	0	0	0	kWh				
PI-Ch4	1-049-4	127	99	28	0	0	0	kWh	//			
Metering device name	Unit address	Date					(Unit price 1)		(Unit price 2)			
		[Year]	[Month]	[Day]	[Hour]	[Minute]		Status				
PI-Ch1	1-049-1	2015	5	1	0	0	45		12			
PI-Ch1	1-049-1	2015	5	2	0	0	41		13			
PI-Ch1	1-049-1	2015	5	3	0	0	13		711			
PI-Ch1	1-049-1	2015	5	4	0	0	28		5\\			

\'	\							
)	1							
	II							
1	'I							
1		(Unit price 3)		(Unit price 4)		(Unit price 5)		Measurement unit
1	<u>βtatu</u>	IS	Status		Status		Status	
		0		0		0		kWh
		0		0		0		kWh
1		0		0		0		kWh
		0		0		0		kWh
	//							

 $\overline{\mathbf{v}}$

 The indications in the "Status" columns in the CSV file have the following meanings. No indication: Normal

 Any trouble has occurred.

 Remarks

-2: Carry-over is caused for any reason, for example, apportionment calculation could not be performed on the day (in the month or for the 30 minutes).

(2) Electric energy manual input (without meters) method One kind of data, data on energy management blocks, can be displayed on the screen. The CSV file is output to the "¥[serial number of AE-200]¥ApportionData" folder in the USB memory. Example: When the serial number is $12345-123 \rightarrow$ "¥12345-123¥ApportionData¥" The name of the file of the results of apportionment calculation for each energy management block is shown below. "App_IC_M_[start year]-[start month]_[end year]-[end month].csv" Monthly: Example: Output of data from Feb. 2015 to Mar. 2015 → "App IC M 2015-02 2015-03.csv" "App_IC_D_[start year]-[start month]-[start day]_[end year]-[end month]-[end day].csv" Daily: Example: Output of data from Feb. 26, 2015 to Mar. 25, 2015 → "App_IC_D_2015-02-26_2015-03-25.csv" Every 30 minutes: "App_IC_30 m_[start year]-[start month]-[start day]-[start hour]-[start minute]_[end year]-[end month]-[end day]-[end hour]-[end minute].csv" Example: Output of data from Feb. 26, 2015 to Feb. 28, 2015 → "App_IC_30 m_2015-02-26-00-30_2015-02-28-24-00.csv"

• Example of display of data on energy management blocks The apportionment parameters for each energy management block are output.

602	Apportionate	calculation results (Air-con	ditioner)				1		$\neg $
Time aminu:2015/05/01 00	000-2015/	05/31.00/00		1		-	1		
Energy management block	-	Apportionment garanieter	Apportionment parameter for outdoor units	(Unit price 1)	(Unit price 2)	(Unit price 3)	OUnit price 41	Unit price 51	riagon (
1	TenantA	1653	147.4	1202	27.2	0	0	0	-
2	TenantE	- 208.5	280.8	195.9	84.9	0	0		
1	TenantC	132.6	110,0	97.4	-21.4	0	0	0	
4	TerrantO	91 6	825	564	20.1	.0	0		
-5	TerrintE	69.5	61 3	41.9	19.4	0	0	0	
6	TenantF	1002	68.4	611	27.9	0	0	0	
7	TenantG	113.9	- 98,7	75	- 21.7	0	0	0	
9	FenantH	35.5		21.5	95	0	0	0	=11
	Tenanti	26 Ř	84.7	64.2	20.5	. 0	Ú.	0	$\exists I$
10	TenantJ	211	100.2	1562	32	0	0	0	
Energy management block		Unit address	Dian		-	_		Apportionment parameter for ordinar units (Lin
	-		[Vear]	[Month]	[Dav]	[Hour]	[Minute]		-11
1	TerrantA	1-015	2015	.5	1	.0	0	4.48	
1	TerrantA	1-015	2015	5	2	0	0	3.86	$\neg 1$
	Teranta.	1-015	2015	5	3	0	0	192	-11
1	TanantA.	1-015	2015	5	4		0	2.24	

portio	inment parameter for indoor units	(Unit price 1)	(Unit price 2)	(Unit price 3)	(Unit price 4)	(Unit price 5)							
	17.7	12.4	5.3	0	0	0							
	27.7	19.2	8.5	0	0	0							
	14	9.2	4.8	0	0	0							
	9.1	7.2	1.9	0	0	0							
	8.2	5.3	2.9	0	0	0							
	11.8	8.7	3.1	0	0	0							
	16.6	10.6	6	0	0	0							
\square	4.5	3.2	1.3	0	0	0							
	14.1	9.6	4.5	0	0	0							
	22.8	16.7	6.1	0	0	0							
Jnit pri	ice 1)			(Unit price 2)			(Unit price 3)		(Unit price 4)		(Unit price 5)		Apport
			Status			Status		Status		Status		Status	
	3.733333333			0.74666667			0		0		0		
	2.8			0.56			0		0		0		
1	2.986666667			0.93333333			0		0		0		
	2.053333333			018666667			0		0		0		

1												
Λ.	\Box											
	1											
	۱L											
	11											
	11											
	11											
	11-											
	11											
	1 F											
	IL											
1	' L											
1	1											
1.	L											
11												
	App	ortionment parameter for indoor units	(Unit price 1)	 	(Unit price 2)		(Unit price 3)		(Unit price 4)		(Unit price 5)	
lŀ												
H				 Status		Status		 Status		 Status		 Status
۱ŀ	_	0.88	0.733333333		0.14666667		0		0		0	
11	\vdash	0.66	0.55		0.11		0		0	 	0	
1	\vdash	0.77	0.58666667		0.18333333		0		0		0	
	١H	0.44	0.40333333		0.03666667		0		0		0	

Remarks	O IC, MC, M, D and 30 m in the file names indicate the energy management block, PI controller, monthly data, daily data and data every 30 minutes, respectively.
	 The indications in the "Status" columns in the CSV file have the following meanings. No indication: Normal
	-1: Any trouble has occurred.
	-2: Carry-over is caused for any reason, for example, apportionment calculation could not

Carry-over is caused for any reason, for example, apportionment calculation could not be performed on the day (in the month or for the 30 minutes).

Remarks	Out-of-date data will be automatically deleted. It is recommended to periodically output the data to a CSV file and save the file.
	○ It is recommended to periodically output the data to a CSV file and save the file in case AE-200 goes down.
	\odot Do not remove the USB memory while the data is being written to it.
	 Use a USB memory device that meets the following conditions. Supports USB 2.0 Formatted with FAT32 or FAT (FAT16) Security function is not provided or not required to be set.
	O If the data cannot be output to the USB memory device after a writing error occurs and the device is replaced, reboot the AE-200/AE-50 (turn off the power and restart). Do not use the USB memory device that has experienced writing error once.
	\odot The data in the addresses of unconnected devices are not output.

342

<3> Display on Charge Calculation Tool screen

- (1) Electric energy measurement (with meters) method
- Two kinds of data, data on energy management blocks and on meters, can be displayed on the screen.
- Example of display of data on energy management blocks (when energy management blocks are integrated) The apportioned electric energy and charge to each energy management block are displayed. When there are energy management blocks having the same name, these blocks are displayed as one integrated energy management block.

Charge Galculation Pa	Advanced Setures	
Energy management block	Metering device	
Ime period for calculation: 2015/08/21- Energy management block name	2015/04/20(YYYY/MM/DD) Apportioned electric energy [kWh]	Charges [USD]
Tenant A	205.7	41.10
Tenant B	264.9	52.98
Tenant C	439.3	87.86
Tenant D	162.0	32.40
Tenant E	203.4	40.68
Tenant F	364.2	72.84
Tenant G	98.5	19.70
Tenant H	274.1	54.82
Tenant I	262.5	32.40
Tenant J	214.7	42.94

• Example of display of data on energy management blocks (when energy management blocks are not integrated) The apportioned electric energy and charge to each energy management block are displayed. When there are energy management blocks having the same name, these blocks are not integrated and are displayed as different energy management blocks.

Energy management block	Meterine device	
Fime period for calculation: 2015/03/21	-2015/04/20(\YYY/MM/DD)	
Energy management block name.	Apportioned electric energy [kWh]	Charges [USD]
AE-200 No.1 Tenant A	205.7	41.10
AE-200 No.1 Tenant B	264.9	52.98
AE-200 No.1 Tenant C	439.3	87.86
AE-200 No.1 Tenant D	162.0	32.40
AE-200 No.1 Tenant E	203.4	40.68
AE-200 No.1 Tenant F	364.2	72.84
AE-200 No.1 Tenant G	98,5	19.70
AE-200 No.1 Tenant H	274.1	54.82
AE-200 No.1 Tenant I	162.0	32.40
AE-200 No.2 Tenant I	100.5	20.10
AE-200 No.2 Tenant J	214.7	42.94

Remarks O Determine whether or not to integrate the energy management blocks with the Charge Calculation Tool.

• Example of display of data on meters The measurement and charge determined by each meter are displayed.

(i) help (iii)		
rge Calculation Charge Calcu	lation Result <u>Advanced Settines</u>	
Energy management block	Metering device	
Fine period for calculation 2015	/03/91-9015/04/9000000//MM4/DD)	
Metering device name	Measurement value	Charges [USD]
AE-200 No.1 PI-Ch1	187.0kWh	37.40
AE-200 No.1 PI-Ch2	184.0kWh	36.80
AE-200 No.1 PI-Ch3	24.0kWh	4.80
AE-200 No.1 PI-Ch4	51.0kWh	10.20

(2) Electric energy manual input (without meters) method

One kind of data, data on energy management blocks, can be displayed on the screen.

• Example of display of data on energy management blocks (when energy management blocks are integrated) The charge rates of outdoor units and indoor units in each energy management block are displayed. When there are energy management blocks having the same name, these blocks are displayed as one integrated energy management block.

ree Calculation Charge Calculation Result	Advanced Settings	
Energy management block		
Time period for calculation: 2015/03/21-2015/04/200	YYYY/MM/DD)	
Energy management block name	Charge rate [%] (for indoor units)	Charge rate [%] (for outdoor units)
Tenant A	5,7000	4.1000
Tenant B	20.9000	22,9800
Tenant C	9,3000	7.8600
Tenant D	12.0000	14.6800
Tenant E	3.4000	4.6800
Tenant F	4.2000	5.8400
Tenant G	8.5000	9.7000
Tenant H	11.6000	11.8200
Tenant I	9.7000	11.5000
Tenant J	14.7000	6.8400

• Example of display of data on energy management blocks (when energy management blocks are not integrated) The charge rates of outdoor units and indoor units in each energy management block are displayed. When there are energy management blocks having the same name, these blocks are not integrated and are displayed as different energy management blocks.

cite of management energy	andaara	
Fime period for calculation: 2015/03/21-2015/04/20(Energy management block name	YYYY/MM/DD) Charge rate [X] (for index units)	Charge rate [M] (for subdoc units)
AE-200 No.1 Tenant A	5,7000	4.1000
AE-200 No.1 Tenant B	20.9000	22,9800
AE-200 No.1 Tenant C	9,3000	7.8600
AE-200 No.1 Tenant D	12.0000	14.6800
AE-200 No.1 Tenant E	3,4000	4.6800
AE-200 No.1 Tenant F	4.2000	5.8400
AE-200 No.1 Tenant G	8,5000	9,7000
AE-200 No.1 Tenant H	11.6000	11.8200
AE-200 No.1 Tenant I	3,4000	4.6800
AE-200 No.2 Tenant I	6.3000	7.8200
AE-200 No.2 Tenant J	14.7000	6.8400

<4> Output of CSV file of data obtained by Charge Calculation Tool

The results of calculation of electric energy and charges obtained by the Charge Calculation Tool can be output to a CSV file.

(1) Electric energy measurement (with meters) method Two kinds of data, data on energy management blocks and on meters, can be output.

The automatically output CSV file is stored in the folder with the preset CSV file destination folder name + ¥[year]¥[month]¥. The output file is dated based on the year and month (day) of the adjustment date. Example: When the file is output at 5:00 am on Feb. 1, 2015 (day after adjustment date) The folder name is "C:\CCTool\ChargeFile\2015\01\."

 The name of the file of the results of calculation of charges to energy management blocks is shown below.

 Daily: "[year] [month] [day] B.csv"
 Example: Output on Feb. 1, 2015 → "20150131B.csv"

 Monthly: "[year] [month] B.csv"
 Example: Output on Feb. 1, 2015 → "201501B.csv"

The name of the file of the results of calculation of charges to meter is shown below. Daily: "[year] [month] [day] W.csv" Example: Output on Feb. 1, 2015 \rightarrow "20150131W.csv" Monthly: "[year] [month] W.csv" Example: Output on Feb. 1, 2015 \rightarrow "201501W.csv"

 Example of output of data on energy management blocks (when energy management blocks are integrated) The apportioned electric energy and charge to each energy management block are output.
 When there are energy management blocks having the same name, these blocks are output as one integrated energy management block.

70'	Charge Calculation Result (I	Energy management block)							
Time period:2015/04/01-2015.	/04/31								
Energy management block nam	Apportioned electric energy	Outdoor units - Apportioned electric energy	(Unit price 1)	(Unit price 2)	(Unit price 3)	(Unit price 4)	(Unit price 5)	Indoor units - Apportioned electric energy	(Unit
	[kWh]	[kWh]	[kWh]	[kWh]	[kWh]	[kWh]	[kWh]	[kWh]	[kwh]/
Tenant A	261.3	221.5	175.3	46.2	0	0	0	39.8	$\Box / $
Tenant B	347.4	292.7	224.3	68.4	0	0	0	54.7	
Tenant C	532.8	449	374.1	74.9	0	0	0	83.8	
Tenant D	204.5	182.4	144.9	37.5	0	0	0	22.1	
Tenant E	260.7	238.4	185.3	53.1	0	0	0	22.3	
Tenant F	471.6	435	337.1	97.9	0	0	0	36.6	
									_//

//													
N	\												$ \rangle$
1													
	Init price 1)	(Unit price 2)	(Unit price 3)	(Unit price 4)	(Unit price 5)	Apportioned charges	Outdoor units - Apportioned charges	(Unit price 1)	(Unit price 2)	(Unit price 3)	(Unit price 4)	(Unit price 5)	Indo
	Wh]	[kWh]	[kWh]	[kWh]	[kWh]	[USD]	[USD]	[USD]	[USD]	[USD]	[USD]	[USD]	[US
	30.4	9.4	0	0	0	52.26	44.3	35.06	9.24	0	0	0	
1	40.6	14.1	0	0	0	69.48	58.54	44.86	13.68	0	0	0	\Box
11	65.2	18.6	0	0	0	106.56	89.8	74.82	14.98	0	0	0	\square
11	17.1	5	0	0	0	40.9	36.48	28.98	7.5	0	0	0	\Box
11	18.1	4.2	0	0	0	52.14	47.68	37.06	10.62	0	0	0	
10	27.1	9.5	0	0	0	94.32	87	67.42	19.58	0	0	0	\Box
11													-11

Γ,						
1						
	door units - Apportioned charges	(Unit price 1)	(Unit price 2)	(Unit price 3)	(Unit price 4)	(Unit price 5)
	ISD]	[USD]	[USD]	[USD]	[USD]	[USD]
	7.96	6.08	1.88	0	0	0
1	10.94	8.12	2.82	0	0	0
/.	16.76	13.04	3.72	0	0	0
11	4.42	3.42	1	0	0	0
	4.46	3.62	0.84	0	0	0
V	7.32	5.42	1.9	0	0	0
1						

 \mathbf{v}

[15. Apportioned Electricity Billing Function]

• Example of output of data on energy management blocks (when energy management blocks are not integrated) The apportioned electric energy and charge to each energy management block are output. When there are energy management blocks having the same name, these blocks are not integrated and output as different energy management blocks.

									~ ^ ^
701	Charge Calculation Result (I	Energy management block)							
Time period:2015/04/01-2015/	04/31								
Energy management block name	Apportioned electric energy	Outdoor units - Apportioned electric energy	(Unit price 1)	(Unit price 2)	(Unit price 3)	(Unit price 4)	(Unit price 5)	Indoor units - Apportioned electric energy	y (Unit
	[kWh]	[kWh]	[kWh]	[kWh]	[kWh]	[kWh]	[kWh]	[kWh]	[kWh]
AE-200 No.1 Tenant A	261.3	221.5	5 175.3	46.2	0	0	0	39./	8 //
AE-200 No.1 Tenant B	347.4	292."	7 224.3	68.4	0	0	0	54.	7 //
AE-200 No.1 Tenant C	532.8	44	374.1	74.9	0	0	0	83,	8
AE-200 No.1 Tenant D	204.5	182.	4 144.9	37.5	0	0	0	22.1	1
AE-200 No.1 Tenant E	240.9	220.	3 170.7	49.6	0	0	0	/ 20/	6
AE-200 No.2 Tenant E	19.8	18.1	14.6	3.5	0	0	0	1.	7]/
AE-200 No 2 Tenant E	471.6	435	5 337.1	97.9	0	0	0	36(6 \\

17													
//													
1													
	nit price 1	(Unit price 2)	(Unit price 3)	(Unit price 4)	(Unit price 5)	Apportioned charges	Outdoor units - Apportioned charges	(Unit price 1)	(Unit price 2)	(Unit price 3)	(Unit price 4)	(Unit price 5)	In
	Nh]	[kWh]	[kWh]	[kWh]	[kWh]	[USD]	[USD]	[USD]	[USD]	[USD]	[USD]	[USD]	[L
1	30.4	9.4	0	0	0	52.26	44.3	35.06	9.24	0	0	0	
1	40.6	14.1	0	0	0	69.48	58.54	44.86	13.68	0	0	0	
IL	65.2	18.6	0	0	0	106.56	89.8	74.82	14.98	0	0	0	
Ľ	17.1	5	0	0	0	40.9	36.48	28.98	7.5	0	0	0	
	16.6	4	0	0	0	48.18	44.06	34.14	9.92	0	0	0	
L	1.5	0.2	0	0	0	3.96	3.62	2.92	0.7	0	0	0	
Ŋ	27.1	9.5	0	0	0	94.32	87	67.42	19.58	0	0	0	
V	< l>												

1						
_ \						
1						
	door units - Apportioned charges	(Unit price 1)	(Unit price 2)	(Unit price 3)	(Unit price 4)	(Unit price 5)
	SD]	[USD]	[USD]	[USD]	[USD]	[USD]
1	7.96	6.08	1.88	0	0	0
- /	10.94	8.12	2.82	0	0	0
1	16.76	13.04	3.72	0	0	0
11	4.42	3.42	1	0	0	0
1L	4.12	3.32	0.8	0	0	0
11	0.34	0.3	0.04	0	0	0
1	7.32	5.42	1.9	0	0	0

Remarks O Determine whether or not to integrate the energy management blocks with the Charge Calculation Tool.

• Example of output of data on meters

The measurement and charge obtained by each meter are output.

711	Charge Calculation I	Result (meterii	ng device)										
Time period:2015/04/	01-2015/04/31												
Metering device name	Measurement value	(Unit price 1)	(Unit price 2)	(Unit price 3)	(Unit price 4)	(Unit price 5)	Measurement unit	Charges	(Unit price 1)	(Unit price 2)	(Unit price 3)	(Unit price 4)	(Unit price 5)
								[USD]	[USD]	[USD]	[USD]	[USD]	[USD]
AE-200 No.1 PI-Ch1	349	253	96	0	0	0	kWh	69.8	50.6	19.2	0	0	0
AE-200 No.1 PI-Ch2	286	223	63	0	0	0	kWh	57.2	44.6	12.6	0	0	0
AE-200 No.1 PI-Ch3	164	126	38	0	0	0	kWh	32.8	25.2	7.6	0	0	0
AE-200 No.1 PI-Ch4	127	99	28	0	0	0	kWh	25.4	19.8	5.6	0	0	0

(2) Electric energy manual input (without meters) method One kind of data, data on energy management blocks, can be output.

The automatically output CSV file is stored in the folder with the preset CSV file destination folder name + ¥[year]¥[month]¥. The output file is dated based on the year and month (day) of the adjustment date. Example: When the file is output at 5:00 am on Feb. 1, 2015 (day after adjustment date) The folder name is "C:\CCTool\ChargeFile\2015\01\."

The name of the file of the results of calculation of charges to energy management blocks is shown below.Daily: "[year] [month] [day] B.csv"Example: Output on Feb. 1, 2015 \rightarrow "20150131B.csv"Monthly: "[year] [month] B.csv"Example: Output on Feb. 1, 2015 \rightarrow "201501B.csv"

• Example of output of data on energy management blocks (when energy management blocks are integrated) The charge rates of outdoor units and indoor units in each energy management block are output. When there are energy management blocks having the same name, these blocks are output as one integrated energy management block.

									1	١.
702	Charge Calculation Result	(Energy management block)								77
Time period:2015/04/01-2015/04/	31									1
Energy management block name	Apportionment parameter	Apportionment parameter for outdoor units	(Unit price 1)	(Unit price 2)	(Unit price 3)	(Unit price 4)	(Unit price 5)	Apportionment parameter for indoor units	3 (Unit]]
										11
Tenant A	165.1	147.4	120.2	27.2	0	0	0	17.7	/ /	1
Tenant B	308.5	280.8	195.9	84.9	0	0	0	27.7		1
Tenant C	132.8	118.8	97.4	21.4	0	0	0	14		1
Tenant D	91.6	82.5	56.4	26.1	0	0	0	9.1		
Tenant E	69.5	61.3	41.9	19.4	0	0	0	8.2		
Tenant F	100.2	88.4	61.1	27.3	0	0	0	11.8		1

	//							
1	\square							
	(Unit	price 1)	(Unit price 2)	(Unit price 3)	(Unit price 4)	(Unit price 5)	Charge rate (for outdoor units)	Charge rate (for indoor units)
							[%]	[%]
		12.4	5.3	0	0	0	17.7169	20.0000
	1	19.2	8.5	0	0	0	37.1081	31.4783
		9.2	4.8	0	0	0	14.2263	16.3478
		7.2	1.9	0	0	0	11.0198	9.5652
		5.3	2.9	0	0	0	8.1887	9.6522
		8.7	3.1	0	0	0	11.7402	12.9565
/	/							

 $\overline{\mathbf{N}}$

• Example of output of data on energy management blocks (when energy management blocks are not integrated) The charge rates of outdoor units and indoor units in each energy management block are output. When there are energy management blocks having the same name, these blocks are not integrated and output as different energy management blocks.

702	702 Charge Calculation Result (Energy management block)						T_/,		
Time period:2015/04/01-2015/04.	/31								
Energy management block name	Apportionment parameter	Apportionment parameter for outdoor units	(Unit price 1)	(Unit price 2)	(Unit price 3)	(Unit price 4)	(Unit price 5)	Apportionment parameter for indoor units	3 (Unit
AE-200 No.1 Tenant A	165.1	147.4	120.2	27.2	0	0	0	17.5	
AE-200 No.1 Tenant B	308.5	280.8	195.9	84.9	0	0	0	27.7	iПI
AE-200 No.1 Tenant C	132.8	118.8	97.4	21.4	0	0	0	14	
AE-200 No.1 Tenant D	91.6	82.5	56.4	26.1	0	0	0	9.1	
AE-200 No.1 Tenant E	62.7	56.5	38.4	18.1	0	0	0	6.2	2
AE-200 No.2 Tenant E	6.8	4.8	3.5	1.3	0	0	0	2	
AE-200 No.2 Tenant F	100.2	88.4	61.1	27.3	0	0	0	11.8	3
AL 200 No2 Tenant I	1002	60.4	01.1	613	· · · · ·	· · · · ·		111	

	//							
1								
1								
	(Unit prio	e 1)	(Unit price 2)	(Unit price 3)	(Unit price 4)	(Unit price 5)	Charge rate (for outdoor units)	Charge rate (for indoor units)
1							[%]	[X]
		2.4	5.3	0	0	0	17.7169	20.0000
	// ·	9.2	8.5	0	0	0	37.1081	31.4783
		9.2	4.8	0	0	0	14.2263	16.3478
		7.2	1.9	0	0	0	11.0198	9.5652
		3.9	2.3	0	0	0	7.5698	7.3913
		1.4	0.6	0	0	0	0.6190	2.2609
1		8.7	3.1	0	0	0	11.7402	12.9565
1	/							

Remarks

O Determine whether or not to integrate the energy management blocks with the Charge Calculation Tool.
 O To calculate the charges from the charge rates, use the following formulas.

Charge for outdoor units = charge rate of outdoor units in energy management block × difference value on electricity meter for outdoor unit in period × unit price

Charge for indoor units = charge rate of indoor units in energy management block × difference value on electricity meter for indoor unit in period × unit price

<5> Printing from Charge Calculation Tool

The results of calculation of electric energy and charges obtained by the Charge Calculation Tool can be printed.

- (1) Electric energy measurement (with meters) method
- Two kinds of data, data on energy management blocks and on meters, can be output.
- Example of output of data on energy management blocks (when energy management blocks are integrated) The apportioned electric energy and charge to each energy management block are output. When there are energy management blocks having the same name, these blocks are output as one integrated energy management block.

Air conditioning charge - Energy management block (by Calculation period:2015/04/01-2015/04/31	unit price)				
Energy management block name	Apportioned electric energy	Item			Total air conditioning charge
	[kWh]	Unit price	[kWh]	[USD]	[USD]
Tenant A	46.0	Unit price 1	46.0	9.20	9.20
		Unit price 2	0.0	0.00	
		Unit price 3	0.0	0.00	
		Unit price 4	0.0	0.00	
		Unit price 5	0.0	0.00	
Tenant B	33.6	Unit price 1	33.6	6.72	6.72
		Unit price 2	0.0	0.00	
		Unit price 3	0.0	0.00	
		Unit price 4	0.0	0.00	
		Unit price 5	0.0	0.00	
Tenant C	26.2	Unit price 1	26.2	5.24	5.24
		Unit price 2	0.0	0.00	
		Unit price 3	0.0	0.00	
		Unit price 4	0.0	0.00	
		Unit price 5	0.0	0.00	

• Example of output of data on energy management blocks (when energy management blocks are not integrated) The apportioned electric energy and charge to each energy management block are output. When there are energy management blocks having the same name, these blocks are not integrated and output as different energy management blocks.

Energy management block name	Apportioned electric energy [kWh]	Item Unit price	[kWh]	[USD]	Total air conditioning charge [USD]
AE-200 No.1	46.0	Unit price 1	46.0	9.20	9.20
Tenant A		Unit price 2	0.0	0.00	
		Unit price 3	0.0	0.00	
		Unit price 4	0.0	0.00	
		Unit price 5	0.0	0.00	
AE-200 No.1	33.6	Unit price 1	33.6	6.72	6.72
Tenant B		Unit price 2	0.0	0.00	
		Unit price 3	0.0	0.00	
		Unit price 4	0.0	0.00	
		Unit price 5	0.0	0.00	
AE-200 No.1	26.2	Unit price 1	26.2	5.24	5.24
Tenant C		Unit price 2	0.0	0.00	
		Unit price 3	0.0	0.00	
		Unit price 4	0.0	0.00	
		Unit price 5	0.0	0.00	

Remarks

O Determine whether or not to integrate the energy management blocks with the Charge Calculation Tool.

• Example of output of data on meters The measurement and charge obtained by each meter are output.

Air conditioning charge - Metering device (by unit price) Calculation period:2015/04/01-2015/04/31					
Metering device name	Mesurement value	Unit	Item Unit price		Total air conditioning charge [USD]
AE-200 No.1	44.0	kWh	Unit price 1	44.0	8.80
Outdoor unit 1~4F			Unit price 2		
			Unit price 3		
			Unit price 4		
			Unit price 5		
AE-200 No.1	49.0	kWh	Unit price 1	49.0	9.80
Outdoor unit 5~8F			Unit price 2		
			Unit price 3		
			Unit price 4		
			Unit price 5		
AE-200 No.1	51.0	kWh	Unit price 1	51.0	10.20
Outdoor unit 9~12F			Unit price 2		
			Unit price 3		
			Unit price 4		
			Unit price 5		

[15. Apportioned Electricity Billing Function]

(2) Electric energy manual input (without meters) method One kind of data, data on energy management blocks, can be output.

• Example of output of data on energy management blocks (when energy management blocks are integrated) The charge rates of outdoor units and indoor units in each energy management block are output. When there are energy management blocks having the same name, these blocks are output as one integrated energy management block.

Energy management block name	Apportionment Parameter (inclusive sum)	Item Unit price	Apportionment Parameter (for indoor unit)	Charge rate[%] (for indoor unit)	Apportionment Parameter (for outdoor unit)	Charge rate[%] (for outdoor unit)
Tenant A	42.0	Unit price 1	23.3	50.9847	18.7	21.9741
		Unit price 2	0.0		0.0	
		Unit price 3	0.0		0.0	
		Unit price 4	0.0		0.0	
		Unit price 5	0.0		0.0	
Tenant B	29.6	Unit price 1	10.9	23.8512	18.7	21.9741
		Unit price 2	0.0		0.0	
		Unit price 3	0.0		0.0	
		Unit price 4	0.0		0.0	
		Unit price 5	0.0		0.0	
Tenant C	23.6	Unit price 1	5.4	11.8162	18.2	21.3866
		Unit price 2	0.0		0.0	
		Unit price 3	0.0		0.0	
		Unit price 4	0.0		0.0	
		Unit price 5	0.0		0.0	

• Example of output of data on energy management blocks (when energy management blocks are not integrated) The charge rates of outdoor units and indoor units in each energy management block are output. When there are energy management blocks having the same name, these blocks are not integrated and output as different energy management blocks.

Air conditioning charge - Energy management block Calculation period:2015/04/01-2015/04/31	(by unit price)					
	Apportionment Parameter	Item	Apportionment Parameter	Charge rate[%]	Apportionment Parameter	Charge rate[%]
Energy management block name	(inclusive sum)	Unit price	(for indoor unit)	(for indoor unit)	(for outdoor unit)	(for outdoor unit)
AE-200 No.1	42.0	Unit price 1	23.3	50.9847	18.7	21.9741
Tenant A		Unit price 2	0.0		0.0	
		Unit price 3	0.0		0.0	
		Unit price 4	0.0		0.0	
		Unit price 5	0.0		0.0	
AE-200 No.1	29.6	Unit price 1	10.9	23.8512	18.7	21.9741
Tenant B		Unit price 2	0.0		0.0	
		Unit price 3	0.0		0.0	
		Unit price 4	0.0		0.0	
		Unit price 5	0.0		0.0	
AE-200 No.1	23.6	Unit price 1	5.4	11.8162	18.2	21.3866
Tenant C		Unit price 2	0.0		0.0	
		Unit price 3	0.0		0.0	
		Unit price 4	0.0		0.0	
		Unit price 5	0.0		0.0	

Remarks	 Determine whether or not to integrate the energy management blocks with the Charge Calculation Tool. To calculate the charges from the charge rates, use the following formulas.
	Charge for outdoor units = charge rate of outdoor units in energy management block × difference value on electricity meter for outdoor unit in period × unit price Charge for indoor units = charge rate of indoor units in energy management block × difference value
	on electricity meter for indoor unit in period × unit price
[6] Charging system

To determine the charges on this system, 24 hours from 0:00 to 24:00 on each day of week can be divided into 10 charging time slots, and one of 5 unit prices can be allocated to each slot as shown below. (Apportionment is performed for each unit price.)

One charging time slot setting can be made on one AE-200 system, and one charge unit price (** EUR/kWh) setting can be made by the Charge Calculation Tool. Different settings for meters or tenants cannot be made.



If the charging time slots vary depending on tenant, the time slots can be set as shown below. If the unit prices vary depending on tenant, separately calculate the charge to each tenant by adding the apportioned electric energy in each unit price and multiplying the value by the unit price.



* The charging time slots can be set by the Initial Setting Tool, and the unit prices can be set by the Charge Calculation Tool.

[7] Cautions when using apportioned electricity billing function

Note To prevent troubles after construction or application of the system where the apportioned electricity billing function is used, obtain prior consent from the user through written confirmation to ensure that the proposed system configuration conforms to the user's requirements. Retain the written confirmation.

When using the apportioned electricity billing function, note the following points. See also the cautions in Chapter 1.

<1> Cautions about charging for air conditioning

- When using the apportioned electricity billing function, the building owner shall gain agreement and sign individual contracts with each tenant on condition that the tenant will be charged for use of electricity (including temporary measures against failure) based on apportionment in consideration of the operation condition of air conditioners.
- It is recommended to retain the results of calculation of charges for air conditioning in a form other than the data in the personal computer for the Charge Calculation Tool.
- (For example, print the results, and retain the sheets.)
- The "Charge" license shall be registered in all sets of AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 registered in the Charge Calculation Tool. If any of them is not registered, the apportioned electricity billing function will not normally operate.
- When using the apportioned electricity billing function, constantly run AE-200/AE-50/EW-50, PI controllers and devices on the LAN.
- If any of the devices is stopped or powered off, the apportionment of charge may not be performed correctly.
- When AE-50/EW-50 with built-in pulse input (PI) is used, pulses cannot be obtained during power interruption in AE-50/ EW-50, power shutdown and software updating, and the measured electric energy may be different from the actual value. Accordingly, the measurement by PI controller is recommended.

<2> Calculation of air conditioning charge

• The air conditioning charge is calculated by our unique air conditioning charge calculation system; the consumed electric energy is apportioned by using the billing parameter data based on the operation conditions of air conditioners. Therefore, the results differ from those obtained by electricity meters installed at the power supply points of air conditioners.

When the electric energy consumed by some outdoor units is apportioned by one electricity meter, the units are considered to be one large outdoor unit, and the charge is calculated. Therefore, the energy-saving capability of each outdoor unit cannot be taken into consideration.

To take the energy-saving capabilities of the outdoor units into consideration, it is recommended to install an electricity meter for each outdoor unit.

- When a system trouble occurs, take appropriate measures, e.g. execution of apportionment calculation on the following day or discontinuation of apportionment calculation.
- Since the air conditioning charge is calculated for each energy management block, the electric energy consumed by indoor units not registered in the energy management block will not be reflected in the charge.
- Since the air conditioning charge is rounded down to the indicated digit, an error will occur between the charge obtained by the meters and the total charge for the block.

<3> Cautions for operation and setting

• When the apportioned electricity billing function is used, perform adjustment processing before making any changes to the system configuration or billing system settings.

If changes are made to the system configuration, change the settings of the billing system by the Initial Setting Tool and Charge Calculation Tool, and perform a test run.

• Time setting

The change in time affects the calculation of air conditioning charge by the apportioned electricity billing function. Do not change the time unnecessarily.

(Correct the time on each set of AE-200 once a month. Never change the time to change the date.)

• After the completion of initial setting, perform a test run for checking in accordance with "AE-200/AE-50/EW-50 Instruction Book – Apportioned Electricity Billing Function –" to confirm that the charges can be correctly calculated.

16. Q&A

1. About the whole system

No.	Question	Answer
1	Can other manufacturers' air conditioners be controlled centrally?	The stop/start and error status can be controlled by connecting other manufacturers' air conditioners to the contacts of the DIDO controller and receiving the information in the contacts from the air conditioners through AE-200/AE-50.
2	What means are available for remote monitoring?	 There are two methods, a method by connecting through a broadband router using a phone line and a method ^{*1} by connecting through a router ^{*2} using the Internet line. To use the Internet line, it is necessary to establish an account with an Internet provider and obtain a global IP for identification of the router on the Internet (or use a dynamic DNS). Error notification e-mails can be received on a mobile phone or personal computer which can receive e-mails^{*3} by establishing an account with a provider. *1: This method cannot be used when there is a proxy server on the communication pathway. (Note that the internal LAN cannot be connected to a remote router in many cases.) *2: Ensure the security. When connecting to the corporate intranet, make sure that the VPN routers can be used. *3: This function is not applicable to SMS.
3	Although an error occurred, an error notification e-mail was not sent. Why?	 Check the followings. (1) Error notification e-mail setting Check that the error notification e-mail setting has been performed. For the setting procedure, see Section 5.1 "E-mail" of the Instruction Book for operation of Web browser for initial setting. (2) LAN connection Check that AE-200/AE-50 is connected to the LAN of the personal computer. (3) Gateway address setting Check that de gateway addresses of AE-200/AE-50 and the personal computer for the Web browser have been set. For the setting procedure, see Section 2.1 "Setting the IP Address of the PC" of the Instruction Book for operation of Web browser for initial setting. (4) Confirmation of port number For sending e-mails from AE-200/AE-50 and TG-2000A, the port No.25 is used. If the port No.25 is blocked by the mail server, e-mails cannot be sent. Contact the system administrator.

2. About Web browser

No.	Question	Ansı	wer
1	Is the Web browser compatible with Microsoft VM?	It is not compatible with Microsoft VM. * Java® runtime environment (Java Plug-ir The operations on Oracle®'s Java Plug-ir been confirmed. * The version of Oracle's Java Plug-in can * Install Oracle's Java Plug-in appropriate Internet Explorer (64-bit), install Java Plu	n made by Oracle [®]) is necessary. n Ver. 1.7.0_51 and Ver. 1.8.0_05 have n be checked in "Java" in the control panel. to your operating system. When using ug-in (64-bit).
2	We use Windows8.1. Can Internet Explorer (IE) on the start screen be used?	It cannot be used. Use Internet Explorer (IE) on the desktop so If IE is started on the start screen, once clos screen, and restart IE. For the screen switch for Windows8.1.	creen. se IE, switch the screen to the desktop ning procedure, see the instruction manual

3. About AE-200/AE-50

No.	Question	Answer
1	Is it necessary to register the license on each set of AE-50?	Register the license on each set of AE-200/AE-50. The licenses for AE-50 (1) to (3) can be registered on the main unit screen of AE-200.
2	When will the backlight of the main unit LCD go out? Can it be kept on constantly?	The backlight will go out when 3 minutes have passed without input of any operation. However, the backlight will be kept on while an error is pending. It cannot be kept on constantly.
3	Can error codes to be notified through e-mail be selected?	Error codes to be notified can be selected by the error code notification setting.
4	Can the K transmission converter (KA) be registered in a group?	The K transmission converter (KA) is not compatible.
5	Are there recommended USB memories?	 Use USB memories formatted with FAT16 or FAT32. Use those compatible with USB2.0. Use those without security function or which can be used without security function. The operations of the following models have been confirmed. (1) Manufacturer: Transcend Model: TS4GJF300 4G Bytes (2) Manufacturer: Transcend Model: TS16GJF300 16G Bytes (3) Manufacturer: Transcend Model: TS32GJF700 32G Bytes (4) Manufacturer: Sony Model: USM8GU B 8G Bytes (5) Manufacturer: imation Model: Nano-f 16G Bytes
6	Can AE-200/AE-50 be locked to avoid accidental operation?	They can be locked on the login screen by selecting Initial setting screen – Unit information screen and enabling the screen lock function. When the screen lock function is enabled, they will be automatically locked if they are not operated for a certain period (3 minutes). * However, when an error occurs, the screens will not be automatically locked.
7	How many icons can be arranged on one floor?	One area on a floor can contain 30 groups (icons). When a floor is divided into 6 areas, up to 180 groups can be arranged on the floor.
8	If some of the schedules for the first to fifth weeks are set on the same day, which schedule will be executed?	Priority will be given to the schedule of week 1, and the schedule will be executed. The order of priority is shown below (higher priority for the left). Schedule on current day > Annual schedule > week 1 > week 2 > week 3 > week 4 > week 5
9	Is it necessary to register the ME remote controller?	It is necessary to register it in a group. (The ME remote controller and system remote controller must be registered in a group. However, it is unnecessary to register the MA remote controller in a group.)
10	Can the display or non-display of the indoor (suction) temperature be selected?	It is possible to select one of "Display", "Non-display" and "Display only during operation". When "Display" is selected, the indoor (suction) temperature will be displayed constantly. When "Display only during operation" is selected, it will be displayed on the upper right of the group icon only during operation.
11	Can the plan view of TG-2000A be used as the plan view of AE-200/AE-50?	No. Since the plan view of AE-200/AE-50 differs in size and format from that of TG-2000A, prepare the plan views separately.
12	What measures should be taken when we forget the administrator login password?	Inform the agency or distributor of the serial number of AE-200/AE-50. You will be informed of the login password. After logging in, change the password.
13	Can restrictions on temperature setting range be imposed for Slim from AE-200/AE-50 through the M-NET adapter?	The restrictions on temperature setting range cannot be set through the M-NET adapter. Perform the setting for the MA remote controller on the MA remote controller. The setting for the ME remote controller can be performed because it is connected not through the M-NET adapter.
14	Can restrictions on temperature setting range be imposed for PAC-SF44SRA from AE-200/ AE-50?	The restrictions cannot be set for the system remote controller (44SR). They can be set only for the remote controllers (ME and MA) (depending on the model).
15	Can the night mode (low noise mode) be set in schedules?	The mode can be set from the Web browser and the general control software (TG-2000A).
16	When a fire occurs, can we stop the system only on the floor of the origin without stopping the whole system?	This is possible if AE-200/AE-50 is connected according to the floor range to input the fire alarm signal only to the relevant AE-200/AE-50.
17	Is the "Charge" license necessary for output of the electric energy data and billing parameters to the USB memory of AE-200/ AE-50?	The license is necessary. The data cannot be output without registration of the license. However, energy management data can be output without license.
18	Can the schedule settings be backed up to a USB memory?	Yes.
19	Can Mr. Slim Air Conditioner and LOSSNAY be interlocked by setting on AE-200/AE-50?	Yes. They can be interlocked also by connecting LOSSNAY directly with Mr. Slim (MA remote controller is required) through the LOSSNAY interlock cable.
20	The error codes of Mr. Slim are two-digit codes. How will they be displayed when it is connected to AE-200/AE-50?	For models (Mr. Slim, RAC/HAC) which can be connected with AE-200/AE-50, errors will be displayed with the error codes (4-digit) for AE-200/AE-50.
21	Is there a method for deleting the suction temperature displayed on AE-200/AE-50 during stop?	It is possible to select the room temperature display mode from "Constantly displayed", "Displayed during operation" and "Not displayed" in Unit information of Initial setting of the main unit of AE-200/AE-50. When "Displayed during operation" is selected, the temperature will not be displayed during stop.
22	How long will the backup data be retained when power is disconnected from AE-200/ AE-50 owing to power failure?	The present time will be backed up for 1 week and then reset. The peak-cut control data will be deleted. Other settings will be retained. However, 24 hours of charging time is required for AE-200/AE-50.

No	Question	Answer
23	When four indoor units are controlled by one ME remote controller, can the icons of the individual four units be placed in the floor layout of AE-200/AE-50 not by group, but by unit?	No. To place the icons individually, it is necessary to divide the group for each unit. However, the ME remote controller can control only one group, and the remaining three indoor units cannot be controlled.
24	If AE-200/AE-50 goes down after the setting for prohibiting operation of remote controller is performed from AE-200/AE-50, can the prohibition of operation of remote controller be canceled?	The prohibition will be canceled approx. 15 minutes after communication from AE-200/AE-50 is interrupted.
25	How will the air conditioners operate if power is disconnected from AE-200/AE-50 owing to power failure?	They will stop. However, they can be operated continuously if the remote controller or system controller is available. If not, they will stop after 13 minutes or less.
26	Can the peak-cut control be performed on the AE-50 system by connecting a demand controller to the external input of AE-200?	 Yes. Set the conditions in accordance with the following procedure. (1) Select [Function setting 1] – [Peak-cut setting] – [System setting] on the Web browser for initial setting of AE-50, and select [Other AE]. (2) The IP address input field will be displayed. Input the IP address of AE-200 to which the external input is connected. Note: The peak-cut control of AE-200/AE-50 for which [Other AE] has been selected will be started with a delay of up to 1 minute.
27	If AE-200/AE-50 goes down during emergency stop caused by the external input of AE-200/ AE-50, can the emergency stop be canceled?	The emergency stop will be canceled after 30 minutes or less.
28	Is the optical cable length limited?	The length varies depending on the optical media converter. For more information, see the instruction manual for the optical media converter to be used.
29	Can AE-200/AE-50 be connected with TG-2000A?	Yes. However, update the version of TG-2000A to 6.50 or later.

4. About energy management

No.	Question	Answer	
1	Can the energy management data be output from the main unit screen?	The data cannot be output from the LCD. Click Download on the energy use status screen of the administrator Web browser, or click CSV file output on the CSV output screen.	
2	Can the electric energy from the PLC (electric energy counting software) be displayed by the energy management function?	The electric energy cannot be displayed by the energy management function even if the PLC (electric energy counting software) is connected. To use the energy management function, use the PI controller.	
3	Can the energy management graphs be printed?	No. However, the CSV data can be output from the Web browser, and the CSV data can be processed on Excel and displayed and printed in graphs.	
4	Why are graphs not displayed even if the energy use status and ranking conditions are set?	The initial setting on the Web browser must be done. For details, see \$ [5] "Initial Setting of Energy Management Function."	
5	When the apportionment mode is changed (from the capacity save amount mode to the thermo ON time mode) on 13:15, in which apportionment mode is the electric energy from 13:00 to 13:30 calculated?	The electric energy will be calculated in the apportionment mode which is active at the time of apportionment calculation (0 min or 30 min). Therefore, that from 13:00 to 13:30 will be calculated in the thermo ON time mode.	
6	When an air conditioner is added on 13:15, when will the air conditioner be subject to apportionment?	The electric energy will be apportioned to the air conditioner at next 1 minute after it is registered in a group and a block (as needed) and the setting stated in \$ [5] "Initial Setting of Energy Management Function" is completed.	

5. About optional functions

No.	Question	Answer
1	Can the energy for other manufacturers' air conditioners and lights be saved?	No. The energy-saving control performed by the AE-200/AE-50 system can cover only Mitsubishi's air conditioners (products provided with M-NET).
2	What is the energy-saving/peak-cut control unit?	The control of indoor units is performed by group in the operation block. The control of outdoor units is performed by outdoor unit.
3	Can the power consumption be reduced to 80% when the capacity save amount of outdoor unit is reduced to 80%?	The maximum frequency of compressor will be saved to 80%. The electric energy will not be reduced to 80%.
4	Is the outdoor unit capacity saving function applicable to all of room air conditioners, Mr. Slim and Multi air conditioners?	It is not applicable to room air conditioners. It is applicable to the inverter outdoor units of CITY MULTI and Mr. Slim. It is not applicable to City Multi S.
5	Can only the energy-saving control be performed when the PI controller is not connected?	If "Energy Management License Pack" has been registered, the control can be performed.



for a greener tomorrow

Eco Changes is the Mitsubishi Electric Group's environmental statement, and expresses the Group's stance on environmental management. Through a wide range of businesses, we are helping contribute to the realization of a sustainable society.

∆Warning

- Do not use refrigerant other than the type indicated in the manuals provided with the unit and on the nameplate.
- Doing so may cause the unit or pipes to burst, or result in explosion or fire during use, during repair, or at the time of disposal of the unit.
- It may also be in violation of applicable laws.
- MITSUBISHI ELECTRIC CORPORATION cannot be held responsible for malfunctions or accidents resulting from the use of the wrong type of refrigerant.
- Our air-conditioning equipments and heat pumps contain a fluorinated greenhouse gas, R410A.

MITSUBISHI ELECTRIC CORPORATION

HEAD OFFICE: TOKYO BLDG 2-7-3 MARUNOUCHI CHIYODA-KU TOKYO 100-8310, JAPAN